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BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as

adopted by the European Union

The consolidated financial statements of the BNP Paribas Group are presented for the years ended

31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 In accordance with Article 20.1 of Annex of European
Commission Regulation EC 809/2004 the consolidated financial statements for 2006 are provided in the

registration document filed with the AutoritØ des marches financiers on 13 March 2008 under number
08-0108

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2008

Yearto3l Dec.2008Inmiflionsofeuros Note Yearto3l Dec 2007

Interestincome 2.a 58839 59141

Interestexpense 2.a 45341 49433

Commission income 2.b 10713 10721

Commission expense 2b 4854 4399

Net gaindoss on financial instruments atfair value through proft or loss 2.c 2693 7843

Net gaindoss on available-for-sale financial assets 2.d 464 2507

Income from other acthAties 2.e 20273 22601

Expense on other acthAties 2.e 15411 17944

REVENUES 27376 31037

Operating expense 17324 17773

Depreciation amortsation and impairment of property plantand equipment and

5.k 1076 991
intangible assets

GROSS OPERATING INCOME 8976 12273

Costof risk 2.f 5752 1725

OPERATING INCOME 3224 10548

Share of earnings of associates 217 358

Net gain on non-current assets 481 153

Change in value of goodwill

PRE-TAXNETINCOME 3924 11058

Corporate income tax 2.g 472 2747

NETINCOME 3452 8311

Net income attributable to minority interests 431 489

NET INCOME ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS 3021 7822

Basic earnings per
share 8.a 307 8.49

Dilutedearningspershare 8.a 3.06 842
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BALANCE SHEET AT 31 DECEMBER 2008

In millions of sums

No

Cash and amounts due from central banks and post
office banks

Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss

Detvs used for hedging purposes

Aailable-lbr-sale financial assets

Loans and receivables due from credit insfituhons

Loans and receiables due from customers

Renieasurement adjustment on interest-rate risk hedged portfolios

Held-to-maturityfinancial assets

Current and deferred tax assets

kcrued income and other assets

lnestnients in associates

lnestrnent property

Property plant and equipment

Intangible assets

Goodwill

TOTAL ASSETS

IARII ITI

31 December2008

39219

5.a 1192271

5.b 4555

5.c 130725

5.d 69153

5.e 494401

2541

5.g 14076

5.h 6055

5.i 82457

5.j 2643

5.k 9920

5.k 14807

5.k 1810

5.1 10918

2075551

31 December2007

18542

931706

2154

112594

71116

445103

264

14808

2965

60608

3333

6693

13165

1687

10244

1694454

Due to central banks and
post

office banks 1047 1724

Financial liabilities atfairalue through profit or loss 5.a 1054802 796125

Denaties used for hedging purposes 5.b 6172 1261

Due to credit institutions 5.d 186187 170182

Due to customers 5.e 413955 346704

Debt securities 5.f 157508 141056

Remeasurementadjustrnenton interest-rate tisk hedged portfolios
282 20

Current and deferred tax liabilities 5.h 3971 2475

kcrued expenses and other liabilities 5.i 83434 58815

Technical reserves of insurance companies 5.m 86514 93320

Provisions for contingencies and charges 5.n 4388 4738

Subordinated debt 5.f 18323 18641

TOTAL LIABILITIES 2016583 1635061

CONSOLIDATED EQUITY

Share capital and additional paid-in capital 13828 13472

Retained earnings 37909 29233

Net income for the period attributable to shareholders 3021 7822

54758 50527

Unrealised or deferred gains
and losses attributable to shareholders 1530 3272

Shareholders equity
53228 53799

Retained earnings
and net income for the period attributable to minority 6179 5712

Unrealised or deferred gains and losses attributable to minotityinterests 439 118

Total minority interests 5740 5594

Total consolidated equity 58968 59393

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY 2075551 1694454
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN SHAREHOLDERS
EQUITY BETWEEN JAN 2007 AND 31 DEC 2008

Rened

earnings and

netincome br

the pedod

Capital and retained earnings

In rnSIons of sums

Shareholders equity

SharecapII Effinlnaknof

and addlOonsl own equity

paid-In capII InsInitflen

Undad Super

SuboniInad

Notes

Capital and retained earnings at3l December2006 15589 1786 4447 26237 44487 5351

Appropriation of net income for 2006 2801 2801 164

Increase in share capital and issue 281 2296 2577

Reducbon in share capital und redempion 2428 2428 891

Movements in own equityinstruments 1236 1237

Share-based payment plans 25 51 26

Dividends on preferred shares and Undated Super Subordinated Notes 76 76 50

Interim dividends paid out of net income for the period 42

Aidibonal impact of the acquisifion of Banca Nadonale del Lavero 134 134

Other bansachons carried outwith minorityinterests 18 21 1112

Othermovements 12 46 34

Netincomefor200l 7822 7822 489

Capital and retained earnings at3l December2007 13472 619 6743 30931 50527 5712

Appropriation of net income for 2007 3016 3016 193

Increase in share capital and issue 356 3800 4156

Movements in own equityinstruments
270 22 37 211

Share-based payment plans 48 74 122

Dividends on preferred shares 232 232 185

Interim dividends paid out of net income for the period
80

Other transachons carded outwith mmnorityinterests 23 23 496

Other movements

Net income for 2008 3021 3021 431

Capital and retained earnings at 31 December 2008 13828 301 10521 30710 54758 6179

Unrealised or deferred gains and losses

In rn5Ionsofeuis

AaIIabIe-for- HednG

adjuatnent

sale resene rasene

Shareholders equity

linrealised or deferred gains and losses at3l December2006 298 5431 108 5025 39

Changes in fair value of financial instruments through shareholders equity
252 173 425 16

Changes in fair value offnancisl instruments through proft or loss 1330 27 1357

Effectof movements in exchange rates 924 924 95

Share of changes in net assets of equity-accounted joint enterprises 10 69 59

Other movements 44 44

Unrealised or deferred gains and losses at3l December 2007 1232 4466 38 3272 118

Changes in fair value of financial instruments through shareholders equity 4686 723 3963 118

Changes is fair value of 6nancisl insbumests through proftsr loss 11 28 39

Effectof movements in eochange rates 434 434 203

Share of changes in net assetsof equity-accounted jointenterprises 14 337 15 366

Unrealised or deferred gains and losses at3l December2008 1680 568 718 1530 439
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FOR THE YEAR ENDED
31 DECEMBER 2008

hnltlionsoteuros

Pre-tax net income

Non-monetary items included in pre-tax net income and other adjustments

Net depreciaton/amortisafion expense on property plant and equipment and intangible assets

Impairment of goodwill and other non-current assets

Net addition to provsions

Share of earnings of associates

Net income from insting actvtes

Net income from financing activties

Other moements

Net increase decrease in cash related to assets and liabilities generated by operating activities

Net increase in cash related to bansactons with credit institutions

Net increase in cash related to transactions with customers

Net decrease in cash related to transactions inolvng other financial assets and liabilities

Net decrease in cash related to transactions inolvng non-f nancial assets and liabilities

Taxes paid

Yearto3l Dec.2008 YssV3IDsc.2flO7

3924 11058

18849 4478

3074 2685

12

8225 8385

217 358

436 141

114 750

8305 5344

7301 2459

8204 32022

34362 19670

30127 49782

3452 2475

1686 1894

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS GENERATED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 30074 13077

Net increase decrease in cash related to
acquisitions

and
disposals

of consolidated entities 8.c 2760 1210

Net decrease related to property plant and equipment and intangible
assets 1413 1383

NET INCREASE DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS RELATED TO INVESTING ACTIVITIES 1347 2593

Decrease in cash and equivalents related to transactions with shareholders 3046 2938

Increases in cash and equivalents generated byotherfnancing acthities 9709 1066

NET DECREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS RELATED TO FINANCING ACTIVITIES 12755 1872

EFFECT OF MOVEMENT IN EXCHANGE RATES ON CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 257 648

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 18923 7964

Balance of cash and equivalent accounts at the start of the period 24038 16074

Cash and amounts due from central banks and post ofilce banks 18542 9642

Due to central banks and
post

office banks 1724 939

Demand deposits
with credit institutions 5.d 15497 15230

Demand loans from credit institutions 5.d 8165 7892

Deduction of receivables and accrued intereston cash and equivalents 112 33

Balance of cash and equivalent accounts at the end of the period 42961 24038

Cash and amounts due from central banks and post office banks 39219 18542

Due to central banks and post office banks 1047 1724

Demand deposits with credit institutions S.d 13514 15497

Demand loans from credit institutions 5.d 8673 8165

Deduction of receivables and accrued intereston cash and equivalents 52 112

NET INCREASE IN CASH AND EQUIVALENTS 18923 7964
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards as

adopted by the European Union

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES APPLIED BY THE BNP PARIBAS GROUP

l.a APPLIcABLE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS

International Financial Reporting Standards IFRS were applied to the consolidated financial

statements from January 2005 the date of first-time adoption in accordance with the requirements

of IFRS First-time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards and of other IFRS based

on the version and interpretations of standards adopted within the European Union1 and excluding

therefore certain provisions of lAS 39 on hedge accounting

In the fourth quarter of 2008 the Group applied the amendments to lAS 39 and IFRS adopted by the

European Union on 15 October 2008 concerning the reclassification of financial assets The effect of

this change is discussed in Note 5.a Financial assets financial liabilities and derivatives at fair value

through profit or loss

The Group did not choose to early-adopt the new standards amendments and interpretations adopted

by the European Union and whose application in 2008 was optional including in particular IFRS

Operating Segments The impact of IFRS on the segment information reported in the notes to the

financial statements is not expected to be significant

l.b CoNSoLIDATIoN

1.b.l SCOPE OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements of BNP Paribas include all entities under the exclusive or joint

control of the Group or over which the Group exercises significant influence with the exception of those

entities whose consolidation is regarded as immaterial to the Group The consolidation of an entity is

regarded as immaterial if it fails to meet any of the following thresholds contribution of more than

EUR million to consolidated Revenues more than EUR million to consolidated gross operating

income or net income before tax or more than EUR 40 million to total consolidated assets Companies
that hold shares in consolidated companies are also consolidated

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which the Group obtains effective control Entities under

temporary control are included in the consolidated financial statements until the date of disposal

The Group also consolidates special purpose entities SPEs formed specifically to manage transaction

or group of transactions with similarcharacteristics even where the Group has no equity interest in

the entity provided that the substance of the relationship indicates that the Group exercises control as

assessed by reference to the following criteria

The full set of standards adopted for use in the European Union can be consulted on the website of the European Commission

at http//ec .europa eu/internalmarketlaccounting/iasen.htmadopted-commission
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the activities of the SPE are being conducted exclusively on behalf of the Group such

that the Group obtains benefits from those activities

the Group has the decision-making and management powers to obtain the majority of

the benefits of the ordinary activities of the SPE as evidenced for example by the

power to dissolve the SPE to amend its bylaws or to exercise formal veto over

amendments to its bylaws

the Group has the ability to obtain the majority of the benefits of the SPE and therefore

may be exposed to risks incident to the activities of the SPE These benefits may be in

the form of rights to some or all of the SPEs earnings calculated on an annual basis to

share of its net assets to benefit from one or more assets or to receive the majority of

the residual assets in the event of liquidation

the Group retains the majority of the risks taken by the SPE in order to obtain benefits

from its activities This would apply for example if the Group remains exposed to the

initial losses on portfolio of assets held by the SPE

1.b.2 CONSOLIDATION METHODS

Enterprises under the exclusive control of the Group are fully consolidated The Group has exclusive

control over an enterprise where it is in position to govern the financial and operating policies of the

enterprise so as to obtain benefits from its activities Exclusive control is presumed to exist when the

BNP Paribas Group owns directly or indirectly more than half of the voting rights of an enterprise It

also exists when the Group has power to govern the financial and operating policies of the enterprise

under an agreement to appoint or remove the majority of the members of the Board of Directors or

equivalent governing body or to cast the majority of votes at meetings of the Board of Directors or

equivalent governing body

Currently exercisable or convertible potential voting rights are taken into account when determining the

percentage of control held

Jointly-controlled companies are consolidated by the proportional method The Group exercises joint

control when under contractual arrangement strategic financial and operating decisions require the

unanimous consent of the parties that share control

Enterprises over which the Group exercises significant influence associates are accounted for by the

equity method Significant influence is the power to participate in the financial and operating policy

decision-making of an enterprise without exercising control Significant influence is presumed to exist

when the Group holds directly or indirectly 20% or more of the voting power of an enterprise Interests

of less than 20% are excluded from consolidation unless they represent strategic investment and the

Group effectively exercises significant influence This applies to companies developed in partnership

with other groups where the BNP Paribas Group participates in the strategic decision-making of the

enterprise through representation on the Board of Directors or equivalent governing body exercises

influence over the enterprises operational management by supplying management systems or decision-

making tools and provides technical assistance to support the enterprises development

Changes in the net assets of associates companies accounted for under the equity method are

recognised in Investments in associates on the assets side of the balance sheet and in the relevant

component of shareholders equity Goodwill on associates is also included in Investments in

associates

If the Groups share of losses of an associate equals or exceeds the carrying amount of its investment in

the associate the Group discontinues including its share of further losses The investment is reported

at nil value Additional losses of the associate are provided for only to the extent that the Group has

legal or constructive obligation to do so or has made payments on behalf of the associate

Minority interests are presented separately in the consolidated profit and loss account and balance

sheet The calculation of minority interests takes account of outstanding cumulative preferred shares

classified as equity instruments and issued by subsidiaries when such shares are held outside the

Group
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Realised gains and losses on investments in consolidated undertakings are recognised in the profit and

loss account under Net gain on non-current assets

l.b.3 CONSOLIDATiON PROCEDURES

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for reporting like

transactions and other events in similarcircumstances

Elimination of intragroup balances and transactions

Intragroup balances arising from transactions between consolidated enterprises and the transactions

themselves including income expenses and dividends are eliminated Profits and losses arising from

intragroup sales of assets are eliminated except where there is an indication that the asset sold is

impaired Unrealised gains and losses included in the value of available-for-sale assets are maintained

in the consolidated financial statements

Translation of financial statements expressed in foreign currencies

The consolidated financial statements of BNP Paribas are prepared in euros

The financial statements of enterprises whose functional currency is not the euro are translated using
the closing rate method Under this method all assets and liabilities both monetary and non-monetary
are translated using the spot exchange rate at the balance sheet date Income and expense items are

translated at the average rate for the period

The same method is applied to the financial statements of enterprises located in hyperinflationary

economies after adjusting for the effects of inflation by applying general price index

Differences arising on the translation of balance sheet items and profit and loss items are recorded in

shareholders equity under Cumulative translation adjustment for the portion attributable to

shareholders and in Minority interests for the portion attributable to outside investors Under the

optional treatment permitted by IFRS the Group has reset at zero by transfer to retained earnings
all cumulative translation differences attributable to shareholders and to minority interests in the

opening balance sheet at January 2004

On liquidation or disposal of some or all of the interest held in foreign enterprise the portion of the

cumulative translation adjustment recorded in shareholders equity in respect of the interest liquidated

or disposed of is recognised in the profit and loss account

1.b.4 BUSINESS COMBINATIONS AND MEASUREMENT OF GOODWILL

Business combinations

Business combinations are accounted for by the purchase method Under this method the acquirees
identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities that meet the IFRS recognition criteria are

measured at fair value at the acquisition date except for non-current assets classified as assets held for

sale which are accounted for at fair value less costs to sell The Group may recognise any adjustments
to the provisional accounting within 12 months of the acquisition date

The cost of business combination is the fair value at the date of exchange of assets given liabilities

assumed and equity instruments issued to obtain control of the acquiree plus any costs directly

attributable to the combination

10
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Goodwill represents the difference between the cost of the combination and the acquirers interest in the

net fair value of the identifiable assets liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree at the

acquisition date Positive goodwill is recognised in the acquirers balance sheet while badwill is

recognised immediately in profit or loss on the acquisition date

Goodwill is recognised in the functional currency of the acquiree and translated at the closing exchange

rate

The BNP Paribas Group tests goodwill for impairment on regular basis

As permitted under IFRS business combinations that took place before January 2004 and were

recorded in accordance with the previously applicable accounting standards French GAAP have not

been restated in accordance with the principles set out above

Cash-generating units

The BNP Paribas Group has split all its activities into cash-generating Unjts2 representing major

business lines This split is consistent with the Groups organisational structure and management

methods and reflects the independence of each unit in terms of results and management approach It

is reviewed on regular basis in order to take account of events likely to affect the composition of cash-

generating units such as acquisitions disposals and major reorganisations

Testing cash-generating units for impairment

Goodwill allocated to cash-generating units is tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an

indication that unit may be impaired by comparing the carrying amount of the unit with its

recoverable amount If the recoverable amount is less than the carrying amount an irreversible

impairment loss is recognised and the goodwill is written down by the excess of the carrying amount of

the unit over its recoverable amount

Recoverable amount of cash-generating unit

The recoverable amount of cash-generating unit is the higher of the fair value of the unit and its value

in use

Fair value is the price that would be obtained from selling the unit at the market conditions prevailing

at the date of measurement as determined mainly by reference to actual prices of recent transactions

involving similarentities or on the basis of stock market multiples for comparable companies

Value in use is based on an estimate of the future cash flows to be generated by the cash-generating

unit derived from the annual forecasts prepared by the units management and approved by Group

Executive Management and from analyses of changes in the relative positioning of the units activities

on their market These cash flows are discounted at rate that reflects the return that investors would

require from an investment in the business sector and region involved

i.e FiNANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

1.c.1 LOANS AND RECEIVABLES

Loans and receivables include credit provided by the Group the Groups share in syndicated loans and

purchased loans that are not quoted in an active market unless they are held for trading purposes

Loans that are quoted in an active market are classified as Available-for-sale financial assets and

measured using the methods applicable to this category

As defined by lAS 36
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Loans and receivables are initially measured at fair value which is usually the net amount disbursed at

inception including directly attributable origination costs and certain types of fees or commission

syndication commission commitment fees and handling charges that are regarded as an adjustment
to the effective interest rate on the loan

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost The income from the loan
representing interest plus transaction costs and fees/commission included in the initial value of the

loan is calculated using the effective interest method and taken to profit or loss over the life of the loan

Commission earned on financing commitments prior to the inception of loan is deferred and included

in the value of the loan when the loan is made

Commission earned on financing commitments where the probability of drawdown is low or there is

uncertainty as to the timing and amount of drawdowns is recognised on straight-line basis over the

life of the commitment

1.c.2 REGULATED SAViNGS AND LOAN CONTRACTS

Home savings accounts Comptes Epargne-Logement CEL and home savings plans Plans dEpargne
Logement PEL are government-regulated retail products sold in France They combine savings

phase and loan phase which are inseparable with the loan phase contingent upon the savings phase

These products contain two types of obligation for BNP Paribas an obligation to pay interest on the

savings for an indefinite period at rate set by the government on inception of the contract in the case
of PEL products or at rate reset every six months using an indexation formula set by law in the case

of CEL products and ii an obligation to lend to the customer at the customers option an amount
contingent upon the rights acquired during the savings phase at rate set on inception of the contract

in the case of PEL products or at rate contingent upon the savings phase in the case of CEL
products

The Groups future obligations in respect of each generation in the case of PEL products generation

comprises all products with the same interest rate at inception in the case of CEL products all such

products constitute single generation are measured by discounting potential future earnings from at-

risk outstandings for that generation

At-risk outstandings are estimated on the basis of historical analysis of customer behaviour and

equate to

for the loan phase statistically probable loan outstandings and actual loan

outstandings

for the savings phase the difference between statistically probable outstandings and
minimum expected outstandings with minimum expected outstandings being deemed

equivalent to unconditional term deposits

Earnings for future periods from the savings phase are estimated as the difference between the

reinvestment rate and ii the fixed savings interest rate on at-risk savings outstandings for the period in

question Earnings for future periods from the loan phase are estimated as the difference between the

refinancing rate and ii the fixed loan interest rate on at-risk loan outstandings for the period in

question

The reinvestment rate for savings and the refinancing rate for loans are derived from the swap yield

curve and from the spreads expected on financial instruments of similar type and maturity Spreads are
determined on the basis of actual spreads on fixed rate home loans in the case of the loan phase and
ii euro-denominated life insurance products in the case of the savings phase In order to reflect the

uncertainty of future interest rate trends and the impact of such trends on customer behaviour models
and on at-risk outstandings the obligations are estimated using the Monte Carlo method

Where the sum of the Groups estimated future obligations in respect of the savings and loan phases of

any generation of contracts indicates
potentially unfavourable situation for the Group provision is

recognised with no offset between generations in the balance sheet in Provisions for contingencies and
charges Movements in this provision are recognised as interest income in the profit and loss account
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1.c.3 SECURITIES

Categories of securities

Securities held by the Group are classified in one of three categories

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss comprise

financial assets held for trading purposes

financial assets that the Group has opted on initial recognition to recognise and measure at

fair value through profit or loss using the fair value option available under lAS 39 The

conditions for applying the fair value option are set out in section .c 10

Securities in this category are measured at fair value at the balance sheet date Transaction

costs are directly posted in the profit and loss account Changes in fair value excluding accrued

interest on fixed-income securities are presented in the profit and loss account under Net

gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss along with dividends

from variable-income securities and realised gains and losses on disposal

Income earned on fixed-income securities classified in this category is shown under Interest

income in the profit and loss account

Fair value incorporates an assessment of the counterparty risk on these securities

Loans and receivables

Securities with fixed or determinable payments that are not traded on an active market apart

from securities for which the owner may not recover almost all of its initial investment due to

reasons other than credit deterioration are classified as Loans and receivables if they do not

meet the criteria to be classified as Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss These

securities are measured and recognised as described in section .c

Held-to-maturity financial assets

Held-to-maturity financial assets are investments with fixed or determinable payments and fixed

maturity that the Group has the intention and ability to hold until maturity Hedges contracted

to cover assets in this category against interest rate risk do not qualify for hedge accounting as

defined in lAS 39

Assets in this category are accounted for at amortised cost using the effective interest method

which builds in amortisation of premium and discount corresponding to the difference between

the purchase price and redemption value of the asset and incidental acquisition costs where

material Income earned from this category of assets is included in Interest income in the

profit and loss account

Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are fixed-income and variable-income securities other than

those classified as fair value through profit or loss or held-to-maturity

Assets included in the available-for-sale category are initially recorded at fair value plus

transaction costs where material At the balance sheet date they are remeasured to fair value
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with changes in fair value excluding accrued interest shown on separate line in shareholders

equity Unrealised or deferred gains or losses On disposal these unrealised gains and losses

are transferred from shareholders equity to the profit and loss account where they are shown

on the line Net gain/loss on available-for-sale financial assets

Income recognised using the effective interest method derived from fixed-income available-for-

sale securities is recorded in Interest income in the profit and loss account Dividend income

from variable-income securities is recognised in Net gain/loss on available-for-sale financial

assets when the Groups right to receive payment is established

Repurchase agreements and securities lending/borrowing

Securities temporarily sold under repurchase agreements continue to be recorded in the Groups
balance sheet in the category of securities to which they belong The corresponding liability is

recognised in the appropriate debt category in the balance sheet except in the case of repurchase

agreements contracted for trading purposes where the corresponding liability is classified in Financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Securities temporarily acquired under reverse repurchase agreements are not recognised in the Groups
balance sheet The corresponding receivable is recognised in Loans and receivables except in the case

of reverse repurchase agreements contracted for trading purposes where the corresponding receivable

is recognised in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Securities lending transactions do not result in derecognition of the loaned securities and securities

borrowing transactions do not result in recognition of the borrowed securities in the balance sheet

except in cases where the borrowed securities are subsequently sold by the Group In such cases the

obligation to deliver the borrowed securities on maturity is recognised in the balance sheet under

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Date of recognition for securities transactions

Securities classified as at fair value through profit or loss held-to-maturity or available-for-sale

financial assets are recognised at the trade date

Regardless of their classification at fair value through profit or loss loans and receivables or debt

temporary sales of securities as well as sales of borrowed securities are initially recognised at the

settlement date

Securities transactions are carried on the balance sheet until the Groups rights to receive the related

cash flows expire or until the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards incident to

ownership of the securities

1.c.4 FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSACTIONS

The methods used to account for assets and liabilities relating to foreign currency transactions entered

into by the Group and to measure the foreign exchange risk arising on such transactions depends

upon whether the asset or liability in question is classified as monetary or non-monetary item

Monetary assets and liabilities3 expressed in foreign currencies

Monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies are translated into the functional

currency of the relevant Group entity at the closing rate Translation differences are recognised

Monetary assets and liabilities are assets and liabilities to be received or paid in fixed or determinable amounts of cash
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in the profit and loss account except for those arising on financial instruments designated as

cash flow hedge or net foreign investment hedge which are recognised in shareholders equity

Non-monetary assets and liabilities expressed in foreign currencies

Non-monetary assets may be measured either at historical cost or at fair value Non-monetary
assets expressed in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the

transaction if they are measured at historical cost and at the closing rate if they are measured
at fair value

Translation differences on non-monetary assets expressed in foreign currencies and measured

at fair value variable-income securities are recognised in the profit and loss account if the asset

is classified in Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and in shareholders equity

if the asset is classified in Available-for-sale financial assets unless the financial asset in

question is designated as an item hedged against foreign exchange risk in fair value hedging
relationship in which case the translation difference is recognised in the profit and loss

account

1.c.5 IMPAIRMENT OF FINANCiAL ASSETS

Impairment of loans and receivables and held-to-maturity financial assets provisions for financing

and guarantee commitments

An impairment loss is recognised against loans and held-to-maturity financial assets where there is

objective evidence of decrease in value as result of an event occurring after inception of the loan or

acquisition of the asset ii the event affects the amount or timing of future cash flows and iii the

consequences of the event can be measured reliably Loans are assessed for evidence of impairment

initially on an individual basis and subsequently on portfolio basis Similar principles are applied to

financing and guarantee commitments given by the Group with the probability of drawdown taken into

account in any assessment of financing commitments

At individual level objective evidence that financial asset is impaired includes observable data about

the following events

the existence of accounts more than three months past due six months past due for

real estate loans and loans to local authorities

knowledge or indications that the borrower is in significant financial difficulty such that

risk can be considered to have arisen regardless of whether the borrower has missed

any payments

concessions in respect of the credit terms granted to the borrower that the lender would

not have considered had the borrower not been in financial difficulty

The amount of the impairment is the difference between the carrying amount before impairment and

the present value discounted at the original effective interest rate of the asset of those components

principal interest collateral etc regarded as recoverable Changes in the amount of impairment
losses are taken to the profit and loss account under Cost of risk Any subsequent decrease in an

impairment loss that can be related objectively to an event occurring after the impairment loss was

recognised is credited to the profit and loss account also under Cost of risk Once an asset has been

impaired the notional interest earned on the carrying amount of the asset calculated at the original

effective interest rate used to discount the estimated recoverable cash flows is recognised in Interest

income in the profit and loss account
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Impairment losses taken against loans and receivables are usually recorded in separate provision

account which reduces the amount for which the loan or receivable was recorded in assets upon initial

recognition Provisions relating to off-balance sheet financial instruments financing and guarantee

commitments or disputes are recognised in liabilities Impaired receivables are written off in whole or in

part and the corresponding provision reversed for the amount of the loss when all other means available

to the Bank for recovering the receivables or guarantees have failed or when all or part of the

receivables has been waived

Counterparties that are not individually impaired are risk-assessed on the basis of portfolios of loans

with similar characteristics This assessment draws upon an internal rating system based on historical

data adjusted as necessary to reflect circumstances prevailing at the balance sheet date It enables the

Group to identifr groups of counterparties which as result of events occurring since inception of the

loans have collectively acquired probability of default at maturity that provides objective evidence of

impairment of the entire portfolio but without it being possible at that stage to allocate the impairment

to individual counterparties This assessment also estimates the amount of the loss on the portfolios in

question taking account of trends in the economic cycle during the assessment period Changes in the

amount of portfolio impairments are taken to the profit and loss account under Cost of risk

Based on the experienced judgement of the Banks divisions or Risk Management the Group may

recognise additional collective impairment provisions in respect of given economic sector or

geographic area affected by exceptional economic events This may be the case when the consequences
of these events cannot be measured with sufficient accuracy to adjust the parameters used to

determine the collective provision recognised against affected portfolios of loans with similar

characteristics

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets

Impairment of available-for-sale financial assets which mainly comprise securities is recognised on an

individual basis if there is objective evidence of impairment as result of one or more events occurring

since acquisition

In the case of variable-income securities quoted in an active market significant 20% or prolonged

decline in quoted price below the acquisition cost is regarded as an indication of impairment and

prompts the Group to carry out qualitative analysis Where appropriate the impairment loss is

calculated based on the quoted price for the securities The same applies if the value of security falls

by more than 30% over 12-month period

similarquantitative and qualitative method is applied for unlisted variable-income securities

In the case of fixed-income securities impairment is assessed based on the same criteria as applied to

individually impaired loans and receivables

Impairment losses taken against variable-income securities are recognised as component of Revenues

on the line Net gain/loss on available-for-sale financial assets and may not be reversed through the

profit and loss account until the securities in question are sold Any subsequent decline in fair value

constitutes an additional impairment loss recognised in the profit and loss account

Impairment losses taken against fixed-income securities are recognised in Cost of risk and may be

reversed through the profit and loss account in the event of an increase in fair value that relates

objectively to an event occurring after the last impairment was recognised

1.c.6 RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCiAL ASSETS

The only authorised reclassifications of financial assets are the following

For non-derivative financial asset that is held for the purposes of selling it in the near

term out of Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and into

16-



BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Loans and receivables if the asset meets the definition for this category and the Group has

the intention and ability to hold the asset for the foreseeable future or until maturity or

Other categories only under rare circumstances where justified and provided that the

reclassified assets meet the conditions applicable to the host portfolio

Out of Available-for-sale financial assets and into

Loans and receivables on the same conditions as set out above for Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss

Held-to-maturity financial assets for assets that have maturity or Financial assets at

cost for unlisted variable-income assets

Financial assets are reclassified at fair value or the value calculated by model on the reclassification

date Any derivatives embedded in the reclassified financial assets are recognised separately and

changes in fair value are recognised through profit or loss

After reclassification assets are recognised according to the provisions applicable to the host portfolio

The transfer price on the reclassification date is deemed to be the initial cost of the asset for the

purpose of determining any impairment

In the event of reclassification from available-for-sale financial assets to another category gains or

losses previously recognised through equity are amortised to profit or loss over the residual life of the

instrument using the effective interest rate method

Any upward revisions to the estimated recoverable amounts are recognised through an adjustment to

the effective interest rate as of the date on which the estimate is revised Downward revisions are

recognised through an adjustment to the financial assets carrying amount

1.c.7 ISSUES OF DEBT SECURITIES

Financial instruments issued by the Group are qualified as debt instruments if the Group company

issuing the instruments has contractual obligation to deliver cash or another financial asset to the

holder of the instrument The same applies if the Group may be obliged to exchange financial assets or

financial liabilities with another entity under conditions that are potentially unfavourable to the Group

or to deliver variable number of the Groups own equity instruments

Issues of debt securities are initially recognised at the issue value including transaction costs and are

subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method

Bonds redeemable for or convertible into equity instruments of the Group are accounted for as hybrid

instruments with debt component and an equity component determined on initial recognition

1.c.8 OWN EQUITY INSTRUMENTS AND OWN EQUITY INSTRUMENT DERIVATIVES

The term own equity instruments refers to shares issued by the parent company BNP Paribas SA or

by its fully consolidated subsidiaries

Own equity instruments held by the Group also known as treasury shares are deducted from

consolidated shareholders equity irrespective of the purpose for which they are held Gains and losses

arising on such instruments are eliminated from the consolidated profit and loss account

When the Group acquires equity instruments issued by subsidiaries under the exclusive control of

BNP Paribas the difference between the acquisition price and the share of net assets acquired is

recorded in retained earnings attributable to BNP Paribas shareholders Similarly the liability

corresponding to put options granted to minority shareholders in such subsidiaries and changes in the

value of that liability are offset initially against minority interests with any surplus offset against

retained earnings attributable to BNP Paribas shareholders Until these options have been exercised

the portion of net income attributable to minority interests is allocated to minority interests in the profit
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and loss account decrease in the Groups interest in filly consolidated subsidiary is recognised in

the Groups accounts as change in shareholders equity

Own equity instrument derivatives are treated as follows depending on the method of settlement

as equity instruments if they are settled by physical delivery of fixed number of own

equity instruments for fixed amount of cash or other financial asset Such

instruments are not revalued

as derivatives if they are settled in cash or through choice of whether they are settled

by physical delivery of the shares or in cash Changes in value of such instruments are

taken to the profit and loss account

If the contract includes an obligation whether contingent or not for the bank to repurchase its own

shares the bank must recognise the present value of the debt with an offsetting entry in equity

1.c.9 DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGE ACCOUNTING

All derivative instruments are recognised in the balance sheet on the trade date at the transaction price

and are remeasured to fair value on the balance sheet date

Derivatives held for trading purposes

Derivatives held for trading purposes are recognised in the balance sheet in Financial assets at fair

value through profit or loss when their fair value is positive and in Financial liabilities at fair value

through profit or loss when their fair value is negative Realised and unrealised gains and losses are

taken to the profit arid loss account on the line Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value

through profit or loss

Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivatives contracted as part of hedging relationship are designated according to the purpose of the

hedge

Fair value hedges are used in particular to hedge interest rate risk on fixed rate assets and liabilities

both for identified financial instruments securities debt issues loans borrowings and for portfolios of

financial instruments in particular demand deposits and fixed rate loans

Cash flow hedges are used in particular to hedge interest rate risk on floating-rate assets and liabilities

including rollovers and foreign exchange risk on highly probable forecast foreign currency revenues

At the inception of the hedge the Group prepares formal documentation of the hedging relationship

identitring the instrument or portion of the instrument or portion of risk that is being hedged the

hedging strategy and the type of risk covered the hedging instrument and the methods used to assess

the effectiveness of the hedging relationship

On inception and at least quarterly the Group assesses consistently with the original documentation
the actual retrospective and expected prospective effectiveness of the hedging relationship

Retrospective effectiveness tests are designed to assess whether actual changes in the fair value or cash

flows of the hedging instrument and the hedged item are within range of 80% to 125% Prospective

effectiveness tests are designed to ensure that expected changes in the fair value or cash flows of the

derivative over the residual life of the hedge adequately offset those of the hedged item For highly

probable forecast transactions effectiveness is assessed largely on the basis of historical data for

similar transactions
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Under lAS 39 as adopted by the European Union which excludes certain provisions on portfolio

hedging interest rate risk hedging relationships based on portfolios of assets or liabilities quaIif for

fair value hedge accounting as follows

the risk designated as being hedged is the interest rate risk associated with the

interbank rate component of interest rates on commercial banking transactions loans

to customers savings accounts and demand deposits

the instruments designated as being hedged correspond for each maturity band to

portion of the interest rate gap associated with the hedged underlyings

the hedging instruments used consist exclusively of plain vanilla swaps

prospective hedge effectiveness is established by the fact that all derivatives must on

inception have the effect of reducing interest rate risk in the portfolio of hedged

underlyings Retrospectively hedge will be disqualified from hedge accounting once

shortfall arises in the underlyings specifically associated with that hedge for each

maturity band due to prepayment of loans or withdrawals of deposits

The accounting treatment of derivatives and hedged items depends on the hedging strategy

In fair value hedging relationship the derivative instrument is remeasured at fair value in the balance

sheet with changes in fair value taken to profit or loss in Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair

value through profit or loss symmetrically with the remeasurement of the hedged item to reflect the

hedged risk In the balance sheet the fair value remeasurement of the hedged component is recognised

in accordance with the classification of the hedged item in the case of hedge of identified assets and

liabilities or under Remeasurement adjustment on interest rate risk hedged portfolios in the case of

portfolio hedging relationship

If hedging relationship ceases or no longer fulfils the effectiveness criteria the hedging instrument is

transferred to the trading book and accounted for using the treatment applied to this asset category In

the case of identified fixed-income instruments the remeasurement adjustment recognised in the

balance sheet is amortised at the effective interest rate over the remaining life of the instrument In the

case of interest rate risk hedged fixed-income portfolios the adjustment is amortised on straight-line

basis over the remainder of the original term of the hedge If the hedged item no longer appears in the

balance sheet in particular due to prepayments the adjustment is taken to the profit and loss account

immediately

In cash flow hedging relationship the derivative is stated at fair value in the balance sheet with

changes in fair value taken to shareholders equity on separate line Unrealised or deferred gains or

losses The amounts taken to shareholders equity over the life of the hedge are transferred to the profit

and loss account under Net interest income as and when the cash flows from the hedged item impact

profit or loss The hedged items continue to be accounted for using the treatment specific to the asset

category to which they belong

If the hedging relationship ceases or no longer fulfils the effectiveness criteria the cumulative amounts

recognised in shareholders equity as result of the remeasurement of the hedging instrument remain

in equity until the hedged transaction itself impacts profit or loss or until it becomes clear that the

transaction will not occur at which point they are transferred to the profit and loss account

If the hedged item ceases to exist the cumulative amounts recognised in shareholders equity are

immediately taken to the profit and loss account

Whatever the hedging strategy used any ineffective portion of the hedge is recognised in the profit and

loss account under Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Hedges of net foreign currency investments in subsidiaries and branches are accounted for in the same

way as cash flow hedges The gains and losses initially recognised in shareholders equity are taken to

the profit and loss account when the net investment is sold or liquidated in full or in part Hedging

instruments may be currency hedges or any other non-derivative financial instrument
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Embedded derivatives

Derivatives embedded in hybrid financial instruments are extracted from the value of the host contract

and accounted for separately as derivative if the hybrid instrument is not recorded as financial asset

or liability at fair value through profit or loss and if the economic characteristics and risks of the

embedded derivative are not closely related to those of the host contract

1.c.10 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

Financial assets and liabilities classified as fair value through profit or loss and financial assets

classified as available-for-sale are measured and accounted for at fair value upon initial recognition
and at subsequent dates Fair value is defined as the amount for which an asset could be exchanged or

liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction On initial

recognition the value of financial instrument is generally the transaction price i.e the value of the

consideration paid or received

Method of determining fair value

Fair value is determined

on the basis of quoted prices in an active market or

using valuation techniques involving

mathematical calculation methods based on accepted financial theories and

parameters derived in some cases from the prices of instruments traded in active markets
and in others from statistical estimates or other quantitative methods

The distinction between the two valuation methods is made according to whether or not the instrument
is traded in an active market

Whether or not market is active is determined on the basis of variety of factors Characteristics of an
inactive market include significant decline in the volume and level of trading activity in identical or
similar instruments the available prices vary significantly over time or among market participants or
observed transaction prices are not current

The Bank distinguishes between three categories of financial instruments based on the characteristics

of the instrument and the measurement method used This classification is used as the basis for the

information provided in the notes to the consolidated financial statements in accordance with

international accounting standards

Category financial instruments quoted on an active market

Category financial instruments measured using valuation models based on
observable parameters

Category financial instruments measured using valuation models based wholly or

partly on non-observable parameters non-observable parameter is defined as

parameter whose value results from assumptions or correlations which are not based on
observable current market transactions in the same instrument at the valuation date or

on observable market data at that date

Instruments traded in active markets

If quoted prices in an active market are available they are used to determine fair value This method is

used for quoted securities and for derivatives traded on organised markets such as futures and options
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The majority of over-the-counter derivatives swaps forward rate agreements caps floors and plain

vanilla options are traded in active markets Valuations are determined using generally accepted models

discounted cash flows Black Scholes model interpolation techniques based on quoted market

prices for similar instruments or underlyings

The valuation derived from these models is adjusted for liquidity and credit risk

Starting from valuations derived from median market prices price adjustments are used to value the

net position in each financial instrument at bid price in the case of short positions or at asking price in

the case of long positions Bid price is the price at which counterparty would buy the instrument and

asking price is the price at which seller would sell the same instrument

counterparty risk adjustment is included in the valuation derived from the model in order to reflect

the credit quality of the derivative instrument

Instruments traded in inactive markets

Products traded in inactive markets and valued using an internal valuation model based

on directly observable parameters or on parameters derived from observable data

Some financial instruments although not traded in an active market are valued using methods

based on observable market data

These models use market parameters calibrated on the basis of observable data such as yield

curves implicit volatility layers of options default rates and loss assumptions obtained from

consensus data or from active over-the-counter markets Valuations derived from these models are

adjusted for liquidity and credit risk

The margin generated when these financial instruments are traded is taken to the profit and loss

account immediately

Products traded in inactive markets and valued using an internal valuation model based

on parameters that are not observable or only partially observable

Some illiquid complex financial instruments are valued using internally-developed techniques and

techniques that are based on data only partially observable on active markets

In the absence of observable data these instruments are measured on initial recognition in way
that reflects the transaction price regarded as the best indication of fair value Valuations derived

from these models are adjusted for liquidity risk and credit risk

The margin generated when these complex financial instruments are traded day one profit is

deferred and taken to the profit and loss account over the period during which the valuation

parameters are expected to remain non-observable When parameters that were originally non-

observable become observable or when the valuation can be substantiated by comparison with

recent similar transactions in an active market the unrecognised portion of the day one profit is

released to the profit and loss account

Unlisted equity securities

The fair value of unlisted equity securities is measured by comparison with recent transactions in

the equity of the company in question carried out with an independent third party on an arms

length basis If no such reference is available the valuation is determined either on the basis of

generally accepted practices EBIT or EBITDA multiples or of the Groups share of net assets as

calculated using the most recently available information

-21-



BNP PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

1.c.11 FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABiLiTIES DESiGNATED AT FAiR VALUE THROUGH
PROFIT OR LOSS FAIR VALUE OPTION

The amendment to lAS 39 relating to the fair value option was adopted by the European Union on

15 November 2005 with effect from January 2005

This option allows entities to designate any financial asset or financial liability on initial recognition as

measured at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss in the following cases

hybrid financial instruments containing one or more embedded derivatives which

otherwise would have been extracted and accounted for separately

where using the option enables the entity to eliminate or significantly reduce

mismatch in the measurement and accounting treatment of assets and liabilities that

would arise if they were to be classified in separate categories

where group of financial assets and/or financial liabilities is managed and measured

on the basis of fair value under properly documented management and investment

strategy

BNP Paribas applies this option primarily to financial assets related to unit-linked business in order to

achieve consistency of treatment with the related liabilities and to structured issues containing

significant embedded derivatives

1.c.12 INCOME AND EXPENSES ARISING FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL

LIABILITIES

Income and expenses arising from financial instruments measured at amortised cost and from fixed-

income securities classified in Available-for-sale financial assets are recognised in the profit and loss

account using the effective interest method

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash flows through the

expected life of the financial instrument or when appropriate shorter period to the net carrying

amount of the asset or liability in the balance sheet The effective interest rate calculation takes account

of all fees received or paid that are an integral part of the effective interest rate of the contract ii

transaction costs and iii premiums and discounts

The method used by the Group to recognise service-related commission income and expenses depends

on the nature of the service Commission treated as an additional component of interest is included in

the effective interest rate and is recognised in the profit and loss account in Net interest income

Commission payable or receivable on execution of significant transaction is recognised in the profit

and loss account in full on execution of the transaction under Commission income and expense
Commission payable or receivable for recurring services is recognised over the term of the service also

under Commission income and expense

Commission received in respect of financial guarantee commitments is regarded as representing the fair

value of the commitment The resulting liability is subsequently amortised over the term of the

commitment under commission income in Revenues

External costs that are directly attributable to an issue of new shares are deducted from equity net of

all related taxes

1.c.13 COST OF RISK

Cost of risk includes movements in provisions for impairment of fixed-income securities and loans and

receivables due from customers and credit institutions movements in financing and guarantee
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commitments given losses on irrecoverable loans and amounts recovered on loans written off This

caption also includes impairment losses recorded in respect of default risk incurred on counterparties

for over-the-counter financial instruments as well as expenses relating to fraud and to disputes

inherent to the financing business

1.c.14 DERECOGNITION OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

The Group derecognises all or part of financial asset either when the contractual rights to the cash

flows from the asset expire or ii when the Group transfers the contractual rights to the cash flows from

the asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset Unless these conditions

are fulfilled the Group retains the asset in its balance sheet and recognises liability for the obligation

created as result of the transfer of the asset

The Group derecognises all or part of financial liability when the liability is extinguished in full or in

part

1.c.15 NETTING OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

financial asset and financial liability are offset and the net amount presented in the balance sheet

if and only if the Group has legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and intends

either to settle on net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously

1.d ACCOUNTING STANDARDS SPECIFIC TO INSURANCE BUSINESS

The specific accounting policies relating to assets and liabilities generated by insurance contracts and

financial contracts with discretionary participation feature written by fully consolidated insurance

companies are retained for the purposes of the consolidated financial statements These policies comply

with IFRS

All other insurance company assets and liabilities are accounted for using the policies applied to the

Groups assets and liabilities generally and are included in the relevant balance sheet and profit and

loss account headings in the consolidated financial statements

1.d.1 ASSETS

Financial assets and non-current assets are accounted for using the policies described elsewhere in this

note The only exceptions are shares in civil property companies SCIs held in unit-linked insurance

contract portfolios which are measured at fair value on the balance sheet date with changes in fair

value taken to profit or loss

Financial assets representing technical provisions related to unit-linked business are shown in

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss and are stated at the realisable value of the

underlying assets at the balance sheet date

1.d2 LIABILITIES

The Groups obligations to policyholders and beneficiaries are shown in Technical reserves of insurance

companies and comprise liabilities relating to insurance contracts carrying significant insurance risk

e.g mortality or disability and to financial contracts with discretionary participation feature which
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are covered by IFRS discretionary participation feature is one which gives life policyholders the

right to receive as supplement to guaranteed benefits share of actual profits

Liabilities relating to other financial contracts which are covered by lAS 39 are shown in Due to

customers

Unit-linked contract liabilities are measured by reference to the fair value of the underlying assets at

the balance sheet date

The technical reserves of life insurance subsidiaries consist primarily of mathematical reserves which

generally correspond to the surrender value of the contract

The benefits offered relate mainly to the risk of death term life insurance annuities loan repayment
guaranteed minimum on unit-linked contracts and for borrowers insurance to disability incapacity

and unemployment risks These types of risks are controlled by the use of appropriate mortality tables

certified tables in the case of annuity-holders medical screening appropriate to the level of benefit

offered statistical monitoring of insured populations and reinsurance programmes

Non-life technical reserves include unearned premium reserves corresponding to the portion of written

premiums relating to future periods and outstanding claims reserves inclusive of claims handling

costs

The adequacy of technical reserves is tested at the balance sheet date by comparing them with the

average value of future cash flows as derived from stochastic analyses Any adjustments to technical

reserves are taken to the profit and loss account for the period capitalisation reserve is set up in

individual statutory accounts on the sale of amortisable securities in order to defer part of the net

realised gain and hence maintain the yield to maturity on the portfolio of admissible assets In the

consolidated financial statements the bulk of this reserve is reclassified to Policyholders surplus on
the liabilities side of the consolidated balance sheet deferred tax liability is recognised on the portion

taken to shareholders equity

This item also includes the policyholders surplus reserve resulting from the application of shadow

accounting This represents the interest of policyholders mainly within French life insurance

subsidiaries in unrealised gains and losses on assets where the benefit paid under the policy is linked

to the return on those assets This interest is an average derived from stochastic analyses of unrealised

gains and losses attributable to policyholders in various scenarios

In the event of an unrealised loss on shadow accounted assets policyholders loss reserve is

recognised on the assets side of the consolidated balance sheet in an amount equal to the probable

deduction from the policyholders future profit share The recoverability of the policyholders loss

reserve is assessed prospectively taking account of policyholders surplus reserves recognised

elsewhere capital gains on financial assets that are not shadow accounted due to accounting elections

made held-to-maturity financial assets and property investments measured at cost and the companys
ability and intention to hold the assets carrying the unrealised loss The policyholders loss reserve is

recognised symmetrically with the corresponding assets and shown on the assets side of the balance

sheet under the line item Accrued income and other assets

1.d.3 PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT

Income and expenses arising on insurance contracts written by the Group are recognised in the profit

and loss account under Income from other activities and Expenses on other activities

Other insurance company income and expenses are included in the relevant profit and loss account

item Consequently movements in the policyholders surplus reserve are shown on the same line as

gains and losses on the assets that generated the movements

i.e PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Property plant and equipment and intangible assets shown in the consolidated balance sheet comprise
assets used in operations and investment property
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Assets used in operations are those used in the provision of services or for administrative purposes and

include non-property assets leased by the Group as lessor under operating leases

Investment property comprises property assets held to generate rental income and capital gains

Property plant and equipment and intangible assets are initially recognised at purchase price plus

directly attributable costs together with borrowing costs where long period of construction or

adaptation is required before the asset can be brought into service

Software developed internally by the BNP Paribas Group that fulfils the criteria for capitalisation is

capitalised at direct development cost which includes external costs and the labour costs of employees

directly attributable to the project

Subsequent to initial recognition property plant and equipment and intangible assets are measured at

cost less accumulated depreciation or amortisation and any impairment losses The only exceptions are

shares in civil property companies SCIs held in unit-linked insurance contract portfolios which are

measured at fair value on the balance sheet date with changes in fair value taken to profit or loss

The depreciable amount of property plant and equipment and intangible assets is calculated after

deducting the residual value of the asset Only assets leased by the Group as lessor under operating

leases are presumed to have residual value as the useful life of property plant and equipment and

intangible assets used in operations is generally the same as their economic life

Property plant and equipment and intangible assets are depreciated or amortised using the straight-

line method over the useful life of the asset Depreciation and amortisation expense is recognised in the

profit and loss account under Depreciation amortisation and impairment of property plant and

equipment and intangible assets

Where an asset consists of number of components that may require replacement at regular intervals

or that have different uses or different patterns of consumption of economic benefits each component is

recognised separately and depreciated using method appropriate to that component The BNP Paribas

Group has adopted the component-based approach for property used in operations and for investment

property

The depreciation periods used for office property are as follows 80 years or 60 years for the shell for

prime and other property respectively 30 years for facades 20 years for general and technical

installations and 10 years for fixtures and fittings

Software is amortised depending on its type over periods of no more than years in the case of

infrastructure developments and years or years in the case of software developed primarily for the

purpose of providing services to customers

Software maintenance costs are expensed as incurred However expenditure that is regarded as

upgrading the software or extending its useful life is included in the initial acquisition or production

cost

Depreciable property plant and equipment and intangible assets are tested for impairment if there is an

indication of potential impairment at the balance sheet date Non-depreciable assets are tested for

impairment at least annually using the same method as for goodwill allocated to cash-generating units

If there is an indication of impairment the new recoverable amount of the asset is compared with the

carrying amount If the asset is found to be impaired an impairment loss is recognised in the profit and

loss account This loss is reversed in the event of change in the estimated recoverable amount or if

there is no longer an indication of impairment Impairment losses are taken to the profit and loss

account in Depreciation amortisation and impairment of property plant and equipment and intangible

assets

Gains and losses on disposals of property plant and equipment and intangible assets used in

operations are recognised in the profit and loss account in Net gain on non-current assets

Gains and losses on disposals of investment property are recognised in the profit and loss account in

Income from other activities or Expenses on other activities
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1.f LEAsEs

Group companies may be either the lessee or the lessor in lease agreement

1.f.1 LESSOR ACCOUNTING

Leases contracted by the Group as lessor are categorised as either finance leases or operating leases

Finance leases

In finance lease the lessor transfers substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an asset

to the lessee It is treated as loan made to the lessee to finance the purchase of the asset

The present value of the lease payments plus any residual value is recognised as receivable The net

income earned from the lease by the lessor is equal to the amount of interest on the loan and is taken

to the profit and loss account under Interest income The lease payments are spread over the lease

term and are allocated to reduction of the principal and to interest such that the net income reflects

constant rate of return on the net investment outstanding in the lease The rate of interest used is the

rate implicit in the lease

Individual and portfolio impairments of lease receivables are determined using the same principles as

applied to other loans and receivables

Operating leases

An operating lease is lease under which substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of an

asset are not transferred to the lessee

The asset is recognised under property plant and equipment in the lessors balance sheet and

depreciated on straight-line basis over the lease term The depreciable amount excludes the residual

value of the asset The lease payments are taken to the profit and loss account in full on straight-line

basis over the lease term Lease payments and depreciation expense are taken to the profit and loss

account under Income from other activities and Expenses on other activities

1.f.2 LESSEE ACCOUNTING

Leases contracted by the Group as lessee are categorised as either finance leases or operating leases

Finance leases

finance lease is treated as an acquisition of an asset by the lessee financed by loan The leased

asset is recognised in the balance sheet of the lessee at the lower of its fair value or the present value of

the minimum lease payments calculated at the interest rate implicit in the lease matching liability

equal to the fair value of the leased asset or the present value of the minimum lease payments is also

recognised in the balance sheet of the lessee The asset is depreciated using the same method as that

applied to owned assets after deducting the residual value from the amount initially recognised over

the useful life of the asset The lease obligation is accounted for at amortised cost
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Operating leases

The asset is not recognised in the balance sheet of the lessee Lease payments made under operating

leases are taken to the profit and loss account of the lessee on straight-line basis over the lease term

1.g NoN-CuRRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE AND DiSCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Where the Group decides to sell non-current assets and it is highly probable that the sale will occur

within 12 months these assets are shown separately in the balance sheet on the line Non-current

assets held for sale Any liabilities associated with these assets are also shown separately in the

balance sheet on the line Liabilities associated with non-current assets held for sale

Once classified in this category non-current assets and groups of assets and liabilities are measured at

the lower of carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell

Such assets are no longer depreciated If an asset or group of assets and liabilities becomes impaired

an impairment loss is recognised in the profit arid loss account Impainnent losses may be reversed

Where group of assets and liabilities held for sale represents major business line it is categorised as

discontinued operation Discontinued operations include operations that are held for sale

operations that have been shut down and subsidiaries acquired exclusively with view to resale

All gains and losses related to discontinued operations are shown separately in the profit and loss

account on the line Post-tax gain/loss on discontinued operations and assets held for sale This line

includes the post-tax profits or losses of discontinued operations the post-tax gain or loss arising from

remeasurement at fair value less costs to sell and the post-tax gain or loss on disposal of the operation

1.h EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Employee benefits are classified in one of four categories

short-term benefits such as salary annual leave incentive plans profit-sharing and

additional payments

long-term benefits including compensated absences long-service awards and other

types of cash-based deferred compensation

termination benefits

post-employment benefits including top-up banking industry pensions in France and

pension plans in other countries some of which are operated through pension funds

Short-term benefits

The Group recognises an expense when it has used services rendered by employees in exchange for

employee benefits
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Long-term benefits

These are benefits other than post-employment benefits and termination benefits which do not fall

wholly due within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the associated

service This relates in particular to compensation deferred for more than 12 months which is accrued

in the financial statements for the period in which it is earned

The actuarial techniques used are similar to those used for defined-benefit post-employment benefits

except that actuarial gains and losses are recognised immediately and no corridor is applied The

effect of any plan amendments regarded as relating to past service is also recognised immediately

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are employee benefits payable as result of decision by the Group to terminate

contract of employment before the legal retirement age or decision by an employee to accept voluntary

redundancy in exchange for benefit Termination benefits falling due more than 12 months after the

balance sheet date are discounted

Post-employment benefits

In accordance with IFRS the BNP Paribas Group draws distinction between defined-contribution

plans and defined-benefit plans

Defined-contribution plans do not give rise to an obligation for the Group and consequently do not

require provision The amount of employers contributions payable during the period is recognised as

an expense

Only defined-benefit schemes give rise to an obligation for the Group This obligation must be measured

and recognised as liability by means of provision

The classification of plans into these two categories is based on the economic substance of the plan
which is reviewed to determine whether the Group has legal or constructive obligation to pay the

agreed benefits to employees

Post-employment benefit obligations under defined-benefit plans are measured using actuarial

techniques that take account of demographic and financial assumptions

The amount of the obligation recognised as liability is measured on the basis of the actuarial

assumptions applied by the Group using the projected unit credit method This method takes account

of various parameters such as demographic assumptions the probability that employees will leave

before retirement age salary inflation discount rate and the general inflation rate The value of any
plan assets is deducted from the amount of the obligation

Where the value of the plan assets exceeds the amount of the obligation an asset is recognised if it

represents future economic benefit for the Group in the form of reduction in future contributions or

future partial refund of amounts paid into the plan

The amount of the obligation under plan and the value of the plan assets may show significant

fluctuations from one period to the next due to changes in actuarial assumptions thereby giving rise to

actuarial gains and losses The Group applies the corridor method in accounting for actuarial gains

and losses Under this method the Group is allowed to recognise as from the following period and over

the average remaining service lives of employees only that portion of actuarial gains and losses that

exceeds the greater of 10% of the present value of the gross defined-benefit obligation or ii 10% of

the fair value of plan assets at the end of the previous period

At the date of first-time adoption BNP Paribas elected for the exemption allowed under IFRS under

which all unamortised actuarial gains and losses at January 2004 are recognised as deduction from

equity at that date
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The effects of plan amendments on past service cost are recognised in profit or loss over the full vesting

period of the amended benefits

The annual expense recognised in the profit and loss account under Salaries and employee benefits in

respect of defined-benefit plans comprises the current service cost the rights vested in each employee

during the period in return for service rendered interest cost the effect of discounting the obligation

the expected return on plan assets amortisation of actuarial gains and losses and past service cost

arising from plan amendments and the effect of any plan curtailments or settlements

1.i SHARE-BAsED PAYMENT

Share-based payment transactions are payments based on shares issued by the Group whether the

transaction is settled in the form of equity or cash of which the amount is based on trends in the value

of BNP Paribas shares

IFRS requires share-based payments granted after November 2002 to be recognised as an expense
The amount recognised is the value of the share-based payment made to the employee

The Group grants stock subscription option plans and deferred share-based compensation plans to

employees and also offers them the possibility of subscribing for specially-issued BNP Paribas shares at

discount on condition that they retain the shares for specified period

Stock option plans

The expense related to stock option plans is recognised at the date of grant if the grantee immediately

acquires rights to the shares or over the vesting period if the benefit is conditional upon the grantees

continued employment

Stock option expense is recorded in salaries and employee benefits and its credit entry is posted to

shareholders equity It is calculated on the basis of the overall plan value determined at the date of

grant by the Board of Directors

In the absence of any market for these instruments mathematical valuation models are used The total

expense of plan is determined by multiplying the unit value per option by the estimated number of

options that will vest at the end of the vesting period taking account of conditions regarding the

grantees continued employment

The only assumptions revised during the vesting period and hence resulting in remeasurement of the

expense are those relating to the probability that employees will leave the Group and those relating to

performance conditions that are not linked to the value of BNP Paribas shares

Similar accounting treatment is applied to deferred share-based compensation plans

Share subscriptions or purchases offered to employees under the company savings plan

Share subscriptions or purchases offered to employees under the company savings plan Plan

dEpargne Entreprise at lower-than-market rates over specified period do not include vesting period

However employees are prohibited by law from selling shares acquired under this plan for period of

five years This restriction is taken into account in measuring the benefit to the employees which is

reduced accordingly The benefit therefore equals the difference at the date the plan is announced to

employees between the fair value of the share after allowing for the restriction on sale and the

acquisition price paid by the employee multiplied by the number of shares acquired

The cost of the mandatory five-year holding period is equivalent to the cost of strategy involving the

forward sale of shares subscribed at the time of the capital increase reserved for employees and the

cash purchase of an equivalent number of BNP Paribas shares on the market financed by loan repaid
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at the end of five-year period out of the proceeds from the forward sale transaction The interest rate

on the loan is the rate that would be applied to five-year general purpose loan taken out by an

individual with an average risk profile The forward sale price for the shares is determined on the basis

of market parameters

1.j PROVISIONS RECORDED UNDER LIABILITiES

Provisions recorded under liabilities other than those relating to financial instruments employee
benefits and insurance contracts mainly relate to restructuring claims and litigation fines and

penalties and tax risks

provision is recognised when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits

will be required to settle an obligation arising from past event and reliable estimate can be made of

the amount of the obligation The amount of such obligations is discounted where the impact of

discounting is material in order to determine the amount of the provision

1.k CURRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

The current income tax charge is determined on the basis of the tax laws and tax rates in force in each

country in which the Group operates during the period in which the income is generated

Deferred taxes are recognised when temporary differences arise between the carrying amount of an

asset or liability in the balance sheet and its tax base

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences other than

taxable temporary differences on initial recognition of goodwill

taxable temporary differences on investments in enterprises under the exclusive or joint

control of the Group where the Group is able to control the timing of the reversal of the

temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the

foreseeable future

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused carryforwards of

tax losses only to the extent that it is probable that the entity in question will generate future taxable

profits against which these temporary differences and tax losses can be offset

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using the liability method using the tax rate which is

expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the liability is settled based on tax rates

and tax laws that have been or will have been enacted by the balance sheet date of that period They are

not discounted

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when they arise within group tax election under the

jurisdiction of single tax authority and there is legal right of offset

Current and deferred taxes are recognised as tax income or expense in the profit and loss account

except deferred taxes relating to unrealised gains or losses on available-for-sale assets or to changes in

the fair value of instruments designated as cash flow hedges which are taken to shareholders equity

When tax credits on revenues from receivables and securities are used to settle corporate income tax

payable for the period the tax credits are recognised on the same line as the income to which they

relate The corresponding tax expense continues to be carried in the profit and loss account under

Corporate income tax
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1.1 STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The cash and cash equivalents balance is composed of the net balance of cash accounts and accounts

with central banks and post office banks and the net balance of interbank demand loans and deposits

Changes in cash and cash equivalents related to operating activities reflect cash flows generated by the

Groups operations including cash flows related to investment property held-to-maturity financial

assets and negotiable certificates of deposit

Changes in cash and cash equivalents related to investing activities reflect cash flows resulting from

acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries associates or joint ventures included in the consolidated

group as well as acquisitions and disposals of property plant and equipment excluding investment

property and property held under operating leases

Changes in cash and cash equivalents related to financing activities reflect the cash inflows and

outflows resulting from transactions with shareholders cash flows related to bonds and subordinated

debt and debt securities excluding negotiable certificates of deposit

1.m USE OF ESTIMATES IN THE PREPARATION OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Preparation of the financial statements requires managers of core businesses and corporate functions to

make assumptions and estimates that are reflected in the measurement of income and expense in the

profit and loss account and of assets and liabilities in the balance sheet and in the disclosure of

information in the notes to the financial statements This requires the managers in question to exercise

their judgement and to make use of information available at the date of preparation of the financial

statements when making their estimates The actual future results from operations in respect of which

managers have made use of estimates may in reality differ significantly from those estimates mainly

according to market conditions This may have material effect on the financial statements

This applies in particular to

impairment losses recognised to cover credit risks inherent in banking intermediation

activities

the use of internally-developed models to measure positions in financial instruments

that are not quoted in organised markets

calculations of the fair value of unquoted financial instruments classified in Available

for-sale financial assets Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss or Financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss and more generally calculations of the fair

value of financial instruments subject to fair value disclosure requirement

whether market is active or inactive for the purposes of using valuation technique

impairment losses on variable-income financial assets classified as available-for-sale

impairment tests performed on intangible assets

the appropriateness of the designation of certain derivative instruments as cash flow

hedges and the measurement of hedge effectiveness

estimates of the residual value of assets leased under finance leases or operating leases

and more generally of assets on which depreciation is charged net of their estimated residual

value

the measurement of provisions for contingencies and charges

This is also the case for assumptions applied to assess the sensitivity of each type of market risk and

the sensitivity of valuations to non-observable parameters
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NOTES TO THE PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2008

2.a NET INTEREST INCOME

The BNP Paribas Group includes in Interest income and Interest expense all income and expense
from financial instruments measured at amortised cost interest fees/commissions transaction costs
and from financial instruments measured at fair value that do not meet the definition of derivative

instrument These amounts are calculated using the effective interest method The change in fair value

on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss excluding accrued interest is recognised in

Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income and expense on derivatives accounted for as fair value hedges are included with the

revenues generated by the hedged item In like manner interest income and expense arising from

derivatives used to hedge transactions designated as at fair value through profit or loss is allocated to

the same accounts as the interest income and expense relating to the underlying transactions

Yearto3l Dec2008In mUtton otsums Year to 31 D.c 2001

t..ii L.iiain ri Income Eqsn. Net

Customeritems 28381 11149 17232 26269 11970 14299

DepositsIoansandborrowings 26695 10668 16027 24732 11731 13001

Repurchaseagreements 19 349 330 29 157 128

Financeleases 1667 132 1535 1508 82 1426

nterbank items 4685 7848 3163 283 8137 2854

Deposits loans and borrowings 4371 6834 2463 4943 7363 2420

Repurchaseagreements 314 1014 700 340 774 434

Debt securities issued 7935 7935 7091 7091

Cash flow hedge instruments 1669 1627 42 1628 899 729

Interest rate portfolio hedge instruments 1223 1300 77 1028 685 343

Trading book 17189 15482 1707 20319 20651 332

Fixed-income securites 4631 4631 4285 4285

Repurchaseagreements 12503 13451 948 15944 17564 1620

Loans/Borrowings 55 161 106 90 194 104

Debt securihes 1870 1870 2893 2893

Available.for.sale financial assets 4954 4954 3872 3872

Held.to-maturity financial assets 738 738 742 742

Total interest income/expense 58839 45341 13498 59141 49433 9708

Interest income on individually impaired loans amounted to EUR 334 million at 31 December 2008 and

EUR 316 million at 31 December 2007

The net gain relating to cash flow hedges previously recorded under Unrealised or deferred gains or

losses and taken to the profit and loss account in 2008 amounted to EUR 28 million compared with

EUR 27 million in 2007
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2.b COMMISSION INCOME AND EXPENSE

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Commission income on financial assets and commission expense on financial liabilities which are not

measured at fair value through profit or loss amounted to EUR 2788 million and EUR 378 million

respectively in 2008 compared with income of EUR 2553 million and expense of EUR 312 million in

2007

Net commission income related to trust and similar activities through which the Group holds or invests

assets on behalf of clients trusts pension and personal risk funds or other institutions amounted to

EUR 1777 million in 2008 compared with EUR 2125 million in 2007

2.c NET GAIN/LOSS ON FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR

LOSS

Net gain/loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss includes all profit and loss

items relating to financial instruments managed in the trading book and financial instruments

including dividends that the Group has designated as at fair value through profit or loss under the fair

value option other than interest income and expense which are recognised in Net interest income

Note 2.a

Fixed-income securities

Variable-income securities

DerNarive instruments

Repurchsee agreements

Loans

Borrowings

Remeaeurement of ixterest-rate risk hedged portf

Remeaeurement of
currency poeihons

Total

1968

7737

51

70

118

36
399

420

758 1210

643 8380

51

19 89

120 238

12 48

399

420

Net loss for the year on hedging instruments in fair value hedges and included under derivative

instruments amounted to EUR 3670 million net loss of EUR 314 million in 2007 while the net gain

on the hedged components amounted to EUR 3652 million net gain of EUR 275 million in 2007

Net gains on the trading book in 2008 and 2007 include an immaterial amount related to the ineffective

portion of cash flow hedges

Fixed-income securities at fair value through profit or loss fair value option are mainly made up of

certificates issued to customers by BNP Paribas Arbitrage Issuance By These instruments pay an

amount indexed to equity market indexes with the inherent risks hedged by variable-income securities

managed in BNP Paribas Arbitrages trading book Following the downturn in equity prices in 2008 the

net gain/loss on remeasurement at fair value of the debt represented by these certificates of deposit

amounting to EUR 9151 million is offset by the net gain/loss recorded on variable-income securities in

the trading book

In millions of euros Yearto3l Dec.O08

sses uesignateu

affair alue

Trading book Total

through profit or

toss

Yearto3l Dec.2007

Msses aesignazea

atfairvalue

Trading book

through profit or

loss

Total

5808 12438 6630

30538 1040 29498

22740 22740

490 148 638

395 730 1125

48 685 733

2559 2559

768 768

10978 13671 2693 6555 1288 7843
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2.d NET GAIN/LOSS ON AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCIAL ASSETS

Net gain/loss on available-for-sale financial assets includes net gains or losses on non-derivative

financial assets not classified as either loans and receivables or held-to-maturity investments

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Yearto3l Dec

2007

Fixed-income securities 17 31

Disposal gains and losses 17 31

Equities and other variable-income securities 481 2476

Dividend income 637 634

Mditonsto impairment proisions 1634 55

Net disposal gains 1478 1897

Total 464 2507

Interest income from available-for-sale fixed-income securities is included in Net interest

income Note 2.a and impairment losses related to potential issuer default are included in

Cost of risk Note 2.1

Unrealised gains and losses previously recorded under Unrealised or deferred gains and losses in

shareholders equity taken to pre-tax income amounted to EUR 163 million for the year ended

31 December 2008 and EUR 1886 million for the year ended 31 December 2007
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2.e NET INCOME FROM OTHER ACTIVITIES

In millions of euros

Net income from insurance actiifes

Net income from investment property

Net income from assets held under operating leases

Net income from propertydevelopment acthvifes

Other

Total net income from other activities

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Net income from insurance activities

In millions of euros

Gross premiums written

Movement in technical reserves

Claims and benefits expense

Reinsurance ceded net

Change in velue of admissible investments related to unit-linked business

Other income and expense

14914

6247

6689

43

916

207 25

Total net income from insurance activities 3130 2876

Claims and benefits expense includes expenses arising from surrenders maturities and claims

relating to insurance contracts Movement in technical reserves reflects changes in the value of

financial contracts in particular unit-linked contracts Interest paid on such contracts is recognised in

Interest expense

Operating leases

In millions of euros

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases

Payments receivable within year

Payments receivable after year but within years

Payments receivable beyond years

31 December 2008

4352

1922

2394

36

31 December 2007

4011

1747

2230

34

Future minimum lease payments receivable under non-cancellable leases comprise payments that the

lessee is required to make during the lease term

Yearto3l Dec.2008 Yearto3l Dec.2007

111.JIit III11 Income Expense Net

14004 10874 3130 16967 14091 2876

1048 430 618 790 219 571

4284 3635 649 3949 3237 712

206 50 156 189 36 153

731 422 309 706 361 345

20273 15411 4862 22601 17944 4657

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Year to 31 Dec

2007

13473

5284

7593

245

7996
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2.f COST OF RISK

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008.-

Cost of risk represents the net amount of impairment losses recognised in respect of credit risks

inherent in the Groups banking intermediation activities plus any impairment losses in the case of

known counterparty risks on over-the-counter instruments

Cost of risk for the period

Cost of risk for the period

in millions of euros

Net additions to impairment provisions

Recovaries on loans and receivables preouslywritten off

Irrecovarable loans and receivables notcovared
by impairment provisions

Total cost of risk for the period

31 December 2008

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Year to 31 Dec

2007

5786

348

314

5752

1762

329

292

1725

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Cost of risk for the period by asset type Year to 31 Dec

in millions of euros 2007

Loans and receivables due from credit institutons 30

Loans and receivables due from customers 3783 1472

Available-for-sale financial assets 198 130

Financial instruments on trading activites 1779 44

Ottierassets 13

Off-balance sheet commitments and other items 37 71

Total cost of risk for the period 5752 1725

Provisions for impairment credit risks

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Year to 31 Dec

2007

Movement in impairment provisions during the period

in millions of euros

Total impairment provisions at start of period 13508 14455

Net addifions to impairment provisions 5786 1762

Utilisafion of impairment provisions 1792 2409

Effect of exchange rate movements and other items 286 300

Total impairment provisions at end of period 17216 13508

The main changes in impairment provisions in 2008 and 2207 are related 8J loans and receivables due horn customers

31 December 2007
Impairment provisions by asset type

in millions of euros

Impairment of assets

Loans and receivables due from credit institufions Note 5.d 83 54

Loans and receivables due from customers Note 5.e 14298 12499

Financial instruments on trading activities 1708 44

Available-for-sale financial assets Note 5.c 422 231

Other assets 14 22

Total impairment provisions against financial assets 16525 2850

Provisions recognised as liabilities

Provisions for off-balance sheet commitments

to credit institutions

to customers 224 202

Other items subectto provisions 466 456

Total provisions recognised as liabilities 691 658

Total impairment provisions 17216 13508
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2.g CoRPoRATE INCOME TAX

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Yur 31 Dec 2007

InunilUons In

of cures percentage

Corporate income at standard tax rate expense in France 1308 33.3% 3686 33.3%

Differental effect in tax rates applicable to foreign enfibes 547 -13.9% 542 -4.9%

Effectof items taxed at reduced rate in France 286 -7.3% 266 -2.4%

Pernianentdifferenceseffect -0.2% 0.0%

Otheritems -0.1% 131 -12%

Corporate income tax expense 472 12.0% 2747 24.8%

Of which

Tax
expense

of the period 1736 2390

Net profit loss of deferred taxes of the period note 5.h 1264 357

The tax saving arising from the recognition of deferred taxes on unused carryforwards of tax losses and

on previous temporary differences was EUR million for the year ended 31 December 2008 compared
with EUR 137 million for the year ended 31 December 2007

Year to 31 Dec 2008
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SEGMENT IN FORMATION

The Group is composed of five core businesses

French Retail Banking FRB

Italian Retail Banking BNL banca commerciale

International Retail Services IRS which covers financial services and is split into two sub
divisions Personal Finance providing credit solutions to private individuals and Equipment
Solutions providing credit and other services to corporates It also includes retail banking activities

in the United States BancWest and in emerging markets

Asset Management and Services AMS which includes Private Banking Investment Partners

covering all of the Groups Asset Management businesses Personal Investors providing private

individuals with independent financial advice and investment services Securities Services to

management companies financial institutions and other corporations and Insurance and Real

Estate Services

Corporate and Investment Banking CIB which includes Advisory Capital Markets Equities and

Equity Derivatives Fixed Income Forex Corporate Finance and Financing Specialised and

Structured Financing businesses

Other activities mainly comprise the Private Equity business of BNP Paribas Capital the KlØpierre

property investment company and the Groups corporate functions

Inter-segment transactions are conducted at arms length The segment information presented

comprises agreed inter-segment transfer prices

Segment assets and liabilities include all items shown in the consolidated balance sheet Segment
assets are determined by extracting accounting data allocated for each segment Segment liabilities are

determined on the basis of normalised equity by core business used for capital allocation purposes

This capital allocation is carried out on the basis of risk exposure taking account of various

assumptions relating primarily to the capital requirement of the business as derived from the risk

weighted asset calculations required under capital adequacy rules Normalised equity income by

business segment is determined by attributing to each segment the income of its allocated equity
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Information by business segment

Income by business segment fl

Assets and liabilities by business segment

BNL banca cornmerciale

International Retail Senitces 201766

4ssetManagementand Seraces 178483

Corporate and lnrnsthient Banking 1422387

Other Aties 48676 1504 44422

31 December2007

of phich

goodtaillon of yhich

Assets acquisitions investments in Liabilities

during the associates

period

135771 46 129645

96

25 1123 164305

294 403 191666

22

37106 1781 31138

Total Groupe 2075551 612 2643 2027686 1694454 483 3333 1641865

The BNP Paribas Group has adapted its capital allocation procedures further to the adoption of the Basel II capital adequacy

ratio as of January 2008 This measure modifies normative equity and hence pre-tax earnings for each segment In order to

provide meaningful comparison between reporting periods 2007 and 2008 the figures for 2007 have been restated

French Retail Banking and BNL banca commerciale after the reallocation within AMS of one-third of Private Banking activities

in France and Italy

Including Klºpierre and the entities ordinarily known as BNP Paribas Capital

In millions of euros

French Retail Banking

Yearto3l Dec 2008 Yearto3l Dec.2007

Revenues
Operating

cost of risk

Operating

operating

Pre-tax net

Other non

expense income income
turns

5717 3868 203 1646 1647 5640 3834 158 1648 1648

BNLbancacommerciale12t 2775 1737 411 627 628 2616 1725 318 573 572

International Retail Services

Personal Finance 3792 2111 1218 473 193 666 3411 1949 730 732 76 808

Otheractities IRS 4990 2932 1160 898 149 1047 4532 2676 498 1358 101 1459

Asset Management and Services 4935 3423 207 1305 1310 5264 3369 1888 27 1915

Corporate and Investment Banking

disoryCapital Markets 2066 2607 2122 2663 26 2637 5567 3588 65 1914 46 1960

Financing 2907 1104 355 1448 1448 2604 1197 37 1444 51 1495

OtherActivities 194 628 76 510 325 185 1403 426 14 991 210 1201

Total Groupe 27376 18400 5752 3224 700 3924 31037 18764 1725 10548 510 11058

1Deceber208In millions of euros

French Retail Banking

76454 14 71099 72271

406 697 185514 179197

38 415 171911 199261

168 1410971 1070848

13 67493

1057618
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Information by geographic area

The geographic split of segment results assets and liabilities is based on the region in which they are

recognised for accounting purposes and does not necessarily reflect the counterpartys nationality or

the location of operations

Revenues by geographic area

In millions of euros

France

Other European Countries

Mi ericas

Asia Oceania

Other countries

Total

In millions of euros

France

Other European Countries

Americas

Asia Oceania

Other countries

Yearto3l Dec

2007

14446

9737

4197

1707

950

31037

12283

8461

4031

1255

1346

27376

Assets and liabilities by geographic area

31 December 2008

Goodwill on

Total segment acquisitions

assets during the

period

31 December 2007

Goodwill on

Total segment acquisitions

assets during the

period

75

381

18

1224663 969771

435592 54 370598

256833 465 217777

127933 84 113306

30530 23002

Total 2075551 612 1694454 483

Year to 31 Dec

2008
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY

2008 was marked by the implementation of Pillar of the Basel framework which introduced new
requirements concerning risk transparency BNP Paribas has decided to combine the information

about the Group required under IFRS and Pillar of Basel II in order to ensure maximum
consistency and clarity

The Group calculates the risks related to its banking activities using methods approved by the French

banking supervisor under Pillar The scope covered by the methods called the prudential scope is

discussed in note 8.b Scope of consolidation

In addition to the regulatory-required information about its banking risks BNP Paribas has provided

information about the risks related to its insurance business which is given in note 4.i Insurance

risks

4.a RISK MANAGEMENT ORGANISATION

Risk management is key in the business of banking At BNP Paribas operating methods and

procedures throughout the organisation are geared towards effectively addressing this matter The

entire process is supervised primarily by the Group Risk Management Department GRM which is

responsible for measuring and controlling risks at Group level GRM is independent from the divisions

business lines and territories and reports directly to Group Executive Management The Group

Compliance department GC monitors operational and reputation risk as part of its responsibility for

permanent controls

While front-line responsibility for managing risks lies with the divisions and business lines that propose
the underlying transactions GRM is responsible for providing assurance that the risks taken by the

Bank comply and are compatible with its risk policies and its profitability and rating objectives GRM
and GC for operational and reputation risk perform continuous generally ex-ante controls that are

fundamentally different from the periodic ex-post examinations of the Internal Auditors GRM reports

regularly to the Internal Control and Risk Management Committee of the Board on its main findings as

well as on the methods used by GRM to measure these risks and consolidate them on Group-wide
basis GC reports to the Committee on issues relevant to its remit particularly those concerning

operational risk financial security reputation risk and permanent controls

GRM covers risks resulting from the Groups business operations It intervenes at all levels in the risk

taking and monitoring process Its remit includes formulating recommendations concerning risk

policies analysing the loan portfolio on forward-looking basis approving corporate loans and trading

limits guaranteeing the quality and effectiveness of monitoring procedures defining and/or validating

risk measurement methods and producing comprehensive and reliable risk reporting data for Group

management GRM is also responsible for ensuring that all the risk implications of new businesses or

products have been adequately evaluated These evaluations are performed jointly by the sponsoring

business line and all the functions concerned Group Tax Department Group Legal Department
Finance and Development Group Compliance and Information Technology and Processes The quality

of the validation process is overseen by GRM which reviews identified risks and the resources deployed

to mitigate them as well as defining the minimum criteria to be met to ensure that growth is based on

sound business practices GC has identical responsibilities as regards operational and reputation risk

It plays an important oversight and reporting role in the process of validating new products or business

activities and exceptional transactions
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4.b RISK CATEGORiES

The risk categories reported by BNP Paribas evolve in line with methodological developments and

regulatory requirements

All the risk categories discussed below are managed by BNP Paribas However no specific capital

requirement is identified for reputation and strategy risk as these are risks that may lead to change in

share price which is borne directly by the shareholders and cannot be protected by the Banks capital

Reputation risk is contingent on other risks and apart from market rumours leading to change in

share price its impacts are included in estimated losses incurred for other risk categories

Similarly strategy risk arising from the strategic decisions published by the Bank which could give rise

to change in share price is matter for the highest level of governance and is the shareholders

responsibility

The implementation of regulatory definitions in accordance with the new Basel Accord International

Convergence of Capital Measurement and Capital Standard or Basel II is discussed in parts 4.d to 4.f

of this section

CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK

Credit risk is the risk of incurring an economic loss on loans and receivables existing or potential due

to commitments given resulting from change in the credit quality of the Banks debtors which can

ultimately result in default The probability of default and the expected recovery on the loan or

receivable in the event of default are key components of the credit quality assessment

Credit risk is measured at portfolio level taking into account correlations between the values of the

loans and receivables making up the portfolio concerned

Credit risk arises in relation to lending operations as well as market investment and/or payment

transactions that potentially expose the Bank to the risk of default by the counterparty Counterparty
risk is the risk that the other party in derivative transaction will default The amount of this risk may

vary over time in line with market parameters that impact the value of the underlying market

instrument

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of incurring an economic loss of value due to adverse trends in market factors

whether directly tradable or not

Tradable market factors include but are not limited to exchange rates interest rates prices of

securities and commodities prices of derivatives prices of other goods and other factors that can be

directly inferred from them such as credit spreads volatilities and implied correlations

Non-tradable factors are those based on working assumptions such as parameters contained in models

or based on statistical analysis such as correlations

Liquidity is an important component of market risk In times of limited or no liquidity instruments or

goods may not be tradable or may not be tradable at their estimated value This may arise for example

due to low transaction volumes legal restrictions or strong imbalance between demand and supply for

certain assets
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OPERATIONAL RISK

Operational risk is the risk of incurring an economic loss due to inadequate or failed internal processes

or due to external events whether deliberate accidental or natural occurrences Management of

operational risk is based on an analysis of the cause event effect chain

Internal processes giving rise to operational risk may involve employees and/or IT systems External

events include but are not limited to floods fire earthquakes and terrorist attacks Credit or market

events such as default or fluctuations in value do not fall within the scope of operational risk

Operational risk encompasses human resources risks legal risks tax risks information system risks

misprocessing risks risks related to published financial information and the financial implications

resulting from reputation and compliance risks

Compliance and reputation risk

According to French regulations compliance risk is the risk of legal administrative or disciplinary

sanctions together with the financial loss that bank may suffer as result of its failure to comply

with all the laws regulations codes of conduct and standards of good practice applicable to banking

and financial activities including instructions given by an executive body particularly in application of

guidelines issued by supervisory body

By definition this risk is sub-category of operational risk However as certain implications of

compliance risk involve more than purely financial loss and may actually damage the institutions

reputation the Bank treats compliance risk separately

Reputation risk is the risk of damaging the trust placed in corporation by its customers

counterparties suppliers employees shareholders regulators and any other stakeholder whose trust is

an essential condition for the corporation to carry out its day-to-day operations

Reputation risk is primarily contingent on all the other risks borne by the Bank

ADDITIONAL INFORMATION ABOUT RISK DEFINITIONS

Although lot of material has been written on the classification of banking risks and industry

regulations have produced number of widely accepted definitions there is still no comprehensive

account of all of the risks to which banks are exposed good deal of progress has nevertheless been

made in understanding the precise nature of risks and how they interact The interaction between these

risks has not yet been quantified but is captured by global stress scenarios The following comments

review the Groups latest conceptual developments

Market risk and credit/counterparty risk

In fixed income trading books credit instruments are valued on the basis of bond yields and credit

spreads which represent market parameters in the same way as interest rates or exchange rates The

credit risk arising on the issuer of the debt instrument is therefore component of market risk known

as issuer risk

Issuer risk is different from counterparty risk In the case of credit derivatives issuer risk corresponds

to the credit risk on the underlying asset whereas counterparty risk represents the credit risk on the

third party with whom the derivative was contracted Counterparty risk is credit risk while issuer risk

is component of market risk
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Operational risk credit risk and market risk

Operational risk arises from inadequate or failed internal processes of all kinds ranging from loan

origination and market risk-taking to transaction execution and risk oversight

However human decisions taken in compliance with applicable rules and regulations cannot give rise

to operational risk even when they involve an error of judgment

Residual risk defined by internal control regulations as the risk that credit risk mitigation techniques

prove less efficient than expected is considered to derive from an operational failure and is therefore

component of operational risk

ASSET-LIABILITY MANAGEMENT RISK

Asset-liability management risk is the risk of incurring an economic loss as result of mismatches in

interest rates maturities or nature between assets and liabilities For banking activities asset-liability

management risk arises in non-trading portfolios and primarily relates to global interest rate risk For

insurance activities it also includes the risk of mismatches arising from changes in the value of shares

and other assets particularly property held by the general insurance fund

REFINANCING LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity and refinancing risk is the risk of the Bank being unable to fulfil its obligations at an

acceptable price in given place and currency

INSURANCE SUBSCRIPTION RISK

Insurance subscription risk corresponds to the risk of financial loss caused by sudden unexpected
increase in insurance claims Depending on the type of insurance business life personal risk or

annuities this risk may be statistical macro-economic or behavioural or may be related to public

health issues or natural disasters It is not the main risk factor arising in the life insurance business
where asset-liability management risk is predominant

BREAKEVEN RISK

Breakeven risk is the risk of incurring an operating loss due to change in the economic environment

leading to decline in revenue coupled with insufficient cost-elasticity

STRATEGY RISK

Strategy risk is the risk that the Banks share price may fall because of its strategic decisions

CONCENTRATION RISK

Concentration risk and its corollary diversification effects are embedded within credit market and

operational risks using the correlation parameters taken into account by the corresponding risk models

It is assessed at consolidated Group level and at financial conglomerate level
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SUMMARY OF RISKS

Consohdated financial statements at 31 December 2008

SUatagy risk Procedures market mulples

Quanthaive and quaiitaive rules
Refinanong liquidity risk

stess testa

Reputaton risk Procedures

Concentration risk is managed within credit risk at BNP Paribas mainly via economic capital
Asset liability management risk comes under what the banking supervisors call global interest rate risk
Insurance risks are outside the scope of banking risks Insurance risks include market risks operational risks and risks

related to the sale of insurance policies

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process

The capital requirements for risks monitored under Pillar are included in the capital adequacy ratio

calculation

The ARC All Reportings on Capital system consolidates all regulatory and economic capital

calculations produced by the risk management and accounting functions It generates and circulates

Basel II and economic capital reports both for internal and external communication purposes

Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process ICAAP

The second pillar of the new Basel II capital framework prescribes how supervisory authorities and
banks can effectively assess the appropriate level of regulatory capital The assessment must cover all

the risks incurred by the Group their sensitivity to crisis scenarios and how they are expected to

evolve in light of changes in the Groups business going forward

BNP Paribas continues to fine-tune its tools for measuring economic capital requirements It is also in

the process of identiIing the risks it believes should not be covered by capital requirement but

governed by appropriate management and control procedures As result of its analysis the Group
drew up the risk typology chart shown in the table above

This internal assessment tool is regularly embedded into the Groups decision-making and management
processes through more extensive use of the concept of regulatory capital and gradually economic

capital supported by analyses of the impact of crisis scenarios and business plans The tool is

developed at Group level and adapted to each business as appropriate Assessments of legal entities are

based on simplified approaches

Risk monitored by the BNP Paribas Group

Risks likely to affect the
Risks likely to affect the Pillar

Groups solvency
Groups value share price

Measurement method

Credi risk

Equity risk

Operatonal risk

Market risk

Concentafon risk

Asset liability management risk

Breakeven risk

Insurance risks including

insurance subscripton risks

Measurement and management

method

Basel II Economic Capital

Basel II Economic Capital

Basel II Economic Capital

Basel II Economic Capital

Economic Capital

Economic Capital

Economic Capital

Economic Capital
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RISK FACTORS

Risks Related to the Bank and its Industry

Deteriorating economic conditions have adversely affected the Banks industry and the Banks results and
could in the future have material adverse effect on the Banks liquidity earnings and financial condition

As global financial institution the Banks businesses are highly sensitive to changes in the financial

markets and economic conditions generally in Europe especially in France and Italy the United

States and elsewhere around the world Adverse changes in market and economic conditions have

increasingly since mid-2007 and could continue to create challenging operating environment for

financial institutions Actual or potential such adverse changes have resulted and could result in

particular from deterioration in credit market conditions regional or global recessions fluctuations

in commodity prices including oil increases or decreases in interest rates inflation or deflation and

adverse geopolitical events such as natural disasters acts of terrorism and military conflicts

Significant declines in housing markets globally and particularly the United States starting in 2007

and accelerating in 2008 with falling residential real estate prices and increasing foreclosures

negatively affected the credit performance of mortgage loans and securities backed by them particularly
of the subprime variety and resulted in significant write-downs of asset values by financial

institutions around the world These write-downs initially of mortgage-backed securities but spreading

to credit default swaps and other derivative and cash securities in turn caused many financial

institutions around the world and particularly in the United States and Europe to seek additional

capital to merge with other institutions and in some cases to fail Reflecting concern about the

stability of the financial markets generally and the strength of counterparties many lenders and
institutional investors reduced or ceased providing funding to borrowers including to other financial

institutions This market turmoil and tightening of credit conditions have led to an increased level of

commercial and consumer delinquencies lack of consumer confidence increased market volatility

steep declines in stock market indices and widespread reduction of business activity generally The

resulting economic pressure on consumers and lack of confidence in the financial markets has

adversely affected the results of operations and financial condition of financial institutions globally

continuation or worsening of adverse market and economic conditions could exacerbate their effects

on financial institutions generally and the Bank in particular In addition to the risks discussed

elsewhere in this section the Bank could face the following risks in connection with these events

Market developments and adverse economic conditions may continue to affect consumer
confidence levels and cause changes in payment patterns causing increases in

delinquencies and default rates which would increase the Banks cost of risk These

developments and conditions could lead to continued increase in the rate of defaults by

corporate borrowers which constitute substantial portion of the Banks borrower base and

continued reduction in the credit-worthiness of or demand for credit by corporate

borrowers

The Banks ability to issue debt on the market to borrow from other financial institutions or

to engage in securitization funding transactions on favorable terms or at all could be

adversely affected by further disruptions in the capital markets or other events including

actions by rating agencies such as the recently announced downgrading by Standard

Poors of the Banks long term rating from AA to AA with negative outlook and deteriorating

investor expectations

Equity markets in France in Europe and elsewhere may continue to decline or experience

continued high or even increased Volatility which could lead to further trading and

investment losses or further decline in capital markets transactions cash inflows and

commissions from asset management
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There can be no assurance that legislative action and other measures taken by governments and

regulators in France or globally will fully and promptly stabilize the financial system and the Bank and

its shareholders may be adversely affected by measures taken in connection with such legislation

In response to the financial crisis governments and regulators have enacted legislation and taken

measures to help stabilize the financial system and increase the flow of credit to the economy These

measures have included the purchase or guarantee of distressed or illiquid assets recapitalization

through the purchase of securities issued by financial institutions including ordinary shares preferred

shares or hybrid or quasi-equity instruments government guarantees of debt issued by financial

institutions and government-sponsored mergers and acquisitions of and divestments by financial

institutions In France the government is implementing program in two parts the creation of

liquidity facility for financial institutions through French State-guaranteed special purpose company
and the purchase by another French State-guaranteed special purpose company of preferred shares or

hybrid super-subordinated securities issued by financial institutions In each case financial

institutions must undertake to make loans to finance economic activity and to abide by ethical

obligations relating to themselves and their management including compensation policy In connection

with this program on December 11 2008 the Bank issued EUR 2.55 billion of undated super-

subordinated notes the proceeds of which constitute Tier capital to French State-owned entity In

addition the Bank intends to convene an extraordinary general shareholders meeting to approve the

issuance of EUR 5.1 billion of non-voting preference shares to the French State the proceeds of which

would constitute core Tier capital and half the proceeds of which would be used to redeem the

previously-issued undated super-subordinated notes

There can be no assurance as to the actual impact that these measures and related actions will have on

the financial markets generally and on the Bank specifically including the extreme levels of volatility

and limited credit availability that has characterized the market for some time The failure of these

measures and related actions to help stabilize the financial markets and continuation or worsening of

current financial market conditions could lead to further decreases in investor and consumer

confidence further market volatility and decline further economic disruption and as result

materially and adversely affect the Banks business financial condition results of operations access to

credit or the trading price of the Banks securities

In addition the Bank made several undertakings to the State in connection with the above-referenced

issuance of super-subordinated notes including not to buy back shares for so long as the notes are

held by the State except buybacks necessary to deliver shares under employee shareholding programs

or in connection with the the Banks ordinary course business and to increase by 4% in 2009 its

outstanding loans to borrowers in France The increased lending commitment could expose the Bank to

further credit risk to the extent it entails any lowering of lending standards The limitation on share

buy-backs and potentially as has been required in connection with government assistance in countries

other than France on dividend payments could reduce the returns to the Banks shareholders Finally

number of conditions were required by the European Commission in connection with its finding that

the French bank recapitalization program was compatible with European State aid regulations If these

conditions were not respected by the French State or the Bank the Bank could be become ineligible for

future State aid or be required to reimburse aid already received

The Bank may incur significant losses on its trading and investment activities due to market fluctuations

and volatility

The Bank maintains trading and investment positions in the debt currency commodity and equity

markets and in private equity property and other assets These positions could be adversely affected

by volatility in financial and other markets i.e the degree to which prices fluctuate over particular

period in particular market regardless of market levels The capital and credit markets have been

experiencing unprecedented volatility and disruption since mid-2007 and particularly since the

bankruptcy filing of Lehman Brothers in mid-September 2008 and as result the Bank incurred

significant losses on its trading and investment activities in the fourth quarter of 2008 There can be no

assurance that this extreme volatility and market disruption will not continue in the near future and

that the Bank will not continue to incur substantial losses on its trading activities as result Volatility

trends that prove substantially different from the Banks expectations may lead to losses relating to
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broad range of other trading and hedging products the Bank uses including swaps forwards and

futures options and structured products

To the extent that the Bank owns assets or has net long positions in any of those markets market

downturn could result in losses from decline in the value of its positions Conversely to the extent

that the Bank has sold assets that it does not own or has net short positions in any of those markets

market upturn could expose it to potentially unlimited losses as it attempts to cover its net short

positions by acquiring assets in rising market The Bank may from time to time have trading

strategy of holding long position in one asset and short position in another from which it expects to

earn net revenues based on changes in the relative value of the two assets If however the relative

value of the two assets changes in direction or manner that the Bank did not anticipate or against

which it is not hedged the Bank might realize loss on those paired positions Such losses if

significant could adversely affect the Banks results of operations and financial condition

substantial increase in new provisions or shortfall in the level of previously recorded provisions could

adversely affect the Banks results of operations and financial condition

In connection with its lending activities the Bank regularly establishes provisions for loan losses which

are recorded in its profit and loss account under cost of risk The Banks overall level of provisions is

based on its assessment of prior loss experience the volume and type of lending being conducted

industry standards past due loans economic conditions and other factors related to the recoverability

of various loans Although the Bank uses its best efforts to establish an appropriate level of provisions

its lending businesses may have to increase their provisions for loan losses substantially in the future

as result of increases in non-performing assets or for other reasons as was the case in the second

half of 2008 Any significant increase in provisions for loan losses or significant change in the Banks
estimate of the risk of loss inherent in its portfolio of non-impaired loans as well as the occurrence of

loan losses in excess of the related provisions could have material adverse effect on the Banks
results of operations and financial condition

The Bank may generate lower revenues from brokerage and other commission- and fee-based businesses

during market downturns

The recent market downturn has led to decline in the volume of transactions that the Bank executes

for its clients and therefore to decline in its net banking income from this activity There can be no

assurance that this trend will not continue in the future In addition because the fees that the Bank

charges for managing its clients portfolios are in many cases based on the value or performance of

those portfolios market downturn that reduces the value of its clients portfolios or increases the

amount of withdrawals would reduce the revenues the Bank receives from its asset management equity

derivatives and private banking businesses

Even in the absence of market downturn below-market performance by the Banks mutual funds may
result in increased withdrawals and reduced inflows which would reduce the revenues the Bank

receives from its asset management business

Protracted market declines can reduce liquidity in the markets making it harder to sell assets and

possibly leading to material losses

In some of the Banks businesses protracted market movements particularly asset price declines can
reduce the level of activity in the market or reduce market liquidity These developments can lead to

material losses if the Bank cannot close out deteriorating positions in timely way This is especially

the case for assets the Bank holds for which there are not very liquid markets to begin with Assets that

are not traded on stock exchanges or other public trading markets such as derivatives contracts

between banks may have values that the Bank calculates using models rather than publicly-quoted
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prices Monitoring the deterioration of prices of assets like these is difficult and could lead to losses that

the Bank did not anticipate

Significant interest rate changes could adversely affect the Banks net banking income orprofitability

The amount of net interest income earned by the Bank during any given period significantly affects its

overall net banking income and profitability for that period Interest rates are sensitive to many factors

beyond the Banks control Changes in market interest rates could affect the interest rates charged on

interest-earning assets differently than the interest rates paid on interest-bearing liabilities Any

adverse change in the yield curve could cause decline in the Banks net interest income from its

lending activities In addition maturity mismatches and increases in the interest rates relating to the

Banks short-term financing may adversely affect the Banks profitability

The soundness and conduct of other financial institutions and market participants could adversely affect

the Bank

The Banks ability to engage in funding investment and derivative transactions could be adversely

affected by the soundness of other financial institutions or market participants Financial services

institutions are interrelated as result of trading clearing counterparty funding or other

relationships As result defaults or even rumors or questions about one or more financial services

institutions or the financial services industry generally have led to market-wide liquidity problems and

could lead to further losses or defaults The Bank has exposure to many counterparties in the financial

industry directly and indirectly including brokers and dealers commercial banks investment banks

mutual and hedge funds and other institutional clients with which it regularly executes transactions

Many of these transactions expose the Bank to credit risk in the event of default of group of the

Banks counterparties or clients In addition the Banks credit risk may be exacerbated when the

collateral held by it cannot be realized upon or is liquidated at prices not sufficient to recover the full

amount of the loan or derivative exposure due to the Bank

In addition misconduct by financial market participants can have material adverse effect on financial

institutions due to the interrelated nature of the financial markets recent example is the fraud

allegedly perpetrated by Bernard Madoff as result of which numerous financial institutions globally

including the Bank have announced losses or exposure to losses in substantial amounts Potentially

significant additional potential exposure is also possible in the form of litigation of various types claims

in the context of the bankruptcy proceedings of Bernard Madoff Investment Services BMIS and other

potential claims relating to counterparty or client investments made directly or indirectly in BMIS or

other entities controlled by Bernard Madoff

There can be no assurance that any losses resulting from the risks summarized above will not

materially and adversely affect the Banks results of operations

The Banks competitive position could be harmed if its reputation is damaged

In the highly competitive environment arising from globalization and convergence in the financial

services industry reputation for financial strength and integrity is critical to the Banks ability to

attract and retain customers The Banks reputation could be harmed if it fails to adequately promote

and market its products and services The Banks reputation could also be damaged if as it increases

its client base and the scale of its businesses the Banks comprehensive procedures and controls

dealing with conflicts of interest fail or appear to fail to address conflicts of interest properly At the

same time the Banks reputation could be damaged by employee misconduct misconduct by market

participants or funds to which the Bank is exposed decline in restatement of or corrections to its

financial results as well as any adverse legal or regulatory action The loss of business that could result

from damage to the Banks reputation could have an adverse effect on its results of operations and

financial position
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An interruption in or breach of the Banks information systems may result in lost business and other

losses

As with most other banks BNP Paribas relies heavily on communications and information systems to

conduct its business Any failure or interruption or breach in security of these systems could result in

failures or interruptions in the Banks customer relationship management general ledger deposit

servicing and/or loan organization systems The Bank cannot provide assurances that such failures or

interruptions will not occur or if they do occur that they will be adequately addressed The occurrence

of any failures or interruptions could have an adverse effect on the Banks financial condition and
results of operations

Unforeseen external events can interrupt the Banks operations and cause substantial losses and
additional costs

Unforeseen events such as severe natural disasters terrorist attacks or other states of emergency could

lead to an abrupt interruption of the Banks operations and to the extent not covered by insurance
could cause substantial losses Such losses can relate to property financial assets trading positions

and key employees Such unforeseen events could also lead to additional costs such as relocation of

employees affected and increase the Banks costs particularly insurance premiums

The Bank is subject to extensive supervisory and regulatory regimes in the countries in which it operates

Regulatory compliance risk arises from failure or inability to comply fully with the laws regulations or

codes applicable specifically to the financial services industry Non-compliance could lead to fines

public reprimand damage to reputation enforced suspension of operations or in extreme cases
withdrawal of operating licences

The Groups businesses and earnings can be affected by fiscal measures and other policies adopted by

regulatory authorities in France and other European Union countries foreign governments or

international agencies The agencies regulating the financial services industry also periodically adopt

changes to their regulations The nature and impact of future changes in such policies and regulatory

measures are unpredictable and are beyond the Groups control In light of current conditions in

financial markets regulators have increased their focus on the regulation of the financial services

industry and are considering substantial changes to applicable regulatory regimes The Bank is unable
to predict the nature and extent of possible future changes to regulations applicable to it Any such

changes could affect the Bank in substantial and unpredictable ways and could have an adverse effect

on its business financial condition and results of operations Compliance with such regulation may
increase the Banks costs and limit its ability to pursue business opportunities Such changes could

include but are not limited to the following

the monetary interest rate and other policies of central banks and regulatory authorities

general changes in government or regulatory policy that may significantly influence investor

decisions in particular markets in which the Group operates

general changes in regulatory requirements for example prudential rules relating to applicable

capital adequacy frameworks

changes in tax legislation or the application thereof

changes in competitive environment and prices

changes in the financial reporting environment and

expropriation nationalization confiscation of assets and changes in legislation relating to

foreign ownership
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Notwithstanding the Banks risk management policies procedures and methods it could still be exposed

to unidentified or unanticipated risks which could lead to material losses

The Bank has devoted significant resources to developing its risk management policies procedures and

assessment methods and intends to continue to do so in the future Nonetheless the Banks risk

management techniques and strategies may not be fully effective in mitigating its risk exposure in all

economic market environments or against all types of risk particularly risks that the Bank may have

failed to identify or anticipate The Banks ability to assess the creditworthiness of its customers or to

estimate the values of its assets may be impaired if as result of market turmoil such as that

experienced in the recent period the models and approaches it uses become less predictive of future

behaviors valuations assumptions or estimates Some of the Banks qualitative tools and metrics for

managing risk are based on its use of observed historical market behavior The Bank applies statistical

and other tools to these observations to arrive at quantifications of its risk exposures The process the

Bank uses to estimate losses inherent in its credit exposure or estimate the value of certain assets

requires difficult subjective and complex judgments including forecasts of economic conditions and

how these economic predictions might impair the ability of its borrowers to repay their loans or impact

the value of assets which may in periods of market disruption not be capable of accurate estimation

and which may in turn impact the reliability of the process These tools and metrics may fail to predict

future risk exposures e.g if the Bank does not anticipate or correctly evaluate certain factors in its

statistical models or upon the occurrence of an event deemed extremely unlikely by the tools and

metrics This would limit the Banks ability to manage its risks The Banks losses could therefore be

significantly greater than the historical measures indicate In addition the Banks quantified modelling

does not take all risks into account Its more qualitative approach to managing certain risks could prove

insufficient exposing it to material unanticipated losses

The Banks hedging strategies may not prevent losses

If any of the variety of instruments and strategies that the Bank uses to hedge its exposure to various

types of risk in its businesses is not effective the Bank may incur losses Many of its strategies are

based on historical trading patterns and correlations For example if the Bank holds long position in

an asset it may hedge that position by taking short position in another asset where the short position

has historically moved in direction that would offset change in the value of the long position

However the hedge may only be partial or the strategies used may not protect against all future risks

or may not be fully effective in mitigating the Banks risk exposure in all market environments or

against all types of risk in the future Unexpected market developments may also reduce th.e

effectiveness of the Banks hedging strategies In addition the manner in which gains and losses

resulting from certain ineffective hedges are recorded may result in additional volatility in the Banks

reported earnings

The Bank may have thfflculty in identifying and executing acquisitions which could materially harm the

Banks results of operations

The Bank believes that external growth opportunities form part of its overall strategy This strategy

involves numerous risks Although the Bank undertakes an in-depth analysis of the companies it plans

to acquire it is generally not feasible for these analyses to be complete in all respects As result the

Bank may assume unanticipated liabilities or an acquired entity may not perform as well as expected

It is also possible that some or all of the planned synergies do not arise or that an acquisition leads to

higher-than-expected costs In addition the Bank might have difficulty integrating an acquired entity

Failure to complete announced business combinations or failure to integrate acquired businesses

successfully into those of the Bank could have material adverse effect on the Banks profitability or

prospects It could also lead to departures of key employees or give rise to increased costs and reduced

profitability if the Bank felt compelled to offer them financial incentives to remain
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Intense competition especially in the Banks home market of France where it has the largest single

concentration of its businesses could adversely affect the Banks net banking income and profitability

Competition is intense in all of the Banks primary business areas in France and the other countries in

which it conducts large portions of its business including other European countries and the United

States In addition competition in the Banks industry could intensifi as result of the increasing
consolidation of financial services companies in connection with current market conditions If the Bank
is unable to respond to the competitive environment in France or in its other major markets by offering

attractive and profitable product and service solutions it may lose market share in key areas of its

business or incur losses on some or all of its activities In addition downturns in the French economy
could add to the competitive pressure through for example increased price pressure and lower

business volumes for the Bank and its competitors In addition new lower-cost competitors may enter

the market which may not be subject to the same capital or regulatory requirements or may have other

inherent regulatory advantages and therefore may be able to offer their products and services on more
favorable terms It is also possible that the increasing presence in the global marketplace of nationalized

financial institutions or financial institutions benefiting from State guarantees or other similar

advantages could lead to distortions in competition in manner adverse to private-sector institutions

such as the Bank

4.c RISK MANAGEMENT AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY

The BNP Paribas Group is required to comply with the French regulations that transpose European
Union capital adequacy directives Directive on the Capital Adequacy of Investment Firms and Credit

Institutions and Financial Conglomerates Directive into French law

In the various countries in which the Group operates BNP Paribas also complies with specific

regulatory ratios in line with procedures controlled by the relevant supervisory authorities These ratios

mainly address the issues of capital adequacy risk concentration liquidity and asset/liability

mismatches

Until 31 December 2007 the Groups capital adequacy ratio was calculated in accordance with ComitØ
de la RØglementation Bancaire et FinanciŁre CRBF regulation 91-05 dated 15 February 1991 i.e total

regulatory capital expressed as percentage of the sum of

risk-weighted assets

the regulatory capital requirement for market risks multiplied by 12.5

Since January 2008 the capital adequacy ratio has been calculated in accordance with the decree

issued by the Ministry of the Economy Finance and Industry on 20 February 2007 introducing the

Basel II capital adequacy ratio i.e regulatory capital expressed as percentage of the sum of

risk-weighted assets calculated using the standardised approach or the internal ratings based

approach depending on the entity or Group business concerned

the regulatory capital requirement for market and operational risks multiplied by 12.5 The capital

requirement for operational risk is measured using the basic indicator standardised or advanced
measurement approach depending on the Group entity concerned

REGULATORY CAPITAL

Breakdown of regulatory capital

Regulatory capital is determined in accordance with ComitØ de la Reglementation Bancaire et

FinanciŁre CRBF regulation 90-02 dated 23 February 1990 It comprises three components Tier

capital Tier capital and Tier capital determined as follows
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Core capital Tier corresponds to consolidated equity excluding unrealised or deferred gains and

losses adjusted for certain items known as prudential filters The main adjustments consist of

deducting the planned dividend for the year as well as goodwill and other intangibles ii excluding
consolidated subsidiaries that are not subject to banking regulations mainly insurance

companies and iii applying limits to the eligibility of certain securities such as undated super
subordinated notes

Supplementary capital Tier comprises some subordinated debt and any positive credit and

counterparty risk valuation differences between provisions for incurred losses taken under the

book method and expected losses on credit exposure measured using the internal ratings based

approach

discount is applied to subordinated debt with maturity of less than five years and dated

subordinated debt included in Tier Two capital is capped at the equivalent of 50% of Tier capital

Total Tier capital is capped at the equivalent of 100% of Tier capital

Tier capital comprises subordinated debt with shorter maturities and can only be used to cover

certain proportion of market risks

The following items are deducted for the purpose of calculating regulatory capital half from Tier

capital and half from Tier capital the carrying amount of investments in credit institutions

and finance companies accounted for by the equity method ii the regulatory capital of credit

institutions and finance companies more than 10% owned by the Group iii the portion of

expected losses on credit exposure measured using the internal ratings based approach which is

not covered by provisions and value adjustments

Amount of regulatory capital

In millions of euros

Shareholders equity before appropriation of income

Share capital retained earnings arid similar

Undated super subordinated notes and similar securibes

Minority interests before appropriation of income

Share capital retained earnings and similar

Preferred shares

Regulatory deductions and other items

Intangible
assets

including goodwill

Other regulatorydeductions

31 December 20O8

Basel II

53228

42707

10521

5740

3492

2248

17169

12854

4315

31 December2007

Basel

53799

47056

6743

5594

3302

2292

21792

12342

9450

TIER CAPITAL 41799 37601

Tier capital 17951 19224

of which positive difference between
provisions

and expected losses 1620

Tier regulatory deductions 1003 3254

Allocated Tier capital 752 1013

REGULATORY CAPITAL 59499 54584

Deductions in respect of insurance companies investments in credit institutions and

finance companies accounted for by the equity method subordinated debt of credit

institutions held by the Bank and other items including the dividend to be recommended

at the Annual General Meeting of shareholders

European Capital Ratio

Under Basel II any positive difference between provisions and expected losses over one year is

considered to be component of Tier capital At 31 December 2008 this difference amounted to

EUR 1620 million
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CAPITAL RATIO

Under the European Union regulation transposed into French law by regulation 1-05 the Groups
capital adequacy ratio must at all times be at least 8% including Tier One ratio of at least 4% Under
United States capital adequacy regulations BNP Paribas is qualified as Financial Holding Company
and as such is required to have capital adequacy ratio of at least 10% including Tier One ratio of at

least 6%

Ratios are monitored and managed centrally on consolidated basis at Group level Where French or

international entity is required to comply with banking regulations at its own level its ratios are also

monitored and managed diredily by the entity

Capital management and planning

Capital adequacy ratios are managed prospectively on prudent basis that takes into account the

Groups profitability and growth targets The Group maintains balance sheet structure that allows it

to finance business growth on the best possible terms while preserving its very high quality credit

rating In line with the commitment to offering shareholders an optimum return on their investment
the Group places considerable emphasis on efficiently investing equity capital and attentively managing
the balance between financial strength and shareholder return In 2007 and 2008 the BNP Paribas

Groups capital adequacy ratios complied with regulatory requirements and its own targets

Regulatory capital levels are managed using information produced during the budget process including
forecast growth in earnings and risk-weighted assets planned acquisitions planned issues of hybrid

capital instruments and exchange rate assumptions Changes in ratios are reviewed by the Groups
executive management at quarterly intervals and whenever an event occurs or decision is made that

will materially affect consolidated ratios
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4.d CREDIT AND COUNTERPARTY RISK

The following table shows all the BNP Paribas Groups financial assets including fixed-income

securities which are exposed to credit and counterparty risk Credit risk exposure does not include
collateral and other security taken by the Group in its lending business or purchases of credit

protection It is based on the carrying value of financial assets recognised on the balance sheet
Exposure to counterparty risk represents the amount of exposure at default on derivative instruments
and securities lending borrowing transactions

Exposure to credit and counterparty risk by Basel asset class

In millions of euros

CentraIgornmentsandcestraI banks 16678 12 98988 11354 110342

Corporates 130434 1489 447647 57532 505179

lnstitutions 33828 966 129824 37988 167812

Retail 144312 265440 265440

Securitisaton positions 5412 30911 30911

Other non credit-obligation assets 76766
7676676766

Total exposure 407430 2467 642146 104407 1049576 106874 1156450

The table above shows the entire prudential scope based on the asset classes defined in article 40- of the decree of

20 February 2007 on capital requirements for credit institutions and investment firms

The Basel II Institutions asset class comprises credit institutions and investment firms including those recognised in

other countries It also includes some exposures to regional and local authorities public sector agencies and multilateral

development banks that are not treated as central government authorities

Other non credit-obligation assets include tangible assets and accrued income and other assets
The method used to calculate this exposure has been approved by the French banking supervisor and was not

audited by the Groups statutory auditors

The credit risk exposure shown in the table above represents the gross amount before impairment of

deposit accounts with central banks and post office banks EUR 39 billion loans granted to customers

EUR 509 billion and credit institutions EUR 69 billion fixed-income securities classified as
available-for-sale financial assets held-to-maturity financial assets or designated as at fair value

through profit or loss EUR 135 billion remeasurement adjustment on interest-rate risk hedged
portfolios EUR billion property plant and equipment and investment property EUR 25 billion
accrued income and other assets EUR 82 billion and financing and guarantee commitments given

EUR 307 billion Exposure to repo transactions EUR 33 billion and exposure not included in the

prudential covered scope EUR 86 billion have been deducted from these amounts

CREDIT RISK

Management of credit risk lending activities

General credit policy and control and provisioning procedures

The Banks lending activities are governed by the Global Credit Policy approved by the Risk Policy

Committee chaired by the Chief Executive Officer The purpose of the Committee is to determine the

Groups risk management strategy The policy is underpinned by core principles related to compliance
with the Groups ethical standards clear definition of responsibilities the existence and implementation
of procedures and thorough analysis of risks It is rolled down in the form of specific policies tailored to

each type of business or counterparty

Standardised àpproact IRBA TotSi

95996

121128

25499

55



BNP PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Decision-making procedures

system of discretionary lending limits has been established under which all lending decisions must
be approved by formally designated member of GRM Approvals are systematically evidenced in

writing either by means of signed approval form or in the minutes of formal meetings of Credit

Committee Discretionary lending limits correspond to aggregate commitments by business group and

vary according to internal credit ratings and the specific nature of the business concerned Certain

types of lending commitments such as loans to banks sovereign loans and loans to customers

operating in certain industries are required to be passed up to higher level for approval In addition

an industry expert or designated specialist may also be required to sign off on the loan application In

Retail Banking simplified procedures are applied based on statistical decision-making aids

Loan applications must comply with the Banks Global Credit Policy and with any specific policies and

must in all cases comply with the applicable laws and regulations In particular before making any
commitments BNP Paribas carries out an in-depth review of any known development plans of the

borrower and ensures that it has thorough knowledge of all the structural aspects of the borrowers

operations and that adequate monitoring will be possible

The Group Credit Committee chaired by one of the Chief Operating Officers or the head of GRM has

ultimate decision-making authority for all credit and counterparty risks

Monitoring procedures

comprehensive risk monitoring and reporting system has been established covering all Group
entities The system is organised around Control and Reporting units which are responsible for

ensuring that lending commitments comply with the loan approval decision that credit risk reporting

data are reliable and that risks accepted by the Bank are effectively monitored Daily exception reports

are produced and various forecasting tools are used to provide early warnings of potential escalations of

credit risks Monitoring is carried out at different levels generally reflecting the organisation of

discretionary lending limits Depending on the level the monitoring teams report to GRM or to the

Group Debtor Committee This Committee meets at monthly intervals to examine all sensitive or

problem loans in excess of certain amount Its responsibilities include deciding on any adjustments to

impairment provisions based on the recommendations of the business line and GRM tailored system
is applied in the Retail Banking business

Impairment procedures

GRM reviews all corporate bank and sovereign loans in default at monthly intervals to determine the

amount of any impairment loss to be recognised either by reducing the carrying amount or by

recording provision for impairment depending on the applicable accounting standards The amount
of the impairment loss is based on the present value of probable net recoveries including from the

realisation of collateral

In addition collective impairment is established for each core business on statistical basis

committee comprising the Core Business Director the Group Chief Financial Officer and the head of

GRM meets quarterly to determine the amount of the impairment This is based on simulations of

losses to maturity on portfolios of loans whose credit quality is considered as impaired but where the

customers in question have not been identified as in default i.e loans not covered by specific

impairment The simulations carried out by GRM use the parameters of the internal rating system
described below

Internal rating system

The BNP Paribas Group has been authorised by the French banking supervisor Commission Bancaire
to use an advanced internal ratings-based approach IRBA to credit risk for the retail sovereign bank
corporate and equity asset classes to calculate the regulatory capital requirements for CIB FRB
Personal Finance France and BNP Paribas Securities Services BP2S For other businesses the Basel II

standardised method is used based on external ratings Each transaction and each counterparty is

rated by the Group using the same methods regardless of the model used to calculate regulatory

capital requirements
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The Bank has comprehensive internal rating system for determining risk-weighted assets used to

compute capital adequacy ratios periodic assessment and control process has been deployed to

ensure that the system is appropriate and correctly implemented The system was formally validated by

the French banking supervisor Commission Bancaire in December 2007

For corporate loans the system is based on three parameters the counterpartys probability of default

expressed via rating global recovery rate or loss given default which depends on the structure of the

transaction and the credit conversion factor CCF which estimates the portion of off-balance sheet

exposure at risk

There are twelve counterparty ratings Ten cover performing clients with credit assessments ranging

from excellent to very concerning and two relate to clients classified as in default as per the

definition by the banking supervisor

Ratings are determined at least once year in connection with the loan approval process drawing on

the combined expertise of business line staff and GRM credit risk managers who have the final say

High quality tools have been developed to support the rating process including analysis aids and credit

scoring systems The decision to use these tools and the choice of technique depends on the nature of

the risk

Where external ratings exist they are taken into account by mapping the internal rating scale against

the external ratings based on the one-year default probability for each rating The Banks internal rating

for an exposure is not necessarily the same as the external rating and there is no strict correspondence

between an external investment grade rating4 and an internal rating equal to or higher than

Counterparties with BBB- external rating may be rated internally even though an external BBB
theoretically equates to an internal Annual benchmarking studies are carried out to compare internal

and external ratings

Various quantitative and other methods are used to check rating consistency and the rating systems

robustness Loans to private customers and very small businesses are rated using statistical analyses

of groups of risks with the same characteristics GRM has overall responsibility for the quality of the

entire system This responsibility is fulfilled by either defining the system directly validating it or

verifring its performance

Loss given default is determined either using statistical models for books with the highest degree of

granularity or using expert judgment based on comparative values in line with process similar to the

one used to determine the counterparty rating for corporate books Basel II defines loss given default as

the loss that the Bank would suffer in the event of the counterpartys default in economic downturn

conditions

For each transaction it is measured using the recovery rate for senior unsecured exposure to the

counterparty concerned adjusted for any effects related to the transaction structure e.g

subordination and for the effects of any risk mitigation techniques collateral and other security

Amounts recoverable against collateral and other security are estimated each year on prudent basis

and discounts are applied for realising security in stressed environment

Various credit conversion factors have been modelled by the Bank where permitted i.e excluding high-

risk transactions where the conversion factor is 100% either using historical internal default data or

other techniques when there is insufficient historical data Conversion factors are used to measure the

off-balance sheet exposure at risk in the event of borrower default Unlike rating and recovery rate this

parameter is assigned automatically depending on the transaction type and is not determined by the

Credit Committee

Each of the three credit risk parameters are backtested and benchmarked annually to check the

systems performance for each of the Banks business segments Backtesting consists of comparing

estimated and actual results for each parameter Benchmarking consists of comparing the parameters

estimated internally with those of external organisations

For backtesting ratings the default rate of populations in each rating category or each group of risks

with similar characteristics for retail banking operations is compared with the actual default rate

observed on year by year basis An analysis by rating policy rating geographical area and rating

method is carried out to identify any areas where the models might be underperforming The stability of

the rating and its population is also verified The Group has also developed backtesting techniques

Defined as an external rating from AAA to BBB-
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tailored to low default portfolios to assess the appropriateness of the system even where the number of

actual defaults is very low such as sovereigns and banks for example The impacts of economic cycles

are also taken into account This backtesting work has so far proved that the ratings assigned by the

Group are through the cycle and that even factoring in the recent positive economic cycle the forecast

default rate is highly conservative

For benchmarking work on non retail exposures internal ratings are compared with the external

ratings of several agencies based on the mapping between internal and external rating scales Some 10

to 15% of the Groups corporate population has an external rating and the benchmarking studies reveal

conservative approach to internal ratings

Back testing of global recovery rates is based mainly on analysing recovery flows on exposures in

default When an exposure has been written off each amount recovered is discounted back to the

default date and calculated as percentage of the exposure When an exposure has not yet been written

off the amount of provisions taken is used as proxy for future recoveries The recovery rate

determined in this way is then compared with the forecast rate Like the rating parameter recovery
rates are analysed on an overall basis and by rating policy and geographical area Variances on an item

by item and average basis are analysed taking into account the bimodal distribution of recovery rates

The results of these tests show that the Groups estimates are consistent with economic downturn
conditions and are conservative on an average basis Benchmarking of recovery rates is based on data

pooling initiatives in which the Group takes part

The credit conversion factor is also backtested annually although in less detail given the small volumes
of available data

The result of all backtesting and benchmarking work is presented annually to the Chief Risk Officer and
to the bodies responsible for overseeing the rating system and risk practitioners worldwide These

results and ensuing discussions are used to help set priorities in terms of developing methodology and

deploying tools

Internal estimates of risk parameters are used in the Banks day-to-day management in line with Basel

II recommendations For example apart from calculating capital requirements they are used when

making new loans or reviewing existing loans to measure profitability determine collective impairment
and for internal and external reporting purposes

Portfolio Policy

In addition to carefully selecting and evaluating individual risks BNP Paribas follows portfolio-based

policy designed to diversiti risks among borrowers industries and countries The results of this policy

are regularly reviewed by the Risk Policy Committee which may modiir or fine-tune it as required
based on GRMs analyses and recommendations As part of this policy BNP Paribas uses credit risk

transfer instruments such as securitisation programmes or credit derivatives to hedge individual risks

reduce portfolio concentration or cap potential losses from crisis scenarios The Bank also purchases
credit risks as part of its portfolio diversification and capital utilisation strategy based on strict

risk/yield ratio guidelines

Scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement systems

All information processes and systems used by the credit risk reporting function for producing Basel II

reports have been submitted for review to the French banking supervisor Commission Bancaire as part

of the IRBA approval process

The current credit risk system is based on two-tier architecture

central tier mainly comprising the credit risk exposure consolidation system central

databases and the engine for computing regulatory capital developed in-house

local tier comprising credit risk monitoring and reporting systems owned by GRM
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Risk mitigation techniques

Collateral and other security

The BNP Paribas Global Credit Policy stipulates how transactions should be structured in order to

mitigate risk Collateral and other security are taken into account at fair value and only accepted as

the main source of repayment in exceptional cases such as commodities financing for example cash

generated by operations is regarded as the primary source of the borrowers ability to repay Guarantors

are subject to the same rigorous upfront assessment process as primary debtors

Banking regulations set clear guidelines for assessing the risk-mitigating effect of collateral and other

security under the Basel II advanced approaches The Banks diversified business base means that

loans are secured by many different types of collateral and security particularly asset financing which

may be secured by aircraft ships or real estate for example Risk assessments also take into account

direct guarantees issued by the counterpartys parent company or other guarantors such as financial

institutions Other guarantees assessed by the Bank include credit derivatives export credit agencies

and credit enhancers Acceptance of these types of guarantees is governed by strict criteria guarantee

is considered as mitigating risk only when the guarantor is rated higher than the counterparty The

value of collateral or other security is only taken into account in measuring exposure if there is no

strong correlation with the risk on the first-rank debtor

BNP Paribas system for assessing the risk-mitigating effects of collateral and other security has been

validated by the French banking supervisor Commission Bancaire as part of the implementation of the

new Basel II capital adequacy ratio

Purchases of credit protection

In order to reduce the credit risk on certain portfolios the Group carries out synthetic securitisations

that transfer part of the risk to the market using credit derivatives purchases of options or credit

default swaps contracted either via special purpose entities or directly with other banks

The loans hedged by the credit derivatives remain on the consolidated balance sheet BNP Paribas is

exposed to counterparty risk in relation to the sellers of the credit protection This risk is subject to the

same decision-making and management process as that applied to derivatives used for other purposes

For portfolio transactions BNP Paribas retains part of the risk in the form of tranches which are

generally junior or mezzanine

Diversification of exposure to credit risk

Under Basel II the Groups gross credit risk exposure amounted to EUR 942 billion at 31 December

2008 EUR 923 billion at 31 December 2007 This portfolio which is analysed below in terms of

diversification comprises all exposures to credit risk shown in the table in Note 4.d excluding

securitisation positions and other non credit-obligation assets5

No single counterparty gives rise to an excessive concentration of credit risk due to the size of the

business and the high level industrial and geographical diversification of the client base The

breakdown of credit risks by industry and by region is presented in the charts below

The scope covered includes loans and receivables due from customers amounts due from credit institutions and central

banks the Groups credit accounts with other credit institutions and central banks fmancing and guarantee commitments given

excluding repos and fixed-income securities in the banking book
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Diversification is key component of the Banks policy and is assessed by taking account of all

exposure to single business group Diversification is achieved largely through the extent and variety of

the Banks business activities and the widespread system of discretionary lending authorities

Diversification of commitments by counterparty is closely and regularly monitored The risk

concentration ratio is designed to ensure that the aggregate risk on beneficiaries whose individual risks

each exceed 10% of net consolidated shareholders equity does not exceed eight times the Groups
capital

BNP Paribas remains well below the concentration limits set out in the European Directive on Large

Exposures The top ten customer groups accounted for less than 4% of total exposure at 31 December

2008 stable compared with 31 December 2007

Industry diversification

The breakdown of exposure by business sector is monitored carefully and supported by forward-

looking analysis for dynamic management of the Banks exposure It is based on the in-depth

knowledge of independent sector experts who express an opinion on trends in the sectors they follow

and identify the factors underlying the risks faced by the main companies in the sector This process is

adjusted by sector according to its weighting in the Groups exposure the technical knowledge required

to understand the sector its cyclicality and degree of globalisation and the existence of any particular

risk issues

Breakdown of credit risk by Basel II asset class and by Corporate industry at 31 December 2008

Prudential scope exposure excluding counterparty risk other non credit obligation assets and securitisation

positions

The Basel II Institutions asset class comprises credit institutions and investment firms including those recognised
in other countries It also includes some exposures to regional and local authorities public sector agencies and

multilateral development banks that are not treated as central government authorities

The above analysis of the prudential scope rounds out the analysis of the scope of commercial loans

and commitments as presented 31 December 2007

Transportation Logistics

3%

communications Services

1%

to services

5%

Utilities Electricity Gas Wateretc

3%

Whosesale Trading

4%

Metals Mining

3%

Information Technologies Electronics_

1%

central Governments and central

Banks

11%

Eguipment escluding IT Electronics

2%

Energy Eocluding Electricity

3%

RealEstate

3%

-it

Retaillers

2%

construction

2%

lnstitutions

19%

-N

chemicals eocluding Pharmaceuticals

1%

Agriculture Food Tobacco

3%

Other

5%

Retail

29%

Total eoposure EUR 942 billion
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Within this scope of commercial loans and commitments below is comparison of the breakdown by

industry at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008

Breakdown of the portfolio of commercial loans and commitments at 31 December 2008 by industry

connnity and rsovnal cormttnications Services Transportation Logistics
1311 l8ectriciy Gas Wateretc

1/s

3/
Bloesevoes

5/
Heathcare and Ftiarrreceuticals

Finance

6%

Whosesale Trading

50/

FvŁtals Ivining

3%

rMde Ojltsral Services

1%

hforrreton Technologies

Bectrnnics

Real atate

4%

Hotels Ins nrc Lesure

uipnt esclsdog if eectronicn

32%

Biergy Eoclsding Sectricily

Relaillars

2% Agricuture Food Tobacco

3%

construction Chetricals enclsdvig Aitorrottve tisurance

3% Ftiarreceidicals Hnuselhokl goods 1%
Total exposure EUR 816 billion

Scope commercial loans artd commitments

The scope covered comprises loans and receivables due from customers amounts due from credit institutions and

central banks and financing and guarantee commitments given excluding repo transactions It does not include

fixed-income securities

Breakdown of the portfolio of commercial loans and commitments at 31 December 2007 by industry

to services
Connjnications Services

Transportation Logistics

1%
30/

Fbalthcare and
Ltilities Bectriciry Gas

FTharneceuticals
-- Wateretc

Anance Local

hfortmtion Technologies

Retail

33%

Energy excluding Bectricity
---

Retadler_--- //i/ N11- Agricutore Food Tobacco

construction --- 3%

2% Chemicals excluding
Insurance

Riarneceuticals
lbuselhold goodsIAutorr0tlve 1%

1%
1% 1% Total exposure EUR 788 billion

Scope commercial loans and commitments
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Geographic diversification

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Country risk is the sum of all exposures to obligors in the country concerned It is not the same as

sovereign risk which is the sum of all exposures to the central government and its various offshoots

Country risk reflects the Banks exposure to given economic and political environment which must be

taken into consideration when assessing counterparty quality The way in which these considerations

are included in the risk rating has recently been reviewed and extended

Geographical breakdown of credit risk at 31 December 2008 by counterpartys country of business

Africa and Mddle East

6%

Latin Arrrica

2%

Japan and Pacific

4%

Nrth Arrrica

16%

Other Bjropean

Countries

2%

Switzerland and Other

countries EEA

4%

Other Asia

4%

Prudential scope exposure excluding counterparty risk

securitisation positions

other non credit obligation assets and

Geographic diversification of exposure remains balanced and relatively stable reflecting the Groups

predominantly European operations

The Group which is naturally present in most economically active areas strives to avoid excessive

concentrations of risk in countries whose political and economic infrastructure is acknowledged to be

weak Most of the Groups exposure in these countries comprises export credit and short-term

commercial commitments

The above analysis of the prudential scope rounds out the analysis of the scope of commercial loans

and commitments as presented 31 December 2007

Within this scope of commercial loans and commitments below is comparison of the breakdown by

region at 31 December 2007 and 31 December 2008

France

31%

Italy

15%

Total exposure EUR 942 billion

UE-15 excluding

France and Italy

6%
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Geographical breakdown of the portfolio of commercial loans and commitments at 31 December 2008

by country of booking entity

Scope commercial loans and commitments

The scope covered comprises loans and receivables due from customers amounts due from credit

institutions and central banks and financing and guarantee commitments given excluding repo

transactions It does not include fixed-income securities

Geographical breakdown of the portfolio of commercial

by country of booking entity

loans and commitments at 31 December 2007

Africa and v1ddIe East

4%

Bancwest

6%

Latin Anerica

3%

France and Italy

16%

Japan and Pacific

2%
Other Asia

3%
Africa and Fvlddle East

7%

Latin Anerica

3%

North Arrerica

18%

Other European

Countries

1%

Switzerland and Other

countries EEA

3%

France

/__ 33%

//

-- Ita

14%

Total exposure EUR 816 billion

UE-15 excluding

France and Italy

16%

Asia and Pacific

excluding Japan

4%

Japan

1%

North Arrerica

excluding Bancwest

12%

Other European

Countries

6%

France

35%

Total exposure EUR 788 billion

European Econorric

Area excluding

Italy

14%

Scope commercial loans and commitments
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Quality of the portfolio exposed to credit risk

Advanced Internal Ratings Based Approach IRBA

The internal rating system developed by the Group covers the entire Bank The IRBA validated in

December 2007 covers the Corporate Investment Banking CIB portfolio the French Retail Banking

FRB portfolioas well BP2S and part of Personal Finance deployment plan has been presented to

and validated by the French banking supervisor Commission Bancaire as part of the approval process
In time the vast majority of Group entities will migrate to IRBA

Corporate model

The IRBA for the Corporate book i.e banks corporates structured financing and sovereigns is based

on consistent rating procedure in which GRM has the final say as regards the rating assigned to the

counterparty and the recovery rate assigned to transactions Credit conversion factors CCF are

assigned centrally according to counterparty and transaction type

The generic process for assigning rating to each segment of the Corporate book is as follows

For corporates and structured financing an analysis is carried out by the unit proposing the

rating and global recovery rate to the Credit Committee using the rating models and tools

developed by GRM The rating and global recovery rate are validated or revised by the GRM
representative during the Credit Committee meeting The Committee decides whether or not to

grant or renew loan and if applicable reviews the counterparty rating at least once year

For banks the analysis is carried out by analysts in the risk management function

Counterparty ratings and global recovery rates are determined during review committees by

geographical area to ensure comparability between similarbanks

For sovereigns the ratings are proposed by the Economic Research Department and approved at

Country Committee meetings which take place several times year The committee comprises

members of Executive Management the Risk Management Department and the business lines

For medium-sized companies score is assigned by the business lines credit analysts and

GRM has the final say

For each of these sub-portfolios the risk parameters are measured using model certified and

validated by the GRM teams based mainly on an analysis of the Banks historical data The

model is supported as far as possible by tools available through network to ensure consistent

use However expert judgment is also fundamental factor Each rating and recovery rate is

subject to personal opinion which may differ from the results of the model provided it can be

justified

The method of measuring risk parameters is based on set of common principles and particularly the

two pairs of eyes principle which requires at least two people one of whom has no commercial

involvement to give their opinion on each counterparty rating and each transaction global recovery rate

GRR
The same definition of default is used consistently throughout the Group

The chart below shows breakdown by credit rating of performing loans and commitments in the

Corporate book exposure classes corporates central governments and central banks institutions for

all the Groups business lines measured using the internal ratings-based approach This exposure

represents EUR 491 billion of the gross credit risk

The majority of commitments are towards borrowers rated as good even excellent quality reflecting the

heavy weighting of large multinational groups and financial institutions in the Banks client base

significant proportion of commitments to non-investment grade borrowers are highly structured or

secured by high quality guarantees implying higher recovery in the event of default They include

export financing covered by export credit insurance written by international agencies project finance

structured finance and transaction financing
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Breakdown of IRBA Corporate exposures by credit rating

EnceiSt good and average risks thvder credO etch

25%

20%

15%
in 31 December 2008

031 December 2007

10%

5%

0%

Average at 002%

one year

horaon at

311208

Rating
10

The Corporate book shown in the chart above includes corporates central governments and central banks and institutions

The proportion of exposures rated ri has risen significantly due to an increase in compulsory reserves

and deposits with central banks mainly in the United States France and Japan

Excluding sovereigns and central banks the change in breakdown of Corporate exposures during 2008

was mainly in the to rating brackets due primarily to sharp decrease in CIB Energy and

Commodities exposure

Apart from these two structural effects the corporate portfolios quality did not experience any

significant change

Retail banking operations

Retail banking operations are carried out either by the BNP Paribas network of branches in France or

by certain subsidiaries and notably Personal Finance

The Standard Ratings Policy for Retail Operations provides framework allowing Group core

businesses and risk management departments to assess prioritise and monitor credit risks

consistently This policy is used for transactions presenting high degree of granularity small unit

volumes and standard risk profile Borrowers are assigned scores in accordance with the policy

which sets out

standard internal ratings-based principles underlining the importance of watertight process

and its ability to adapt to changes in the credit environment

principles for defining homogeneous pools of credit risk exposures

principles relative to credit models particularly the need to develop discriminating and

understandable models and to model or observe risk indicators downstream in order to

calibrate exposures Risk indicators must be quantified based on historical data covering

minimum period of five years and in-depth representative sampling All models must be

documented in detail

The majority of FRBr5 retail borrowers are assigned behavioural score which serves as basis to

determine the probability of default and for each transaction the global recovery rate and

exposure at default EAD These parameters are calculated monthly on the basis of the latest available

information They are drilled down into different scores and made available to the commercial function

which has no involvement in determining risk parameters These methods are used consistently for all

retail banking customers

503% 008% 016% 0.35% 100% 298% 664% 11 47% 1871%
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For the portion of the Personal Finance book eligible for the IRBA the risk parameters are determined

by the Risk Management Department on statistical basis according to customer type and relationship

history

Scoring techniques are used to assign retail customers to risk groups presenting the same default risk

characteristics This also applies to the other credit risk inputs Exposure at Default EAD and Loss

Given Default LGD
The chart below shows breakdown by credit rating of performing loans and commitments in the retail

book for all the Groups business lines measured using the internal ratings-based approach This

exposure represents EUR 116 billion of the gross credit risk

Breakdown of IRBA Retail exposures by credit rating

Excellent good and
average

risky Under credit watch

25%

20%

15%
U31 December2008

031 December 2007
10%

__
Average FOal 0.03% 1061% 2795%

one year horizon

at 311208

tlng 10

The risk profile remains stable and almost 75% of exposure is to good quality counterparties equivalent

to ratings to

Standardised approach

For exposures in the standardised approach BNP Paribas uses the external ratings assigned by
Standard Poors Moodys and Fitch Ratings These ratings are mapped into equivalent credit quality

levels as required by the Basel II framework in accordance with the instructions issued by the French

banking supervisor Commission Bancaire

When there is no directly applicable external rating the issuers senior unsecured rating may if

available be obtained from external databases and used for risk-weighting purposes in some cases

This exposure represents 35% of the BNP Paribas Groups total gross exposure The main entities using

the standardised approach at 31 December 2008 are BNL BancWest Cetelem excluding France UCB
BPLG TEB UkrSibbank and the emerging country subsidiaries

The chart below shows breakdown by credit rating of performing loans and commitments in the

Corporate book exposure classes corporates central governments and central banks institutions for

all the Groups business lines measured using the standardised approach This exposure represents

EUR 176 billion of the gross credit risk
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Breakdown of Corporate exposure by actual weighting in the standardised approach

80%

70%

60%

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

31 december2008

december 2007

The corporate book shown in the chart above includes corporates central governments and central banks and

institutions

The breakdown of Corporate exposures by actual weighting in the standardised approach remains

broadly stable

10%

0%

50%

40%

30%

20%

0% 20 150100% 100%
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Loans with past-due instalments whether impaired or not and related collateral or other security

The following table presents the carrying amounts of financial assets that are past due but not impaired

by age of past due impaired assets and related collateral or other security The amounts shown are

stated before any collective impairment

31 December2008

Maturities of unimpairedpast due loans

Past-due assets net of individual impairment provisions 9674 8099 549 112 114 8554 18228 9518

Financing commitments giuen 223 223 10

Guarantee commitments giuen 460 460 67

Off-balsnce sheet non-performing commitments net of provisions 683 683 77

Total 9674 0899 549 112 114 9237 18911 9595

31 December2007

Maturities of unimpaired pastdue loans

Collateral

Impaired
received in

to millions of euros assets and Total loans

respect of

commitments and
theseloans

Total covered by commitments
and

provisions
commitments

-inancial assets attaim unlue tsrosgn protitom loss 5Cl variable-income

aecunties

Available-for-sale tnancial assets end vadable-income secunbes 119 121

Loansand receivablesduefrom creditinsbtutons 151 66 24 13 48 37 188 35

Loans and receivables due from cuatomers 7003 6574 370 30 29 5753 12756 6690

Past-due assets net of individual impairment provisions 7162 6640 394 43 85 5909 13071 6725

Financing commitments glues 149 149 111

Guarantee commitments giuen 517 517 12

Off-balance sheet non-performing commitments net of provisions 666 666 123

Total 7162 6640 394 43 85 6575 13737 6848

The amounts shown for collateral and other security correspond to the lower of the value of the

collateral or other security and the value of the secured assets

COUNTERPARTY RISK

BNP Paribas is exposed to counterparty risk on its capital markets transactions This risk is managed
through the widespread use of standard close-out netting and collateral agreements and through

l-inancial assets attair value rarougn protitor loss end variaSie-income

securities

Available-for-sale fnancial assets end vadable-income securites

Loans and receivablesdue from creditinsttubona

Loans and receivables due from customers

18 15

114

137 87 18 30 33

9518 8706 547 94 81 8407

18

115

170

17925

20

9494
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dynamic hedging policy Changes in the value of the Banks exposure are taken into account in the

measurement of over-the-counter financial instruments through credit adjustment process

Netting agreements

Netting is technique used by the Bank to mitigate counterparty risks on derivatives transactions The
Bank primarily uses close-out netting which enables it to close out all positions at current market

value in the event of default by the counterparty All amounts due to and frcm the counterparty are

then netted to arrive at the net amount payable or receivable The net amount may be secured by
collateral in the form of cash securities or deposits

The Bank also uses bilateral payment flow netting to mitigate counterparty risk on foreign currendy

payments Bilateral payment flow netting consists of replacing payment streams in given currØnc by
cumulative balance due to or from each party representing single net sum in each currency to

settled on given day between the Bank and the counterparty

The transactions are executed according to the terms of bilateral or multilateral master agreements that

comply with the general provisions of national or international master agreements The main bilateral

agreement models used are those of the FØdØration Bancaire Francaise FBF or those of the

International Swaps and Derivatives Association ISDA for international agreements The BNP Paribas

Group also participates in EchoNetting enabling it to use multilateral netting for transactions with

other participants within the organisation

Measurement of exposure

Exposure at Default EAD for counterparty risk is measured using an internal assessment procedure
which is subsequently integrated within the credit risk assessment tool This tool has been used by the

Group for the past ten years and is updated on an ongoing basis It is based on Monte Carlo

simulations which allow analysts to identify likely movements in exposure amounts The stochastic

processes used are sensitive to parameters including volatility and correlation calibrated on historical

market data Changes in exposure amounts are calculated up to the maturity of the corresponding

transactions To aggregate exposures the system takes into account the legal environment of each

transaction and counterparty and any netting or margin call agreements

Counterparty risk exposures fluctuate significantly over time due to constant changes in the market

parameters affecting the value of the underlying transactions Accordingly any assessment of

counterparty risk must consider possible future changes in the value of these transactions as well as

their present value

Potential future exposures to counterparty risk are captured using ValRisk an internal model allowing

analysts to simulate several thousand possible market trend scenarios and revalue transactions carried

out with each counterparty at several hundred future points in time from day to more than 30 years

for very long-term transactions To aggregate transactions on each counterparty ValRisk takes into

account the legal jurisdiction in which each counterparty operates and in particular any netting or

margin call agreements

Monitoring and control of Counterparty Risk

Every day potential future exposures calculated by ValRisk are checked against the approved limits per

counterparty ValRisk allows analysts to simulate new transactions and measure their impact on the

counterparty portfolio making it an essential tool in the risk approval process Limits are set by the

Regional Credit Committee Global Credit Committee and General Management Credit Committee in

increasing order of authority according to their level of delegated authority
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Credit adjustments to over-the-counter financial instruments

The fair values of financial instruments traded over-the-counter by the Fixed Income and Global Equity

Commodity Derivatives units include credit value adjustments credit value adjustment CVA is an

adjustment to the value of the trading book to take account of counterparty risk It reflects the expected

loss on the existing exposure to counterparty due to the potential positive value of the contract the

probability of default and the estimated global recovery rate

Dynamic counterparty risk management

The CVA varies according to changes in the existing exposure and in the prices quoted for the

counterpartys credit risk which may be reflected in particular in the credit default swap CDS spread

variations used to calculate the probability of default

To reduce the risk resulting from deterioration in the inherent credit quality of portfolio of financial

instruments BNP Paribas may use dynamic hedging strategy based on the purchase of market

instruments such as credit derivatives

Economic and regulatory capital

ValRisk is also used to produce the information needed to compute economic capital distribution of

potential future exposures on each counterparty and Basel II regulatory capital expected effective

positive exposures

SECURITISATION

The BNP Paribas Group is involved in securitisation transactions as originator sponsor and investor as

defined by Basel II Its activities in each of these roles are described below

In billion ofeuros

Securitisation exposures
BNP Paribas role

originated by BNP Paribas

Securitisation positions held

or acquired EAD

Originator 4.83 0.36

Sponsor 0.03 11.13

lnstor 13.42

Total 4.86 30.91

Proprietary securitisation originator under Basel II

As part of the day-to-day management of liquidity the Groups least liquid assets may be swiftly

transformed into liquid assets by securitising loans mortgages and consumer loans granted to retail

banking customers as well as loans granted to corporate customers

Several securitisation transactions were carried out in 2008 by BNP Paribas subsidiaries Personal

Finance in France BNL in Italy and UCI in Spain The total amount securitised was EUR 13 billion All

these transactions have been retained by the subsidiaries concerned

Given the weak market appetite for securitisation products since August 2007 the Groups strategy as

regards securitising its retail loans has been to carry out proprietary transactions that serve as

collateral for raising short-term liquidity with the European Central Bank
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In 2008 33 transactions were carried out representing total Group exposure of EUR 23.5 billion

including EUR 12 billion for Personal Finance EUR billion for Equipment Solutions and

EUR 105 billion for BNL Only nine of these transactions representing total Group exposure of

EUR 4.8 billion have been excluded from the calculation of Basel II risk-weighted assets as shown in

the table above

Securitisation as sponsor on behalf of clients

During 2008 BNP Paribas Structured Finance continued to manage CLO conduits on behalf of clients

but did not originate any new European CLO packages during the year in view of market conditions

CIB Fixed Income carries out securitisation programmes involving the creation of special purpose
entities vehicles on behalf of its customers These programmes have liquidity facilities and where

appropriate guarantees Special purpose entities over which the Group does not exercise control are

not consolidated

Short-term refinancing at 31 December 2008 six non-consolidated multiseller conduits EliopØe

ThØsØe Starbird Bird Bird and Matchpoint were managed by the Group on behalf of customers

These entities are refinanced on the local short-term commercial paper market The Group has issued

letters of credit guaranteeing the secondary default risk on securitised receivables managed for clients

by these entities up to an amount of EUR 0.7 billion stable at 31 December 2007 and has granted

liquidity facilities totalling EUR 15.2 billion to these entities EUR 15 billion at 31 December 2007

Medium/long-term refinancing the Group acts as sponsor for customers setting funds that receive

securitised customer assets and issuing medium and long-term bonds which are then placed by the

Bank These funds are not managed by the Bank and they are not consolidated At 31 December 2008

the Group had granted liquidity facilities totalling EUR 0.3 billion EUR 0.3 billion at

31 December 2007 to thirteen such funds Meliadi SARL Tenzing CFO Forest Finance Italfinance

Emerald Assets LFE Capital III Cavendish CR Ferrara Halcyon Aurelius CDO FCC 130 BB Air

Funding and Wilmington Trust representing total of EUR 3.9 billion of securitised receivables

EUR 4.6 billion at 31 December 2007

In the current climate of financial crisis the BNP Paribas Groups structuring ability remains intact and

it is therefore able to continue its securitisation arrangement business to meet its clients financing

needs based on products better geared to current conditions in terms of risk and liquidity These

products are sometimes accompanied by specific banking facilities such as bridge financing senior

loans and cash facilities representing total of EUR 1.6 billion of securitisation positions

Securitisation as investor

The Groups business in securitisation as investor is mainly carried out by CIB AMS and IRS

CIB Fixed Income is responsible for monitoring and managing the portfolio of ABS either held or

covered by CDOs transferred to the prudential banking book which represents total of

EUR 5.9 billion of ABS It also manages liquidity facilities granted by banking syndicates to ABCP
conduits managed by number of major international industrial groups clients of BNP Paribas

representing total of EUR 1.3 billion

CIB Loan and Portfolio Management LPM continued its securitisation activities as an investor in 2008

No new transactions have been set up since the first quarter of 2007 and the portfolio has shrunk by

over 50% in two years

At 31 December 2008 the notional amount of the securitisation portfolio managed by LPM had fallen to

EUR 0.15 billion as several investments reached maturity and other programmes were either

discontinued or sold following the difficulties suffered in 2008 by Lehman Brothers Fannie Mae and

Freddie Mac These problems also led to the recognition of EUR 53 million of impairment losses

In 2008 Asset Management Services invested in securitisation programmes to provide liquidity to

certain investment funds mainly in the second and fourth quarters These investments were made in

-71



BNP PARIBAS Consolidated fmancial statements at 31 December 2008

strict compliance with the Groups risk management rules and totalled EUR 3.1 billion at 31 December

2008

Within IRS Bancwest is the only entity that invests in securitisation positions The business is

managed by its two subsidiaries Bank of the West BoW and First Hawaiian Bank FHB
Bancwest invests exclusively in securitisation positions in listed securities as core component of its

refinancing and own funds investment policy At 31 December 2008 its exposure amounted to

EUR 2.1 billion

Securitisation risk management

Securitisation transactions arranged by BNP Paribas on behalf of clients are highly technical and

specific in nature They are therefore analysed and monitored independently by the Transaction

Analysis Team dedicated unit within Risk-Capital Markets R-CM The team calls on additional

expertise in terms of liquidity valuing securitisation tranches credit accounting risk and compliance

To ensure consistent comprehensive approach at Group level the team covers cash securitisation

transactions credit risk on bridge and warehouse facilities i.e receivables awaiting securitisation

credit risk on related liquidity and derivative facilities for securitisation SPEs and risks on conduits

sponsored by BNP Paribas

The risk management system for securitisation exposures complies with the Groups general risk

management framework but is also tailored to the specific requirements of this market through the

following additional committees and procedures

specific procedure for preparing ABCP credit applications

specific rating policies for ABS and ABCP

specific credit committees for approvals and reviews including Regional and Global

Securitisation Credit Committees RSCC AND GSCC Screening Committees where applicable

and FICC for underwriting Annual reviews are carried out for each ABS or programme and also

at consolidated conduit level In addition watchlist/doubtful committee meetings are held where

necessary as part of the overall risk review

specific credit policy for structured ABS transactions and ASGs ABS investments carried on the

balance sheet or via conduits

Given the crisis in the securitisation market since 2007 this system has also been strengthened by
crisis reporting procedure that includes specific sections devoted to ABS positions and conduits

Information is reported to Executive Management through Capital Market Risk Committees Corporate

Communication CCIRC and stress testing reports see section on Reporting to Executive Management
crisis monitoring and reporting

4.e MARIaT RISK

MARKET RISK RELATED TO FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Definitions

Market risk is the risk of gains or losses due to changes in market parameters such as interest rates

exchange rates and equity or commodity prices The parameters are as follows

Interest rate risk covers potential fluctuations in the value of fixed-rate financial instruments or

financial instruments indexed to market benchmark due to changes in market interest rates and

in future cash flows on floating-rate financial instruments
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Currency risk is the risk that the value of an instrument or of future cash flows from that

instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates

Price risk arises from changes in market prices whether caused by factors specific to an individual

instrument or issuer or by factors affecting all instruments traded on the market This may relate

for example to changes in the price or volatility of shares stock market indices or commodities
Variable-income securities equity derivatives and commodity derivatives are exposed to this risk

Credit spread risk on the trading book BNP Paribas trades actively in credit derivatives to meet the

needs of its customers Transactions include trades in ordinary instruments such as credit default

swaps and structured transactions with complex risk profiles tailored to targeted strategies As part

of this trading activity BNP Paribas buys and sells protection the net position is subject to strict

limits

Options give rise to an intrinsic volatility and correlation risk whose parameters can be determined

from observable prices of options traded in an active market

Notes

Market risks arise mainly from trading book transactions carried out by the Fixed Income and

Equity teams within Corporate and Investment Banking and are monitored by GRM

Similar financial instruments exchange rate or credit instruments are included in the banking

book but are monitored within credit risk

Counterparty risk covers derivatives and repo pension transactions in both trading and banking
books see section 4.d

Risk acceptance process

Governance

The Capital Markets Risk Committee CMRC is the main committee governing the risks related to

capital markets It is responsible for addressing in coherent manner the issues related to market and

counterparty risk Two meetings year are chaired by the Bank CEO while other meetings may be

chaired by one of the Banks two COOs The CMRC sets the highest-level trading limits for market and

treasury risks outlines risk approval procedures and reviews loss statements and estimates of stress

test risks

GRMs responsibilities in terms of market risk monitoring include the following

Defining standard measuring quantitatively and analytically reviewing the various sensitivities

that mirror basic market risk

Working with business units to set limits for sensitivities and other more global indicators such

as Gross Earnings at Risk GEaR known more generally as Value-at-Risk VaR

Approving the most significant new activities and transactions

Reviewing and approving market position valuation models

Generating reports for Executive Management and business line Senior Management and

Performing Market Parameter MAP Reviews monthly with Group Product Control

Limit setting and tracking

The CMRC has delegated responsibility for setting and tracking limits as follows

Activity limits delegated to trading managers

Business unit limits delegated to business unit managers

CMRC limits delegated exclusively to the CMRC
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Authorisations to exceed limits Special authorisation may be granted on case-by-case basis to change

limits either temporarily or permanently The amount by which any limit is exceeded must be disclosed

according to procedure and actions must be taken based on the level at which limit responsibility has

been delegated The CMRC will be informed when limits are exceeded

Measurement of market risk on trading activities

Overview

Market risk on trading activities is measured using three different indicators GEaR sensitivity and

stress tests designed to capture all potential risks including possible changes resulting from sudden

severe decline in market conditions

Measurement of market risk under normal market conditions

VaR or GEaR This indicator is calculated from model approved by the banking supervisor It

estimates the potential loss on trading portfolio under normal market conditions over one trading day
The model is based on changes in the market over the previous 260 days with confidence level of 99%
The banking supervisor has approved this internal model for both general and specific risks i.e

specific equity and interest rate risks as well as the following methodologies

The incorporation of typical risk factors interest rates credit spreads exchange rates securities

prices commodities prices and the corresponding volatility

The incorporation of correlations between risk factors in order to account for the knock-on

effects of risk diversification

The algorithms and methodologies are reviewed and improved regularly so as to remain consistent with

industry best practices and to take into account product innovations and changes in market trading

portfolios

The Groups global risk tracking system MRX calculates the sensitivity of portfolio positions to

various market parameters This system is described below It completes the series of market risk

indicators used by the Group so as to continuously adapt to the increasing complexity of certain

markets

Measurement of market risk under extreme market conditions

Stress testing The Group performs stress tests to simulate the impact of extreme market conditions

on the value of trading portfolios These conditions are reflected in the extreme stress scenarios and

adjusted to reflect changes in the economic environment GRM has outlined 15 stress test scenarios

covering all market activities interest rate currency equity derivative commodity and treasury These

scenarii are presented to and reviewed by the CMRC on monthly basis

These are reviewed at regular intervals For interest rate and credit activities most of the stress tests

are performed using the same basis as daily position valuations The system includes specific scenarios

for some asset classes likeABS

The Group has also outlined specific scenarios to carefully manage some types of risks most notably

the more complicated risks requiring full re-evaluation rather than an estimate based on sensitivity

indicators delta gamma vega etc. The results of these stress tests are presented to business line

managers and stress test limits may be set

74



BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December2008

Global risk tracking system

The Group uses an integrated system called Market Risk Explorer MRX to calculate VaR GEaR and

help with daily position tracking The risk coverage provided by MRX has been improved over the past

few years with the following

risk calculation for each transaction enabling more detailed analysis

An enhanced field where risk calculations are made through complete re-evaluation of values

presented during VaR GEaR simulations and stress tests replacing estimates based on

sensitivity indicators delta gamma vega etc and

greater range of screens available for performing specific analyses

The Groups MRX staff and position tracking teams have also created daily variation reports

showing the most significant changes in risk indicators VaR stress tests reserves etc for all

capital market activities These reports help improving data quality within more structured

framework

Analysis of sensitivity to market parameters

Market risk is first analysed by systematically measuring portfolio sensitivity to various market

parameters The information thus obtained is used to set tolerance ranges for maturities and option

strike prices The results of these sensitivity analyses are compiled at various aggregate position levels

and compared with market limits

MRX incorporates the following in its sensitivity analyses

The risk on each counterparty for an increasing number of sensitivity indicators inflation risk

and better representation of currency risk and volatility indicators

ABS risk correlations collection scenarios and issuer risk reports and

Base correlation risk

VaR calculation methods are continually being improved to factor in new risks arising from changes in

the structure of financial markets and products

VaR values in 2008 10 days 99%

The Values at Risk VaRs set out below were calculated from an internal model which uses parameters
that comply with the method recommended by the Basel Committee for determining estimated value at

risk Supplement to the Capital Accord to Incorporate Market Risks They are based on ten-day time

horizon and 99% confidence interval

In 2008 total average VaR was EUR 278 million with minimum of EUR 167 million and maximum
of EUR 604 million after taking into account the EUR 255 million effect of netting the different types of

risk These amounts break down as follows

Type of risk

nterest rate dsk

Credit risk

Currency risk1

Equityrisk

Commodity dsk

Year to 31 Dec

2007 31 December 2007

Average

61 82

79 147

17 41

134 152

17 12

Effect of netting 255 357 152 189

TOTAL 278 167 604 303 156 245

The VaR for currency risk is outside the scope of Pillar of Basel II

Year to 31 Dec 2008

31 December 2008

Average Minimum Mamum

129 71 374 261

176 97 309 198

42 14 102 69

169 52 400 119

17 38 13
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Risk exposure in 2008

VaR evolution day 99% in million of euros

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

VaR rose markedly as result of extreme volatility in the financial markets especially in the fourth

quarter despite policy to cut the Banks market positions

GRM continuously tests the accuracy of its model through variety of techniques including regular

comparison over long-term horizon between actual daily losses on capital market transactions and 1-

day VaR 99% confidence level means that in theory the Bank should not incur daily losses in excess

of VaR more than two or three days year

Daily losses exceeded VaR seven times in 2008 reflecting unprecedented shocks and exceptionally high

volatility in the financial markets

Portfolio valuation controls

In 2007 the Group enhanced its portfolio valuation controls by forming Group Product Control team
This team works under charter outlining its responsibilities towards GRM Finance and Development
the front-office IT and Operations in terms of financial instrument valuations gains or losses on

capital market activities and control processes

The main areas of valuation control are

Transaction recording

Market Parameter MAP Reviews monthly reviews of book valuations

Model reviews and

Reserve calculations

The procedures for these controls are discussed below

Governance

The Product and Financial Control Committee PFCC is senior-level committee that meets quarterly

to review valuation topics and take related decisions The committee is chaired jointly by the head of

CIB and the Group Chief Financial Officer other members include the Chief Risk Officer and

representatives from Finance and Development and the Risk Department

VaR 1.day 9PY4 In 2008

250

no -- __________ ____________________

50

LJ_ Cl
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At business unit level the Valuation Review Committee VRC meets every month to examine and

approve the results of MAP Reviews and any changes in reserves The committee is chaired by the

Senior Trader and other members include representatives from trading GRM Group Product Control
and Finance arid Development The Valuation Review Committee also acts as the referee in any
disagreements between trading and functional departments

Transaction recording controls

Operations middle-office is responsible for controlling the transaction recording process although
GRM checks the process for more structured transactions requiring special attention

Market Parameter MAP Review

GRM and Group Product Control are jointly responsible for MAP Review This review entail formal

verification of all market parameters and are generally performed monthly the more liquid parameters

are reviewed daily Group Product Control checks the parameters for automated processes while GRM
checks the risk and market parameters requiring an in-depth analysis The information used for MAP
Reviews is obtained from brokers arid suppliers of consensus market prices

The MAP Review methodology is outlined in separate procedures for each major product line All MAP
Review conclusions are documented and the corresponding adjustments are made in the middle-office

books MAP Review results are presented to business managers during Valuation Review Committee

meetings

Reserve calculations

The Group began making significant efforts in 2007 to consolidate and centralise reserve calculations

within MRX especially for calculations based on sensitivity analyses already in the system and which

will replace calculations made by position tracking teams Reserves can generally be calculated daily

Models review

GRM is responsible for reviewing valuation models The main review processes are as follows

Model validation formal review performed when changes are made to models methodology

The results of this review are documented in Model Validation Report explaining the basis of

and conditions for the validation

Model testing process designed to test models quality and robustness

Product/model mapping process that examines whether pricing models are suited to their

products and being used properly within the system

Day-one-profit

Some structured transactions require the use of parameters considered unobservable which means

that the day-one profit cannot be recognised under lAS 39 In these situations the middle-office

calculates the adjustments needed to offset this profit

GRM works with Finance and Development middle-offices and business units to calculate the day-one

profit and most notably performs the following

Determines whether parameter is observable

Documents evidence of observability and

Determines whether transaction is observable whenever this determination cannot be

performed by the middle-offices automated processes

The middle-office calculates the necessary adjustments to the day-one profit and ensures that each

transaction is observable
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Risk reports and information for Executive Management

The Global Risk Analysis and Reporting GRAR team is responsible for generating risk reports

Regular risk reports

The following risk reports are generated on regular basis

Weekly Main Position reports for each business line equity derivatives commodities credit

and interest rate and currency derivatives summarising all positions and highlighting items

needing particular attention these reports are sent to business line managers

Bimonthly Over 5m at Risk reports sent to Executive Management

CMRC Events Summary reports used as basis for discussions during CMRC meetings

Position Highlights reports focusing on specific issues and

Geographical dashboards such as UK Risk Dashboard reports

Crisis reports

Following the subprime crisis and credit crunch that hit the markets in August 2007 GRM expanded
its range of reports and activities to include the following

Weekly meeting between and GRM managers to ensure coordinated efforts and make decisions

in light of recent market developments and changes in counterparties circumstances

New ABS stress tests for trading and investment portfolios and daily reports of the results of

equity derivative stress tests

Daily or weekly reports about the current financial crisis summarising the result market

movements emerging markets and the counterparty risk on watch list monolines SIVs

CDPCs mutual funds financial institutions and hedge funds

Market and counterparty risk concentration analyses volatility dividends etc and

Specifics counterparties analyses

MARKET RISK RELATED TO BANKING ACTIVITIES

The market risk related to banking activities encompasses equity holding risk on the one hand and the

interest rate and currency risks stemming from banking intermediation activities on the other hand

Only the equity and currency risks give rise to weighted assets calculation under Pillar of Basel II

The interest rate risk falls under Pillar

Interest rate and currency risks related to banking intermediation activities and investments mainly
concern retail banking activities in France and abroad the specialised financing and savings

management subsidiaries the CIB financing businesses and investments made by the Group These

risks are managed by the ALM-Treasury Department

At Group level ALM-Treasury is part of the Corporate and Investment Banking Division and reports

directly to one of the Chief Operating Officers Group ALM-Treasury has functional authority over the

ALM and Treasury staff of each subsidiary Strategic decisions are made by the Asset and Liability

Committee ALCO which oversees ALM-Treasurys activities These committees have been set up
within each division or operating entity CIB FRB BNL BancWest Personal Finance Equipment
Solutions Emerging Markets and AMS
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Equity risk

Scope

Equity interests held by the Group outside the trading book are securities that convey residual

subordinated claim on the assets or income of the issuer or have similar economic substance They
include

listed and unlisted equities and units in investment funds

options embedded in convertible and mandatory convertible bonds

equity options

super subordinated notes

commitments given and hedges related to equity interests and

interests in companies accounted for by the equity method

Modelling equity risk

The Group uses an internal model derived from the one used to calculate daily VaR GEaR on the

trading book However it differs in terms of horizon and confidence interval which are applied in

accordance with article 59.1-c ii of the decree of 20 February The model estimates the contribution of

each equity exposure to the economic loss in the most extreme market conditions for the Bank and

then determines the level of losses actually incurred by the Bank

Various types of risk factors are used to measure equity risk and they depend largely on the level of

available or useable share price information

Share price is the risk factor used for listed equities with sufficiently long historical track

record

For other listed and unlisted equities each is assigned an industry and country-specific

systemic risk factor plus an equity-specific risk factor

If the exposure is outside the eurozone an exchange rate risk factor is also added

The model has been validated by the banking supervisor for measuring the capital requirement for

equity risk as part of the Basel II approval process

Accounting principles and valuation methods

Accounting principles and valuation methods are set out in Note Summary of significant accounting

policies applied by the BNP Paribas Group .c.9 Determination of market value

Exposure to equity risk

In millions ofeuros
Exposure at fair

value

Internal model method 10128

Private equity in diversified portfolios 3020

Listed equities 4793

Other equity exposures 2315

TOTAL 10128
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The market value of exposures measured using the internal model amounted to EUR 10.1 billion at 31

December 2008 EUR 13.9 billion at 31 December 2007 The Banks equity portfolios suffered from the

widespread slump in the stock markets in 2008

Total gains and losses

Total gains and losses are set out in Note 5.c Available-for-sale financial assets

Currency risk Pillar

Calculation of risk-weighted assets

Currency risk relates to all transactions whether part of the trading book or not This risk is treated in

the same way under both Basel and Basel II

Exposure to currency risk is now determined using the standardised approach the Group has an

internal model but only for the trading book using the option provided by the banking supervisor to

limit the scope to operational currency risk

Group entities calculate their net position in each currency including the euro The net position is

equal to the sum of all asset items less all liability items plus off-balance sheet items including the net

forward currency position and the net delta-based equivalent of the currency option book less

structural non-current assets long-term equity interests property plant and equipment and

intangible assets These positions are translated into euros at the exchange rate prevailing on the

reporting date and aggregated to give the Groups overall net open position in each currency The net

position in given currency is long when assets exceed liabilities and short when liabilities exceed

assets For each Group entity the net currency position is balanced in the relevant currency i.e its

reporting currency such that the sum of long positions equals the sum of short positions

The rules for calculating the capital requirement for currency risk are as follows

Matched positions in currencies of Member States participating in the European Monetary

System are subject to capital requirement of 1.6% of the value of the matched positions

CFA and CFP francs are matched with the euro and are not subject to capital requirement

Positions in closely correlated currencies are subject to capital requirement of 4% of the

matched amount

Other positions including the balance of unmatched positions in the currencies mentioned

above are subject to capital requirement of 8% of their amount

Currency risk and hedging of earnings generated in foreign currencies

The Groups exposure to currency risks relates in particular to the earnings of foreign subsidiaries and

branches Group ALM is responsible for hedging the variability of Group earnings due to currency

movements including positions arising from foreign-currency earnings generated by activities located in

France Local treasury managers at foreign sites manage currency risk arising in relation to their

functional currency Positions relating to portfolio impairment are managed centrally by ALM

Currency risk and hedging of net investments in foreign operations

The Groups currency position on investments in foreign operations arises mainly on branch capital

allocations and equity interests denominated in foreign currencies financed by purchasing the

currency in question

Group policy is usually to borrow the investment currency in order to protect the investment against

currency risk Such borrowings are documented as hedges of net investments in foreign operations

However for most of soft currencies the investment may also be financed by purchasing the currency

in question
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Interest rate risk Pillar

Interest rate risk management framework

Interest rate risk on the commercial transactions of the French and International Retail Banking
divisions the specialised financing subsidiaries and the savings management business lines in the

AMS and Corporate Banking divisions are managed centrally by ALM-Treasury through the client

intermediation book Interest rate risk on the Banks equity and investments is also managed by ALM
Treasury in the equity intermediation and investments book

Transactions initiated by the Bank in France are transferred to ALM-managed positions via internal

contracts booked in the management accounts Transactions initiated by Group subsidiaries or

branches are transferred to the local ALM-Treasury which matches the entitys net position mainly in

the form of loans and borrowings with Group ALM-Treasury

The main decisions concerning positions arising from banking intermediation activities are taken at

monthly or quarterly committee meetings for each business line These meetings are attended by the

management of the business line Group ALM-Treasury and the local ALM-Treasury

Measurement of interest rate risk

Banking book interest rate gaps are measured with embedded behavioural options translated into delta

equivalents Maturities of outstanding assets are determined based on the contractual characteristics of

the transactions and historical customer behaviour For retail banking products behavioural models

are based on historical data and econometric studies The models deal with early repayments current

accounts in credit and debit and savings accounts Theoretical maturities of equity capital are

determined according to internal assumptions

In the case of retail banking activities structural interest rate risk is also measured on going-concern

basis incorporating dynamic changes in balance sheet items through an earnings sensitivity indicator

Due to the existence of partial or even zero correlations between customer interest rates and market

rates and the volume sensitivity caused by behavioural options rotation of balance sheet items

generates structural sensitivity of revenues to interest rate changes Lastly for products with

underlying behavioural options specific option risk indicator is analysed in order to fine-tune hedging

strategies

The choice of indicators and risk modelling as well as the production of indicators are controlled by

independent Product Control teams and by dedicated Group Risk Management teams The results of

these controls are presented regularly to specialist committees and once year to the Board of

Directors

These indicators are systematically presented to the ALM committees and serve as the basis for

hedging decisions taking into account the nature of the risk involved

Risk limits

For the customer banking intermediation books overall interest rate risk for Retail Banking entities is

subject to primary limit based on the sensitivity of revenues to changes in nominal and real interest

rates and in the inflation rate over at least three-year timeframe The limit is based on annual

revenues in order to control uncertainty about future fluctuations in revenues caused by changes in

interest rates This limit is supplemented beyond the three-year timeframe by an interest rate gap limit

expressed as percentage of customer deposits This percentage is declining function of the

management period This limit is used to manage long-term interest rate risk

The specialised financing subsidiaries are exposed to very low levels of interest rate risk considering

the centralisation of risks at ALM-Treasury level The residual risk is controlled by technical interest

rate gap limits that are monitored by the ALM committee of the relevant business line
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Sensitivity of the value of banking intermediation books

Since the books of financial instruments resulting from the Groups banking intermediation activities

are not intended to be sold they are not managed on the basis of their value To comply with the

financial reporting rules prescribed by IFRS BNP Paribas determines the value of the financial

instruments that make up these books see Note 8.g and the sensitivity of that value to interest rate

fluctuations

The table below shows the sensitivity of the value of consolidated banking intermediation books by

currency and by maturity band to an instantaneous movement of one basis point across the entire

yield curve This analysis takes into account all future cash flows generated by transactions

outstanding at the reporting date irrespective of maturity The sensitivity data shown take account of

the replication portfolios used to model theoretical maturities especially on the Banks equity

The sensitivity of the value of banking intermediation books to an instantaneous change of one basis

point in interest rates was an increase in value in the event of fall and decrease in value in the event

of rise of approximately EUR 3629000 at 31 December 2008 compared with EUR 2146000 at 31

December 2007

Interest rate sensitivity of the value of the Groups customer banking and equity intermediation books

In thousands of euros

EUR

USD

GBP

Other currencies

TOTAL

31 December 2008

less than months to 12 months Ito years to
ypars

more than 5yeÆrs
TOTAL

20 445 833 098 2128 268

33 57 1125 693 3825 3303

11 24

13 41 148 69 163 82

25 422 149 1858 523 3629

In thousands of euros 31 December2007

less than months to 12 months to
years

to
years more than years TOTAL

EUR 550 274 646 022 244 148

USD 74 309 856 209 197 2497

GBP 85 25 59 20 26

Othercurrencies 11 22 12 566 525

TOTAL 713 619 583 263 606 146

Hedging of interest rate and currency risks

Hedging relationships initiated by the Group mainly consist of interest rate or currency hedges in the

form of swaps options forwards or futures

Depending on the hedging objective derivative financial instruments used for hedging purposes are

qualified as either fair value hedges cash flow hedges or hedges of net investments in foreign

operations Each hedging relationship is formally documented at inception The documentation

describes the hedging strategy identifies the hedged item and the hedging instrument and the nature

of the hedged risk and describes the methodology used to test the expected prospective and actual

retrospective effectiveness of the hedge

Interest rate risk in the banking book

The Banks strategy for managing global interest rate risk is based on closely monitoring the sensitivity

of the Banks earnings to changes in interest rates In this way it can determine how to achieve an

optimum level of offset between different risks This procedure requires an extremely accurate

assessment of the risks incurred so that the Bank can determine the most appropriate hedging

strategy after taking into account the effects of netting the different types of risk
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These hedging strategies are defined and implemented for each portfolio customer activities and own
funds and currency In 2008 the customer portfolios of most domestic and international retail

banking units saw widening mismatch between fixed-rate customer loan originations and inflows of

long-term deposits In France there were further net outflows from home savings plans and
continued significant shift away from savings accounts towards higher-yielding deposits In parallel

origination of new medium- and long-term fixed-rate customer loans remained strong

The market environment in 2008 can be analysed as two distinct periods In the first half the US
Federal Reserve cut its key interest rates whilst the Central European Bank was still more concerned
about inflationary pressures In the summer the financial crisis began to spread to the real economy
This resulted in significant revisions to growth forecasts in both mature and emerging countries

leading the central banks to cut their interest rates sharply The collapse of Lehman Brothers in the US

put further squeeze on liquidity driving short-term money market rates up continuously until the

beginning of the final quarter

The hedges put in place by the Bank in 2008 mainly reflected fixed-rate borrowing strategy They
include derivatives and options typically accounted for as fair value hedges in accordance with EU
carved out fair value hedge regulations or cash flow hedges Government securities are mostly recorded

in the Available for sale category

No hedging relationship was disqualified from hedge accounting in 2008

Structural currency risk

Currency hedges are contracted by the ALM department in respect of the Groups investments in foreign

currencies and its future foreign currency revenues Each hedging relationship is formally documented

at inception The documentation describes the hedging strategy identifies the hedged item and the

hedging instrument and the nature of the hedged risk and describes the methodology used to test the

expected prospective and actual retrospective effectiveness of the hedge

hedging relationship is applied and documented for investments financed by foreign currency loans

so that impacts of movements in exchange rates can be recorded in symmetrical fashion and have no

impact on the profit and loss account These instruments are designated as net investment hedges

similar hedging relationship is set up to hedge the currency risk on net foreign currency assets of

consolidated branches and subsidiaries Fair value hedges are used to hedge the currency risk on

equity investments in non-consolidated companies No hedging relationship was disqualified from hedge

accounting in 2008

The Group hedges the variability of components of BNP Paribas earnings in particular the highly-

probable future revenue streams mainly interest income and fees denominated in currencies other

than the euro generated by the Groups main businesses subsidiaries or branches

In 2008 only one hedge of forecast transactions was disqualified on the grounds that the related future

event was no longer highly probable

Hedging of financial instruments recognised in the balance sheet fair value hedges

Fair value hedges of interest rate risks relate either to identified fixed-rate assets or liabilities or to

portfolios of fixed-rate assets or liabilities Derivatives are contracted to reduce the exposure of the fair

value of these instruments to changes in interest rates

Identified assets consist mainly of available-for-sale securities identified liabilities consist mainly of

debt issued by the Group

Hedges of portfolios of financial assets and liabilities constructed by currency relate to

fixed-rate loans property loans equipment loans consumer credit and export loans

fixed-rate customer deposits demand deposits funds deposited under home savings contracts

To identify the hedged amount the residual balance of the hedged item is split into maturity bands
and separate amount is designated for each band The maturity split is determined on the basis of the
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contractual terms of the transactions and historical observations of customer behaviour prepayment

assumptions and estimated default rates

Demand deposits which do not bear interest at contractual rates are qualified as fixed rate medium-

term financial liabilities Consequently the value of these liabilities is sensitive to changes in interest

rates Estimates of future cash outflows are based on historical analyses No allowance is made

prospectively for the effects of potential increases in customer wealth or for the effects of inflation

For each hedging relationship expected hedge effectiveness is measured by ensuring that for each

maturity band the fair value of the hedged items is greater than the fair value of the designated

hedging instruments

Actual effectiveness is assessed on an ex-post basis by ensuring that the monthly change in the fair

value of hedged items since the start of the month does not indicate any over-hedging

Cash Flow Hedge

In terms of interest rate risk the Group uses derivative instruments to hedge fluctuations in income

and expenses arising on floating-rate assets and liabilities Highly probable forecast transactions are

also hedged Hedged items are split into maturity bands by currency and benchmark interest rate After

factoring in prepayment assumptions and estimated default rates the Group uses derivatives to hedge

some or all of the risk exposure generated by these floating-rate instruments

In terms of currency risk the Group hedges against variability in components of consolidated earnings

In particular the Group may hedge future revenue flows especially interest and fee/commission

income derived from operations carried out by its main subsidiaries and/or branches in currency
other than their functional currencies As in the case of interest rate hedges the effectiveness of these

hedging relationships is documented and assessed on the basis of forecast maturity bands

The table below concerns the scope of BNP Paribas SA Paris medium- and long-term transactions and

shows the amount of hedged future cash flows split by forecast date of realisation which constitute

the majority of the Groups transactions

31 December2008In millions of euros 31 December2007

Lessthanl Morethan5
Period to realisation Ito years Total

year years

Hedged cash flows 892 1027 1543 3462 1042 2080 3445 6567

In the year ended 31 December 2008 no hedges of forecast transactions were requalified as ineligible

for hedge accounting on the grounds that the related future event would be no longer highly probable

4.f OPERATIoNAL RISK

RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK

Regulatory framework

Operational risk management is governed by strict regulatory framework

Basel II which requires the allocation of capital to operational risk

Regulation CRBF 97-02 as amended which requires an internal control system that ensures the

effectiveness and quality of the Banks internal operations the reliability of internal and external

information the security of transactions and compliance with all laws regulations and internal

policies
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Objectives and principles

To meet this dual requirement for measuring and managing operational risk BNP Paribas has

developed risk management process that operates in five-stage loop

identifying and assessing risks

formulating implementing and monitoring permanent controls including procedures checks

and all organisational elements designed to help to control risk such as segregation of tasks

management of clearance rights etc

producing risk measures and calculating the capital charge for operational risk

reporting and analysing oversight information relating to the permanent operational control

process

managing the system through governance framework that involves members of management

preparing and monitoring action plans

There are two key components to the system which are structuring in scope and illustrate the

complementary nature of the Banks operational risk and permanent control systems

Calculating capital requirements this is based on hybrid approach that combines an internal

model covering 68% of the Groups Revenues at end 2008 with the standardised approach for

other entities in the consolidation scope Under the Advanced Measurement Approach AMA
loss distributions are modelled and calibrated using two sets of data historical event data since

2002 for the BNP Paribas Group and the major international banks and internally constructed

potential event scenarios to take better account of the extreme risks to which the Bank is

exposed This model was approved by the French banking supervisor Commission Bancaire on

January 2008

Widespread use of control plans BNP Paribas has embarked on process of formulating

control plans which have three objectives harmonising practices rationalising the system and

standardising controls The project will also cover the Groups international operations and

thereby support its growth It is based on risk mapping exercise carried out to identify and

quantify potential risk scenarios involving all the Groups core businesses and functions

Key players and governance

The risk management framework relies on teams of operational risk analysts at all levels of the Group

core businesses functions business lines subsidiaries and territories The teams have been

substantially bolstered over the past few years In mid-2008 there were almost 500 dedicated full-time

equivalents ETP including nearly 10% focusing entirely on coordinating business continuity They

have two key responsibilities

coordinating implementation of the system its standards and methodologies reporting and tools

across the areas falling within their remit

flagging issues to management and ensuring that the system works properly

The entire system therefore requires significant involvement of operational staff who have front-line

responsibility for managing their risk Issues that arise in relation to operational risk management and

business continuity are discussed with the Groups Executive Committee three times year and with

the Internal Control Coordination Committee every month This committee is chaired by the Internal

Control Coordinator and brings together key players in the internal control process Group companies

are encouraged to adopt this governance structure in their own organisations

Scope and nature of risk reporting and measurement

Executive Committees at the level of the Group and the core businesses are tasked with ensuring that

operational risk is effectively managed and controlled in the areas falling within their remit in

accordance with the Groups operational risk framework The committees validate the quality and
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consistency of reporting data examine their risk profile in light of the tolerance levels set and assess
the quality of risk control procedures in light of their objectives and the risks they incur

Risk Analysis Protocol was drawn up in 2003 to structure the method for implementing these

regulatory requirements and assessing key processes see diagram below

It led to number of fine-tunings as the system was being built and to the development of suite of

intranet-based tools OREX for all Group users meeting the overall system requirements

These tools now include modules for recording and managing events describing and managing key
processes prospective analysis of events and compiling action pians

The Bank has thus developed comprehensive and consistent analysis and reporting system by
compiling both historical and potential event data based on the structure of its key processes and the

organisation of its business lines and territories

Historical Identification

Data Forward-lookinE data
documentation

of key

processes

1.Reviewof

internal Generation Assessment

incidents and of events of controls Quantification

external loss of events

data

ja
risk mdicators

Production of management information decision making and actions plans

COMPONENTS OF OPERATIONAL RISK RELATED TO LEGAL TAX AND INFORMATION SECURITY
RISKS

Legal risk

In each country where it operates BNP Paribas is bound by specific local regulations applicable to

companies engaged in banking insurance and financial services The Group is notably required to

respect the integrity of the markets and the primacy of clients interests

For many years the Group Legal Department function has had an internal control system designed to

anticipate detect measure and manage legal risks The system is organised around

Specific committees

the Executive Legal Affairs Committee

the Global Legal Committee which coordinates the activities of the legal function throughout the

Group in all countries that have their own legal staff and ensures that the Groups legal policies

are consistent and applied in uniform manner
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the Legislation Tracking Committee which analyses interprets and distributes throughout the

Group the texts of new laws and regulations and details of changes in French and European
case law

the Legal Internal Control Committee whose focuses include overseeing operational risk

the Litigation Committee which deals with major litigation proceedings in which the Group is

the plaintiff or defendant

the Legal function is permanent member of the Compliance Committee and the Internal

Control Coordination Committee

Internal procedures and databases providing framework for managing legal risk in close

collaboration with the Compliance function for all matters which also fall under their responsibility

and ii overseeing the activities of the Groups legal staff At the end of 2004 procedures database

detailing all internal procedures in French and in English was set up on the Group intranet with

access rights for all employees

Legal reviews which are carried out in Group entities to ensure that local systems for managing

legal risks are appropriate legal risks are properly managed and tools correctly used Regular visits

are made particularly to countries deemed the most vulnerable in order to check the effectiveness

of the systems developed by international units for managing legal risks

Internal reporting tools document templates and analytical models which are upgraded on an

ongoing basis by Group Legal Department and contribute to the analysis of operational risk

reorganisation of the Legal function began during 2007 and is now complete The function has been

decentralised and legal experts assigned to the operational teams of the divisions and business lines

This has given them better understanding of the business lines and made them more responsive

leading to improved control over legal risks The various committees described above meet regularly to

maintain consisterit approach and provide overarching oversight

Tax risk

In each country where it operates BNP Paribas is bound by specific local tax regulations applicable to

companies engaged for example in banking insurance or financial services

The Group Tax Department is global function responsible for overseeing the consistency of the

Groups tax affairs It also shares responsibility for monitoring global tax risks with Group Finance and

Development The Group Tax Department performs second-tier controls to ensure that tax risks remain

at an acceptable level and are consistent with the Groups reputation and profitability objectives

To ensure its mission the Group Tax Department has established

network of dedicated tax specialists in 12 countries completed by tax correspondents covering

other countries where the Group operates

qualitative data reporting system in order to manage tax risks and assess compliance with

local tax laws

regular reporting to Group Executive Management on the use made of delegations of authority

and compliance with internal standards The Group Tax Department co-chaired the Tax

Coordination Committee chaired by Group Finance and Development

The Tax Coordination Committee also includes the Compliance function and may involve the core

businesses when appropriate The committee is responsible for analysing key tax issues for the Group
and making appropriate decisions Group Finance and Development is obliged to consult the Group Tax

Department on any tax issues arising on transactions processed

The Group Tax Department has also drawn up procedures covering all core businesses designed to

ensure that tax risks are identified addressed and controlled appropriately Tax risks may arise at
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Group level or from specific customer product or service offerings developed by the Groups entities To

ensure these risks are addressed effectively the Group Tax Department relies among other on

the tax risk management framework The tax risk charter is presented in the form of mission

letter for the territory tax manager when there is one or in the form of mission letter for the

Group Tax Department authority to the head of core business with regard to entities that do not

have dedicated tax manager The letter is updated regularly to reflect changes in the charter

applicable to Territory Chief Executives

procedures for validation by the Group Tax Department for all new products featuring material

tax component together with all new activities and specific transactions structured in France

or abroad

procedures for procuring independent tax advice

definition of operational tax risk incidents and their common filing and reporting

definition and disclosure of groupwide tax rules and regulations and validation of any
framework agreement or internal circular/document presenting specific tax issues

tax audit reporting procedures

control procedures relating to the delivery of tax opinions and advice

Information security

Information is banks key commodity and effective management of information security risk is vital in

an era of near full-scale migration to electronic media growing demand for swift online processing of

ever more sophisticated transactions and widespread use of the internet or multiple networks as the

primary interface between bank and its individual or institutional customers

Incidents reported in different countries involving banking and credit/payment card industries highlight

the increased need for vigilance This topic has been reiterated by regulations arid case law on data

protection

Information security at BNP Paribas is managed in accordance with set of various types of reference

documents These include general security policy more specific policies mainly for various issues

related to information systems security Iso 27001 requirements practical guides to security

requirements and operational procedures that are more or less specific to the targeted context

The security framework is drilled down to each individual business line taking account of any

regulatory requirements and the risk appetite of the business line in question It is governed by the

Groups general security policy which itself is based on ISO 27001 Each business line takes the same

approach to managing information security The primary methodology used is ISO 27005 supported by

EBbS the French government methodology common objective indicators periodic controls residual

risk assessments and action plans This approach is part of the permanent and periodic control

framework set up for each banking activity pursuant to CRBF regulation 97-02 amended in 2004 in

France and similar regulations in other countries

Each of BNP Paribas business lines is exposed to some specific form of information security risk with

some risks common to all businesses The Groups policy for managing these risks takes into

consideration the specific nature of the business often made more complex by legally and culturally-

specific regulations in the different countries in which the Group does business

Like most global banking players the Groups online retail banking businesses suffered number of

phishing/pharming attacks in 2008 as in previous years All large-scale attacks were countered with

no harm whatsoever to our customers thanks to the continuing reinforcement of existing awareness

prevention detection and remedial measures Although we did not see significant rise in either the

number or type of attacks over the year the Groups businesses remain vigilant and continue to invest

in measures that will allow them to keep one step ahead of security threats without increasing

complexity for the internet user In all countries where it has retail banking operations BNP Paribas

plays an active role in raising users awareness of the intrinsic dangers of the internet and of the key
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measures that carl be taken to mitigate these dangers by establishing direct dialogue with customers

and working closely alongside public authorities and professional or community associations

The availability of information systems is vital to allow BNP Paribas to continue operating in crisis or

emergency In line with its values of operational excellence the Group maintains develops and

regularly verifies its information back-up capabilities and system robustness in response to tighter

regulations and extreme stress scenarios natural disasters or other catastrophes health pandemics

etc. Its action in this area is consistent with the Groups general business continuity plan

BNP Paribas seeks to minimise information security risk and optimise resources by

setting up procedural framework for each business line governing day-to-day operations data

production and software management existing and new applications

raising employees awareness of information security imperatives and training key players in the

appropriate procedures and behaviours related to information system resources

adopting formal approach for evaluating existing systems and improving management of

security risks through measurable key performance indicators and action plans This approach

is applicable to business projects and shared information system architecture and applications

and is embedded within the Groups system of permanent and periodic controls

monitoring incidents and developing intelligence of technological vulnerability and attacks

INSURANCE POLICIES

Risks incurred by the Group may be covered by major insurers with the dual aim of protecting its

balance sheet and profit and loss account

The Groups insurance policy is based on an in-depth identification of risks underpinned by detailed

operating loss data The risks identified are then mapped and partially transferred to leading insurers in

the market

The Group purchases insurance against fraud theft property and casualty business disruption

liability and other risks for which it may be held responsible

In order to optimise costs and effectively manage risks certain risks whose frequency and financial

impact can be adequately estimated are self-insured

In selecting insurers the Group pays close attention to the credit rating and claims paying ability of the

companies concerned

Detailed information on risks incurred by BNP Paribas as well as risk assessment visits enable

insurers to assess the quality of coverage and risk prevention within the Group as well as the

safeguard measures put in place and upgraded on regular basis in light of new standards and

regulations

4.g CoMPLIANCE AND REPUTATION RISKS

Effective management of compliance risk is core component of the Banks internal control framework

and covers adherence to applicable laws regulations codes of conduct and standards of good practice

Compliance also involves protecting the Groups reputation as well as the reputation of its investors and

customers publishing accurate and complete information ensuring that members of staff act in an

ethical manner and avoid conflicts of interest protecting the interests of its customers and the integrity

of the market implementing anti-money laundering procedures combating corruption and terrorist

financing and respecting financial embargos

As required by French regulations the Compliance function manages compliance risk for all of the

Groups domestic and international businesses The Compliance Function reports to the Chief

Executive Officer and has direct independent access to the Boards Internal Control and Risk

Management Committee
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The function includes central structure in Paris responsible for overseeing and supervising all

compliance matters and local teams within the different divisions and business lines acting under

delegated authority from the central team The Compliance function has grown continuously since

2004

Management of compliance and reputation risks is based on system of permanent controls built on

four axes

general and specific procedures

coordination of action taken within the Group to guarantee the consistency and effectiveness of

monitoring systems and tools

deployment of tools for detecting and preventing money laundering terrorist financing and

corruption

training both at Group level and in the divisions and business lines

Protecting the Banks reputation is high on the Groups agenda It requires ongoing revisions to the risk

management policy in line with developments in the external environment The Group has strengthened

its anti-money laundering terrorist financing and corruption techniques due to the international

climate the increasing number of fraudulent practices and the introduction of tighter regulations by

many countries

4.h LiQuIDITY AND REFINANCING RISK

Liquidity and refinancing risk is the risk of the Bank being unable to fulfil current or future foreseen or

unforeseen cash or collateral requirements without affecting routine transactions or its financial

position

Liquidity and refinancing risk is managed through global liquidity policy approved by Group Executive

Management This policy is based on management principles designed to apply both in normal

conditions and in liquidity crisis The Groups liquidity position is assessed on the basis of internal

standards warning flags and regulatory ratios

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY

Policy objectives

The objectives of the Groups liquidity management policy are to secure balanced financing mix to

support BNP Paribas development strategy ii ensure that the Group is always in position to

discharge its obligations to its customers iii ensure that it does not trigger systemic crisis solely by
its own actions iv comply with the standards set by the local banking supervisor keep the cost of

refinancing as low as possible and vi cope with any liquidity crises

Roles and responsibilities in liquidity risk management

The Groups Executive Committee sets the general liquidity risk management policy including risk

measurement principles acceptable risk levels and the internal billing system The Internal Control

Risk Management and Compliance Committee reports quarterly to the Board of Directors on liquidity

policy principles and the Banks position

ALM-Treasury proposes procedures for implementing the liquidity policy set by the Executive

Committee These proposals are then reviewed and approved by the ALM-CIB Committee The Executive

Committee is informed on regular basis of liquidity indicators results of stress tests and the
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execution of financing programmes It is also informed of any crisis situation and is responsible for

deciding on the allocation of crisis management roles and approving emergency plans

After validation by the ALM-CIB Committee ALM-Treasury is responsible for implementing the policy at

both central and individual entity level It is also owner of the systems used to manage liquidity risk

The business line and entity ALM committees implement at local level the strategy approved by the

ALM-CIB Committee

GRM contributes to defining liquidity policy principles It also provides second-line control by validating

the models risk indicators limits and market parameters used

Centralised liquidity risk management

Liquidity risk is managed centrally by ALM-Treasury across all maturities The Treasury unit is

responsible for refinancing and for short-term issues certificates of deposit commercial paper etc
while the ALM unit is responsible for senior and subordinated debt issues MTNs bonds medium/long-

term deposits covered bonds etc preferred share issues and loan securitisation programmes for the

retail banking business and the financing business lines within Corporate and Investment Banking

ALM-Treasury is also tasked with providing financing to the Groups core businesses and business

lines and investing their surplus cash

LIQUIDITY RISK MANAGEMENT AND SUPERVISION

Day-to-day liquidity management is based on full range of internal standards and warning flags at

various maturities

An overnight target is set for each Treasury unit limiting the amount raised on interbank overnight

markets This applies to the major currencies in which the Group does business

The refinancing capacity needed to cope with an unexpected surge in liquidity needs is regularly

measured at Group level It mainly comprises available securities and loans eligible for central bank

refinancing available ineligible securities that can be sold under repurchase agreements or immediately

on the market and overnight loans not liable to be renewed

BNP Paribas uses indicators to monitor the diversification of its sources of short-term funds on

worldwide basis to ensure that it is not over-dependent on limited number of providers of capital

Medium- and long-term liquidity management is based mainly on an analysis of the medium- and long-

term sources of funds available to finance assets with the same maturity

Over one-year maturity the ratio of sources to uses of funds must be more than 80% The ratio is

also monitored over two to five-year maturities These ratios are based on maturity schedules of balance

sheet and off-balance sheet items for all Group entities whether contractual or theoretical i.e based on

customer behaviour prepayment in the case of loans modelling customer behaviour in the case of

regulated savings accounts etc.

The Groups consolidated liquidity position by maturity month months months then annually

to 15 years is measured regularly by business line and currency

In addition regular stress tests are performed based on market factors and factors specific to BNP

Paribas that would adversely affect its liquidity position

Regulatory ratios represent the final plank in the liquidity risk management system

These include the 1-month liquidity ratio and observation ratios which are calculated monthly for the

parent company BNP Paribas SA French operations and branches and separately by each subsidiary

concerned by the regulations

Foreign subsidiaries and branches may be required to comply with local regulatory ratios
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RISK EXPOSURE IN 2008

Movements in the consolidated balance sheet

The Group had total assets of EUR 2075.6 billion at 31 December 2008 total of EUR 895 billion in

assets excluding credit institutions were refinanced in cash an increase of EUR 77 billion on 2007
including EUR 49 billion relating to loans to customers

This increase was refinanced primarily by customer deposits for EUR 67 billion

Regulatory liquidity ratios

The average one-month regulatory liquidity ratio for BNP Paribas SA French operations and branches
was 114% in 2008 compared with minimum requirement of 100%

Internal medium and long-term liquidity ratios

The ratio between sources and uses of funds due in more than one year was 84% at the end of

December 2008 for the entire BNP Paribas Group versus 88% at end-December 2007

RISK MITIGATION TECHNIQUES

As part of the day-to-day management of liquidity in the event of temporary liquidity crisis the

Groups most liquid assets constitute financing reserve enabling the Bank to adjust its treasury

position by selling them on the repo market or discounting them with the central bank If there is

prolonged liquidity crisis the Bank may have to gradually reduce its total balance sheet position by

selling assets outright

Less liquid assets may be converted into liquid assets or collateralised as part of the day-to-day

management of liquidity by securitising pools of consumer loans granted to retail banking customers
as well as pools of corporate loans

Liquidity risk is also reduced by the diversification of financing sources in terms of structure investors

and secured/unsecured financing

Hedging strategies

In 2008 the Group continued its policy of diversiiying its sources of financing in terms of structures

investors and collateralised financing The deposit product line created in 2007 has contributed to

diversifying the corporate and institutional investor base and reduce interbank borrowings new
certificate of deposit programme offers funds the opportunity to increase their investment in the BNP
Paribas Group thereby improving its liquidity For the year 2008 the collect of deposit product line

increased by 20% and amounted for EUR 23 billion

The creation of new certificate of deposit program for EUR 10 billion offers the possibility to increase

the shares that funds are willing to invest in BNP Paribas Group and to improve its liquidity as well At

31 December 2008 its outstanding amount was EUR billion

The Group has also expanded its sources of funds through the use of asset collateralisation increased
volumes and pool allocation strategy In late 2008 the Group set up special purpose vehicle called

BNP Paribas SCF to raise liquidity by using loans guaranteed by export credit agencies and public
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sector loans In the final quarter of 2008 the creation of SFEF gave the Bank access to collateralised

refinancing unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the French State

Throughout 2008 the Group substantially increased its capacity for discounting securities and

receivables with various central banks both to obtain finance and to increase its liquidity reserve

The loan to deposit ratio improved markedly in 2008 thanks to an increase of due to customers

EUR 67 billion greater than the one of loans and receivable due from customers EUR 49 billion

The ratio reached 119% in December 2008 compared to 128% in December 2007

Senior debt

Senior debt with an economic life of more than one year issued by BNP Paribas SA and its subsidiaries

in 2008 totalled EUR 39.4 billion on par with senior debt issued in 2007

In 2008 the proportion of collateralised debt securities increased

BNP Paribas covered bonds up from EUR billion to EUR 12.7 billion

CRH Caisse de Refinancement de lHabitat up from EUR 2.7 billion to EUR 3.3 billion

SFEF SociØtØ de Financement de lEconomie Francaise up from to EUR 1.8 billion

Subordinated debt and hybrid securities

In 2008 the Group issued subordinated notes for EUR 0.6 billion and undated super subordinated

notes TSSDI for total amount of EUR 3.8 billion

Proprietary securitisations

See the section on Proprietary securitisation in note 4.d

4.1 INSURANCE RISKS

The insurance subsidiaries risk exposures result from the sale in France and abroad of savings and

personal risk contracts

FINANCIAL RISKS

Financial risks arise in the Savings business which accounts for over 95% of the insurance

subsidiaries liabilities

There are three types of financial risk

Interest rate risk

Policyholder yields on life insurance policies are based on either fixed rate specified in the policy or

variable rate with or without yield guarantee All of these policies give rise to an interest rate risk
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corresponding to the risk that the return on admissible assets i.e assets acquired by investing

premiums is less than the contractual yield payable to policyholders

This risk is managed centrally by the BNP Paribas Assurance Asset/Liability Management unit which

coordinates its activities with the BNP Paribas ALM-Treasury Department Regular asset-liability

matching reviews are performed to measure and manage the financial risks based on medium and/or

long-term income statement and balance sheet projections prepared according to various economic

scenarios The results of these reviews are analysed in order to determine any adjustments to assets

through diversification use of derivatives etc that are required to reduce the risks arising from

changes in interest rates and asset values

In France to cover potential financial losses estimated over the life of the policies provision for future

adverse deviation provision pour alØas financiers is booked when total amount of technical interest

plus the guaranteed yield payable to policyholders through technical reserves is not covered by 80% of

the yield on the admissible assets No provision for future adverse deviation was booked at 31

December 2008 or 2007 as the yields guaranteed by the insurance subsidiaries are low and the

guarantees are for short periods resulting in only limited exposure

Surrender risk

Savings contracts include surrender clause allowing customers to request reimbursement of all or

part of their accumulated savings The insurer is exposed to the risk of surrender rates being higher

than the forecasts used for ALM modelling purposes forcing it to sell assets at loss in order to free up
the necessary cash for surrenders in excess of forecast

The surrender risk is limited however as

Most policies provide for the temporary suspension of surrender rights in the event that the

insurers financial position were to be severely impaired such that the surrenders would deprive

other policyholders of the ability to exercise their rights

Policyholder behaviour is monitored on an ongoing basis in order to regularly align the duration

of assets with that of the corresponding liabilities and reduce the risk of abrupt large-scale

asset sales Changes in assets and liabilities are projected over periods of up to 40 years in

order to identify mismatches giving rise to liquidity risk These analyses are then used to

determine the choice of maturities for new investments and the assets to be sold

In addition to the guaranteed yield policyholders are paid dividends that raise the total yield to

level in line with market benchmarks These dividends which are partly discretionary reduce

the risk of an increase in surrender rates in periods of rising market interest rates

The return on financial assets is protected mainly through the use of hedging instruments

Unit-linked contracts with capital guarantee

Certain unit-linked contracts include whole life cover providing for the payment of death benefit at

least equal to the cumulative premiums invested in the contract whatever the conditions on the

financial markets at the time of the insureds death The risk on these contracts is both statistical

probability of claim and financial market value of the units

The capital guarantee is generally subject to certain limits In France for example most contracts limit

the guarantee to one year and maximum of EUR 765000 per insured In addition the guarantee is

not normally available beyond the insureds 80th birthday

The carrying amount of linked liabilities is equal to the sum of the fair values of the assets held in the

unit-linked portfolios The insurers liability is therefore covered by corresponding assets The match

between linked liabilities and the related assets is checked at monthly intervals

The capital guarantee reserve takes into account the probability of death based on deterministic

scenario and stochastic analyses of changing financial market prices The capital guarantee reserve

amounted to EUR 27 million at 31 December 2008 stable compared with 31 December 2007
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INSURANCE SUBSCRIPTION RISKS

The insurance subscription risks arise mainly in the Personal Risk business which accounts for some

5% of the insurance subsidiaries liabilities

They result mainly from the sale of annuity policies in France and loan protection insurance worldwide

The actuarial oversight system set up to prevent and control actuarial risks in France and

internationally is based on guidelines and tools that describe the principles rules methods and best

practices to be followed by each actuary throughout the policies life cycle ii the tasks to be performed

by the actuaries and their reporting obligations and iii practices that are banned or that are allowed

only if certain conditions are met

Underwriting limits are set at various local and central levels based on capital at risk estimated

maximum acceptable losses and estimated margins on the policies concerned The experience acquired

in managing geographically diversified portfolios is used to regularly update risk pricing databases

comprising wide range of criteria such as credit risk the type of guarantee and the insured

population Each contract is priced by reference to the margin and return-on-equity targets set by the

executive management of BNP Paribas Assurance

Risk exposures from annuity and loan protection insurance business are monitored at quarterly

intervals by BNP Paribas Assurances Executive Committee based on an analysis of loss ratios Loss

ratios for annuity contracts are based on mortality tables applicable under insurance regulations as

adjusted by independent actuaries where appropriate Annuity risks are low

Loan protection insurance covers death total or partial disability loss of employment and financial loss

risks for personal loans and home loans The insurance book comprises very large number of

individual policies representing low risks and low premiums Margins depend on the size of the

insurance book effective pooling of risks and tight control of administrative costs

Actual loss ratios are compared with forecast ratios on regular basis by the actuarial department and

premium rates are adjusted when necessary

The insurance subscription risks are covered by various technical reserves including the unearned

premiums reserve generally calculated on an accruals basis policy-by-policy the outstanding claims

reserve determined by reference to reported claims and the IBNR claims incurred but not reported

reserve determined on the basis of either observed settlements or the expected number of claims and

the average cost per claim
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4.j EXTENSION OF THE FINANCIAL CRISIS STARTED IN THE SECOND HALF OF 2007 INTO

2008

BACKGROUND

The US housing market slowdown that started in the second half of 2007 extended into 2008 making
investors wary of structured financial instruments derived from securitization transactions This in turn

affected the market prices of these instruments and the parameters used to value them and these

factors continue to deteriorate

The prolonged US housing market collapse also highlighted the fragile financial health of monoline

insurers or the companies that had guaranteed securitized mortgage assets especially in the case of

subprime mortgages Rating agencies cut the credit ratings of some monolines increasing the risk

premium on the securities issued by these insurers and consequently impairing their value Two
monoline insurers were able to negotiate commutation agreements with their counterparties for their

riskiest commitments but based on heavily discounted prices

The financial crisis intensified dramatically on 15 September 2008 when the American bank Lehman
Brothers declared bankruptcy The US government refused to bail out Lehman Brothers even though
public backing had already been given to many financial institutions weakened by the crisis without

considering the systemic risk that would arise from the failure of bank Lehmans size nor the web of

ties that Lehman had with other players across the financial sector These other market participants

suffered direct losses from their exposure to Lehman risk which weighed significantly on their second
half 2008 earnings

The US governments decision had considerable ramifications Financial institutions lost faith in each

other making it more difficult for them to access liquidity Central banks had to step in for the

interbank market and expanded their balance sheets by relaxing the criteria on financial or banking
assets they accepted as collateral These measures helped ease interbank lending rates after interbank

spreads had peaked at 400 basis points for the dollar and 150 basis points for the euro Spreads on
medium-term debt also widened sharply but to markedly different degrees depending on the markets

assessment of the issuers ability to weather the financial crisis on solid footing

Banks were forced to recognise sizable write-downs thus weakening their balance sheets and resulting
in need for fresh equity at time when investors had become averse to banking risk Therefore the

governments of the main countries affected by the crisis adopted exceptional measures involving huge
sums of money which were deployed to recapitalise troubled financial institutions and provide

guarantees Entire swathes of the financial sector fell under state control Companies with less

exposure to the crisis still had to shore-up their equity to some extent in order to meet prudential

requirements amid the unprecedented uncertainty

The crisis soon spread beyond the financial sector and into the broader economy Business activity

began slowing in developed countries the first half of the year and the slowdown propagated to all

corners of the globe with alarming speed Every major developed region plunged into recession As

companies financial health deteriorated more and more of them were unable to meet their payment
obligations or found themselves facing bankruptcy Banks cost of risk escalated in the fourth quarter of

2008 particularly noteworthy since their cost of risk had been exceptionally low in the years preceding
the crisis

The Lehman Brothers bankruptcy announcement sent the already bearish equity markets reeling

Stock market indices tumbled an average of 20% in the fourth quarter of 2008 after falling by around
30% in the first three quarters Banks along with all market participants were compelled to recognise

hefty write-downs on their equity holdings
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However beyond the impact to the equity markets the Lehman Brothers collapse triggered an

unparalleled dislocation across all financial markets that was reflected in extreme shocks due to high

volatility and an unprecedented level of correlation These factors dragged on the performance of

financial market players most notably hedge funds which suffered large losses Hedge fund managers
had no choice but to slash their funds investments in order to restore debt-to-equity ratios and this

large-scale unwinding of positions drove the markets even lower Hedge fund managers also had to cope
with substantial redemption requests from investors The ensuing pressure on hedge funds revealed

instances of fraud such as the Madoff scandal corrupt scheme of unparalleled scale

REVIEW OF THE MAIN POSITIONS EXPOSED TO THE DIRECT EFFECTS OF THE CRISIS

The Groups risk surveillance and financial control teams continue to closely monitor positions that

may be affected by the crisis paying close attention to the methods and parameters used to value these

positions

Exposure to monoline risk

Exposure to US monoline insurer counterparty risk by type of underlying asset

Gross exposure to counterparty risk

In millions of euros at

CDOs of US RMBS 2subprime

CDOs ofeuropean RMBS

CDOs of CMBS

COOs of corporate
bonds

CLOs1

Non credit related

31 December2008

1737

21

237

1182

266

31 December 2007

1336

13

122

227

166

19

Total of gross exposure to counterparty risk 3443 1883

CDO Collateralized Debt Obligation CLO Collateralized Loan Obligation

RMBS Residential Mortgage Backed Security CMBS Commercial Mortgage Backed

Security

Gross counterparty risk is defined as the fair value of the corresponding financial

instruments the data at 31 December 2008 include the restructuring in January 2009 of the

exposure on one counterparty

Fair value adjustments to protection instruments issued by US monoline insurers

In millions of euros at 31 December2008 31 December 2007

Gross exposure to counterparty risk 3443 1883

Hedges 727 773

Residual unhedged exposure 2716 1110

Creditadjustments 1827 420

Net exposure to counterparty risk 889 690
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Exposure on leveraged buyouts in progress

The Bank reduced its gross exposure from approximately EUR 2500 million at 31 December 2007 to

EUR 1800 million at 30 September 2008 These loans were reclassified to Loans and receivables due

from customers on October 2008 as discussed in note 5.a Financial assets financial liabilities and

derivatives at fair value through profit or loss The Bank recognised EUR 102 million of negative fair

value adjustments for the first nine months of 2008 i.e up to the reclassification date compared with

EUR 238 millionfor 2007

Exposure on sponsored conduits

BNP Paribas manages six securitisation conduits on behalf of clients representing total assets of

around EUR 12800 million vs EUR 11000 million at 31 December 2007 These assets are relatively

low-risk They include approximately EUR 5800 million of US assets that are not exposed to the

mortgage market vs EUR 4200 million at 31 December 2007 compared with around EUR 200 million

of mortgage-backed assets of which the subprime portion is not material at 31 December 2007

These conduits have not been consolidated since they do not meet the consolidation criteria set out in

note .b Scope of consolidation Although the Group provided liquidity assistance to some of these

conduits during certain periods debt securities issued by these conduits and provisionally carried in

the Groups balance sheet represented EUR 1286 million at 31 December 2008 vs EUR 4095 million

at 31 December 2007 the analysis of criteria demonstrating the absence of control by the Group has

not been substantially modified

DIRECT EFFECT OF THE CRISIS ON PROFIT FOR THE YEAR

In millions of euros

EFFECT ON REVENUES

Yearto3l Dec2008 Yearto3l Dec.2007

Fair value adjustments

Loan smdica0ons in progress 102 238

Securi8sa8ons and other investments 354 88

lmpairrnenton equityportfolio 851

Credit adjustments to reflect
counterparty

risk on over.the.counter derivatives

Monoline insurers 914 468

Othercounterparfies 721 57

TOTAL EFFECT ON REVENUES 2942 851

EFFECT ON COST OF RISK

Loans to customers 57 231

Investment portfolio 181 131

Market counterparties 2060 62

of elich mono/ines dassif led as dsubtfsl 974 44

of which Lehman Brothers 540

of wnich Icelandic banks 150

Madoff risk 345

TOTAL EFFECT ON COST OF RISK 2643 424
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NOTES TO THE BALANCE SHEET AT
31 DECEMBER 2008

5.a FINANCIAL ASSETS FINANCIAL LIABiLITIES AND DERIVATIVES AT FAIR VALUE

THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss consist of trading account
transactions including derivatives and certain assets and liabilities designated by the Group as at fair

value through profit or loss at the time of acquisition or issue

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Trading book assets include proprietary securities transactions repurchase agreements and derivative

instruments contracted for position management purposes Assets designated by the Group as at fair

value through profit or loss include admissible investments related to unit-linked insurance business
and to lesser extent assets with embedded derivatives that have not been separated from the host

contract

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Trading book liabilities comprise securities borrowing and short selling transactions repurchase

agreements and derivative instruments contracted for position management purposes Financial

liabilities at fair value through profit or loss mainly comprise issues originated and structured on behalf

of customers where the risk exposure is managed in combination with the hedging strategy These

types of issue contain significant embedded derivatives whose changes in value are cancelled out by

changes in the value of the hedging instrument

The nominal value of financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss at 31 December 2008 was

EUR 68291 million EUR 79680 million at 31 December 2007 Their fair value takes into account any

change attributable to issuer risk relating to the BNP Paribas Group itself insofar as this change is

considered material in respect of the Groups conditions of issuance The Group has recognised

EUR 734 million reduction in the fair value of its debt EUR 141 million at 31 December 2007 taking

into consideration the increase in the value of its own credit spread and the cost of liquidity observed

during the crisis affecting the financial markets since the second half of 2007
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31 December2007

Assets

designated at

fairvalue

through

profit or loss

Negotiable certificates of deposit 64736 410 65146 82476 554 83030

Treasury bills and other bills eligible for central bank refinancing 45155 45162 65077 12 65089

Other negotiable certificates of deposit 19581 403 19984 17399 542 17941

Bonds 115374 5774 121148 121314 6488 127802

Governmentbonds 80857 413 81270 56294 491 56785

Otherbonds 34517 5361 39878 65020 5997 71017

Equities and othervariable-income securities 52840 33944 86784 100709 43975 144684

Repurchase agreements 350282 106 350388 334033 95 334128

Loans 465 1420 1885 2791 2351 5142

to credit institutions 108 1322 1430 2240 2240

to corporate customers 350 98 448 2781 III 2892

to private individual customers 10 IC

Trading book derivatives 566920 566920 236920 236920

Currencyderiathes 50586 50586 23627 23627

Interest rate derivafies 297600 297600 99308 99308

Equityderifis 116679 116679 75243 75243

Credit derities 85531 85531 30342 30342

Otherderitmtves 16524 16524 8400 8400

TOTAL FINANCIAL ASSETSAT FAIR VALUETHROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS 1150617 41654 1192271 878243 53463 931706

of vhich loaned securities 30592 30592 40530 40530

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

Borrowed securities and short selling 83736 83736 116073 116073

Repurchase agreements 369315 369315 357386 451 357837

Borrowings 1276 1501 2777 1517 2254 3771

Credit institutions I190 669 1859 811 1475 2286

Corporate customers 86 832 918 706 779 1485

Debt securities 53940 53940 73973 73973

Trading book derivatives 545034 545034 244471 244471

Currencyderiaties 45151 45151 26017 26017

Interestratederifiws 291457 291457 97412 97412

Equityderiaties 104195 104195 83455 83455

Credit deriaties 82380 82380 30180 30180

Otherderivatves 21851 21851 7407 7407

TOTAL FINANCIAL LIABILITIES AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR
999361 55441 1054802 719447 76678 796125

The derivative instruments included in the trading book mostly relate to transactions initiated for

position management purposes and may be contracted in connection with market-making or arbitrage

activities BNP Paribas actively trades in derivatives so as to meet the needs of its customers

Transactions include trades in ordinary instruments such as credit default swaps and structured

transactions with tailored complex risk profiles The net position is in all cases subject to limits

Trading account derivative instruments also include derivatives contracted to hedge financial assets or

financial liabilities but for which the Group has not documented hedging relationship or which do not

BNP PARIBAS

In millions of euros

FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

31 December2008

Trading book TOTAL

100-



BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

qualir for hedge accounting under IFRS This applies in particular to credit derivative transactions
which are primarily contracted to protect the Groups loan book

The positive or negative fair value of derivative instruments classified in the trading book represents the

replacement value of these instruments This value may fluctuate significantly in response to changes
in market parameters such as interest rates or exchange rates

The table below shows the total notional amount of trading derivatives The notional amounts of

derivative instruments are merely an indication of the volume of the Groups activities in financial

instruments markets and do not reflect the market risks associated with such instruments

In millions ofeuros

Trading book derivatives 36349436 29510170

Currency derivatives 1688447 151 9922

Interest rate derivatives 30477544 23593404

Equity derivatives 2248303 2085374

Credit derivatives 1770439 2143613

Otherderivatives 164703 167857

Derivatives traded on organised markets represented 38% of the Groups derivatives transactions at

31 December 2008 42% at 31 December 2007

BREAKDOWN OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY TYPE OF FAIR PRICE MEASUREMENT

The breakdown of financial instruments by type of fair value measurement given in the following table

has been prepared in accordance with categories defined in note .c.9 Determination of fair value

31 December2008In millions of euros at 31 December 2007

Model with

Model with

Market price obsereble Total

obsereble

parameters
parameters

_________________________________________
cat cat2 cat3

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Financial assets held for trading purposes at fair

627928 495977
value through profit or ass

Financial assets atfairvalue through profit or

35725 5929

loss under the fair value opton

The first category comprises financial instruments traded on liquid organised markets

During 2008 the markets for some convertible bond classes collateral debt obligations CDOs ABSs
and long-term structured derivatives became inactive In the absence of any significant trading volumes

and therefore any market references these instruments were valued on the basis of models using non-
observable inputs at 31 December 2008

31 December 2008 31 December 2007

26712 1150617 624082 250518 3643 878243

41654 46790 6673 63463

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Financialliabilifiesheldfortradingpurposesat

510407 463078 25876 999361 481831 229788 7828 719447
fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilites atfair value through profit or

55441 55441 451 76227 76678
loss under the fair value opton
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Day one profit and sensitivity of model values to reasonable changes in assumptions

The fair value of certain complex derivatives is determined using measurement techniques or internally-

developed models based on assumptions which do not rely directly on currently-observable market

data These models are based on methods widely used in the financial community are subject to

internal approval procedure and are regularly reviewed by Risk Management

The uncertainty inherent to the use of these models is quantified through analyses of sensitivities to

non-observable parameters as well as through comparison with valuations resulting from alternative

models Given this uncertainty the Group uses reserves to adjust the carrying amount of the

instruments concerned

Day one profit is calculated net of these reserves and is taken to the profit and loss account over the

period during which the valuation parameters are expected to remain unobservable note 1.c.9 The

unamortised amount is included in the balance sheet as reduction in the fair value of these complex

transactions

Changes in the margin not taken to the profit and loss account and contained in the price of derivatives

sold to clients and measured using internal models based on non-observable parameters day one

profit can be analysed as follows over years 2007 and 2008

in millions of euros Yearto3l Dec 200W Vear31 Dec.2007

Deferred margin at January 673 731

Deferred margin on transactions dudng the
year

542 411

Margin taken to the proftand loss accouritduring the
sear 505 469

Deferred margin at 31 December 710 673

This deferred margin is recorded in Financial assets held for trading purposes at fair value through

profit or loss held for trading purposes or Financial liabilities held for trading purposes at fair value

through profit or loss which are measured by models based on non-observable parameters

At 31 December 2008 the sensitivity of the values resulting from reasonable alternative assumptions

likely to be used to quantify the parameters used can be estimated at approximately EUR 545 million

EUR 270 million at 31 December 2007

RECLASSIFICATION OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS HELD FOR TRADING AND INITIALLY

RECOGNISED AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

The crisis that shook financial markets worldwide in the second half of 2007 continued through 2008

reaching an unprecedented scale in the fourth quarter of the year The effects of the crisis were

particularly visible in the volume and duration of interbank financing transactions the volume and

conditions of syndicated leveraged loans and the trading of structured instruments arising from

securitisation transactions The crisis also made liquidity scarce in numerous markets and market

segments and did away with almost all reliable market transactions or reference points for large

number of financial instruments

These exceptional circumstances prompted the Group to change its accounting treatment of financial

instruments initially held for trading While the Group originally intended to sell these assets they are

now being held within customer loan portfolios or as securities available for sale The Group has

therefore reclassified these assets into the corresponding categories allowed by the amendments to lAS

39 and IFRS adopted by the European Union on 15 October 2008
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These assets were reclassified in the fourth quarter of 2008 and are summarised in the following table

In millions of euros
Amount on the

reclassification

date

Financial assets reclassified from the trading portfolio 7844

Into loans and recevaibles due from customers 7077

Into available-for-sale financial assets 767

31 December2008

Carrying value

Market or model

value

_______________________________________________________________________________________
7816 7405

7079 6668

737 737

The cash flows expected and deemed recoverable by the Group as of the reclassification date were EUR
7904 million for assets reclassified as Loans and receivables due from customers and EUR 790
million for assets reclassified as Available-for-sale assets The average effective interest rates for these
two categories of assets are 7.6% and 61% respectively

The following table shows the profit or loss items related to the reclassified assets both as they were
recorded in 2008 and as they would have been recorded if the reclassification had not taken place

In millions of euros

Profit or loss and equity before tax related to reclassified assets as recorded

Profit or loss items

Gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income

Cost of dsk

Equityitems

Change in the value of instruments reclassified as available-far-sale after

reclassificafion and recognised in equity

Profit or loss before tax items if assets had not been reclassified

Gains or losses on financial assets at fair value through profitor loss

Profit or loss item related to the hedged portion of reclassified instruments

Yearto31 Dec.2008

Up to ttTe After the

reclassification reclassification Total

date date

487 43 444

487 42 445

64 64

28 28

35 35

487 424 911

487 424 911

Yearto3l Dec

2007

211

211
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5.b DERIvATIvEs USED FOR HEDGiNG PURPOSES

The table below shows the fair values of derivatives used for hedging purposes

In millions of euros

DERIVATIVES USED AS FAIR VALUE HEDGES OF NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The total notional amount of derivatives used for hedging purposes stood at EUR 459134 million at

31 December 2008 compared with EUR 371339 million at 31 December 2007

Derivatives used for hedging purposes are primarily contracted on over-the-counter markets and are

measured using models based on observable parameters

31 December 2008

Negative fair Positive fair

value value

31 December 2007

Negave fair Poelllvefalr

value velul

Currencyderieties 22

lnterestratedentis 5195 2409 655 1487

Other derithes 52 14 43

FAIR VALUEHEDGES 5200 2463 669 1552

DERIVATIVES USED AS CASH FLOW HEDGES OF NON-DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Currency derivahes 378 313 162 173

Interestratedenvahes 542 1719 418 428

Other derh.ets 52

CASH FLOW HEDGES 972 2032 582 601

DERIVATIVES USED AS NET FOREIGN INVESTMENT HEDGES

Currency derities 60 10

NET INVESTMENT HEDGES 60 10

DERIVATIVES USED FOR HEDGING PURPOSES 6172 4555 1261 2154
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5.c AvAILABLE-FOR-SALE FINANCiAL ASSETS

Total available-for-sale financial assets net of impairment provisions

of which unrealised gains
and losses on negotiable certificates of deposit and bo

of which unrealised gains and losses on equities and other variable-income secu

31 December 2008 31 December2007

Negotiable certificates of deposit 19487 17499

Treasurybills and other bills eligible
for central bank refinancing 14110 12762

Other
negotiable

certificates of deposit 5377 4737

Bonds 94946 73457

Government bonds 61014 48802

Other bonds 33932 24655

Equities
and other variable-income securities 18849 22670

of which listed securities 9717 14454

of which unlisted securities 9132 6216

Total available-for-sale financial assets before impairment provisions 133282 113626

of which loaned securities 374 1729

Provisions for impairment of available-for-sale financial assets 2557 1032

Fixed-income securities 422 231

Variable-income securities 2135 801

130725

1893

162

112594

769

5794
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5.d INTERBANK AND MONEY-MARKET ITEMS

Loans and receivables due from credit institutions

Demand accounts

Loans

Repurchase agreements

Total loans and receivables due from credit institutions before impairment provisions

Prosions for impairment of loans and receivables due from credit ins8tu8ons Note 2.f

Total loans and receivables due from credit institutions net of impairment provisions

31 December 2008

13514

49648

6074

69236

83

69153

Due to credit institutions

31 Decenther2007

15497

48901

6772

71170

54

71116

31 December2008lnHj1ontotuo Dc 2007

Demand accounts 8673 8165

Borrowings 154292 130370

Repurchase agreements 23222 31647

Total due to credit institutions 186187 170182
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5.e CUSTOMER ITEMS

Loans and receivables due from customers

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

In millions of euros

Demand accounts

Loans to customers

Repurchase agreements

Finance leases

Total loans and receivables due from customers before impairment provisions

Impairment of loans and receivables due from customers Note

Total loans and receivables due from customers net of impairment provisions

31 December 2008

28519

454237

885

25058

508699

14298

494401

3tOeth

29794

403295

247

24266

457602

12499

445103

Breakdown of finance leases

Gross investment

Receivable within year

Receivable after year but within
years

Receivable beyond years

Unearned interest income

Net investment before impairment provisions

Receivable within year

Receivable after year but within years

Receivable beyond years

Impairment provisions

Net investment after impairment provisions

31 December 2008

28313

7753

15140

5420

3255

25058

6946

13256

4856

508

24550

27294

7407

14671

5216

3028

24266

6258

13453

4555

431

23835

Due to customers

IU1onseu

Demand deposits

Term accounts and short-term notes

Regulated sa4ngs accounts

Repurchase agreements

Total due to customers

31 December 2008

198926

161705

42226

11098

413955

tDsZT
159842

140259

40198

6405

346704
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5.f DEBT SECURITIES AND SUBORDiNATED DEBT

in millions of euros

Debt securities at fair value through profit or loss note 5.a

31 December2008

53940

31 Decsmbv27

73973

Other debt securities 157508 141056

Negodable certifcates of deposit 129506 106381

Bond issues 28002 34675

Subordinated debt 18323 18641

Redeemable subordinated debt 17209 17393

Undated subordinated debt 1114 1248

TOTAL 229771 233670

REDEEMABLE SUBORDINATED DEBT

The redeemable subordinated debt issued by the Group is in the form of medium and long-term debt

securities equivalent to ordinary subordinated debt these issues are redeemable prior to the

contractual maturity date in the event of liquidation of the issuer and rank after the other creditors but

before holders of participating loans and participating subordinated notes

These debt issues may contain call provision authorising the Group to redeem the securities prior to

maturity by repurchasing them in the stock market via public tender offers or in the case of private

placements over the counter

Debt issued by BNP Paribas SA or foreign subsidiaries of the Group via placements in the international

markets may be subject to early redemption of the capital and early payment of interest due at maturity

at the issuers discretion on or after date stipulated in the issue particulars call option or in the

event that changes in the then applicable tax rules oblige the BNP Paribas Group issuer to compensate

debt-holders for the consequences of such changes Redemption may be subject to notice period of

between 15 and 60 days and is in all cases subject to approval by the banking supervisory authorities

UNDATED SUBORDINATED DEBT

Undated subordinated debt consists of undated floating-rate subordinated notes titres subordonnØs

durØe indØterminØe TSDIs other undated subordinated notes and undated participating

subordinated notes titres participatufs

Undated foafng-rate subordinated notes TSDIs

Other undated subordinated notes

Undated participahng subordinated notes

Issue costs and fees accrued interest

31 December

2008

31 December

2007

780 757

63 140

270 274

77

TOTAL 1114 1248
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Undated floating-rate subordinated notes and other undated subordinated notes

The TSDIs and other undated subordinated notes issued by BNP Paribas are redeemable on liquidation
of the Bank after repayment of all other debts but ahead of undated participating subordinated notes

They confer no rights over residual assets

Undated floating-rate subordinated notes

TOTAL 780 757

The TSDIs issued in US dollars contain specific call option provision whereby they may be redeemed
at par prior to maturity at the issuers discretion at any time after date specified in the issue

particulars after approval of the banking supervisory authorities They are not subject to any interest

step up clause Payment of interest is obligatory but the Board of Directors may postpone interest

payments if within the twelve months preceding the interest payment date the Ordinary General

Meeting of Shareholders approves decision not to pay dividend

Payment of interest is obligatory on the TSDIs issued in October 1985 representing nominal amount
of EUR 305 million but the Board of Directors may postpone interest payments if within the twelve

months preceding the interest payment date the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders notes that

there is no income available for distribution

Other undated subordinated notes

The other undated subordinated notes issued by the Group in 1998 and 1999 may be redeemed at par

prior to maturity on date specified in the issue particulars after approval of the banking supervisory

authorities and are entitled to step up in interest from this date if the notes have not been redeemed

Payment of interest is obligatory but the Board of Directors may postpone interest payments if within

the twelve months preceding the interest payment date the Ordinary General Meeting of Shareholders

Meeting approves decision not to pay dividend

In millions of euros

Redemption
Original amount Interest step up

Issuer Issue date Currency optionIinteretstep Rate

in issue currency basis points
update

____________

BNP SA April1998 EUR 77 million AphI 2008 3-month Libor 070% 150 bp

Laser May1999 EUR 110 million
11

May2009 5935% 250 bp2

Others

The EUR 77 million in undated notes issued in April 1998 were redeemed prior to maturity in April

2008 on the date indicated in the issue particulars

The various TSDI issues are as follows

In millions of euros

31 December

Original amount in
Issuer Issue date Currency Rate 2007

issue currency

Paribas SA September1984 USD 24 million 3-month Libor 3/8% 17 16

ENPSA October1985 EUR 3O5million TMO-0.25% 290 290

ParibasSA July1986 USO l65million 3-monthLibor118% 115 109

BNPSA September1986 USD 500 million 6-month Libor0.75% 358 342

31 December

2008

31 December

2008

Before application of the proportionate consolidation rate

Above the 3-month Eurolibor

TOTAL 63 140

31 December

2007

77

55 55
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Undated participating subordinated notes

Consolidated fmancial statements at 31 December 2008

Undated participating subordinated notes issued by the Bank between 1984 and 1988 for total

amount of EUR 337 million are redeemable only in the event of liquidation of the Bank but may be

retired on the terms specified in the law of January 1983 Under this option 325560 notes were

retired in 2004 and 2006 and 108707 notes in March 2007 and subsequently cancelled Payment of

interest is obligatory but the Board of Directors may postpone interest payments if the Ordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders Meeting held to approve the financial statements notes that there is no
income available for distribution

BREAKDOWN OF DEBT SECURITIES AND SUBORDINATED DEBT BY CONTRACTUAL MATURITY

The carrying amount of debt securities except for negotiable certificates of deposit recorded within

Other debt securities regarded mostly as having maturity of less than one year is broken down in

the table below by contractual maturity date or in the case of undated notes by interest uplift date if

any All BNP Paribas debt issues are converted to floating-rate irrespective of the benchmark rate on

issue

Total senior and subordinated debt 17778 13843 11385 12719 5865 29407 9268 100265

TOTAL
Maturity orcall option date in millionsof euros

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 2013-2017 After2Ol7 at3l Dc
unless otherwise indicated

2007

Total senior and subordinated debt 28925 17.158 11376 11773 13255 32961 11841 127289

5.g HELD-To-MATu1UTY FINANCIAL ASSETS

In millions of euros 31 Decemter 2008 31 December2007

Negotiable certificates of deposit 3089 2904

Treasury bills and other bills eligible for central bank refinancing 3031 2848

Other negotable cerlificates of
deposit 58 56

Bonds 10987 11904

Goernrnentbonds 10733 11564

Other bonds 254 340

Total held-to-maturity financial assets 14076 14808

Maturity or call option date in millions of euros

unless otherwise indicated
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5.h CuRRENT AND DEFERRED TAXES

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

In mtfttonsofeufos

Currenttaxes

Deferred taxes

31 December

2008

31 December

boy

1297

1668

2965

Deferred taxes on temporary differences relate to the following items

Year to 31 Dec

2008

Yearto3l Dec

2007

Net deferred taxes at start of period 382 520

Profit loss of defered taxes 1264 357

Effectof exchange rate and othermoements 568 219

Net deferred taxes at end of period 2214 382

31 December

2008

Provisions for emploee benefit obligatons 363 373

Other pro\isions
857 1537

Unrealised finance lease resere 801 755

Ailable-for-sale financial assets 557 552

Otheritems 1238 221

Net deferred taxes 2214 382

of which

Deferred tax assets 4019 1668

Deferred tax liabilies 1805 1286

Carryforwards of tax losses accounted for EUR 1166 million

31 December 2008 EUR 478 million at 31 December 2007
of total deferred tax assets at

Unrecognised deferred tax assets amounted to EUR 552 million at 31 December 2008 EUR 529 million

at 31 December 2007

Current and deferred taxassets

2036

4019

6055

Currenttaxes 2166 1189

Deferred taxes 1805 1286

Current and deferred taxliabilities 3971 2475
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5.1 AccRuED iNCOME/EXPENSE AND OTHER ASSETS/LIABILITIES

LnmuUonsohuros

Guarantee deposits and bank guarantees paid

Settlement accounts related to securifies transactions

Collecion accounts

Reinsurers share of technical reseres

kcrued income and prepaid expenses

Other debtors and miscellaneous assets

31 December 2008

24249

25677

4416

2226

5731

20158

31D.csmb.r2001

16358

16066

2517

2554

3919

19194

60608Total accrued income and other assets 82457

Guarantee deposits received 31423 16818

Settlement accounts related to securifies transactions 21036 23151

Collecfion accounts 3362 401

kcrued expenses and deferred income 7743 5509

Other creditors and miscellaneous liabilities 19870 12936

Total accrued expenses and other liabilities 83434 58815

The movement in Reinsurers share of technical reseives breaks down as follows

hmtHloflsdeurÆ 34 ObO1 2007

Reinsurers share of technical reserves at start of period 2554 2414

Decrease increase in technical reseres borne byreinsurers 18 353

Miounts received in respect of claims and benefits passed on to reinsurers 301 232

Effect of changes in exchange rates and scope of consolidaton 19

Reinsurers share of technical reserves at end of period 2226 2554

31 December 2008
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5.j
INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

The Groups investments in associates companies carried under

amounts in excess of EUR 100 million are shown below

the equity method which represent

1n$flloniof.s

Erbe

Vemer lns8ssement

SociØtØ de Palement Pass

Bank of Nanjing

BNL\Ma

Sericios Financieros Carrefour EFC SA

BNPP Personal Finance AED ex Jet Finance Intemafonal

Sahara Bank LSC

Other associates

31 December 2008

1121

334

194

172

152

104

566

3tO.cur2O07

1396

334

203

136

179

105

172

148

660

Investments in associates 2643 3333

Data for full-year 2007 or at 31 December 2007

Data for the first half of 2008 or at 30 June 2008

The following table gives financial data for the Groups main associates

Financial

reporting Total assets Net revenue

standard

Net income

Erbe IFRS Gaap 3138 210

Vernerlnvestissement lFRSGaap 8194 495 110

Societe de Paiement Pass French Gaap 3106 281 70

BankofNanjing Chinese Gasp 8337 136 73

BNL \ta Italian Gaap 9857 1534 87

Sericios Financieros Carrefour EFC SA IFRS Gaap 1360 149 40
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5.k PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS USED IN OPERATIONS

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

31 December2008

Carrying

amount

31 December 2007

Accumulated

Gmuvslus
depriclallon1 Cawyng

eca1on teunt
and

7738 1045 6693

Land and buildings 4955 998 3957 5010 925 4065

Equiprnen furniture and fixtures 4376 2583 1793 4055 2465 1590

Plant and equipment leased as lessor under operatng 10343 3377 6966 9367 3086 6281

Other property plant and equipment 2685 594 2091 1830 621 1209

PROPERTY PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 22359 7552 14807 20262 7097 13165

Purchased software 1668 1156 512 1505 1018 487

lntemally-deeloped
software 1332 815 517 1123 661 462

Otherintangibleassets 943 162 781 908 170 738

INTANGIBLEASSETS 3943 2133 1810 3536 1849 1687

9920

The main changes in investment

acquisition by KlØpierre of the Steen Strm Group

Land and buildings leased by the Group as lessor under operating leases and land and buildings held

as investments in connection with life insurance business are recorded in Investment property

The estimated fair value of investment property accounted for at cost at 31 December 2008 was

EUR 16437 million compared with EUR 12605 million at 31 December 2007

Intangible assets

Other intangible assets comprise leasehold rights goodwill and trademarks acquired by the Group

Depreciation amortisation and impairment

Net depreciation and amortisation expense for the year ended 31 December 2008 was EUR 1062

million compared with EUR 987 million for the year ended 31 December 2007

The net increase in impairment losses on property plant and equipment and intangible assets taken to

the profit and loss account in the year ended 31 December 2008 amounted to EUR 14 million

compared with net increase of EUR million for the year ended 31 December 2007

INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property

property in the year to 31 December 2008 are attributable to the
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5.1 GOODWILL

in millions of euros

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Carrying amountat start of period 10244 10162

kquisitons 612 483

Diestments 14

Impairment losses recognised during the period

Translaton adjustments 222 475

Subsidiaries preAouslyaccounted for bythe equity
method 302 64

Other mo.ements 13

Carrying amount at end of period 10918 10244

In vMich

Grossvalue 10932 10277

kcumulated impairment recognised at the end of period 14 33

Goodwill by core business is as follows

Carrying amount

at

31 December 2008

International Retail Banking 6659 6108

of vMich Banc West Corp 3574 3412

of which Personnal Finance 2003 1559

of which Equipement Solutions 728 788

of which UkrSibBank 119 182

Italian Retail Banking BNL bc 1698 1698

Asset Management and Services 1673 1705

of which BNP Paribas Personal Investors 400 403

Corporate and Investment Banking 624 445

French Retail Banking 68 68

OtherActivities 196 220

Total 10918 10244

..ffirto31
2007
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5.m TECHNICAL RESERVES OF INSURANCE COMPANIES

Liabilities related to insurance contracts 77465 82471

Gross technical reseres

Unit-linked contracts 26307 36226

Other insurance contracts 51158 46245

Liabilities related to financial contracts 9049 8014

Liabilifies related to financial contracts with discretonaryparticipaton feature 9049 8014

Policyholders surplus 2835

Total technical reserves of insurance companies 86514 93320

Policyholders
loss resere 531

Liabilities related to unit-linked financial contracts 3520 5450

Total liabilities related to contracts written by insurance companies 89503 98770

The policyholders loss reserve is included in Accrued income and other assets Note 5.i

Liabilities related to unit-linked financial contracts are included in Due to customers Note 5.e

The policyholders surplus reserve arises from the application of shadow accounting It represents the

interest of policyholders mainly within French life insurance subsidiaries in unrealised gains and

losses on assets where the benefit paid under the policy is linked to the return on those assets This

interest set at 92.5% for France 95% in 2007 is an average derived from stochastic analyses of

unrealised gains and losses attributable to policyholders in various scenarios

Market conditions arising from the escalation of the financial crisis in 2008 led to the build-up of an

overall unrealised net loss on portfolios classified as Available-for-sale financial assets and Financial

assets at fair value through profit or loss Accordingly policyholders loss reserve has been

recognised as an asset in an amount of EUR 531 million This amount is deemed to be recoverable

based on stochastic analysis of future cash flows over 15 years and consistent assumptions as

regards rates paid to customers and new business inflows The portfolios of Held-to-maturity financial

assets and property investments recognised at amortised cost carry an unrealised gain of

EUR 1347 million not recognised in the consolidated balance sheet which reflects future yields in

excess of current market rates

The amount of the policyholders loss reserve is sensitive to trends in new business inflows and policy

surrenders The recoverable amount would be EUR million less if the surrender and new business

inflow assumptions were increased and decreased respectively by 10% year

The movement in liabilities related to insurance contracts breaks down as follows

ns
Liabilities related to contracts at start of period

Mditions to insurance contract technical reseres and deposits taken on financial

contracts related to life insurance

Claims and benefits paid

Please refer to note 5.i for details of reinsurers share of technical reserves

In nilliloits of euros 31 December 2008 31 December 2007

Yearto3l Dec

2008

98770 91391

Yearto 31 Dec

2007

7386 13802

7686 6744

Contracts portfolio disposals 338 294

Effect of changes in scope of consolidation 18 63

Effect of moments in exchange rates 61 364

Effect of changes in value of admissible inwstments related to unit-linked business 7996 916

Liabilities related to contracts at end of period 89503 98770
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5.n PROVISIONS FOR CONTINGENCIES AND CHARGES

In millions of euros
Yearto3l Dec

2008

Yearto3l Dec

2007

Total provisions at start of
period 4738 4718

kldiionsto provisions 1123 1050

Reversalsof
provisions 905 534

Provisions utilised 769 758

Impact of the consolidaton of Banca Naonale del Lavoro 260

Effect of movements in exchange rates and other movements 201

Total provisions at end of period 4388 4738

At 31 December 2008 and 31 December 2007 provisions for contingencies and charges mainly
included provisions for post-employment benefits Note 7.b for impairment related to credit risks Note
2.1 for risks on regulated savings products and for litigation in connection with banking transactions

Provisions for regulated savings product risks

Deposits loans and savings home savings accounts CEL and home savings plans

PEL

In millions of euros

Deposits collected under home savings accounts and plans

of which deposits collected under home
savings plans

Aged more than 10
years

Aged between4and 10
years

Aged lessthan4 years

31 December2008

14366

11330

3929

5343

2058

31 December2007

15995

12890

4476

6542

1872

Outstanding loans granted under home savings accounts and plans 586 552

of which loans granted under home savings plans 161 150

Provisions recognised for home savings accounts and plans 128 135

of which home savings plans 91 97

Aged morethanloyears 45 51

Aged between4andloyears 33 33

Aged lessthan4 years 13 13

Change in provisions for regulated savings products

In millions of euros

Yearto 31 Dec.2008

Provisions Provisions

recogniaet home recognised home

savings plans savings accounts

Year to 31 Dec.2007

Provisions Provisions

recognised home recognised home

savings plans savings accounts

Total provisions at start of period 97 38 171 45

Mditonsto provisions during the period

Provision reversals during the period 74

Total provisions at end of period 91 37 97 38

-117-



BNP PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

FINANCING COMMITMENTS AND GUARANTEE
COMMITMENTS

6.a FiNANcING COMMITMENTS

Contractual value of financing commitments given and received

In tnflflons of suros

Financing commitments given

-to credit institutions

-to customers

Confirmed letters of credit

Other commitments gin to customers

31 December 2008 31 December 2001

25.93327659

194082 205294

166127 177907

27955 27387

Total financing commitments given Note 4.a 221741 231227

Financing commitments received

from credit institutions 24411 100593

from customers 9756 6888

Total financing commitments received 134167 107481

6.b GuAWNTEE COMMITMENTS

Financial instruments given and received as guarantees

Financial instruments given by the Group as guarantees of liabilities or contingent liabilities amounted

to EUR 75145 million at 31 December 2008 EUR 43621 million at 31 December 2007 financial

instruments given by the Group as collateral in respect of notes securities and receivables from

central banks amounted to EUR 48169 million at 31 December 2008 EUR 7480 million at

31 December 2007 and financial instruments given in respect of repos transactions amounted to

EUR 412848 million at 31 December 2008 EUR 395889 million at 31 December 2007

Financial instruments given as guarantees by the Group which the beneficiary is authorised to sell or

give as guarantees amounted to EUR 429164 million at 31 December 2008

Financial instruments received as guarantees by the Group which it is authorised to sell or give as

guarantees amounted to EUR 42594 million at 31 December 2008 EUR 38014 million at

31 December 2007 Financial instruments received in respect of repo transactions amounted to

EUR 356421 million at 31 December 2008 EUR 341147 million at 31 December 2007

Financial instruments actually sold or given as guarantees amounted to EUR 309776 million at

31 December 2008
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Guarantee commitments given

31 DecenibO2OO7

7680 10436

77287 80663

1590 2142

40072 36172

35625 42349

Total guarantee commitments given note 4.a 84967 91099

tmIffloouros

Guarantee commitments given

to credit institutions

to customers

Propertyguarantees

Suretes provided to tax and other authorites other suretes

Other guarantees

31 December2008
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SALARIES AND EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

7.a SALARY AND EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

Salary and employee benefit expenses for the year to 31 December 2008 came to EUR 10227 million

EUR 11105 million for the year to 31 December 2007

Fixed and variable remuneration incentive bonuses and profit-sharing amounted to EUR 7275 million

EUR 8391 million in 2007 retirement bonuses pension costs and social security taxes to EUR
2588 million EUR 2368 million in 2007 and payroll taxes to EUR 364 million EUR 346 million in

2007

7.b EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS UNDER DEFINED-CONTRIBUTION PLANS

In France the BNP Paribas Group pays contributions to various nationwide basic and top-up pension

schemes BNP Paribas SA and certain subsidiaries have set up funded pension plan under

company-wide agreement Under this plan employees will receive an annuity on retirement in addition

to the pension paid by nationwide schemes

In the rest of the world defined-benefit plans have been closed to new employees in most of the

countries in which the Group operates primarily the United States Germany Luxembourg the United

Kingdom Ireland Norway and Australia These employees are now offered defined-contribution plans
Under these plans the Groups obligation is essentially limited to paying percentage of the employees
annual salary into the plan

The amount paid into defined-contribution post-employment plans in France and other countries for

the year to 31 December 2008 was approximately EUR 418 million EUR 362 million for the year to

31 December 2007

POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS UNDER DEFINED-BENEFIT PLANS

The legacy defined-benefit plans in France and other countries are valued independently using actuarial

techniques applying the projected unit cost method in order to determine the expense arising from

rights vested in employees and benefits payable to retired employees The demographic and financial

assumptions used to estimate the present value of these obligations and of plan assets take account of

economic conditions specific to each country and Group company Actuarial gains and losses outside

the permitted 10% corridor are amortised these gains and losses are calculated separately for each

defined-benefit plan

Provisions set up to cover obligations under defined-benefit post-employment plans at 31 December

2008 totalled EUR 1365 million EUR 1391 million at 31 December 2007 comprising EUR 561 million

for French plans and EUR 804 million for other plans
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Pension plans and other post-employment benefits

Pension plans

In France BNP Paribas pays top-up banking industry pension arising from rights acquired to

31 December 1993 by ex-employees in retirement at that date and active employees in service at that

date The residual pension obligations are covered by provision in the consolidated financial

statements or transferred to an insurance company outside the Group

The defined-benefit plans previously granted to Group executives formerly employed by BNP Paribas or

Compagnie Bancaire have all been closed and converted into top-up type schemes The amounts

allocated to the beneficiaries subject to their still being with the Group at retirement were fixed when
the previous schemes were closed These pension plans have been contracted out to insurance

companies The fair value of the related plan assets in these companies balance sheets breaks down as

83% bonds 8% equities and 9% property assets

In other countries pension plans are based either on pensions linked to the employees final salary and

length of service United Kingdom or on annual vesting of rights to capital sum expressed as

percentage of annual salary and paying interest at pre-defined rate United States Some plans are

top-up schemes linked to statutory pensions Norway Some plans are managed by an insurance

company Spain foundation Switzerland or by independent fund managers United Kingdom At

31 December 2008 86% of the gross obligations under these plans concerned some twenty plans in the

United Kingdom the United States and Switzerland The fair value of the related plan assets was split

as follows 34% equities 47% bonds 19% other financial instruments

Other post-employment benefits

Group employees also receive various other contractual post-employment benefits such as bonuses

payable on retirement BNP Paribas obligations for these bonuses in France are funded through

contract taken out with third-party insurer In other countries the bulk of the Groups obligations are

in Italy 82% where pension reforms changed Italian termination indemnity schemes TFR into

defined-contribution plans with effect from January 2007 Rights vested up to 31 December 2006

continue to be classified as defined benefit obligations
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The tables below provide details relating to the Groups obligations for both pensions and other post-

employment benefits

Reconciliation of assets and liabilities recognised in the balance sheet

4189 4047

3323 3156

866 891

Fair value of plan assets 2129 2474

Fair value of surplus assets 76 68

Fair value of segregated assets 15 14

Cost not yet recognised in accordance with lAS 19 751 280

Past servce cost 193 245

Net actuarial losses/gains 558 35

Other amounts recognised in the balance sheet 50

Net obligation recognised in the balance sheet for defined-benefit plans 1223 1261

Movements in the present value of the obligation and surplus assets

In
Present value of obligation

Presentvalue of obligations whollyor partiallyfunded by plan assets

Present value of unfunded
obligations

31 December2008 31 December 2007

Segregated assets are ring-fenced assets held in the balance sheets of Group insurance companies to cover post-employment

benefit obligations transferred to the insurance companies for certain categories of employees of other Group entities

31 December2008 31 December 2007

Present value of obligation at start of period 3979 3814

Gross
present value of

obligation
at startof period 4047 3884

Fair value of
surplus assets at start of

period 68 70

Sercecostforthepenod 149 117

Expense arising on discounting of the obligation 181 166

Effectof plan amendments 40 192

Effect of plan curtailments or settlements 16 80

Net actuarial gains and losses 240 117

Contributions by plan participants 11 11

Benefits paid 285 205

Effect of moements in exchange rates 117 120

Effect of changes in scope of consolidation 222

Other moements 18 21

Present value of obligation at end of period 4113 3979

Gross present value of obligation at end of period 4189 4047

Fair value of surplus assets at end of period 76 68
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Movements in the fair value of plan assets and segregated assets

Yearto3l Dec

2008

Main actuarial assumptions used in employee benefit calculations at the balance sheet

date

Discounfing rate

Future rate of salaryincreases

Euro zone
UK

cxci France

4.15%-4.70% 5.69% 6.00%

2.0O%-5.0O% 430%-4.75% 400%-5.00%

Effective rate of return on plan assets during the year

in Yearto 31 Dec2008 Yearto3l Dec.2007

Euro zone
France UK USA

cxci France

Expected return on plan assetsm
4.20% 3.25%515% 4.50%6.60% 6.00%7.00% 4.20% 2.00%690% 480%7.30% 6.50%8.25%

Pctual return on plan assets 4.00%415% 3300%O.00% 20.00%1.38% 32.00%15.60% 4.50%470% 3.0O%6.00% 6.00%9.00% 5.00%12.00%

Range of values reflecting the existence of several plans within single country or zone

in millions of euros 31 December2008 31 December2007

Fair value of assets at start of period 2488 2225

Fair value of plan assets at start of period 2474 2213

Fair value of segregated assets at start of period 14 12

Expected return on plan assets ii 123

Effect of plan curtailments or settements

Net actuarial gains and losses 327 15

Contributions by plan parhcipants 11 11

BNP Paribas contribubonsto plan assets
81 122

Benefits paid to recipients of funded benefits 139 120
Effect of moments in exchange rates 83 105
Effectof changes in scope of consolidation 218

Other moements

Fair value of assets at end of period 2144 2488

Fair value of
plan assets at end of period 2129 2474

Fair value of segregated assets at end of period 15 14

Components of pension cost

in millions of euros
Yearto3l Dec

2007

Sercecostfortheperiod 149 117

Expense arising on discounfing of the obligafion 181 166

Expected return on plan assets 119 123
Miortisaion of actuarial

gains and losses

Aiorfisafion of past service cost 11

Effect of plan curtailmentsorsettlements 18 77

Total expense recorded in Salary and employee benefit expenses 241 90

in% 31 December2008

rIlIe
liPOIlJiW.IU France

rI

3.11%-4.05% 2.75%-4.19% 4.50% 6.00% 4.11%-460%

3.00%-5.00% 2.00%-4.00% 3.50%-4.40% 4.00% 2.50%-5.00%

31 December 2007

USA
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In France actuarial losses arising in 2008 increased the value of the Groups net obligation by

approximately EUR 110 million These losses were mainly due to updating the assumptions used for

calculating employee benefits and particularly the discount rate and future rate of salary increases

In other countries actuarial losses arising in 2008 increased the value of the Groups net obligation by

approximately EUR 456 million due to decline in the rate of return on plan assets EUR 430 million

and to updating the assumptions used for calculating employee benefits

Post-employment healthcare plans

In France BNP Paribas no longer has any obligations in relation to healthcare benefits for its retired

employees

Several healthcare benefit plans for retired employees exist in other countries mainly in the United

States Provisions for obligations under these plans at 31 December 2008 amounted to EUR 51 million

EUR 48 million at 31 December 2007

Obligations under post-employment healthcare benefit plans are measured using the mortality tables

applicable in each country They also build in assumptions about healthcare benefit costs including

forecast trends in the cost of healthcare services and in inflation which are derived from historical data

TERMINATION BENEFITS

In France BNP Paribas is encouraging voluntary redundancy among employees who meet certain

eligibility criteria The obligations to eligible active employees under such plans are provided for where

the plan is the subject of an agreement or draft bilateral agreement The plans currently in force

mainly concern BNP Paribas French operations BNP Paribas Personal Finance and BNP Paribas Lease

Group in France and BNL in other countries

Provisions for voluntary redundancy and early retirement plans amounted to EUR 150 million at

31 December 2008 EUR 264 million at 31 December 2007 including EUR 108 million related to the

Groups operations outside France EUR 171 million at 31 December 2007 and EUR 42 million in

France

On 16 December 2008 the BNP Paribas Group announced review of its operations that could lead to

about 5% reduction in CIB staff numbers worldwide following the losses incurred by this division in

the final quarter of 2008

Restructuring provisions have already been taken in the United Kingdom EUR 10 million the United

States EUR million and Hong Kong EUR million
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7.c SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

SHARE-BASED LOYALTY AND INCENTIVE SCHEMES

BNP Paribas has set up share-based payment systems for certain employees including stock option

and share award plans implemented as part of loyalty schemes and Global Share-Based Incentive

Plan

Loyalty schemes

As part of the Groups variable remuneration policy certain high-performing or newly-recruited

employees are offered loyalty bonus scheme entitling them to specific share-based remuneration in

the form of shares or cash payments indexed to the BNP Paribas share price payable over several

years and subject to the condition that the employees remain within the Group Under IFRS these

plans are recognised as an expense over the vesting period of the rights The expense recognised in the

year to 31 December 2008 related to awards made between 2005 and 2008

Global Share-Based Incentive Plan

Until 2005 various stock option plans were granted to Group employees by BNP by Paribas and its

subsidiaries and subsequently by BNP Paribas under successive authorisations given by

Extraordinary Shareholders Meetings

Since 2005 the Group has set up stock option plans on an annual basis with view to actively

involving various categories of managers in creating value for the Group and thereby encouraging the

convergence of their interests with those of the Groups shareholders The managers selected for these

plans represent the Groups best talent including the next generation of leaders senior managers

managers in key positions line managers and technical experts high-potential managers high-

performing young managers with good career development prospects and major contributors to the

Groups results

The option exercise price under these plans is determined at the time of issue in accordance with the

terms of the authorisation given by the corresponding Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting No

discount is offered Since the 2005 plan the life of the options granted has been reduced to years

The plans are subject to vesting conditions under which portion 30% of the options granted over and

above minimum threshold of 3000 options is conditional upon the performance of the BNP Paribas

share relative to the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Bank index This relative performance is measured at the

end of the second third and fourth years of the compulsory holding period and at each measurement

date applies to one third of the options subject to the performance condition

The performance of the BNP Paribas share relative to the index is determined by comparing the

percentage ratio between the average of the opening prices of the BNP Paribas share in each compulsory

holding year and the average of the opening prices in the previous compulsory holding year with ii the

percentage ratio between the average of the opening prices of the index in the same periods

If the BNP Paribas share outperforms the index the exercise price of the corresponding portion of

options remains unchanged If it underperforms the index by 20 points or more the options subject to

the performance condition will lapse and may no longer be exercised

If the BNP Paribas share underperforms the index by less than points by to less than 10 points or

by 10 to less than 20 points the initial exercise price of the relevant portion of the options will be

increased by 5% 10% or 20% respectively

Under stock option plans set up since 2003 the performance condition was not fully met on six of nine

occasions and the adjustments described above were therefore implemented
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In 2006 BNP Paribas used the authorisations granted by the Extraordinary Shareholders Meeting of 18

May 2005 to set up Global Share-Based Incentive Plan for the above-mentioned employee categories

which consists of stock options with share awards Under this plan senior managers and corporate

officers are exclusively granted stock options whereas managers in key positions receive both stock

options and share awards High-potential managers and major contributors are exclusively granted

share awards

Employees rights under share awards made until 2008 vest after period of or years depending on

the case and provided the employee is still member of the Group The compulsory holding period for

the shares granted free of consideration is two years Share awards were only made to Group employees

in France

The performance condition is met if the Groups earnings per share increase by 5% or more compared
with the previous year and if not it depends on the BNP Paribas shares performance relative to the

Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Bank index measured by comparing the percentage ratio between the average

of the opening prices of the BNP Paribas share in each relevant year and the average of the opening

prices in the previous year with ii the percentage ratio between the average of the opening prices of

the index in the same periods

If this condition is not met the relevant portion of the share awards will become null and void

All unexpired plans involve potential settlement in BNP Paribas shares

Expense for the year

The expense recognised in the year to 31 December 2008 in respect of all the plans

to EUR 116 million EUR 107 million in the year to 31 December 2007

Loyaltyschemes

Global Share-Based lncentve Plan

Total

granted amounted

In millions of euros

2008

Stock option

plans

Share award

plans

Other plans Total expense

2007

Total expense

19

50 53 103 88

50 53 13 116 107

13 13
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Description of the plans

The tables below give details of the characteristics and terms of all unexpired plans at

31 December 2008

Stock subscription option plans

Characteristics of the plan

Originating

company

Options outstanding at end

of period

BNP 03/05/1999 112 670000 04/05/2004 03/05/2009 37.31 52586

BNL 13/09/1999 137 614763 13/09/2001 13/09/2011 82.05 428647

BNP14 22/12/1999 642 5064000 23/12/2004 22/12/2009 44.77 1478811

BNP14 07/04/2000 1214 1754200 08/04/2005 07/04/2010 42.13 350336

BNL 20/10/2000 161 504926 20/10/2003 20/10/2013 103.55 465154

BNPPanbasSA2 15/05/2001 932 6069000 15/05/2005 14/05/2011 48.57 2900350

BNL 26/10/2001 223 573250 26/10/2004 26/10/2014 63.45 4740

BNL 26/10/2001 153 479685 26/10/2004 26/10/2012 63.45 2074

BNPPanbasSA2 31/05/2002 1384 2158570 31/05/2006 30/05/2012 59.48 1035408

BNPParibasSA3 21/03/2003 1302 6693000 21/03/2007 20/03/2013 36.78 3446670

BNPPadbasSA3 24/03/2004 1458 1779850 24/03/2008 21/03/2014 49.36 1402831

BNPPadbasSA3 25/03/2005 2380 4332550 25/03/2009 22/03/2013 54.62 4133709

BNPPadbasSA3 05/04/2006 2583 3894770 06/04/2010 04/04/2014 75.25 3707890

BNPPanbasSA3 08/03/2007 2023 3630165 08/03/2011 06/03/2015 82.70 3554690

BNPPanbasSA3 06/04/2007 219 405680 06/04/2011 03/04/2015 78.50 392905

BNPPanbasSA3 18/04/2008 2402 3985590 18/04/2012 15/04/2016 66.10 3945590

Total options outstanding at end of period 27302391

The number of options and the exercise price have been adjusted for the two-for-one BNP Paribas share split that took place

on 20 February 2002

These options were subject to vesting conditions related to the financial performance of the Group as measured by the ratio of

net income to average shareholders equity for the year in question The minimum requirement is an average ratio of 16% over

four years starting in the year of grant or alternatively over three rolling years starting in the second year after the year of grant

This condition has been met for the plans concerned

The plan is subject to vesting conditions under which proportion of the options granted to employees is conditional upon the

performance of the BNP Paribas share relative to the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Bank index during the applicable holding period

Based on this relative performance condition the adjusted exercise price for these options has been set at

EUR 38.62 for 404649 options under the 21 March 2003 plan outstanding at the year-end

EUR 51.83 for 3028 options under the 24 March 2004 plan outstanding at the year-end

EUR 57.40 for 171460 options under the 25 March 2005 plan outstanding at the year-end

EUR 79.00 for 164106 options under the April 2006 plan outstanding at the year-end

Plans granted to employees of the two pre-merger groups BNP and Paribas The options vested only in the event that no

payments were due in respect of the Contingent Value Rights Certificates attached to the shares issued at the time of the merger

This condition has been met for the two plans concerned

The exercise prices for options granted under plans prior to 31 March 2006 as well as the number of options outstanding at

that date have been adjusted in accordance with the applicable regulations in order to take into account the issue of preferential

subscription right on March 2006

Following the merger between BNL and BNP Paribas on October 2007 stock option plans granted by BNL between 1999 and

2001 entitle beneficiaries to subscribe to BNP Paribas shares as of the date of the merger Beneficiaries may subscribe to the

shares based on ratio of BNP Paribas share for 27 BNL shares The exercise price has been adjusted in line with this ratio
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2007

Weighted
Number of

average exercise

options

price suros

24474326 50.63

The average quoted stock market price for the

EUR 81.52 in 2007
option exercise period in 2008 was EUR 42.08

2007

Numberof

shares

Characteristics of the plan
Number of

Expiry date shares

Numberof
Numberof Vestrag date ofholding

outstanding

Dateofrant
granees

shares of shar period for atend of

granted granted shares period

granted

BNP Paribas SA111 05/04/2006 2034 544370 07/04/2008 07/04/2010 805

BNP Paribas SA 05/04/2006 253 64281 06/04/2009 06/04/2011 60189

BNP Paribas SA 08/03/2007 2145 834110 09/03/2009 09/03/2011 818070

BNP ParibasSA 08/03/2007 327 76813 28/06/2010 28/06/2012 75032

BNP ParibasSA 18/04/2008 2124 820890 19/04/2010 19/04/2012 819090

Total shares outstanding at end of period 1773186

The vesting date for 805 shares has been deferred due to the beneficiaries absence on the date initially scheduled

The twenty-first resolution passed by the Shareholders General Meeting of 21 May 2008 introduced the

principle of making share awards contingent upon performance condition The Board of Directors will

set the applicable performance conditions as of the next proposed share award plan

Movements over the past two years

Stock subscription option plans

Options outstanding at January

2008

Weighted
Number of

average exercise

optons
price euros

24648283 59.07

Optons granted during the period 3985590 66.10 4035845 82.28

Optons arising from the conversion of BNL plans into BNP Paribas shares 989317

Opions exercised during the period 1040223 65.23 4488732 40.86

Optons expired during the period 291259 362473

Options outstanding at 31 December 27302391 59.60 24648283 59.07

Options exercisable at 31 December 10666992 45.20 10154176 44.16

Share award plans

.2008

Number of

shares

Shares outstanding at January 1483630 595669

Shares granted during the period 820890 910923

Shares vested during the period 524208 463

Shares expired during the period 7126 22499

Shares outstanding at3l December 1773186 1483630
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Value attributed to stock options and share awards

As required under IFRS BNP Paribas attributes value to stock options and share awards granted to

employees and recognises an expense determined at the date of grant calculated on the basis of the

fair value of the options and shares concerned This initial fair value may not subsequently be adjusted

for changes in the quoted market price of BNP Paribas shares The only asumptions that may result in

revision to fair value during the vesting period and hence to an adjustment in the expense are those

related to the population of grantees loss of rights The Group share-based payment plans are valued

by an independent specialist firm
..

Measurement of stock subscription options

Binomial or trinomial tree algorithms are used to build in the possibility of non-optimal exercise of

options from the vesting date The Monte Carlo method is used to price in the characteristics of certain

secondary grants linking options to the performance of the BNP Paribas share relative to sector index

The implied volatility used in measuring stock option plans is estimated on the basis of range of

ratings prepared by various dealing rooms The level of volatility used by the Group takes account of

historical volatility trends for the benchmark index and BNP Paribas shares over 10-year period

Stock subscription options granted on 18 April 2008 were valued at EUR 17.32 and EUR 15.35

depending on whether or not they are subject to performance conditions compared with EUR 14.57

and EUR 12.90 respectively for stock subscription options granted on March 2007and EUR 16.68

and EUR 14.47 respectively for stock subscription options granted on April 2007

67.98

OpUon exercise price in euros 66.10

Implied olatilityof BNP Paribas shares 29.5%

Expected opon holding period sears

Expected dividend on BNP Paribas shares 4.0%

Risk-free interest rate 4.5%

Expected proportion of options thatwill be forfeited 1.5%

The dividend rate shown above is an average of the estimated annual dividends over the life of the option

Measurement of share awards

The unit value used to measure shares awarded free of consideration is the value at the end of the

compulsory holding period plus dividends paid since the date of acquisition discounted at the grant

date

The value of shares awarded free of consideration by BNP Paribas on 18 April 2008 was EUR 60.94

EUR 72.43 for the shares whose holding period expires on 10 March 2011 and EUR 65.48 for shares

whose holding period expires on 29 June 2012

BNP Paribas share price on the
grant

date in euros

Year to 31 Dec

2008
Yeerto3l Dec.2007

18priI 2008

Plan

79.31

82.70

23.3%

7ears

4.0%

4.1%

1.5%

80.60

75.50

23.3%

wars

4.0%

4.3%

1.5%
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SHARES SUBSCRIBED OR PURCHASED BY EMPLOYEES UNDER THE COMPANY SAVINGS PLAN

Yr3tOec

13May2008 15May2007

67.75 92.77

5360439 5971476

54.90 69.20

4.20% 4.16%

8.00% 8.00%

16.40% 16.56%

The Group did not recognise an expense in relation to the Company Savings Plan as the discount

granted to employees subscribing or purchasing shares under this plan does not represent financial

expense for BNP Paribas when valued taking into account the five-year compulsory holding period

applicable to the shares purchased Of the total number of BNP Paribas Group employees who were

offered the opportunity of buying shares under the Plan in 2007 44% accepted the offer and 56%

turned it down

Date plan announced

Quoted price of BNP Paribas shares at date plan announced in euros

Num ber of shares issued or transfered

Purchase or subscripon price in euros

Five-year
risk-free interest rate

Fie-ar borrowing cost

Borrowing cost during the holding period

Year to 31 Dec

2008
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ADDITIONAL IN FORMATION

8.a CHANGEs IN SHARE CAPITAL AND EARNiNGS PER SHARE

Use in 2008 of authorisations granted under resolutions voted in Shareholders General Meetings

The following authorisations to increase or reduce the share capital have been granted to the Board of

Directors under resolutions voted in General Shareholders Meetings and were valid during 2008

Shareholders General Meeting at which authorisation was granted to the Board of Directors

Use of

authorisation

made during 2008

Shareholders General Authorisation to increase the share capital by issuing shares reserved for members of the BNP Paribas 5360439 new

Meeting of 23 May Groups Corporate Savings Plan shares issued with

2006 22nd resolution par value of EUR

Author/sat/on to increase the share capital on one or more occasions up to maximum amount of duly placed on

EUR 36 million without pre-emptive rights
record on 31 July

This authorisation was granted for period of 26 months 2008

Shareholders General Pursuant to the law of 30 December 2006 on the development of employee share ownership revision of

Meeting of 15 May the twenty second resolution passed at the Shareholders General Meeting of 23 May 2006 authorising

2007 10th resolution the Board of Directors to increase the share
capital by issuing

shares reserved for members of the

BNP Paribas Corporate Savings Plan

The transactions authorised by this resolution may also take the form of sales of shares to members of

the BNP Paribas Groups Corporate Savings Plan

Shareholders General Authorisation to carry out transactions reserved for members of the BNP Paribas Groups Corporate This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May Savings Plan in the form of new share issues and/or sales of reserved shares was not used

2008 20th resolution during the year

Authorisation to increase the share capital within the limit of maximum par value of EUR 36 million

on one or more occasions by issuing shares without pre-emptive rights
reseried for members of the

BNP Paribas Groups Corporate Savings Plan

The transactions authorised by this resolution may also take the form of sales of shares to members

of the BNP Paribas Groups Corporate Savings Plan

This authorisation was granted for period of 26 months

Shareholders General Authorisation to grant stock subscription or purchase options to corporate officers and certain employees 3985590 stock

Meeting of 18 May subscription

2005 14th resolution options granted at

The number of shares granted may not exceed 1.5% of the share capital i.e less than 0.5% year the Board meeting

This authorisation was granted for period of 38 months
of 19 March 2008

Shareholders General Authorisation to award shares for no consideration to employees and corporate officers of BNP Paribas 820890 shares

Meeting of 18 May and related companies awarded at the

2005 15th resolution Board meeting of

The shares awarded may be existing shares or new shares to be issued and may not exceed 1.5%
19 March 2008

of the share
capital

i.e less than 0.5% year

This authorisation was granted for period of 38 months

Shareholders General Pursuant to the law of 30 December 2006 on the development of employee share ownership revision of

Meeting of 15 May the fifteenth resolution passed at the Shareholders General Meeting of 18 May 2005 authorising the

2007 9th resolution Board of Directors to award shares for no consideration to employees and corporate officers of

BNP Paribas and related companies

This revision introduces an early
end to the vesting and compulsory holding periods in the event of the

beneficiarys incapacity subject to meeting the various legal conditions
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Shareholders General Meeting at which authorisation was granted to the Board of Directors

Use of

authorisation

made during 2008

Shareholders General Authorisation to award shares for no consideration to employees and corporate officers of BNP Paribas This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May and related companies was not used

2008 21st resolution during the year

The shares awarded may be existing shares or new shares to be issued and may not exceed 1.5%

of the share capital i.e less than 0.5% year

This authorisation was granted for period of 38 months

Shareholders General Authorisation to grant stock
subscription or purchase options to corporate officers and certain employees This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May was not used

2008 22nd resolution during the year

The number of options granted may not exceed 3% of the share capital i.e less than 1% year

This limit is global common to 2Vt and 22nd resolutions

This authorisation was granted for period of 38 months

Shareholders General Authorisation to issue ordinary shares and share equivalents with pre-emptive rights This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May was not used

2008 3th resolution The par value of the capital increases that may be carried out immediately and/or in the future by during the year

virtue of this authorisation may not exceed EU billion representing 500 million shares

The par value of any debt instruments
giving access to the

capital
of BNP Paribas that may be

issued by virtue of this authorisation may not exceed EUR 10 billion

This authorisation was granted for period of 26 months

Shareholders General Authorisation to issue ordinary shares and share equivalents without pre-emptive rights but with priority This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May period was not used

2008 14th resolution during the year

The par value of the capital increases that may be carried out immediately and/or in the future by

virtue of this authorisation may not exceed EU 350 million representing 175 million shares

The par vaiue of any debt instruments giving access to the capital of BNP Paribas that may be

issued by virtue of thir autforisafion may not exceed EUR billion

This authorisation was granted far period of 26 months

Shareholders General Authorisation to issue without pre-emptive rights ordinary shares and share equivalents in consideration This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May for securities tendered to public exchange offers was not used

2008 15th resolution during the year

The par value of the capital increases that may be carried out on one or more occasions by virtue of

this authorisation may not exceed EUR 250 million representing 125 million shares

This aut horisat ion was granted for period of 26 months

Shareholders General Authorisation to issue without pre-emptive rights ordinary shares and share equivalents in consideration This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May for securities tendered to contributions of unlisted shares up to maximum of 10% of the capital was not used

2008 16th resolution during the year

The par value of the capital increases that may be carried out on one or more occasions by virtue of

this authorisation may not exceed 10% of the number of shares comprising the share capital
of

BNP Paribas

This authorisation was granted for period of 26 months

Shareholders General Blanket limit on issues without pre-emptive hghts

Meeting of 21 May

2008 17th resolution The maximum par value of all issues without pre-emptive rights
made by virtue of the authorisat ions

granted under the fourteenth fifteenth and sixteenth resolutions above may not exceed EUR 350

million for shares and EUR billion for debt instruments

Shareholders General Authorisation to increase the share capital by capitalising retained earnings profits or additional paid-in This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May capital was not used

2008 18th resolution during the year
Authorisation to increase the share capital within the limit of maximum par value of EUR billion on

one or more occasions by capitalising all or part of the retained earnings profits or additional paid-in

capital successively or simultaneously through the creation and award of free shares through an

increase in the par value of existing shares or through combination of these two methods

This authorisation was granted for period of 26 months
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Blanket limit on all issues with or without pre-emptive rights

This resolution limits the overall amount of issues with or without pre-emptive rights that may be

carried out by virtue of the authorisations granted under the
thirteenth fourteenth fifteenth and

sixteenth resolutions above Accordingly the maximum par value of issues that may be carried out

immediately and/or in the future is set at EUR billion for shares and EUR 10 billion for debt

instruments

Shareholders General Authorisation to reduce the share
capital by cancelling shares This authorisation

Meeting of 21 May was not used

2008 23rd resolution Authorisation to cance on one or more occasions some or all of the BNP Paribas shares that the
during the year

Bank may hold by virtue of said authorisation provided that the total number of shares cancelled in

any 24-month period does not exceed 10% of the total number of shares outstanding

Power to complete the capital reduction and deduct the difference between the purchase cost of the

cancelled shares and their par value from additional
paid-in capital and reserves available for

distribution with an amount corresponding to 10% of the
capital reduction being deducted from the

legal reserve

This authorisation was granted for period of 18 months

Operations affecting share capital

Operations affecting share capital

Number of shares Outstanding at 31 December 2006 930467477

Increase in share capital byexercise of stock subscripbon options 5647059 11294118 01 January06

Increase in share capital byexercise of stock subscripion options 817549 1635098 01 January07

Increase in
capital resulhng from the mergerwith BNL 439358 878716 15 May07 31 July07 01 January07

Decrease in share capital through the cancellation oftreasuryshares 321111351 64222270 15 May07 31 July07

Number of shares outstanding at 31 December 2007 905260308 1810520616

Increase in share
capital byexercise

of stock
subscription options 1115091 2230182 01 January07

Increase in share Capital byexercise of stock subscription opions 360269 720538 01 January08

Capital increase reserd for members of the CompanySaings Plan 5360439 10720878 23 May06 13 May08 01 January08

Number of shares outstanding at 31 December 2008 912096107 1824192214

Various resolutions voted in Shareholders General Meetings and decisions of the Board of Directors authorising the granting
of stock subscription options that were exercised during the period

Own equity instruments shares issued by BNP Paribas and held by the Group

The 5th resolution of the Shareholders General Meeting of 15 May 2007 authorised BNP Paribas to buy
back shares representing up to 10% of the Banks issued capital at maximum purchase price of

EUR 105 The shares could be acquired for the following purposes for subsequent cancellation to fulfil

the Banks obligations relative to the issue of shares or share equivalents stock option plans the award
of consideration-free shares to employees directors or corporate Officers and the allocation or sale of

shares to employees in connection with the employee profit-sharing scheme employee share ownership

plans or corporate savings plans to be held in treasury stock for subsequent remittance in exchange or

payment for external growth transactions within the scope of liquidity agreement or for asset and
financial management purposes

Shareholders General

Meeting of 21 May

2008 19th resolution

Use of

Shareholders General Meeting at which authorisation was granted to the Board of Directors authorisation

made during 2008
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This authorisation which was given for period of 18 months was cancelled and replaced by the

authorisation granted under the 5th resolution of the Shareholders General Meeting of 21 May 2008

which authorised the Board of Directors to buy back shares representing up to 10% of the Banks

issued capital for the same purposes as under the 5th resolution of the Shareholders General Meeting of

15 May 2007 but at maximum purchase price of EUR 100 per share This latter authorisation was

granted for period of 18 months

Own equity instruments shares issued by

BNP Paribas and held by the Group

Shares held at 31 December 2006

In 2008 under the aforementioned authorisations BNP Paribas SA bought back 600000 of its own

shares on the market outside market-making agreement at an average share price of EUR 68.58

shares with par value of EUR This share buyback was carried out to meet the Banks obligations

related to the issue of shares or share equivalents stock option plans share awards to employees and

corporate officers and the allocation or sale of shares to employees in connection with the employee

profit-sharing scheme employee share ownership plans or corporate savings plans These shares were

then classified as shares to be cancelled

BNP Paribas SA also bought back 40662 of its own shares on the market outside market-making

agreement at an average share price of EUR 74.29 euros shares with par value of EUR these

shares were similarly classified as shares to be cancelled

Under the Banks market-making agreement with Exane BNP Paribas and consistent with the Code of

Ethics recognised by the AMF BNP Paribas SA bought back 272719 shares at an average share price

of EUR 59.40 and sold 258903 treasury shares at an average share price of EUR 60.50 At

31 December 2008 BNP Paribas SA owned 161851 treasury shares representing total value of

EUR million under the market-making agreement

524208 BNP Paribas shares were given to employees as share awards between January 2008 and

31 December 2008 including 610 shares that were awarded early

On October 2008 BNP Paribas used 3646292 treasury shares in share swap transaction to

finance an acquisition

BN PARIBAS Consolidated fmancial statements at 31 December 2008

In addition BNP Paribas subsidiary involved in market index trading and arbitrage activities short

sells shares issued by BNP Paribas SA in the scope of its activities

At 31 December 2008 the Group held 3998016 BNP Paribas shares representing an amount of

EUR 301 million deducted from shareholders equity in the balance sheet

Proprietary transactions Trading account transactions Total

Carrng amount Carryng amount Carryng amount

Numberof Numberof Numberof

in millibnsof millions of millions of

shares shares shares

euros subs euros

19245.508 1292 5966401 494 25211909 1786

kquisihons 26776958 2223 26776958 2223

Reduction in share
capital 32111135 2428 32111135 2428

Sharesdeliueredtoemployees 6971945 568 6971945 568

Othermovements 2196728 111 6129863 505 3933135 394

Shares held at 31 December 2007 9136114 630 163462 11 8972652 619

kquisiions 1304072 91 1304072 91

Shares delivered to employees 802472 54 802472 54

Shares deliveryfor Banco BGN purchase 3646292 288 3646292 288

Othermovements 542574 34 1287370 33 1829944 67

Shares held at3l December2008 5448848 345 1450832 44 3998016 301
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Preferred shares and Undated Super Subordinated Notes TSSDI

Preferred shares issued by the Groups foreign subsidiaries

In December 1997 BNP US Funding LLC subsidiary under the exclusive control of the Group made
USD 500 million issue of undated non-cumulative preferred shares governed by the laws of the United

States which did not dilute BNP Paribas ordinary shares The shares paid fixed rate dividend for

period of ten years Thereafter the shares were redeemable at par at the issuers discretion at the end of

each calendar quarter with unredeemed shares paying Libor-indexed dividend The issuer had the

option of not paying dividends on these preferred shares if no dividends were paid on BNP Paribas SA

ordinary shares and no coupons were paid on preferred share equivalents Undated Super
Subordinated Notes in the previous year Unpaid dividends were not carried forward The preferred

shares were redeemed by the issuer in December 2007 at the end of the contractual ten-year period

In October 2000 USD 500 million undated non-cumulative preferred share issue was carried out by
BNP Paribas Capital Trust subsidiary under the exclusive control of the Group These shares pay
fixed rate dividend for period of ten years Thereafter the shares are redeemable at par at the issuers

discretion at the end of each calendar quarter with unredeemed shares paying Libor-indexed

dividend

In October 2001 EUR 500 million undated non-cumulative preferred share issue was carried out

through subsidiary under the exclusive control of the Group BNP Paribas Capital Trust III Shares in

the issue pay fixed rate dividend for period of ten years The shares are redeemable at the issuers

discretion after ten-year period and thereafter at each coupon date with unredeemed shares paying

Euribor-indexed dividend

In January and June 2002 two undated non-cumulative preferred share issues of EUR 660 million

and USD 650 million respectively were carried out by two subsidiaries under the exclusive control of

the Group BNP Paribas Capital Trust IV and Shares in the first issue pay fixed rate annual

dividend over ten years and shares in the second issue paid fixed rate quarterly dividend over five

years Shares in the first issue are redeemable at the issuers discretion after ten-year period and

thereafter at each coupon date with unredeemed shares paying Euribor-indexed dividend Shares in

the second issue were redeemed by the issuer in June 2007 at the end of the contractual five-year

period

In January 2003 non-cumulative preferred share issue of EUR 700 million was carried out by

BNP Paribas Capital Trust VI subsidiary under the exclusive control of the Group The shares pay an

annual fixed rate dividend They are redeemable at the end of 10-year period and thereafter at each

coupon date Shares not redeemed in 2013 will pay Euribor-indexed quarterly dividend

In 2003 and 2004 the LaSer-Cofinoga sub-group which is proportionately consolidated by

BNP Paribas carried out three issues of undated non-voting preferred shares through special purpose

entities governed by UK law and exclusively controlled by the LaSer-Cofinoga sub-group These shares

pay non-cumulative preferred dividend for ten-year period at fixed rate for those issued in 2003

and an indexed rate for the 2004 issue After this ten-year period they will be redeemable at par at the

issuers discretion at the end of each quarter on the coupon date and the dividend payable on the 2003

issue will become Euribor-indexed
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Before application of the proportionate consolidation rate

TEC 10 is the daily long-term government bond index corresponding to the yield-to-maturity of

fictitious 10-year Treasury note

The proceeds of these issues are recorded under Minority interests in the balance sheet and the

dividends are reported under Minority interests in the profit and loss account

At 31 December 2008 the BNP Paribas Group held 60 million preferred shares deducted from minority

interests

Undated Super Subordinated Notes issued by BNP Paribas SA

From 2005 to 2008 BNP Paribas SA carried out fifteen issues of Undated Super Subordinated Notes

representing total amount of EUR 10543 million The notes pay fixed rate coupon and are

redeemable at the end of fixed period and thereafter at each coupon date Some of these issues will

pay coupon indexed to Euribor or Libor if the notes are not redeemed at the end of this period

The last of these issues which was made in December 2008 was taken up by the SociØtØ de Prise de

Participation de lEtat company created to issue debt securities guaranteed by the French State The

proceeds of the issues are used to subscribe for securities issued by credit institutions which

constitute Tier One regulatory capital The notes pay coupon plus redemption premium of 1% from

the first anniversary of the issue date then an additional 2% year from the second to the fifth

anniversary and 11% from the sixth anniversary

The table below sets out the characteristics of these various issues

BNP PARIBAS

Issuer Date of issue

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Rate and term before 1st call

Rate after 1st call date

date

BNPP Capital Trust October 2000 USD 500 million 9.003% 10 years 3-month Libor 3.26%

BNPP Capital Trust III October 2001 EUR 500 million 6.625% 10
years

3-month Euribor 2.6%

BNPP Capital Trust IV January2002 EUR 660 million 6.342% 10
years

3-month Euribor 2.33%

BNPP Capital Trust VI January2003 EUR 700 million 5.868% 10 years 3-month Euribor 2.48%

Cofnoga Funding LP March 2003 EUR 100 million 6.820% 10
years

3-month Euribor 3.75%

Cofinoga Funding II LP Januaryand May2004 EUR 80 million TEC 10 1.35% 10
years

TEC 10 1.35%

Date of issue Currency

Rate and term before 1st call

Rate after 1st call date

date

June 2005 USD 1350 million semi-annual 5.186% 10
years

USD 3-month Libor 1.660%

October2005 EUR 1000rnillion annual 4.875% 6years 4.875%

October2005 USD 400 million annual 6.250% years 6.250%

phl 2006 EUR 750 million annual 4.730% 10 years 3-month Euribor 1.690%

AphI 2006 GBP 450 million annual 5.945% 10 years GBP 3-month Libor 1.130%

July2006 EUR 150 million annual 5.450% 20
years

3-month Euribor 1.920%

July2006 GBP 325 million annual 5.945% 10
years

GBP 3-month Libor 1.810%

April2007 EUR 750 million annual 5.019% 10
years

3-month Euribor 1.720%

June 2007 USD 600 million quarterly 6.500% years
6.50%

June 2007 USD 1100 million semi-annual 7.195% 30
years

USD 3-month Libor 1.290%

October 2007 GBP 200 million annual 7.436% 10
years

GBP 3-month Libor 1.850%

June 2008 EUR 500 million annual 7.781% 10
years

3-month Euribor 3.750%

September 2008 EUR 650 million annual 8.667%
years

3-month Euribor 4.050%

September2008 EUR 100 million annual 7.570% 10 years
3-month Euribor3.925%

December2008 EUR 2550 million annual 7.750% Syears 3-month Euribor4.550%
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BNP Paribas has the option of not paying interest due on these Undated Super Subordinated Notes if no

dividends were paid on BNP Paribas SA ordinary shares or on preferred shares in the previous year

Unpaid interest is not carried forward

The contracts relating to these Undated Super Subordinated Notes contain loss absorption clause

Under the terms of this clause in the event of insufficient regulatory capital which is not fully offset

by capital increase or any other equivalent measure the nominal value of the notes may be reduced

in order to serve as new basis for the calculation of the related coupons until the capital deficiency is

made up and the nominal value of the notes is increased to its original amount However in the event

of the liquidation of BNP Paribas the amount due to the holders of these notes will represent their

original nominal value irrespective of whether or not their nominal value has been reduced

The proceeds raised by these issues are recorded in equity under Retained earnings In accordance

with lAS 21 issues denominated in foreign currencies are recognised at their historical value based on

their translation into euros at the issue date Interest on the instruments is treated in the same way as

dividends

At 31 December 2008 the BNP Paribas Group held EUR 22 million of Undated Super Subordinated

Notes which were deducted from shareholders equity

Earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share corresponds to net income for the year divided by the weighted average

number of shares outstanding as adjusted for the maximum effect of the conversion of dilutive equity

instruments into ordinary shares In-the-money stock subscription options are taken into account in

the diluted earnings per share calculation as are share awards made under the Global Share-based

Incentive Plan Conversion of these instruments would have no effect on the net income figure used in

this calculation

Yearto3l Dec.2008 Ylaf to Dic 2007

Net income used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share in millions of euros 2762 7629

Weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year
899245437 898407216

Effect of poteniallydilutive ordinaryshares
381 3197 7629130

Weighted average number of ordinary shares used to calculate diluted earnings per share

Basic earnings per share in euros
3.07 8.49

Diluted earnings per
share in euros

3.06 8.42

903058634 906036346

Net income used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share is net income per the profit and loss

account adjusted for the remuneration on the Undated Super Subordinated Notes issued by BNP Paribas SA

qualified as preferred share equivalents which for accounting purposes is treated as dividends

dividend of EUR 3.35 per share was paid in 2008 out of 2007 net income compared with dividend

EUR 3.10 per share paid in 2007 out of 2006 net income
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8.b ScoPE OF CONSOLIDATION

Name Country Method
Crony votmg Group ownership

intereet lIla hdamnt lt

Consolidating company

BNP Paribas SA France Full 100.00% 100.000

French Retail Banking

Banquede Bretagne France Full
100.00% 100 000

BNP Paribas Developpement SA France Full 100.00% 100.0001

BNP Paribas Factor France Full 100.00% 100.0001

Compagnie pour Fieancementdes Loisirs Cn8lnisirs France Equity 33.33% 33.3301

Retail Banking -Italy BNL Bsnca Commerciate

ArUgiancassa SPA
tuly Pu 73.86% 73.860

Arbgiansoa Org Ia Attestazinne SPA tay Equity 12 80.00% 59.080

Banca Nazinnale de Launrn SPA lay

BNL Broker Assicurazinor SPA
taly

Full 100.00% 1000001

BNL Direct Sernices SPA taly

BNLEdizioniSRL taly Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

BNL Finance SPA sly Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNL Partecipazinni SPA
taly

Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNL PnsilvitySRL lay Full 51.00% 51.00%

Banca Niazinra del Lavoro SPA es BNL Progenn SPA laly
Full 100 00% 100.00%

Creaimpresa SPA Groape lay Equity 12 7690% 56.80%

EIepSPA lay

International Factors Italia SPA If talia lay Fu 99.64% 99.64%

Serfactoring SPA
laly Equity 27.00% 26.94%

ipecial Purpose Entities

Vela ABS taly Pull

Vela Home SRL
taly

Pull

Vela Pubic Sector SRL
taly

Full

ritornational Retail Services

Retail Banking in United States of America

1897 Services Corporation U.S.A FuIt 100.00% 100.00%

AmerUS Leasing Incerporated U.S.A Pull 100.00% 100.00%

BarcWest Corporation Fall 100.00% 100.00%

Bancwest Inuesbrneot Semnices Incerporated U.S Fat 100.00% 100.00%

Bank of the West Businece Park Association LLC Fu 38.00% 38.00%

Bank of the West Full 100.00% 100.00%

Bishop Street Capital Management Corporation U.S.A Full 100.00% ISO 00%

NW Insurance Agency Incerpnrated U.S.A Full 100.00% 100.00%

BW Leasing Incorporated U.S.A Full 100.00% 100 00%

Center Club Incorporated U.S.A FuLl 100.00% 100 00%

CFB Community Dove opment Corporation Fall 100.00% 100 00%

Claas Financial Services LLC U.S.A Fall 100.00% 80.45%

Commercial Federal Affordsbe Housing Incorporated S.A Fu 10000% 100.00%

Commercial Federal Community Dove opmert Corporation U.S Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Commercial Federal Insurance Corporation S.A Full 100.00% 100.00%

Commercial Federal Investments Services Incorporated U.S.A Pull 100.00% 100.00%

Commercia Federal Realty Investors Corporation U.S.A Full
180.00% 100.00%

Commercia Federal Semmce Corporation S.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Community Fimt Home Moogage U.S.A

Community Fimt Insurance Incerporated U.S.A Full 100.00% 100 00%

French subsidiaries wlmsse regulatory superumsun false the the sonye of the oonsnlidated Group aonsrdanoe asS uranle of CRoP
mesulatinn

200003

Monements for months to 30 June 2007

Monements for months 1831 December 2007

MovementS for months 1030 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition

2- Entity newly incorporated or passing qua ifying threshold

3-Disposal

4- Deconsolidation

Merger between consolidated entitieo

Change of method Proportionate method to ful conso idation

Change of method Full conso idation to equity method

Chanae of method Eauttn method to full consolidation

Change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

Reconsolidation

02- Entities conoolidated using simplified equity method non-material

13- Buoineso transfers due to the creation of Italian retail banking segment

14- Entities eocluded from prudential scope of consolidation

15- Entitos consolidated under the equity method for prudentia purpose
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Name Country Method
Group voting Group OWnersha

Interest 1151 tnfere 1151

Retail Banking in United States of America contd

Community Service Incorporated U.S.A
Full 100.00% 100.00%

Contractors Insurance Services U.S.A

Equity Lending Incorporated U.S.A Full 100.00% 100.00%

Essex Credit Corpuraton S.A Full 1US.0S% 100.00%

FHL Lease Holding Company Incorporated S.A FyI 100.00% 100.00%

FHL SPC One Incorporated U.S.A
Full 100.00% 100.00%

Firat Baocerp Full 100.00% 100.00%

First Hawaian Bank U.S.A Full 100.00% 100.00%

First Hawaiian Leasing Incorporated S.A Full 100 00% 100.00%

First Nationa Bancorp Incorporaled S.A

First Natonal Bancurpuraton U.S.A Full tOO 00% 100.00%

First Santa Clara Corporahon U.S.A Full 10000% 100.00%

First Savings InvesSnent Corporation U.S.A

HUC Aviahon LLC U.S.A

KIC Technolngyl Incorporated U.S.A Full 100.00% 100.00%

610 Technology2 Incorporated U.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

SiC Technology3 Incorporated
U.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Liberty Leasing Company U.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Mountain Fa Acquisi000 U.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Nabity Perry Insurance Incorporated U.S.A

ORE Incorporated U.S.A

Roeborough Acquisihon Corporation U.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

St Paul Agency Incorporated U.S.A

The Bankers ub Incorporated U.S.A Fa 100.U0% 100.00%

The Voyager HR Group U.S.A

Ursus Real estate inc U.S.A Fall 100.00% 100.00%

Special Purpuee Entities

CFB Capitol U.S.A Full

CFB Capita S.A Futi

Commercial Federal Capita Trust U.S.A Putt

Commercial Federal Capita Trust U.S.A Fat

Commercial Federal Capita Trust U.S.A Full

C-One Leasing LLC U.S.A Fall

First Hawaiian Capita U.S.A Fall

BNP Paribas Persenat Finance

Ass Baoque Firancement France Equity 35.00% 35.00%

Bunco BGN SA Brazil Full 100 00% 100.00%

Bunco Cetetem Argentina Argentina 11 Full 60.00% 60.00%

Bunco Cetelem Portugu Portugal Full 100.00% 100.00%

Sense Cetelem SA Spain Full 100.00% 100.00%

BGN Holding Financeiru Limituda Brazil Full 100.00% 100.00%

Bieffe SPA sly Equity 12 100.00% 50.00%

BNP Paribas Inoest Immo France

BNF Paribas Persona Finance as Cete em France Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Personal Finance AED eo JetFinuece Intemahonal Bulgaria Fall 100.00% 100.00%

8NF Paribas Persona Finance Belgium lea Cete em Belgium Belgium Fu 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Personal Finance SA de CV leo Cetelem Manse SA de CV Mexico Pal 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Puribus Personal Finance SPA en Barca UCB SPA Italy
Full tUO.00% tSO.SS%

Candour Administrahon Cartos de Creditos CACC Brazi Equity 40.00% 40.00%

Celelem Algeria Algeria Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Cetelem America Bnozi Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Cetelem Asia Hong-Kong Ful 100.00% 100.00%

Cetelem Bank 5th Pound Full 100.00% 100.00%

Cetelem Benelas BV Netherlands Full 100.00% 100.00%

Frennh subsid ares whose mgulatory supervision Pals within the sospe of the oonsoliduted Group a000rdanne wth artnlev let CRBF reguleton 2000.03

Mueemeota forE months to 30 June 2007

IB Movementa forE months to 31 December 2007

Monementa for months to 30 JUne 2008

Monemeotg or muotha 1031 December 2008

Acquisition 9- Change of method FU conog idatos to proportionate method

2- Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold 10- Change
of method Equity method to proportiongte method

3- Disposal
11 Recoosolidation

4- Deconsolidatios 12- Eotities consolidated using simplified equity method non-materia

Merger between consolidated entities 13- Business tronafers due to the creatIon of Italian retail baokisg aegment

Change
of method Proportiooate method to full consolidation 14- Entitiea excluded from prudential scope of cuosolidation

Change
of method Full conaulidatios to equity method f5 Eotitea cuosoliduted ueder the equity method fur prudential purpose

Change of method Equity method to full consolIdation
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Name Country Method
Group voting Groupownership

intce t% st
BNP Paribas Personal Rnance contd

CeteLem BrØsil Brazi Full 100.00% 100 C0

Cetelem Ho ding Farticipaçoes Limitada 8razi Full
10000% 100.OOi

Cetelem CR Czech Repub ic Full
10000% 100.00

Cetelem IFN SA Romania Full 100 00% 100.0O%

Ceteem Maroc Morocco Full 99.86% 93.179

Ceteem Poiska Expansion SA Poland Full 100.00% 100.00

CeteLem Processing Services Shanghai Limited China Fu 100 00% 100.00i

Cetelem Serviços Umitada Brazi Equity 12 100.00% 100.00

Cetelem Slovensko ovakia Fu 100.00% 100.0Oi

Cetelem Thai ande Thailand Fu 100.00% 100.009

Cetelem UK UK FUll 100.00% 100.00

Cofica Bail France FuD W0.00% 100.00

Cofidis France France

Cofiparc SNC France Full 10000% 100.00%

Compagnie Medica de financenient de Voitures et materie CMV MØdiforce France Full 100 00% 100.00%

Credial Ita le SPA tay Prop 50.00% 50.00%

Credirama SPA tay 10 Prop 5100% 25.50%

Credisson Ho ding Limited Cyprus Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Credit Moderne Antilles Guyane France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Credit Moderne Guyane France

Credit Moderne Ocean Indien France Full 97.81% 97.81%

Direct Services Bulgaria Full 100.00% 100.00%

Dresdner-Cetelem Kredithank Germany Full 50.10% 50.10%

Effico Iberia Spain Full
100 00% 100.00%

Effico Parcipation SA France

Effico Portugal Portugal Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Effico Soreco France FuLl 99.96% 99.96%

Eurocredito Spair Full 100.00% 100.00%

Facet France Full 100.00% 100 00%

Fidem France Full 51.00% 51 00%

Fidexis Belgium Full 100.00% 100 00%

Fimesc Expansion SA Spain Full 100.00% 100 00%

Findoniestic tay Prop 50.00% 50.00%

Fndomesc Banka a.d Serbia 10 Prop 50.00/0 5C.00%

Findomesc Leasing SPA Itay 12

KBC Pinto Systems BeLgium Equity 3999% 39.99%

LaSer Cofinoga Groupe France Prop 50.00% 50.00%

Loisirs Finance France Full 51.00% 51 .00%

Magyar Cetelem Hungary Full 100.00% 100 00%

Meer Regroupement de Credits France

Monabank France Equity 34.00% 34.00%

Nathis Financement France Equity 33.00% 33.00%

Norrsken Finance France Full 51 .00% 51 .00%

Novacredit France

Prestacomer SAde CV Mexico Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Projeo France FuL 5100% 51 .00%

SA Domofinance France Prop 55.00% 55.00%

SAS PrØtset Services France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Servidos Financieros Carrefour EFC Spain Equity 44.08% 40.00%

Societe de Paiement Pass France Equity 40.01% 40.0 1%

Submarino Finance Promotora de Credito Limitada Brazd Prop 50.00% 50.00%

Sundaram Home Finance Limited India 10 Prop 4990% 49.90%

UCB France

UCB Hypotheken Netherlands Fu 100 00% 10O.00

UCB lngaanhitel RT Hungary Full
100.00% 100.00%

UC Suisse Switzerland Full 100.00% 100.00%

Frrch bsdierie whose regltory supervs or fOIls withir the scope of the consolLdted Group coordrce with rIicle 41 ef CRBF regutaIio 200003

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movements for months to 30 June 2008

CD Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition

Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold

Disposal

Deconsolidation

Merger between consodated entities

6- Change of method Proportionate method to fu conso idation

7- Change of method Fu consolidation to equity method

Cfianae of method Eauitv method to ful consolidation

9- Change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

10- Change of method Equity methoi to proportionate method

II ReconsoUdation

12- Entities consolidated using sirnp ffied equity method non-material

13- Business transfers due to the creation of Italian retail banking segment

14 Entities excluded from prudentia scope of consolidation

15- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudentia purpose
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Name Countey Method
Groupvoting Group ownership

hntenest t%t hdenOt l%t

BNP Paribas Personal Finance centd

Union de Creditos Immobiliatios 001 Groupe Spain Prop 50.00% 50.00%

Debt Investment Fund

FCC Master Dolphin 1% Prop

FCC Retail ABS Finance Noria 2005 France Foil t4

FCC Retail ABS Finance Nonia 2008 France Foil

European Mortgage Finance IT-2005-1 SRL
Italy

Full

FCC Domos 2003 France

FCC Domos 2008 France Ful

FCC Master Domos France
Foil

FCC Master Domos France

FCC Master Domos France Foil

FCC 0.0.1 t8 Spain Prop

FCC C.l 4-t4 Spain Prop

FCC U.C.l 10-17 Spain Prop 14

UCB Service ORL
Italy Full

Equipment Sslutinns

AlbutyAssetRentas Limited UK Foil tOO 00% tOO.Ot%

All In One Allemagne Germany Full too 00% tOO 00%

All in One Vermietung GmbH Austria Full tOO 00% tOO.OS%

Antic Bail France Full tOO 00% tOO.00%

Aprn is Finance France Full 51 00% St 00%

Anion SA France Full too.ootu too oos

ArtegyLimitert UK
Full 100.00% tOO.0O%

AntegySAS France Full tOO.0O/o 100.00%

Anval Austria GmbH Austria Full 100.50% 100.000

Atval Belgium Belgium Full 100.00% 100.00%

Arval Beneleux 5V lee Arma Behner By Nether ands Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Arval Brusil Limitada Bnazi Equity t2 100.00% 100.00%

Anna Business Services Limited UK FyI 500.00% 100.00%

Pvva BV Netherlands Full 100.00% 100.00%

Arval Deutschland GmbH Germany Fall 100.00% 100.00%

Arval OCL SAS France
Full tOO.O0% 100.00%

Annul Hellas Car Renta SA Greece Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Arval India Private Limited ndia Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Arval Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

Anna Luuembnurg Luxembourg Full 100.00% 100.00%

Anna Marnc Morocco Equity t2 88.73% 88.735

Area NV Belgium Full 100.00% 100.005

Anna PHP Ho ding SAS France Full 100.00% 100.0001

Ama PH8 Ho dings Limfted UK Full 100.00% 100.0051

Anna PHH Hodings UK Limfted UK Full 100.00% 100.0051

Annul PHIl Service Lease CZ Czech Republic Full 100.00% 100.5011

ArvuL Portugal Portugal Full 100.00% 100.0051

AmaI Russia Russiu Equity 12 100.00% 100.0011

Annul Schweiz AG Switzerland Full 100.00% 100.0011

Anna Service Lease France Full 100.00% 100.0001

Anna Service Lease Espugne Spain Full 99.59% 59.595

Arval Service Lease Italia taly Full 100.00% 100.005

Arval Service Lease Pslska SF Found Full 100.00% 100.0001

Annul Service Lease Rumania SRL Rumania Equity 12 100.00% 100.0001

Annul Slovukia Sluuakiu Equity 12 100.00% 100.005

Annul trading
France Ful 100.00% 100.005

Annul OK Group Limited UK Pal 100.00% 100.005

Fmroh subsidiaries elrose reoulutsry superurs onto Is wilh the nonpe or the oorsnlidatnd Group in unonrdurne sill erurtn 4.1 of CRBF reoulusor 200000

Movements for months to 30 June2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movemegts tot months to 30 June 2008

ID Movements ton months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition

Entity newly incorporated or paosing qualifying threshold

Disprussl

Deconsolidatiort

Merger between consolidated entitietr

Change of method Proportionate method tofu cogoolidation

Change of method Full consolidation to equity method

Chunnre of metNod Eaoitv method to toll cones idation

Change of method Full consolidstios to proportissots method

10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

It Reconsolidution

12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method non-material

13 Business trunsfers due to the creation of Italian retail basking segment

14 Entities escloded from prudentia scope of conso idatios

15 Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential porpose

141



BNP PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

heoiest l%1 kduront l%l

Equipment Solutions contd

Arual UK Limited UK Full 10000% 100000

Ban oword Hetlruck BV Netherlands Equity 50.00% 50.005

BNP Paribas Fleet Holdings Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00f

5NP Paribas Lease GruuF France Full
150 UU% 100.005

BNP Padbas Lease Group NV Netherlands Full 100.00% 100.000

BNP Paribas Lease Group GmbH 00KG Austria Full 100.00% 100.005

BNP Paribas Lease Group Holding SPA
taly

BNP Paribas Lease Group KFT Haegary Full 100.00% 100.005

5SF Paribas Lease Group Netherlands 8V Nether ands Fu 100.00% 105.00ff

BNP Paribas Lease Group Pelska SP z.o Pu and Full 100.00% 100 00f

BNP Paribas Lease Group NT Hungary Full 100.00% 100 00ff

BNP Paribas Lease Gruap SA Belgium Belgism Full 100.00% 100 000

8SF Psabas Lease Group SPA
taly

8SF Paribas Lease Group SPA lee Lecaft SPA taly
13 Pu 100.00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Lease Group UK PLC UK Ful 100.00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Learing Gmbh Germany Full 100.00% 100.00%

Bureau Services Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

Censu Leasing SPA
taty

Cloas Fieancal Semices France Ful 60.11% 60.11%

Claas Financia Sersices Incorporated U.S.A Fu 100.00% 60.11%

Caas Financia Sersices Limited UK Full 51.00% 51 .00%

Claas Leasing Gmbh Germany Full 100.00% 6011%

05ff Capital Europe France Full 50.10% SO 10%

CNH Capita Europe Limited UK Full 100.00% 50 15%

Cofiplan France Pull 99.894 99.99%

Commercial Vehicle Finance Limited UK Full 105.00% 100.00%

Csspeiteasing SPA
Italy

13

Desia Location Loegue Durrie France Equity 12 51.00% 51 .00%

Dialcard Fleet Information Services Limited UK Fal 100.00% 100.00%

Dialcard Limited UK

Diamond Finance UK Limited UK Fir 60.00% 65.00%

Equipment Lease BV Netherlands Full 180.00% 100.00%

Gestion et Location Ho ding France Fall 100.00% 100.00%

Greenua Insurance Company Lrmited Ireland Fall 15 100.00% 100 00%

H.F.G.L Limited UK Full
100.00% 100.00%

Harpur UK Limited UK Full
100.00% 100.00%

Humberclyde Commercial InvesSinenls Limited UK Pull 10S.0S/ 108.00%

Humberclyde Commercial Investments Limited UK Full 105.00% 100.00%

Humberclydn Commercial Invessments Ni Limited UK Fall 100.00% 100.00%

Hsmbercyde Finance Limited UK Fs lOU 00% 100.00%

Hsmber4yde Industrial Finance Limited UK Fu 100 00% 100.00%

Humbercyde Inues3nents Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

JOB Finance France Full 100.00% 50.10%

JOB Finance Holdings Limited UK Pull 50.10% 50.1 0%

Leasecu IntemaSonal BV Netherlands Full 1OU.OU% 100.00%

Locatnice Italians SPA lay 13 Full
100.00% 100.00%

Lecatdce Stnumentale SRL lay 13

Manitou Finance Limited UK Full 5100% 51.00%

Natiobail Francn Ful 100.00% 150.00%

Natiecrridibai France Pu 100.00% 100.00%

Natiscrbdimurs France Full 100.00% 100.00%

NatisØnergie France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Overdriue Business Ssluhons Limited UK Full tSO.U0% 100.00%

Oserdeve Credit Card Limited UK Full 100.00% 100 00%

Faricumi France Full 100.00% tOO 00%

FHH Finandal semions Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

French subsid aries wtrsse regulatory sutreras on falls within the scope ef the senselidated Greup aceerdaeee with adele et cRBF regulaaee 200003

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

tB Movements for months to 3f December 2007

IC Movements for months 1030 June 2008

ID Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition 9- Change of method Full conso idation to proportionate method

2- Entity newly incorporated or passing quslifying threshold 10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

3- Disposal 11 ReconBoltdatlon

Decosoolidalion 12- Entities conso idated using simplified equity method Non-material

5- Merger between cossolidated entities 13- Business transfers due to the creatios of Italian retail banking segment

Change of method Proportionate method to fall consolidation 14- Entities eocluded from prudential scope of consolidation

Change of method Full consolidation to equity method 15 Enrites conoolidBted under the equity method for prudentia purpose

8- Change of method Equity method to full consolidation
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Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

Interest 6/.t hiterest t%t

Equipment Solutions contd

PCH Holdings 1999 Limited UK
Full 100 00% 10000%

PHH Investment Services Limited UK Put 100.00/0 100 00%

PHH Leasing N05 Limited UK Fu 100.00% 100.00%

PHH Treasury Services Limited UK Fu 100.00% 100.00%

PHH Tnjck Management Services Limited UK
Full 100.00% 100.00%

Pointeurs Limited UK
Full 100.00% 100.00%

Same Deula Fahr Finance Limited UK
Full tOO 00% 11111 00%

Same DeaU-Pahr Finance France
Full 100.00% 100.00%

SAS MFF
France Full 51.00% 51.00%

SREI Equipnment Finance Private Limitrd India
Prop 50.00% 50.00%

The Harpur Group UK Limited UK Ful 100.00% 100.00%

UFB Asset Finance Limited UK
Full 100.00% 100.00%

United Care Cheshire Limited UK
Full 100.00% 100.00%

United Care Grnup Limited UK
Full 100.00% 100.00%

tpecial Purpose Entities

Funds de lnseshmento EM Direitos Creditorios BUN Life arazi
Full

Fundo de Inueshmento EM Direitos Creditorios BUN Premium Brazi
Full

Vera Lease SRL lay 13 Full

Emerging nrartnets

Banque de Nankin es Nanjing City Commercial Bank Corp Limited China Equity 12.61% 12.6101

Banque de Watlis et Futuea France 11 Full 50.96% 50.9891

Banque du Sahara LSC Libya Full 19.00% 19.0094

Banque lntemabonale du Commerce et do Industrie Burkina Fusu Burhina Fuso Full 51 00% 51 .00A

Banque Internahonale du Commerce 01 do Industrie Cote dIoniro
vory Coast

Full 59.79% 59.79%

Banquo lntemabnnale du Commerce nt do Industrie Gubon Gabon
Full 46.67% 46.6701

Banque InternaBonale du Commerce et de llndustrie Guinrie Guinea
Equity 30.83% 30.83%

Banque lntemahnnalo du Cnmmerce et del tndustrre Mali Mali Full 8500% 85.0001

Banque Intereasonale du Commerce et do Industrie Senegal Senegal Full 5411% 54.1101

Banquo Malgache do lOoean Indien
Madagascar Full 75.00% 750004

Banque Marocaino du Commerce et de Industrie Morocco
Full 6621% 66.2101

Banque Marocaine do Commerce et de Indoshie Crridil Conso Morocco
Full 100.00% 79.42%

Banque Marocaine do Commerce 01 do lndosbie Gestion Morocco Equity 12 100.00% 662111

Baeqoe Marocaine do Commerce ci do tndostrie Leasing Morocco Fall 72.03% 47 69A

Banque Marocaine du Commerce 01 do llndostrie Offshore Morocco Full 100.00% 662101

Banque poor le Commerce 01 llndustrie de Mer Rouge Dibooti

BNP letercondnentale BNPI France
FoIl 100.00% 1000001

BNP Paribas BOUt Panticipatons France
Full 100.00% 100.0011

BNP Paribas Cyprus Limited Cyprus Full 100.00% 100.0001

BNP Paribas El Dazair Ageria Fu 100.00% 100.0001

BNP Paribas Goadeloupe France Pu 100.00% 100.0001

BNP Paribas Goyane France Fu 100.00% 100.0001

BNP Paribas Le Cairo Egypt Pu 95.19% 95.19A

BNF Paribas Martinique France Fu 100.00% 100.0004

BNF Paribas Mauritanie Mauritania Equity 12 59.99% 599901

BNF Paribas N000elle Caledonie France Pu 100.00% 100.U0A

BNP Paribas Reunion France Pu 100.00% 100.00A

BNP Paribas Vostok Holdings France

BNP Paribas Vostok LLC Rassia Pu 100.00% 100.00%

SIFIDA Lusembourg

TEn Mali Yatirimlar Anonim Sirkef Groupe Turkey Prop 50.00% 50.00%

Ukrainian Insurance /iJ iance Ukraine
Equity 12 50.00% 25.50%

Ukrainian Leasing Company Ukraine Equity 12 100.00% 51 .00%

Ukrsib Asset Management Ukraine Equity 12 99.54% 50.97%

Ukrsib Asset Managemont Pt Pond Ukraine Equity 12 99.94% 50.97%

Frrnoh sobsidades whose ragolarory sopervu sets Is with the uoepe or the consolidated Group in a000rdanoe silh alace 4.r or 0ROF
regolarion

2000.03

At Movements ten months to 30

B.M9nements Inn months to 31 December 2007

Mooements for months to 30 June 2088

Movements for montho 31 December 2008

Acquisition

Entity newly incorpurated or passing qoaltfyieg threshold

Disposal

Dec000slidatioE

Merger between consolidated entities

Change of method Proportionate method to full cunso idation

Change of method Full consolidation to equity method

Chance of method Eaoitn method to full consolicution

9- Change of method Full conso idatinn to proportionate method

10- Change of method Equity method to propsrtinnate method

11 Reconso idation

12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method non-material

13- Business transfers duets the creation of Italian retail banking oegment

14- Entities encluded from prudential scope
of consolidation

15- Entiteo consolidated under the equity method for pnodential porpoae

143



BNP PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

French suboidiares whose regulatory supervision falls withr the scope of the mnsol.dated Groap in accordance seth ethnic of
CReF

regulat or 2000 03

Emerging markets conEd

UkoSibbank

Union Bancaire pour le Commence et Ii nduslrie

Union Bancake
pour

Is Commerce et rindustnie Leosing

Veskc

Name Countsy Method
Group voting Group owgernhip

intme8tt%k

Ukraine

Tunisia

Tunisia

Ukraine

Full

Full

Full

Equity 12

51.00%

50.00%

75.40%

49.63%

51.0091

50 UUA

37 7U94

25.3194

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movements for moeths to3O June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December .2008

Acquisition

Entity new incorporated or passing qua tying threshold

Disposal

Decoeaolidalion

Merger between consolidated estities

Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidatiog

7- Change of method Full consolidatiox tn equity method

8- Chanse of method Ernritc method to 5.11 consslinlatioe

Change of method Full consolidation to pnspsrtioeate method

10- Chsnge of method Equity method to proportionate method

11 Reconsolidation

12- Evtities consolidated using simp died equily method nox-materia

13 Busieeso transfers due to the creation of ltslian retail banking segment

14- Entities excluded from prudentis scope of consolidation

15- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose
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Name
Coastry Methad

Group voting Group ownership

interest interest 1%9

Asset Management Services

Insurance

Assu-Vie SA
France Equity 12 5000% 5000%

5NL Vita SPA
taly

13 Equity 4900% 4900%

SNP Paribas Assurance France

5NP Paribas Assurance ex Cardif SAl France
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

CardifAssicurazivni SPA
taly Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif Assurance Vie France Pull 15 100.00% 100.00%

Curdif Assurance Vie Poska Puand
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Candif 5iztosito Magyarorszag Hungary Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Candif Compunia de Segurus Ferns
Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Candy Cumpunia dv Seguros dv Vida Angertina 11 Fu 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif rim Brasil Seguros Brszil Pu 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif do Brasil Seguros Garantias Brazil Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

CardS Forsaking AS Sweden Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

CardifHodings Incorporation U.S.A
Full 15 99.60% 99.60%

Cardif Insurance Company Russia
Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

CardrfLnven Belgium Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif Leuensuerzekeringen NV Netherlands Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

CardS Life Insurance Company Corporuiton
Pull 15 100 00% 99.60%

CardS Mexico Seguros dv Vidu Mesicu Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif Mexico Segurns Generales SA Mesics
Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

CardifNederlund Ho ding BV Netherlands Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

CardifNordicAB Sweden Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

CurdS Pinoac Insurance Holding Limited South Africa Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardrf RD France
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif Rellaite Assurance vie France
Full 15 100 00% 100 00%

CardS Schadeverzekeringen NV Nether aods Pu 15 100.00% 100.00%

Cardiuldu Correduria de Seguros Spain Equity 12 100 00% 100.00%

Censo Vrtu Assicuraziuni SPA
Italy Prop 15 49.00% 49.00%

Closed Joint Insurance Company Ukraine Equity 12 100 00% 100.00%

Compagnie Buncuire Uk Ponds UK
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Compania de Seguros Generales Chile
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Companiu de Seguros Vida SA Chile Full 15 100.00% 100 00%

Cybele RE
Luxembourg

Damell Limited Ireland
Full iS 100.00% 100.00%

Direct Life Pensions Services DLPS UK
Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

European Reinsunance Limited UK Ii Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Financial Telemurketing Services UK 11 Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Foods dlovestssemert Immobi mr pour lx Commerce ella Dissibubon Fondis France Prop 15 25.00% 25.00%

DIE BNF Paribas Assurance France
Full 15 100.00% 99.00%

Global Euro France
Full 15 99.89% 99.73%

Investgfe Lueemboung SA Luoembourg Pull iS 100.00% 100.00%

Luizaseg Brazil Equity 12 50.00% 50.00%

NuUo Assurance France Prop 15 50.00% 50.00%

Natio Fords Atheres trvestissement France
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Nate Fords Collines Invesitssemert France
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Nulls Fords Collines Iruestssement Prance Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

NCVP Participacoes SA Brazi Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Pufrimoine Management AssociØs France
Full 15 61.50% 61.50%

Pinnade Insurance Holding PLC UK
Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Pineude Insurance Management Services PLC UK
Pull iS 100.00% 100.00%

Pineade Insurance PLC UK Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Picnutncu Insurance Company Limited South Africa Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Pinnafnica Insurance Life Limited South Africa Equity 12 100.00/0 100.00%

Freroh subs dares whose regu army supervision fal swirbin the scope of the nnnsoliduled Oroup in accordance arE artcle4 5106SF resulatirn 2000.03

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movements for months 1030 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition 0- Change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

2- Entity newly rncorporated or passing qualifying threshold 10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

3- Disposal 11 Reconoolidation

Deconsoitdation 12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method non-material

5- Merger between consolidated entities 13- Business transfers doe to the creatios of Italian retail bunking segment

Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidation 14- Entities eocluded from prudentia scope of consolidation

Chuoge of method Full consolidation to equity method 15- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose

Change of method Equity method to full conso idation
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Name Country Method
VOtifl Group ownership

keqot 1161 interest 1161

Insurance conEd

Pnczty ion Arka Pnwszechne en Pnczta Poiska Cardif kka SA Pu and 11 Equity 33.33% 33.33%

Pojistouma Cardif Fin Vita Czech Republic Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Pojistuvna Cardif Slnvakia A.S Slnvakia 11 Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

SARL Carma Grand Hnriznn France Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

SARL Reumal lnveslissemenls France Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

Rubin SARL Lunembnung Prup 15 50.00% 50.00%

SAS libernta France France Frnp 15 60.14% 60.14%

SCA Capital France Hntel France Prup 15 6014% 60.14%

SOt 104-106 rue Cambronne France Ful 15 100.00% 100.00%

S0114 rue rJivienne France Fu 15 100.00% 100 00%

00124-26 rue Durantnn France

50125 rue Abbe Cantnn France

00125 rue Gutenberg France

SCI 40 rue Abbe Grnult France

SCI 100 rue Lauriutun France Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

0016 Square Foch France Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

SCIS-lO place du Cnmmerce France Fe 15 lou.00% 100.00%

Sd Alpha Park Fnance Prop 15 50.00% 50.00%

SCI Asnieres France Pu 15 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Beausejnur France Full 15 100.00% 100 00%

SCI 5SF Paribas Piece France Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Sot Boulsuard Maesherbes France Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

SCI SouLngne Centre France Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

SCI Bnulngne Nungesoer France Full 15 100 00% 100.00%

Sot Cnrnsa France Fall 15 100 00% 100.00%

501 Cuurbeunin France Pu 15 100 00% 100.00%

SCI Defense Etuile France Pu 15 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Defense Vendume France Fu 15 100.00% 100.00%

001 Elcile France Ful 15 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Immeabe Demnurs France Full iS 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Le Chesnay France

001 Levalnis2 France Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

501 Maisuns France

Sd Malesherbes Courceleu France Full
15 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Monbnuge2 France

SCI Monbnuge France

SCI Paris Cuurs de Vincennes France Full 15 100.00% 00.00%

SCI Muussurgski France Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Sd Odysee France Ful 15 99.90% 99.90%

001 Residence In Chafe ard France

SCI rue Mederic France Ful 15 100.00% 100.00%

Sd Rueil France

501 Runil ediane France Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

Sd Runil Caudrun Prance Full 15 100.00% 100.00%

501 Saint Maurice France

SCI Suresres France

Sot Suresnes France Fal 15 100.00% 100.00%

SCI Vendnme Athenes France Prop 15 50.OOfh 50.00%

SCPI Opera Rendement France Full 15 99.12% 9912%

Shinan ci Life CnnØe South Korea Prop 15 5000% 50.00%

State Bank India Life Cy India Equity 26.00% 26.00%

Thai Cardif Insurance Life Company Limited Thailand Equity 25.00% 2500%

VaIribes France Full 15 100.00% 100 00%

Frendi subsidianes railers 55C ainD superuisien fal with Ire snepe elSe nnnsulidaled Grnup in ucnnrdanne with adce 4.1 nI CRBF regulatinn 2000.53

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movemests fur months to 31 December 2007

Movements for mosths 1030 June 2008

Dl Movements for months to 31 Decemben 2008

Acquisition

Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold

Disposal

Deconss idutton

5- Merger between consolidated entities

6- Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidation

Chasge of method Full consolidation to equity method

Change of method Equity method tofu consolidation

9- mange of method bull consclluatlon to proportIonate metsod

10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

11 Reconss idatiun

12- Entities cossolidated uoisg simplified equity method non-material

13- Busisess transfers due to the creation of Italian retail bankisg Segment

4- Entities eucluded from prudential scope of cosso idatioo

5- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose
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Name Countay Method
Group voting Group ownership

hsmua 1109 tntuenst 1101

Private Banking

Basque Privde Anuu France

Bergues Finance Holding Bahamas Full 100.00% 9999%

BNL lntemarional Luenmbuurg Laxembeurg

BNP Paribas Bahamas Limited Bahamas Fu 100.00% 99.99%

BNF Paribas Espana SA Spain Fu 99.58% 99.58%

BNP Paribas Investment Services LLC U.S
Fall 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Prisate Bank Menace Menace Full 10000% 9999%

BNP Paribas Wea th Management en BNP Paribas Privatn Bank France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Cornell Investissement France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Lauoru Bank Ag Zurign Switzerland

Nachenius Ijeenk et Ce NV Nether ands Pu 100.00% 100.00%

Snrvizie Italia SPA
Italy

Personal Innestsors

tmCapital Prance Full 99.96% 99.96%

Codal Censnrs France Prance
Full 100.00% 100.00%

Corta Connors Select Prance
Equity 12 55.00% 85.00%

FundQuest France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Genjit Financial Services Limited Grnupe India 10 Prop 27.11% 27.11%

Investment Partners

Andn Infrastructure Partnnrs es Infra Capital Inuestors France Equity 12 56.50% 56.50%

BNLFnndi Immobiliari tap 13 Full 100.00% 100.00%

5SF Paribas Asset Management France Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Management Uruguay SA Uruguay Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

ShIP Paribas Asset Management Ausfralia Limitnd Aassalia Pui 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Management Asia Hung Kong Equity 12 tUO.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Management Brasil Limitada Brazil
Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Management GmbH Gnnmany Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Management Japan Limited Japan Full 100 00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Managemnnt Laaembeurg Lueembnurg Full 99 66% 99.66%

BlIP Paribas Asset Management SGR Milan SPA taly

BNP Paribas Asset Management SGIIC Spain Equity 12 100.00% 9958%

BNP Paribas Asset Management SGR Milan vu BNL Gestioni SGR taly
13 Pull 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Asset Managnment Singapore Limited Singapure Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

BlIP Paribas Asset Management UK Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Investment Partners vu BNP PAM Group France Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Financibre AMS FinAMS France Fur 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Fund Services France France Pu 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Private Equity France Equity 12 100.00% 1OE.00%

CardffAsset Management France Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Cardif Gesrien dActfs France Ful 100.00% 100.00%

Charter Atan0c Capital cerpnnaffnn U.S.A Fe 100.00% 100.00%

Chader AEanOc CorperaBen U.S.A Pu 100.00% 100.00%

Cooper Neff Altemarive Managers France Equity 12 99.40% 99.40%

Fauchier Partners Management Limited Gnnupn UK Prop 42.17% 62.50%

Fischer Francis Trees Watts UK UK Fe 100.00% 100.00%

Fischer Francis Trees Watts Incenperaden U.S.A Fe 100.00% 100.00%

Fischer Francis Trees Wafts Kabushiki Kaisha Japan Full 100.00% 100.00%

Fischer Francis Trees Watts Limited UK Fe 100.00% 100.00%

Fischer Francis Trees Watts PIe Limited Singapore Ful 100.00% 100 00%

Fund Quest Incenponarien U.S.A Ful 100.00% 100.00%

Impas Greup PLC UK equity 26.82% 26.82%

Malbec Partners lncerpsraUen U.S.A Fu 100.00% 100.00%

MalbecPartnersLLC IlK Pu 100.00% 100.00%

Malbec UK Limited UK Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Frereh subsidienes whose regulatory superurs on rails with the seem of the esnselidatnd Group in aeverdance aiih arfide 4.1 ef CROP
regulation

2000.Ui

Movements tel months to 30 Jane 2007

Movements far months to 31 December2007

Movements for months to 30 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 DeCember 2008

Acquisition

Entity sewly incorporated or passing qUalifying threshold

Disposal

4- DeconsoIdation

5- Merger between consolidated entitieo

6- Change of method Propodionate method tofu consolidation

7- Change of method Fu Cossoltdatios to equity method

Chanoe of method Eouitv method to full ca000lidation

Change of method Fut consolidation to proportionate method

10-
Change

sf method Equity method to proportionate method

II ReCansolidation

12- Entities conso idated using simplftisd equity method non-material

13- Business transfers due to the crestion of Italian retail banking segment

14- Entities eocluded fram prudentia scope of cossolidatian

Eetites Conso idated under the equity method for prudenlia purpose
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Name Caanty Mathad
t3raap vatteg Groap awnerehip

kiterast 1% thtare 501

Investment Partners canEd

Overlay Asset Manegement France Full 10000% 10000%

Shenying Wangun BNF Paribas Asset Management Cumpany Limited Chine Equity 3300% 33.00%

Shinhan ENP Paribas Investment Tmsl Management Ce Ltd Onuth Knrea 10 Pnnp 50.00% 50.00%

Sundarem ENP Feribas Asset Management Cempany Limited mdiv Equity 49.90% 49.50%

Becerities services

ENF Panbas Fund Semices Lueembnurg

SEP Paribas Fund Semices Auscalasia Limited Aussalia Fu tOO.00% tOU.00%

BNP Paribas Fund Semices Dublin Limited Ireland Fu 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Fund Semices Heldiegs UK Fu 100.00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Fund Semices UK Limited UK

BEP Paribas Securites Semices BF2S France Full 100.00% 100 00%

EEP Paribas Secuni5es Seruices Custedy bank Limiled en Rnyal Bask ni Ocetand IntemaUneal Custedy Jersey Full 100.00% 100.00%

5NF Faribas Secaribes Seruices rinldings Lrmited en Rnyal Banker Scetand Internaounal Securises Sr Jersey Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Secanides Semices leternatinral Helding SA France

ENP Paribas Trust Cnmpany Gaemesey Limited en Rnyal Basket SceUand lntersa5nrat Trustee Suer Guemsey Equity 12 100.00% 100.00%

Bance Eece Bank SA Spain

Real Estate Bereices

Asset Fartesaires Prance Pull 100.00% 96.775

Adsreal Eepertisn Prance Pull 100.00% 100.005

Atsreal Auguste-Thnuard France Full SE.01% 56.015

Atisreat Be glum SA Belgium Full 100.00% 100 005

Adsrea Benelae SA Belgium Full 100.00% 100.005

Assrea Consult France Full 100 00% 100.005

Absreal Cunsult GmbH Germany Full 100 00% 100.005

Absreal Espana SA Spain Fall 100 00% 100.005

ASsreal SmbH Germany Fall 100 00% 100.005

Arisreal He ding France Prance

ASsrealHndirgGmbH Germaey Fu 100.00% 100.00%

Abareal Hotels ee OP Panthers France Ful 9601% 96.01%

Atisreel letereaUera France Pu 100.00% 100.00%

Assreat Irlande reland Fu 100.00% 150.55%

Atisreal Italia
taly

Full 100.00% 100.00%

ASereat Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

ASereal Leeembeurg SA Lueembuurg Full 100.00% 100.00%

ASsreul Prepedy Management GmbH Germany Full 100.00% 100 00%

Atisreal Preperty Management Semices Belgiam Full 100.00% 100 00%

Absreal Preplan GmbH Germany Full 07.50% 6759%

Abarest USA lecerperated U.S.A Put 100.00% 105 00%

5NP Paribas Immebilier lee Meunier Prnmetien France Full 105.00% 100.00%

ENP Paribas Immebilier Premeden lmmnbilier Estreprise en SAS Meunier Immebi ier dEetceprise Prance Pull 100.00% 100.00%

ENP Paribas Immebilier Premeter Oud Guest es SAS Messier Habitat Sud Guest Frasce Full tOO.O0% 100.00%

BNP Paribas tmmnbilier Premebee Var vs SAS Meaner Habitat Van France Pu 100.00% 100.00%

BEP Paribas Immebi icr Prepedy Management France Pu 100 00% 100.00%

SEP Paribas Immebitier Residensel en SAS Meueier Habitat France Full 100.00% 100.00%

5NP Paribas Immebilier Residentiel Premetier lie de France ee SAS Meunier Habitat tie de France Prance Full 100.00% 100.00%

5NP Paribas Immebilier Residerbel Premetiur Mediterranrie es SAS Meaner Mriditerrarrie Pmrce Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Immebilier Residerte Premeser Rhdne Alpee en SAS Messier Shore Alpes Prance Full 100.00% 100.00%

ENP Paribas Immebilier Residertel Residences Services lee SAS Otudelites Prance Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas tmmebilier Residestel Semice Clieets en USC Messier GeySer France Full 100.00% 100 00%

Pmreh sutsidares sense myularnry supvmirinr tails miS the seeps at Es cerse uarsd Greup is areuHarce errh arrrie .l ef CEBP regutater 2000.03

At El vuerrrpots tsr meeths to 30 June 2007

Movements for moothe to 31 December 2007

Elseemests or meethe te 30 Jaoe 2008

telgeemeeto or8 moeths to December 2008

Acquisition

Estity eewly incorporated or passiog qualftyisg threshold

Dispoaa

Decsosolidatiee

Merger betweeo conso idated entities

Change method Proportiosate method to consolidation

Change method Full ceesslidatieo to equity method

8- Chanee method Eouitn method to 501 ceseolidatiee

Change method Foil coesoidatios to proportionate methed

tO Change method Equity method to pmportioeote method

11 Receeselidatien

Eotities coooo idated usiog simpiltied equity method son-material

13- Business troesers duets the creatios ltaiae retsi bsvkieg segmeEt

14- Entities eecluded rom prudential scope consolidation

15- Evtites coesolidated under the eqaity method or prudential purpese
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Name Countrj Method
Groupeoting Group ownership

heereetl%% lntwnst t%9

6oaI Bstate Services coetd

BNP Paribas Immobilier Residentel Transaction Cunseil ex SNC Espaces lmmobiliers France Full 100.00% 100.00%

BliP Panbas lmnnobilier Residentiel V2i Fnance Full 100.00% 100.00%

ENP Paribas Partcipatinns FinanciŁres Immobi ieres France
Full 100.00% 100.00%

6SF Paribas Real Estate Facilites Management Limited eu Chancery Lane Management Services

Limited UK
Full 100 00% 100 00%

Blip Paribas Real Estate Investment Management France
Full 96.77% 96.77%

EtIP Paribas Seal Estate Investment Management Limited UK Full 100.00% 100.00%

Blip Paribes Real Estate Ineestment Management UK Limited ex BNP Paribas Rea Estate Investments

Services Limited UK
Full 100.00% tOO 00%

BNP Paribas Real Estate Pruperty Develuppemert ttalia
Italy

Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Real Estate Property Management ttalia
Italy

Fell tOO.00% 100.00%

BOA Immubilier France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Cabinet Claude Sanchez France
Full tOO.0O% 100.00%

Compagnie Tertaine France

Ingenierie et Promotion lmmvbi idre France Full 100.00% tOO.00%

Geniuar Servicios Immobiliarios Spain

Immubliere des Bergans France Full tCO.00% tOO 00%

Pantenaires Gerance Soprofnance France

Parbmes Services France
Full 100.00% t00.00%

SA Gener France Full 100.00% 100.00%

SA Meunier Hiupania Spain Fal 100.00% 100.00%

SA Procodts France

SAS BNP Faribas Real Estate Investment Services eu SAS 6CM Real Estate France Full tOO.00% 100.00%

SAS BNP Paribas Real Estate Property Management Espana se 55 Comadim Hiopanla Spain Full 100.00% 100.00%

SAS BNP Paribas Real Estate Property Management France France Full tOO.00% tOO 00%

SAS BRSI France Full tOO 00% 100.00%

550 Cdstulienne de Pertidpations France Put 100.00% 100.00%

gAS Mutt Vest France France Full 150.00% 100.00%

SAS Newport Management France
Full 100.00% 100.00%

SAS Sofiane France Fall 100.00% 100.00%

SitenteSL Spain

SNC Lot2 Porte dAsnieres Francs Full 105.00% 100.00%

Tasaciones Hipotecarias SA Spain Full tOO.50% 100.00%

Valuation Consulting Limited UK

Weatheral Consu tancy Services Limited UK Fu 100.00% 100.00%

French subsidieres whose regulatory supervis en tale with the soupe or the consolidated Group in a000rdaeoe eith adds 4.101 cee reguiasrn 2000 03

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movements ion months to 30 June 2008

ID Movements for months to 31 Decemben 2008

Acqaisittion 9- Change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

Entity newly incorporated on passing qualifying threshold 10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

3- Disposal if Reconsoldation

Deconeolidation 12- Entities consolidated using simpified equity method eon-material

Merger between consolidated entities 13- Business transfers due to the creation of Ita ien retail banking segment

6- Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidation 14- Entities eocluded from prudential scope of cenoolidatton

7- Change of method Fall consolidation to equity method 15- Entites consolidated under the eqaity method for prudential purpose

Change of method Equity method to full consolidation
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Name Coantip Method
Weep voting Graap ewaemhip

inManett%t rnwnot

Coiperata cad tnveetmaat Baakiag

France

ENF Paribas Arbitrage France Fu 100.00% 100 000

BNP Paribas Equities France France Fe 55.55% 9596%

BRP Feribas Equity Strategies France Franca Fu 100 00% 100.00%

BRP Fuybas Peregene Orcay France

Sep Panibee Atrateg en Act ieee France Full
100 00% 100.000

Capstan Partners AdA France France Full
100 00% 100.00%

Hereweed Aeeet Management France Full 100 00% 100.00%

Paribas Deriake Garants Ace France Full 14 100 00% 100 000

Pariterge France Fal 100.00% 100000

AdA Psamet France Fe 100.00% 100 000

AdA Fanilease France Fall 100.00% 100 000

Taitbeat FarlicipaSee France Pall 100 00% 100.000

Earape

ENP Feeler Peoagal Pertagal Full 100.00% 100.000

BNP Par bas Ire and Ireland Pall 100.00% 100 0051

BPIP Par bas Bulgaria AD Ba gaea

Sep Paybas Bank eungara ST Hungary

BPIP Paribas Bank Pelska 0A Peland

BNP Paybas Back NV Netherlands Pal 100 00% 100.00%

BNP Panbas Capital nuestman% Limited UK Pall 100 00% 100.00%

BNP Parbas Capital Markets Oreap Limited UK Fall 100 00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Cemmed
Ip

Futures Limited UK Pall tAb 00% 100.00%

BNP Padbas mited UK Pa 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Finance PLC UK Pal 100.00% tAO 00%

BNP Paribas Laeembearg AA Laeembearg Pall tAO 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Net Limited UK Pall 100.00% tAO 00%

BNP Par ban Aeilappa Italy

BNP Paribas Au see AA Awitzerland Pal 5999% 69.99%

BNP Paribas AK Holdings Lim ted UK Pull 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Par bus UK Lim ted UK Fall 10000% 100.00%

BNP P0K Holding Limbed UK Fall 100.00% 10000%

BNP Paebas ZAC Russia Pal 100.00% 100 00%

Calilue AARL Lueembearg Pal 60.00% 6000%

Capstar Padners ted AK Pal tAA.AA% tAO 00%

Earase Finance SARL Lueembearg Pall 100.00% tAO 00%

Hanewaed Heldiege Limited OK Fall tOO.Ob% 100 00%

ISIS Peeler APA Uly

Landepire Limited UK Pull tAO 00% 100.00%

Padbas lIeU Laeembaarg Ad Lueembaang Pail 1AA.A0% OA.O0%

Otesam Limited reined Pa 10000% 100.00%

Vagry Re esararea Limited as Delta Reinsarance Limited relaro Pall
tA 00.00% 10000%

Americas

BNP Paribas Andes Perea

BNP Paribas Asset Management roerperated U.A.d Pall 100 00% 100.00%

BNP Panbas Brash Ad Brazil Pall 100.00% 1OA.OA%

BNP Par bee Carada Canada Pal IAA.AA% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Capstan Partners inoerparatad 0.9.0 Pall
tAA.A0% tOO AO%

BRP Paribas Cemmeditias Futures Incerparated Pall 100 00% tAO 00%

BNP Padbas Leasing Ceryaraher U.A.A Pal 100 00% 100.00%

BNP Padbae Medgage Cenpecatioe A.A Pall 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas ends America Incorporated 000 Pall 100 00% 100.00%

Pierce eabeid anne whsee regularsry nayerainiar Nile mirhie he caere errye came dared Oman amurdaree ely alec 41 erCRBP raou ar an dOtb 03

Moeemends for months to 30 Jaine 2007

Moeemecbs for months to 31 December 2AA7

Moeemagfs for8 months 1030 Jane 2008

Moeemento for months to 3f December 2008

AcqasiAon

2- Enhfy newly ncorporated or passng qasdfyng bhreshed

Dspooa

Deconsoddabon

Merger bedwaen coosoddated HoUties

Change of method Proportionats method do fUl consodds5oe

7- Chooge ot method Pal coeoolidatioo to eqaity method

Chaeae of method Eoaite method Is fall consolidation

8- Chooge of method Pal coosodahon to proporfonafe method

10- Change of msdhod Eqady method do proportioonbe method

11 Recsnsolidsdion

12- EndUes coosoddabed aeog ompd8ed egaty method non-mafedal

13- Basiness transfers due to the craadon of Isdan tess bankng segmeot

Enbbfes eec aded from pradanUs scope
of cossolidotios

f5 Enbbes coosoddobed Under the eqady method for pradeotial parpose

150



13N PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

hr%I intat%
Americas contd

BNP Panbas Prime Brokerage Incorporated U.S.A Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Pnme Brokerage lnteriat ona Limited Caynran Islands Full 100.00% 10000%

BNP Paribas Prurcipal lncorpoated USA Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas RCC ncorpcration USA Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Par bas Securities Corporation U.S
Full 100 00% 100.00%

Capstar Partners LLC USA Full 100 00% 100.00%

Cooper Neff Group Incorporated USA Fu 100 00% 10000%

French American Bank ng Corporation F.A.B USA Fu 100.00% 100 00%

Harewood Asset Management US Incporated ex Cooper Neff Adv sors Incorporated USA Fu 100 00% 100 00%

Innocap nvestnlenl Management ncorporation Canada Equity 25.00% 2500%

Paribas North Arnenca USA
Full 100.00% 100.00%

Pets Champs Partic pacoes Se cios SA Brazi Full 00.00% 100OU%

Asia Oceania

BNP Equities Asia mited Malays Fu 100.00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas China Limited China Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Prbitrage I-ion-Kon Lin ted 4onKong Full 100.00% 100.00%

BNP Paribas Capal As Pac fic mited Hong-Kong Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas CapaI Sngapore Limited ngapore Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas nance Hong-Kong Limited Hong-Kong Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Parbas Futures Hong-Kong Limited Hong-Kong Full 10000% 100 00%

BNP Panbas lntha Solutions Prvate Limited India Full 10000% 100 00%

BNP Panbas Japan Limited Japan Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Pacific Austialia Limed Australia Full 10000% 100 00%

BNP Panbas Prnc pal nestrnents Japan Lmed Japan Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Panbas SCM Asia Hong Kong Limited ex BNP Paribas GRS I-long Kong Limited Horg-Kong Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Panbas Securities Asia Limed Hong-Kong Full 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Securities Japan LImited Hong-Kong Full 100.00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Securities Taiwan Co Lmited Taiwan Furl 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Securities Korea Company Limited SouTh Korea Fu 100 00% 100 00%

BNP Paribas Securities Singapore Pte Limited Singapore Full 100 00% 100 00

BNP Paribas Serv ces Hong Kong Limited Hong-Kong Full 100 00% 100 00%

Paribas Asia Equies mited Hong-Kong Full 10000% 100.00h

PT Bank BNP Paribas Indonesia Indonesia Full 100.00% 99 99

PT BNP Paribas Secunties Irdones lndonesa Fu 9900% 99.00

Special Pur1ose Entities

54 Lombard Street nvestmenls mited UK Full

AFectra Finance PLC Ireland Fu

Altels lnestrrrents Limited Ireland Fu

APAC Finance Limted New Zealand Fu

APAC Investments Limited New Zealand Fu

APAC NZ Holdings Lini ted New Zealand Fu

ARV International Limited Caynian slands Fu

Aust Finance France Eu

BNP Paribas Arbitrage Issuance BV Netherlands Fu

BNP Paribas Emissions und Hande GmbH Germany Fu

BNP Paribas Finance Incorporated U.S.A Fu

BNP Paribas slam Issuance BV Netherlands Fu

BNP Paribas Singapore Funding Parlnersh Singapore Fu

Bougainville BV Nelherands Fu

Crisps Lim ted Cayman slarrds Fu

Epimetheus Investments mited Cayrran Islands

Epping Funding Limed Cayman Islands Fu

Epsom Funding Umited Cayman Islands Fu

Eurol bertØ LC Ireland

French Subs dianes whose regulatory Supervision fa within the scope oftbe consolidated Group in accordance with artiCle 4.1 ofCRBF regu at on 2000

Movements for months to 31 Decamber 2007

2001

Movements for months to 30 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December 2008
_________________________________________________________________________________

Acquisition 9- change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

2- Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold 10- Charie
of method

Equity method to proportionate method

Disposal
11 ReconsoUdation

4- Deconso idation 12- EntitieS consolidated using simplified equity method non-material

5- Merger between consolidated entities 13 Business transfers due to the creation of Italian retai banking segment

6- Change
of method Proportionate method to fuI consolidation 14- Entities excluded from prudential scope of consolidation

7- Change of method Full consolidation to equity method 15 Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose

8- Change of method Equity method to full conso idation
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BNP PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Counary Method
Group voting Group amnumhip

hsrcevunst%t hstusuet liUl

Special Purpose Entities cantd

European Hedged Equity Limited Ceymen sands

Fidee PLC UK Full

Financiers Pans Haussmenn Francs Foil

Financiers Taithoot Francs Ful

ntrank Esyamo France Full

Fintreck Foehn Franca Full

Fonsoto nuoutmonts SA Lusembaung

Global Guerantend Equity lad Ceyman rends

Global Hedged Equty lnoestment in ted Ceymen rends

Globa LibodH Irelend Fall

Global Protoctad Aharnatisa nosstmontr Limitnd Caymen Islands

Global ProteGsd Equty Lim ted Ceymen Islands

Gneneohe et Cie ONC Luxembourg Ful

Hanewood Inusstmsnts Limilod Cayman Islands Full

Henerour Propedy mited Austnelie Fall

Highbridge Limited Ceymen Islands Fo

Iliad nvestmsntr PLC Ireland Fall

Jocunde lnoertmeotr SA Lussmbourg

Lstttts Pentidpeton France Ful

Lafflfie Padidpatnn to Fiance Ful

LaRge Padicipaton 12 France Full

Leosnage nanca Eumpe Capital PEP Nnthorlends Full

Liquidity Trout Caymen sands

Luck-In Global equity Limted Ceymen Islands Fu

Marc nanon Limited Caymen Islands Fall

Muscat Inuestments mited Jersey Ful

Gmega Capital nvertmants Pc ro and Ful

Gmsga lnosrtmsntr Cayman Lim tad Cayman sands

Gmege Capital Europe PLC helena Full

Cmaga Capital Funding Limitnd helena Pu

Cptichamps France Pal

Peregut Francs

Pemtuye Property Lim ted Australia Full

Pelicipetinns Gpere Prance Full

OPera aol Loire Pabitrage OL open Ful

Hub ght Limited island Full

Royal Neuve Oar Luanmboung Full

Royal Nsuun Oar Lusemboung Full

Royal Neuuo Its OsrI Luoembuurg Pal

Roys Nsuao OsrI Luxembourg Pal

Royal Cease P1 Oarl Luxembourg Full

Roye Heave Finance OARL Luoembuurg Ful

OAO Chine Jenne France 03 Franca Ful

OAO Chine Lucie nance Fiance Full

OAO Chine Marie Finance et Fiance Full

OAO Chine Rewire Finance a4 France Full

OAO 2007 Panda Finenca France Pal

OAO 2000 Mane Finance Franca Full

000 2000 Newins nance France Ful

OAO 2000 Penue Finance Fiance Full

OAO 2000 Panda Finenca France Full

OAO 2000 Fends Finance it Frence Pal

OAO Ch no Oamenthe Finence to Prance Pal

000 Ermi e3 France PsI

000 Financ Hne des hal ens Franca Full

OAO Owen Franca Put

French ruur dierss whose nstuietoy supsis suits within the soups on the uerrol detsd Giasp in amurdancr uth eqided or csap rsou shun 0000.00

Al Mooemeots for mooths to 30 Juse 2007

Mopemento fop months to Decembep 2007

Moovments fop months to 30 Juoe 2000

UI Muoemeots tot montos to 01 Uecemoet 2000

Acqaioition

0- Entity newly ioconpomtsd or passiug qualifying thmshold

Disposal

Decogsolidation

Meiget betweso cuuru idated entitrer

Chaoge of method Ptopottiooate method to fu coosolidatioo

7- Change of method Fu coosalidatios to equity method

Chaoqe of method Equity method to ful cossolidatigo

0- Chaoge of otethod Full canso idafiox to pmpottionats method

10- Cheoge of method Equity method to pmpottiosats method

11 Reconsolidation

12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method nan-matenal

13- Buoioess trasofem due to the creation ot taliao mteil baobiog segment

14- Estitieo euc sded mm pr-udentia scope of cogsolidatioo

5- Entites coosolidated andsi the equity method for prudeotial purpose
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BNP PARIBAS

Special Purpose Entilies centd

SAS Swan

SAS Swan

Singapore Emma Finance SAS

Sargapone Emma nance SAS

Sirocce nuestments SA

SNC Atangat

SNC Compagnie Investisnement Ilalrens

SNC Compagnie Investissement OpØra

SOC Mbditenranea

St Maarten CDO mired

Sunny Funding Limded

Swallow Fhght Lim led

Tender Ophon Bond Munic pal program

Thunderbird Investments PLC

France

France

France

France

Luxembourg

France

France

France

France

Cayman Islands

Cayman Islands

Ireland

U.S.A

Ireland

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

French rubs dares whose regulatory supervision ra Is Within rho soupe of tIre conso ideled Group accordance eirh article or CRBF regular on 2000.03

Nume
Couoti ID Method

Group voting Group ewnersldp

irdnrestf%t intnmf%f

Full

Full

Ful

Ful

Full

Full

Full

Fu

Full

Full

Full

Full

Mooemeato for months to 30 June 2007

Mooemeats for montha to 31 December 2007

Movementa for months to 30 June 2008

Movements for montha to 31 December 2008

Acquisition

Eotity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold

Disposal

Deconsolidation

Merger between conso idated eotitiea

Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidation

Change of method Full conso idation to equtty method

Chance of method Eauitv method to full conso idation

9- Change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

11 Rec000olidation

12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method son-material

13- Business transfers due to the creation of Italian retail banking segment

14 Entities escluded from prudential scope of consolidation

15 Estites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose
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BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

interest%l interest 1%

Other Business Units

Private Equity BNP Paribas Capital

Claire Belgium

Cobema Beig urn Fu 100 00% 100.000

Cubepa Technology Be glum

Compagnie Fnanc ere Oonmane Luxembourg Full 96.80% 96805

Erbe Belgium Equly 47.01% 47015

Evels France

Gepeco Belgium Full 100 00% 100.005

Panbas Parhcipabun mdee Canadu Full 100 00% 100.005

Property companies property ased in operations

CaneS Frunce

Cnmpagnie Immob here dv France France

Ejesur Spain Full 100.00% 100 00%

SASS Auenue Kleber Franco

SAS 07 Lv Ferouss France

SAS Font Łre 4510 Cumpugnis Buncare France Fu 100 00% 100.00%

5A5 North France Full 100 00% 100.00%

Sd lrnmubiliŁre MarchØ Saint-HorrorA Frame Full 100 00% 100.00%

SnciHtH dEtudes lrrrmubiliØres do Corstructions Setic France Full 100.00% 100.00%

Antic Partic potion France

Antrr Fartlcipatorr France Full 100.00% 100.00%

noestment companies and other sabsidianes

Antn PaOc potion 15 France

Ardi lmmn Luuembourg Full
15 100.00% 100.00%

BNL lnternasnnal nuestrnerrt SA Lueonnbuurg Full 100 00% 100.00%

BNL Multiservizi SRL
Italy Equty 12 100.00% 100 00%

BNP Fur bas Couered Bonds Frunce Full 100.00% 100 00%

8SF Punibas de RHussurance uu Luxembourg Lusernbourg Full 15 100.00% 100 00%

5SF Fanbas lnterrrutunal BV Nether unds Full
100 00% 100.00%

BNP Fadbus Mediterrenfs Inn005t on Technnlog vs Morocco Fu 100 00% 9662%

BNF Paribos Partners for enovat on Groupe France Equity 6000% 50.00%

BNF Paribas UK Treasury Limited UK Full 150 00% 100.00%

Corrrpvgnie Bancaire Uk Funds UK

Cnmpagnie noestissernrents dv Pxhs France Full 100.00% 100.00%

FinanoHre BNP Panbas France Full 100.00% 100 00%

Financ ens MarchH Saint HnnorH Fronts Ful 100.00% 100 00%

GIE Groupemsnt Ausi see et dv Moyens GPM France Ful 100 00% 100 00%

Le Sphere Assursnces Luxembourg SA Luxembourg Equity 12 100 00% 100.00%

Omnium Gesborn Deuelnppement rnmobitier France Full
100.00% 100 00%

Placement Gestion Finance Hoidsig Pxge9n Lusernbourg Full
99.99% 98.98%

Sagip Beg urn Full 100.00% 100 00%

Socidtd Auudiu no do Construcbon mnrubitiHrs SACI Francs Full 100.00% 100 00%

Societe Frunqaiss Ausiltaire F.A Francs

Society Orbaisierne de Participations France Full
100 00% 100.00%

0dB Boil France Full
tOO 00% 100.00%

OCt Entrepnseo Francs Full 100.00% 100.00%

UCB Lucabxl mmubilisr Frunce Equity 12 100.00% 100 00%

yemen Inuestissernents Groups France Equity 48.40% 4840%

Frenob subddiunns whose regulatory uuyenuision falls with the scope of the censol dvted Group in auunrdaene eifb anton u.r or C8BF regulation 20Oct10

Monements for months 1030 June 2008

Mooemects for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition

Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold

Dioposa

Deconsohdation

I- Merger behween consolidated entities

Change of method Proportionate method tofu consohdation

Change of method Fu conoolidatian to equity method

Chunae of method Eouitv method tofu consalidation

Change of method Full conso idation to proportionate method

Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

11 Reconsolidation

12- Entities consolidated ustng simplihed equity method non-material

13- Eusiness transfers due to the creation of Italian retail backing segment

54 Estittes eucluded from prudential scope
of conan idation

15- Entitss consatidated under the equity method for prudential purpose
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BN PARIBAS Consolidated fmancial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

interest t%1 inteest

Special Purpose Entities

Ant Part cipation France

Antn Prtcipaton 13 France

BNP Par bas Capftal Trust LLC .3-4.6 U.S Full

BNP Panbas Cap al Trust LLC U.S.A

BNP Paribas US Med urn Term Notes Program U.S Full

BNP Paribas US Structured Medium Term Notes LLC S.A Full

BNP US Funding LLC S.A

Vela Mortgages SRL
Italy Full

KlØpierre

Akciova SpolocnosI Arcol Sloaka Full 10000% 5310%

Segece Slovensko sic ex AMAC Sro Slovak Full 100 00% 53 10%

Amanda StorsenterAS Norway Full 10000% 2979%

AMC- Prague SRO Czech Republic

Anpartsselskabet af 18 september 2007 Derrrnark Full 100.00% 29.79%

Arker Drift AS Norway Prop 4990% 14 87%

Arken Hoding AS Norway Full 100.00% 29 79%

Asane Storsenter DA Norway Prop 49.90% 1487%

Besloten Venrrotschap Capucine BV Netherlands
Full 100.00% 5310%

Bestes Czech Repub Full 99.00% 5257%

BPSA 10 Portuga Prop 50.00% 26.55%

Bruuns Caller ApS Denmark 100 00% 29.79%

Bryggen Veje NS Denmark Fu 100.00% 29.79%

Camato AS Norway Fu 100.00% 29.79%

CarrØJaude2 Frarrce Ful 100 00% 53.10%

Cliv SPA
taly Prop 5000% 26.55%

Corvin Rela Hungary Ful 10000% 53.10%

Octal hande shuset
Ilyll nge AB Sweden Ful 100 00% 29.79%

Down Town Drift AS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Duna Plaza Offices z.o Hungary Full 100 00% 53 10%

Ejendomsselskabet Klampenborgvej IS Denmark Prop 5000% 14.89%

Enteainnen aza Czech RepubIi Full 10 00% 5.10%

Entreprenorelskabet af 1004.2001 P/S Denmark Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Allum Sweden Full 100 00% 29.79%

FAB Borlange KölPentrum Sweden Ful 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Centrum Vasterort Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Centruminvest Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Emporia Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Hageby
Cenirum Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Lanimateribacken Sweden
Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Marieberg Centrum Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB olndaI Centrum Sweder Full 100.00% 2979%

FAB Overby KolPentrum Sweden Full 100.00% 2979%

FAB Akanten Sweden Full 10000% 29.79%

FAB Broda en Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Porthalla Sweder Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB So entuna Centrum Sweden Ful 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Uddevallatorpet Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

FAB Viskahotrn Sweden Full 100.00% 29.79%

Farmandstredel ANS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Farmandsiredet Eiendom AS Norway Full 100 00% 2979%

FarmanstredetDriftAS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Fayesgate Eiendorn AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Fields Copenhagen I/S
Denmark Full 100.00% 29.79%

Fields Eier ApS
Denmark Full 100.00% 29.79%

Fieds Eier NS Denmark Full 10000% 2979%

French subsidieries whose regulatory upervo fIs within the scope of the consolidated Group rr ccorerce v0r rticle4 of CRBF
regulat

or 2000.03

IA Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movements for months 1030 June 2008

ID Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition 9- change of method FuI consolidation to proportionate method

2- Entity newly incorporated or passing qualilying thresho 10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

3- flisposa 11 Reconsoltdation

4- Deconsolidation 12 Entities consoidated using simplified equity method non-material

5- Merger between consolidated entities 13- Business transfers due to the creation of talian retail banking segment

6- Change
of method Proportionate method to lull consoUdation 14 Entities excluded from prudential scope of consoidation

7- Change
of method Full conso dation to equity method 15- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudentia purpose

8- Change of method Equity method to full conso idation
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BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

interest 1% intmst 1%

lHpierre contd

Frtzoe erygge Drift AS Norway Full 10000% 2979%

GaeriesDranceennes France Fu 100 00% 53.10%

GIE KlØperre Services France

Grytingen Nya AB Sweden Prep 6479% 1930%

Gulskoger Prosjekt endom AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

Guskoger SenterANS Nurway Full 100 00% 29 79%

Hamar Fanorama AS Nurway Full 100.00% 2979%

Hamar Sterserter AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

Harrar Storserterdrift AS Norway FulL 100.00% 2979%

Ho men Senterdrill AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

HovandbanenAS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

GC SPA
Italy Prep 5000% 26.55%

lCD SPA Lueembuurg Ful lOS 00% 53.10%

Immo Day and France Fu 100 00% 44.61%

K2 Fund ely FuLL 8500% 45.14%

Karl Johansgate 16 AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

Kleaueiro mrroobiliars SA Portuga Full 100 00% 53 10%

Klecar Ital SPA
Italy

Full 100.00% 4407%

KIefin tuba SPA
Italy

Full 100 00% 53.10%

Klepierre Corvin Hungary Ful 100 00% 53.10%

epierre Cretel France Fu 100 00% 53.10%

KleperreCZSRO Czech Repubic Full 100 00% 53.10%

KlHpierre Galiera Krakow Poland Full 100.00% 83 1011

KHpierre Galiera Pozoar Poland Full 100.00% 6310%

Klepierre Krakow SP v.0 Poland Full 100.00% 53 10%

KlØp errs Larissa Limited Greece Full 100.00% 5310%

Kldpierre Lab Poland Full 100.00% 5310%

Klepierre Lueembourg Lueembourg Ful 100.00% 53.10%

kOpierre Matera lay Fu 100 00% 52.10%

epierre Meteores ee Leg II He enic Holdings Luuembourg Full 100 00% 53 10%

kepierre Nordica BV Netherlands Fall 100 00% 53.10%

Klkpierre Nouo Czech Republic

KlOperre Plzen Czech Republic Full 100.00% 5310%

KlØpierre Poznur SF z.o Poland Full 100.00% 53 10%

KlHpinrre Rybr Poland Full 100.00% 5310%

KlØpierre Sadyba SP z.o.o Poland Full 100.00% 53 10%

KlNpierre Sosnowec Poard Ful 10000% 52.10%

ifpierre
Team Is France Pu 100 00% 53.10%

Npierre Tradirg Energia Kereskedelmi es Szulgaltato KFT Pound Fu 100 00% 53.10%

KlHpierre Warsaw Sp z.s.o Poland Full 100 00% 53.10%

Krakow Flaza SP z.o Poland Full 100 00% 53.10%

Krokstadelva Seoterdrift AS Norway Pal 100.00% 2979%

KS Down Towr Senter Norway Full 100.00% 2879%

KS Dewr Town Serter II Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

KS Markedet Norway Full 100 00% 26.78%

Kuadrat Drift AS Norway Fu 100 00% 29.79%

La Marquayss000e France Fu 100 00% 40.26%

Lee Bouhques de Saint Mae rain France Equity 4250% 22.57%

Lille Eiendom AS Norway Full 6600% 18.66%

Lokketargen Tore AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Markedet Dolt AS Norway Full
100.00% 2878%

MasscenterTorpAe Sweden Full 100.00% 2879%

Metro DrftAS Norway Fu 100 00% 29.79%

Metro Senter APIS Norway Prop 5000% ld.89%

Mdli City Karlstad FAB Sweder Fall 100 00% 29.79%

Moirdal Centrum Byggnads FAN Sweden Full
100.00% 2978%

Frenob subsidiares whose regulatory aupereisier tale wi6iin toe scope of the consolidated Group in acoerderve aitr arade d.t 01 CRBF regulation 2000.03

Movements for months to 30 June 2007

Movemeota for moaths to 31 December 2007

Movements for months 1030 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition 9- Change of mehod Full consolidation to proportionate method

Entity Sew iacorporated or passiog qua ifying threshold 10 Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

3- Disposal Recoasolidatinn

4- Deconsolidation 12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method 000-matetia

Merger between cortsolidated entities 13- Business transfeto due to the crealion of Ita ian retai banking segment

Change of method Proportionate method to fu conso idation 14- Entities eccluded from prudential scope of consolidation

7- Change of method Full consolidation to equity method 15- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose

Change of method Equity method to ful coneolidation
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BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

thneutC%l hReceet t%ir

ttpiarre contd

Mooseporten DrftAS Norway Full 10000% 2979%

MoueroerntPolandSA Poland
Full 10000% 53.10%

Nenstranda AS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Nerstranda DriflAS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Nob especialiste Fraooe Full 100.00% 4036%

Nordal ANS Norway Prop 50.00% 14.89%

Nordbyern Senterforening AS Norway Full 6920% 2061%

Nordca Holdco AB Swedao
Full 56.10% 29.79%

NorskAutoroatdriftAS Norway Ful 100.00% 2979%

Norsk Kjpeseoterforualtniog AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

NorthMar Subde NB Swedso Full 100.00% 2979%

Novak Eeodono PS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Okern Eendum ASS Norway Prop 50.00% 1489%

Okern Holding AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

Okenn Sontrum Ans Norway Prop 5200% 14.99%

Okern Seotrum AS Norway Prop 5000% 14.59%

Okern Sorrtrurrn DrItAS Norway Pull 100 00% 2979%

Os Alle AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Os AIls Drift AS Norway Full 100 00% 2979%

Ostfoldhallen DriftAS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Farhlle LeabyAB Swedeo Full 100.00% 29.79%

Pilser Plaza Czeth Republlo Full 100 00% 53.10%

Frogast FrancS Full 100.00% 53 10%

Prosjeklselskabet at 10.04.2001 ApS Denmark Full 100.00% 25.79%

Restorers France Pu 100.00% 40.36%

Suds Slaska Flaza SFz.o.o Poland Full 100 00% 53.10%

Rybrrik Plaza SF zoo Poland Full 150 00% 5310%

SACapNord Fraooe

SN OoNma do rEsplanado Belgium Ful 100 00% 53.10%

5th Co mbra Belgium Full 100.00% 53 10%

SA Delcis CR Czech Ropub

BA Deusmu Consult Belgium

SA Fioasrwrte Portugal Full 100 00% 53 10%

SA FonoNre de Louuao Ia Neuve Belgium Full 100.00% 5210%

SA Ga lera Parque Nascaote Portuga Ful 100.00% 53.10%

SA Gorrdobrioo Poougal Full 100 00% 53.10%

SN Klecar Foncer Espaoa Spaio Full 100 00% 44.07%

SA Klecan Fonder Iberica Span Full 100.00% 44.07%

SN Klege Portugal Portugal Prop 50.00% 26.55%

SA Klslou Immobiliare Porluga Full 100 00% 53.10%

SA Kieminho Portugal Full 10000% 53.10%

SN Klenor lmroubiliaria Portugal Full 10000% 53.10%

SA Klepierre Fraocn Full 57.31% 5310%

SN Klep erre Ath non NE Greece Full 100.00% 4407%

OAK eplerre Fonder Makedonia Greece Full 100 00% 44.07%

SN KlNpierre NEA Eltearpu NE Greece Full 100.00% 44.07%

SN Klbprorre Peribola Patras AE Greece Full 100.00% 44.07%

SA KlSpnrre Portugal SOPS Portuga Full 100.00% 53.10%

SA Np erre Vallecas Spain Fu 100 00% 53.10%

SA SlNp errs Vnaza Spain Full 100 00% 5310%

SAKetel Immobdarra Foougal Ful 100.00% 53.10%

SAPlucedetaooeuil Begium Full 100.00% 53.10%

SA Pozran Plaza Poland Pu 100 00% 53.1014

SN Reze Sud France Equity 15.00% 797%

SN Sadyba Center Poland Full 100.00% 53.10%

Sandens Drift AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Frenob subsideries whose reoulatory supervision laIr within the scope etthe ronselideted Group In accordance reIN arsolec 0nCRBF regulation 2000.03

Movements for months to 35 June 265

Movements for monthS to 31 December 2001

Mavements for months to 30 June 2005

Movements for months 5531 Decetabet 2005

Acquisition

2- Entity newly incarporated or passing qualifying fhreshold

3- Disposal

4- Deconnolidation

Merger betweeo consolidated entities

Change of method Proportiosate method to full consolidation

7- Change of method Full consolidation to equity method

8- Chanan of method Eauitv method to full consolidatioo

9- Change of method Full conso idation to proportionate method

50- Change of method Equity meihod to proportionate method

Reconsolidation

t2 Entities consolidated usIng simplifisd equity method nan-material

13- BuSloeSs transfers due to the creatios of Italian retail bsnhing Segment

14- Entities encluded from prudential scope of consolidation

55- Eotitea consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose
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BN PARIBAS Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

interest t%l interest l%l

KlØpierre contd

SARL Belvedere Invest France Full 75.00% 3983%

SARL Bois des Fendtres France Equ ly
20.00% 10 62%

SARL Csepel 2002 Hungary Full 100.00% 5310%

SARL Debrecen 2002 Hungary Full 100.00% 5310%

SARL Dana Plaza Hungary Full
100.00% 53.10%

SARL POe Kappa
taly

Full
100 00% 53.10%

SARL Form ng France Full 9000% 47.79%

SARL Galiena CornrnercaeAssago taly
Full 100 00% 53.10%

SARL Galiera Cornrnerctole Cavallino
taly

Fu 130 30% 53.10%

SARL Galiera Cnmmerciale Collegno rely
Pu 100 00% 53.10%

SARL Galiera Cnnrmerciale KlAp erre lta Full 100.00% 5310%

SARL Gaiera Commerciale Senavalle lay Full 103 00% 5310%

SARL Galiera Commerciale So biale lay Full 100.00% 53 10%

SARL Gynr 2002 Hungary Full 100.00% 53.10%

SARL Ho ding Klege Luxembourg Prop 50.00% 2655%

SARL Irrrmnb4 are Magnoia Luxembourg Full 100.00% 53 10%

SARL Kanizsa 2002 Hungary Full
100 00% 53.13%

SARL Kaposvar 2002 Hungary Full 100 00% 53.10%

SARL Miskotc 2002 Hungary Eu 100 00% 53.10%

SARL Nnvate Luxembourg Full 100 00% 53.10%

SARL Nyregyhaza Faza Hungary Full 100.00% 53.10%

SARL Proreal France Full 51.00% 2708%

SARLSzeged PLaza Hungary Full 100.00% 5310%

SARL Szulnok Plaza Hungary Full 100.00% 53 10%

SARL Alba Hungary Full 100 00% 5310%

SARL Zalaegerszeg Plaza Hungary Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS Tunr France

SAS CB Prame France Pu 100.00% 53.10%

SAS Cecobil France Prop 5000% 26.55%

SAS Cecoville France Full 100 00% 53.10%

SAS Centre Jaude Clermont France Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS Espace Cordehem Franca

SAS
I-folding

Gnndnnrar France Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS Hntrthng Gondornar2 France

SAS Ho ding Gondomar3 France Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS Holding Gondomar4 France Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS KLE France Ful 100 00% 53.10%

SAS Projet France Eu 100 00% 53.10%

SAS Ke PrOjet2 France Eu 100 00% 53.10%

SAS Klncapnor France Full 100 00% 44.66%

SAS Kiecan Part cipat nns Ilalie France Full 8300% 44.07%

SCA Klemurs Franca Full 84 11% 44.66%

SAS Kiep erre Finance France Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS KlHpierre Parbcipat one xl Financennerts France Full 100.00% 53.10%

SAS KlHpierre Polegne Pu and Full 100.00% 5310%

SAS Le Haure Capelel France

SAS La Havre Tourneville France

SASLP7 France Fu 10000% 5310%

SAS Odysseum Place de France France Prop 5000% 2655%

SAS Cpa France

SAS Pail ers Al encr France

SAS Soaval France Full 100.00% 53 10%

SASSecosene France

SASVarnesCoutume France Ful 100.00% 5310%

SC Centre Bourse Frarce Eu 100.00% 5310%

Frenob subsidiures whose regululery supervision fats thin the soupe of the eensnlidated Greup in
a000rdarce aith arfiole 4.1 etCRBF

regular or 2000.03

Movements tsr months 1030 June 2007

Monements for months to 31 December 2007

Monements for months to 30 June 2008

Monements for months to3l December 2008

Acquisition

Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threshold

Disposal

Deconsolidatioe

Merger between consolidated entities

6- Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidgtion

Change of method Full consolidstion to equity method

Change of method Equity method to full consolidation

9- Change of method Full consolidation to proportionate method

10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

11 Reconso idation

12- Entitiee consolidated using simplified equity method non-materisl

13- Business transfers due to the creation of talian retail banking segment

14 Entities eecluded from prudentis scope of consolidstion

55- Entites consolidated under the equity method tsr prudential purpose
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Name Country Method
Group voting Group ownership

interest t%l interest 6%8

lepierre conEd

SC Solorec France
Full 80.00% 42.485

Sd Acheres 2000 France
Equity 30.00% 15.830

SCI Albert 31 France Fu 100.00% 44.070

SCI Au nes Developpement France Ful 50.00% 13.280

SCI Bass Nond France Prup 50.00% 26.55%

501 Beauseuran France
Full 100.00% 44.070

001 Begles Papin France
Full 100 00% 53100

001 Besarqon Chalezeu France
Full 100 00% 53 1011

SCI Champs de Mais France
Equity 40.00% 21 240

501 Champs des Haies France Full 60.00% 31.86%

SCI Combaut France Full 100.00% 5310%

501 Des Dunes France
Prop 50.00% 2655%

501 Des Sahoes France
Prop 50.00% 26.55%

SCI Du Plateau France
Equity 3000% 12.74%

SCI Edumarzy France Fu 100.00% 5310%

Sd rard France Prop 3340% 17.7401

SCI Hoes Hautes Pornmeraie France
Full 5300% 28140

Sd Hellos Plerir France

SOt lmrrnobiliere de Ia Pommerae France Prop 5000% 2655%

Sd La Franqaise France Prop 50.00% 2655%

Sd La sine du Moulio vent France Prop 50.00% 2655%

Sd La Riue France Full 47.30% 2512%

501 La Recede France Equ 38.00% 2018%

501 La Rocade Quest France
Equ ty 36.73% 1950%

SCI La Roche Invest France
Full 100.05% 53 10%

SCILC France Full 6000% 191211

Sd La Grand Prd France
Full 6000% 31.86%

SCI La Mao France
Full 6000% 31.8611

SC rEmpeni France
Equity 15.00% 7.07%

SCI Les Bus Champs France Prop 50.00% 26.5511

Sd Las Boutiques dOsny France Full 6700% 20.32%

Sd Las Rosaaua Fnance

SCI Maaimeuble France
Full 100.05% 53.10%

SCI Osny ovest France
Full 57.12% 30.33%

Sd Plateau de Plenin France

SCI Plateau den Hams France Full 90.00% 4779%

SCI Pomrneraie Fare France
Full 60.00% 31.86%

SC Rebecca France
Full 70.00% 37.17%

OCt Saint Maairnin Construction France
Full 55.00% 29.21%

Sd Sandni-Rorne France Equity 15.00% 7.97%

Sd Secovalde France Full 55.00% 29.21%

SCI Sogegamar France Equity 33.12% 17.59%

SOS Begles Arcins France Prop 50.00% 26.55%

SOS ecer Europe Sud France
Full 83.00% 44.07%

SOS ShgHcd France Ful 105.00% 53.10%

SdgØcd Ceska Republika en SRO FMC Certra Europe Czech Repub Full 100.00% 53.10%

SegecØ Espana en SL Cnntrss Shopp rg Gest orr Spain Fall 105.00% 53.10%

SØgHcØ Hellas RHal Estate Management Greece
Full 100.00% 53.10%

SØghcd ndia Priaatn Limited lode
Full 105.00% 53.10%

Segece talia lea SARL PSG Italy Full 100.05% 5310%

SdgØcd Magyaronszog Hungary Full 100.00% 53.10%

SØgecØ Folska Pound Full 100.05% 53.10%

Segece Portugal lea SA Sogecaec Portugal Full 100.00% 53.10%

Senterdrift Asane Senter AS Norway Prop 49.90% 14.87%

Sosiden AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.7901

Sjosiden Drift AS Norway Full 100.05% 29.79%

Frenoh subsidianes whose regulatory superas en falls within the scope of the consolidated Onoup in aneerdanne sip arodv 4.101 CROP regulation 2000.03

Movements orb months to 30 June 2007

Movements for months to 31 December 2007

Movements for months to 30 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisition 9- Change of method Ful consolidation to proportionate method

2- Entity new incorporated or passing qualifying threshold 10- Change of method Equity method to proportionate method

3- Disposa 11 Reconsolidation

4- Decoosoddation 12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method non-material

5- Merger between coosohdated entities 13- Business transters doe to the creation of Itahan retail banking segmeot

6- Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidation 14- Entities excluded from prudential scope of consolidation

7- Change of method Eu conno idation to equity method 15- Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpose

8- Chaoge of method Equity method to full conso ioation
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Name Cuantay Method
Group voting Group ownership

interest f%l r4eesst f%l

Klepierre xontd

SkarerStormarkedAS Norway Full
10505% 29.79%

SNC Arrgoumars Frarrce Full 100.00% 53.10%

SNC Fonciere Sacrt Gerrnain France Ful 130 00% 53.10%

SNCGaae France Fu 100 00% 5310%

SOC General Leclenc il-lib Levalluis France Full
100 00% 5310%

SOC GierSernicee Entrepnsee GSE France

SNC Jardins des Pnnces France Full 100.00% 53 10%

SOC CC 12 France Full 100.00% 44.07%

SNC KC2O France Full 100.00% 4407%

SNC Kleber Ia Perouse France Full
100 00% 53.10%

SNC Klecar France France Ful 8300% 4407%

SOC Klegestior France

SOC Klhpierre Conseil France Full 100.00% 5310%

SOC Kletraesactrons France Full 100.00% 53 10%

SOC Le Bapac Victcr France Full 100.00% 53.10%

SNC Le Haure Lafayette France Prop 50.00% 2655%

SOC Le Havre Vauban France Prop 5000% 26.55%

SNC Parc de Coquel es France Prop 5000% 26.55%

SOC Pasteur France Full 100.00% 53.10%

SOC SAgAcØ Lojsrs Transactions France

SOC Scccendre France Full
100.00% 53 10%

SNC Societe des Centres SOc et dOll SCOO France Full 79.94% 42 45%

SOC Sodevac France Full 100.00% 53.10%

SOC Sodineo France Fu 100 00% 40.26%

Societe des Centres Toulousains Frunce Full 100.00% 64.45%

Sosrowiec Puce zoo Poland Full
100.00% 5310%

SSI Amanda SerterdriftAS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

SSI Gulskogen Sentendrift AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

SSI Ilestrom Senterdnft AS Norway Full 10000% 2979%

SSI Lillestnom Torn AS Norway Fu 100.00% 29.79%

SSTStaoungerDnftAS Norway Fu lOS 00% 29.79%

Staosnger Storsanter AS Norway Full
10000% 29.79%

Steen Strom ASA Norway Full 100 00% 2979%

Steen Strom CenterDnifl A/S Dermurk Full 100.00% 2979%

Steer Strom Ceeterudu erg IV 005 Denmark Pal 100.00% 2979%

Steen Strom Centerudoikhng NO Denmark Full 100.00% 2979%

Steen Strom CenterUdvikling VI NO Denmark Full 100.00% 25.79%

Steen Strum CentenUdoikling VI NO Denmark Fu 10000% 29.79%

Steen Strum Danemark 005 Denmark Fu 100 00% 29.79%

Steen Strom Drammen AS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79%

Steer Strom Drft AS Norway Full 100 00% 29.79Sf

Steer Strom endomsforoaltnerg AS Norway Ful 100 00% 29.79Sf

Steer Strom Holding AB Sweden Pu 100 00% 2979Sf

Steen Strom Ho ding AS Denmark Full 100.00% 2979Sf

Steen Strom noestAS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79f

Steen Strum Narvik AS Norway Fu 10000% 29.79Sf

Steer Strom Norvege AS Norway Full
100 00% 29.79Sf

Steer Strom Noruhges Starste Senterkjede AS Norway Fu 100 00% 2979%

Steen Strom Sentersemioe AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979Sf

Steen Strom Suede AB Sweden Full 155 05% 29.79Sf

Storm Holding Nossays AS Norway Fu 100 00% 29.79%

Stooner Sentar AS Norway Full
100 00% 29.79f

Stoorer Sen/er Hold eg AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Stoonen Seeterdrift AS Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

Suenor AS Norway Full 100.00% 29 795

Tillertorget Drift AS Norway Full
100.00% 29.79%

French subsidiaries whose ego atery superuisien Sale with the scope of the corwe dated Group in accordanor wth urncled tel CRBF soc coon 2000.03

Mooemento forb months to 30 June 2007

Moyements for months ts3l December 2007

CI Mooements for mooths to 30 June 2008

DI Monements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquisif ion

0-
Entity newly incorporated or psosing qualifying threshold

Dinpoxal

Deconsolidation

Merger between consolidated entities

Changes method Prsportionate method to fu conoo idation

Chsnge of method Full consoltdation to equity method

Change of method Equity method to full consolidation

Change of method Fu consolidation to proportiooate method

10- Change of method Equrty method to proportionate method

11 Reconsolidation

12- Entities conso idated using simplified equity method noo-materiol

13- Business transfers due to the creation of Italian retail banking segment

14- Entities excluded from prudential scope of consolidation

15 Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudentis purpose
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Name Countay Method Group owneeship

Klepierre contd

Tombyeri Drift AS Norway Full 3800% 11 32%

Tnivbyen Seater AS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Torebyerr Ulvjklirtg
AS

Norway Full 100 00% 2979%

Toruhjornet Lillestrom ANS Norway Full 100.00% 29.79%

Vastra Tarp Mark AB Sweden
Full 10000% 29 79%

VinlebroSenterDA Norway Full 100.00% 2979%

Vinterbro Eie000nrsdrift AS
Norway Full 10000% 29.79%

French subs dianes whose regularorp auperursion tallow thin the scope of the cereal dated Group in accordance oath article4 at CROF regulalien 2000 03

Movements for6 menths to 30 Juoe 2007

Movements for months 8031 December 2007

Movements for months 8030 June 2008

Movements for months to 31 December 2008

Acquieition 9- Change of method Ful consolidation to proportionate method

2- Entity newly incorporated or passing qualifying threehold 10- Change of method Equtty method to proportionste method

Disposal 11 Reconeolidation

4- Deconsolidation 12- Entities consolidated using simplified equity method non-material

5- Merger between consolidated entities 13- Buninees tranafere due to the creation of Ita
ian retsil banking segment

Change of method Proportionate method to full consolidation 14- Entities socluded from prudential ocope of conno idatton

Change of method Full consolidation to equity method 15 Entites consolidated under the equity method for prudential purpoee

Change of method Equity method to full conso idatiso
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8.c BUSINESS COMBINATIONS

Business combinations in the year ended 31 December 2008

Acquired subsidiaries

SREI Equipment Finance Private Limited IRS

In April 2008 BNP Paribas Lease Group subsidiary of BNP Paribas acquired 50% of the capital of

Indian infrastructure financing company SREI Equipment Finance Private Limited which was

proportionately consolidated in the second half of 2008 Its contribution to the BNP Paribas Groups net

income was not material in 2008

Banco BGN

In October 2008 BNP Paribas SA acquired 100% of Banco BGN leading supplier of consumer credit

in Brazil with some one hundred branches plus approximately one thousand banking correspondents

throughout the country and portfolio of 600000 customers

Banco BGN was consolidated as of its acquisition date Its contribution to the BNP Paribas Groups net

income was not material in 2008

In millions of euros

Balance sheet keyfigure at the acquisition date

Assets Liabilities

SREI Equipment Finance Private Limited

IRS India 50% 136 69 113 Loanstocustomers 483 Miountsduetocredit 423

institutions

Debt securities 85

Banco BGN

IRS Brazl 100% 318 240 75 Loanstocustomers 617 knountsduetocredit 338

institutions

Customers demand 250

accounts

Groupe Steen Strm

Other Norway 56.1% 628 578 Investrnentproperty 2849 kaountsduetocredit 1478

activites Sweden institutions

and

Denmark

Bank of Americas prime brokerage business

CIB United 100% 455 176 480 12537

States

In euro equivalent value at the year-end

Provisional data in market value or equivalent

Loans to customers

Financial assets atfair 28973 Financial assets atfair

salue through proftor loss salue through profitor loss

Miounts due to credit

6005
institutions

Customers demand

accounts

2551

19142
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Steen Strom Group

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 200

In October 2008 KlØpierre subsidiary of BNP Paribas acquired 56.1% of the Steen Strom Group
Scandinavias leading integrated shopping centre investor The Steen Strm Group comprises 120
companies including 77 in Norway 27 in Sweden and 16 in Denmark

The Steen Strom Group was consolidated as of its acquisition date 111 eittities fully consolidated

and proportionately consolidated The excess of cost over the book value of the underlying assets

acquired was allocated in full to fair value adjustments tO property assets The Steen Strom Group
contribution to the BNP Paribas Group net income was not material in 2008

Bank of Americas prime brokerage business

In September 2008 BNP Paribas SA acquired the Bank of Americas prime brokerage business which

provides broad range of services to hedge funds including secured financing settlement delivery and

custody of securities stock lending investor presentations and customised information technology

solutions

These activities are primarily housed within two subsidiaries BNP Paribas Prime Brokerage Inc and

BNP Paribas Prime Brokerage International Ltd which were consolidated as of their acquisition date
Their contribution to the BNP Paribas Groups net income was not material in 2008

Business combinations in the year ended 31 December 2007

In millions of euros

Segme Pcquired

Acquired subsidiaries
Countiy Asquisifion Net cash

Balance sheet keyfigure at the acquisifion date121

pe ge Goodwill1

pnce inflow
Assets Liabitifies

Sahara Bank LSC

IRBFS Libya 19% 146 106 146 Loanstocustomersand 3255 Customersdemand 2525
loans due from credit accounts

institutons and amounts

due from central banks

BNP Paribas Personal Finance AED exJetFinance International

IRBFS
Bulgaria

100% 172 172 172 Loansto customers 73 Bond issues 79

Banque PrivØe Anjou

AIvIS France 100% 183 68 78 Loans due from credit 124 Mouritsdueto credit 38

and institutons institutions

French

Retsil

and loans to customers 273 and customers demand 277

Banking
accounts

RBS International Securities Services Limited

AMS Unitsd 100% 174 124 174 Loanaduefrom credit 2580 Customers demand 2111

Kingdom institutons accounts

Exelbank

PAlS Spain 100% 65 39 391

In euro equivalent value at the year-end 31 december 2007

Provisional data in market value or equivalent

At historical cost

65 Loansduefrom credit

institutions

413 Customers demand

accounts
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Sahara Bank LSC

In September 2007 BNP Paribas SA acquired 19% of the capital of Sahara Bank full-service bank

with 1500 employees and market share of 17% in loans and 22% in deposits in Libya This

subsidiary has been consolidated since the fourth quarter of 2007 Sahara Banks contribution to

BNP Paribas net income was not material in 2007

The main shareholder of Sahara Bank LSC the Social and Economic Development Fund transferred

operational control of the bank to BNP Paribas at the date BNP Paribas acquired its 19% interest Under

the shareholders agreement between the Social and Economic Development Fund and BNP Paribas the

Group may appoint the majority of the members of the Board of Directors thereby granting it control

over the management of Sahara Bank BNP Paribas also has call option exercisable after three to five

years on 32% of Sahara Banks capital If exercised BNP Paribas would own majority stake of 51%

Sahara Bank LSC was accounted for by the equity method in the BNP Paribas Groups 2007

consolidated financial statements and has been fully consolidated since January 2008

BNP Paribas Personal Finance AED formerly JetFinance International

In November 2007 Cetelem S.A acquired all of the shares of BNP Paribas Personal Finance AED the

leading supplier of consumer credit in Bulgaria with network of 3600 outlets and portfolio of

500000 customers

This subsidiary has been consolidated since the acquisition date Its contribution to the BNP Paribas

Groups net income was not material in 2007

BNP Paribas Personal Finance AED was accounted for by the equity method in the Groups 2007

consolidated financial statements and has been fully consolidated since January 2008

Banque PrivØe Anjou

In May 2007 BNP Paribas SA acquired the entire capital of Dexia Banque PrivØe France subsequently

renamed Banque PrivØe Anjou Banque PrivØe Anjou manages over EUR 2.2 billion in assets mainly for

individual clients and not-for-profit organisations

This subsidiary has been consolidated since the acquisition date The contribution of Banque PrivØe

Anjou to the BNP Paribas Groups net income was not material in 2007

As Banque PrivØe Anjou transferred all of its assets and liabilities to BNP Paribas SA on 28 December

2007 from that date it was no longer recognised as consolidated subsidiary of BNP Paribas

RBS International Securities Services Limited

In June 2007 BNP Paribas acquired the entire capital of RBS International Securities Services Limited

RBS International Securities Services Limited offers global custody fund administration and corporate

trustee services to fund managers and private asset managers in the offshore markets of Jersey

Guernsey and the Isle of Man It has over EUR 44 billion of assets in custody and EUR billion in

assets under administration

RBS International Security Services was consolidated in the second half of 2007 Its contribution to the

BNP Paribas Groups net income was not material in 2007
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Exelbank

In June 2007 BNP Paribas Securities Services subsidiary of BNP Paribas acquired the entire capital

of Exelbank This Spanish bank offers settlement-delivery custody and depositary services and private

banking outsourcing services

This subsidiary has been consolidated since the second half of 2007 Exelbanks contribution to the

BNP Paribas Groups net income was not material in 2007

Exelbank merged with the Spanish branch of BNP Paribas Securities Services in October 2007 the

retrospective value date with regard to its acquisition by the BNP Paribas Group
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8.d REMUNERATION AND BENEFITS AWARDED TO THE GRouPs CORPORATE OFFICERS

Remuneration and benefits policy relating to the Groups corporate officers

Remuneration paid to the Groups corporate officers

The remuneration paid to the Groups corporate officers is determined by the method

recommended by the Compensation Committee and approved by the Board of Directors

This remuneration comprises both fixed and variable component the levels of which are

determined using market benchmarks established by firms specialised in surveys of executive

remuneration in the European banking sector

The variable component is determined by reference to basic bonus which is calculated as

proportion of the officers fixed remuneration and varies in line with Group performance criteria

as well as the attainment of personal objectives

Group performance criteria account for 70% of the basic bonus and are used to calculate the

corresponding portion of the variable remuneration based on the change in the relevant

indicators

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

Change in earnings per share 35% of basic bonus
Achievement of budgeted Group gross operating income 35% of basic bonus

Chief Operating Officers

Change in earnings per share 17.5% of basic bonus
Achievement of budgeted Group gross operating income 17.5% of basic bonus
Change in net income before tax of businesses for which they are responsible

17.5% of basic bonus
Achievement of budgeted gross operating income of businesses for which they are

responsible 17.5% of basic bonus

Personal objective-based criteria concern managerial performance as assessed by the Board of

Directors The Boards assessment is made in view of the foresight decision-making and leadership

skills shown by the officer in implementing the Groups strategy and preparing its future These criteria

are clearly defined and account for 30% of the basic bonus

The variable component of corporate officers remuneration is capped at level set in proportion to the

basic remuneration and since 2005 has been paid in full during the following year

The Chairman of the Board of Directors the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Operating Officers do

not receive any remuneration from Group companies except BNP Paribas SA

AFEP-MEDEF corporate governance code point 20-2
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Post-employment benefits

Termination benefits

Corporate officers are not entitled to any contractual compensation on termination of office

Retirement bonuses

Michel Pbereau is not entitled to retirement bonus Baudouin Prot Chief Executive Officer

Georges Chodron de Courcel and Jean-Laurent BonnafØ Chief Operating Officers are entitled

under their employment contracts to the standard retirement bonus benefits awarded to all

BNP Paribas employees Under this standard scheme employees receive bonus on retirement

from the Group of up to 11.66 months basic salary depending on their initial contractual

position and length of service at their retirement date The bonus is capped at EUR 14112

Pension plans

The defined benefit plans previously granted to executive managers of the Group who were

formerly employed by BNP Paribas or Compagnie Bancaire have all been converted into top-

up type plans The amounts allocated to the beneficiaries were fixed when the previous

schemes were closed to new entrants

similar procedure was applied to Michel PØbereau Chairman of the Board of Directors
Baudouin Prot Chief Executive Officer and Georges Chodron de Courcel Chief Operating

Officer Pursuant to articles 137.11 and 137.16 of the French Social Security Code
these three corporate officers now belong to contingent collective top-up pension plan
Under this plan their pensions will be calculated subject to their still being part of the

Group on retirement on the basis of the fixed and variable remuneration received in 1999

and 2000 with no possibility of acquiring any subsequent rights

The amount of retirement benefits including the pensions paid out by the general French

Social Security scheme and the ARRCO and AGIRC top-up schemes plus any additional

banking industry pension arising from the industry-wide agreement that took effect on

January 1994 and pension rights acquired as result of payments by the employer into top-

up funded schemes is capped at 50% of the above-mentioned remuneration amounts

These retirement benefits will be revalued from January 2002 until their actual payment

date based on the average annual rate of increase in pension benefits paid by the French

Social Security ARRCO and AGIRC schemes The increase in potential pension rights for

2008 will be limited to the effects of this revaluation On payment of the benefits the top-up

pensions will be equal to the differential between these revalued amounts and the pension

benefits provided by the above-mentioned general and top-up schemes Once the amount of

these top-up benefits has been finally determined the benefit will then be indexed to the

growth rate in the benefit value per point under the AGIRC scheme

These obligations were covered by provisions recorded by BNP or Paribas as appropriate The

amount of these provisions was adjusted when the legacy plans were closed and the

obligations transferred to an external insurance company

The Chairman of the Board of Directors the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Operating

Officers belong to the defined-contribution pension plan set up for all BNP Paribas SA

employees in accordance with article 83 of the French General Tax Code

AFEP-MEDEF corporate governance code point 20-2-4

Baudouin Prots employment contract see Chairmans report on corporate governance

AFEP-MEDEF corporate governance code point 20-2-5
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Wefare benefit plans

The Chairman of the Board of Directors the Chief Executive Officer and the Chief Operating

Officers are entitled to the same flexible welfare benefits death and disability cover as all

BNP Paribas SA employees

They are also entitled to the same benefits under the Garantie Vie Professionnelle Accidents

death/disability cover plan as all BNP Paribas SA employees and to the supplementary plan

set up for members of the Group Executive Committee which pays out additional capital of

EUR 1.08 million in the event of work-related death or total and permanent disability

If Baudouin Prot or Georges Chodron de Courcel die before the age of 60 their heirs will

receive compensation under an insurance policy The premium applicable under this policy is

paid by the Group and treated in accordance with the social security rules applicable to

employers contributions to top-up welfare schemes in France

Remuneration due in respect of 2008 and remuneration paid in 2008

Michel PØbereau Baudouin Prot and Georges Chodron de Courcel have decided to waive their

rights to any variable compensation in respect of 2008 The Board of Directors has approved

these decisions The amounts in question determined on an indicative basis in line with the

remuneration policy for corporate officers described above would have amounted to EUR
471843 for Michel Pºbereau EUR 1255104 for Baudouin Prot and EUR 908390 for Georges
Chodron de Courcel These amounts have been calculated by applying the rate of change in the

indicators used for each corporate officer to calculate the portion of variable remuneration

related to Group performance criteria to the portion related to the attainment of personal

objectives

The variable remuneration due to Jean-Laurent BonnafØ in respect of 2008 has been determined

in line with the policy applicable to members of the Executive Committee for the period from

January 2008 to 31 August 2008 During this period Jean-Laurent BonnafØ was responsible for

French Retail Banking and BNL banca commerciale in Italy Jean-Laurent BonnafØ has waived

his rights to any variable remuneration in respect of the period from September 2008 when he

was appointed Chief Operating Officer to 31 December 2008 The amount in question
determined on the same indicative basis as for Michel PØbereau Baudouin Prot and Georges

Chodron de Courcel would have amounted to EUR 223933

The Board of Directors took due note of these amounts which were presented by the

Compensation Committee It stressed that the portion of variable remuneration related to

personal objectives as calculated above should not be considered as reflecting the Boards

judgment on the corporate officers managerial performance in the climate of crisis that swept

through 2008
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The tables below show gross remuneration paid to the Groups corporate officers in 2008 including

benefits in kind and directors fees payable for 2008 The variable remuneration paid in 2008 relates to

2007

Remuneration paid in 2008

In euros

Michel PEBEREAU

Remuneration

Directors fees

Variable Deferred

Benefits inldnd TOTAL

Remuneration

Chairman of the Board of Directors

2008 700000 875000 109200 29728 1671 1715599

2007 700000 1051070 247940 29728 2490 2031228

Baudouin PROT

Chief Executine Officer

2008 945833 2158918 159200 118907 5064 3387922

2007 900000 2233999 277830 143418 5362 3560609

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL

Chief Operaing Officer

2008 595833 1623002 124000 117628 4370 2464833

2007 545833 1519045 249030 149117 4271 2467296

Jean-Laurent BONNAFE

Chief Operaing Officer period from 1st September to 31 December 2008

2008 166667 18958 1445 187070

2007

Jean CL.AIvION

Chief Operaing Officer period from 1st January10 31 August 2008

2008 306667 529862 44800 32461 3135 916925

2007 460000 704122 89030 172393 4703 1430248

Total remuneraion payable to the Groups corporate
officers for 2008 8672349

for 2007 9489381

Corresponding to the transfer of the final third of the 2004 deferred bonus in cash

Baudoin Prots variable remuneration in respect of 2007 paid in 2008 was reduced by EUR 113690 corresponding to

directors fees received in 2007

Georges Chodron de Courcels variable remuneration in respect of 2007 paid in 2008 was reduced by EUR 149117

corresponding to directors fees received in 2007

Jean Clamons variable remuneration in respect of 2007 paid in 2008 was reduced by EUR 172393 corresponding to

directors fees received in 2007

5The average payroll tax rate on this remuneration was 39.4% in 2008 1.6% in 2007
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The tables below show gross remuneration paid to the Groups corporate officers in 2008 including

benefits in kind and directors fees payable for 2008 The variable remuneration paid in 2008 relates to

2007

Remuneration paid in 2008

In euros

Michel PEBEREAU

Chairman of the Board of Directors

Remuneration

Variable Deferred

Benefits in kind

Directors fees

TOTAL

Remuneration

2008 700000 875000 109200 29728 1671 1715599

2007 700000 1051070 247940 29728 2490 2031228

Baudouin PROT

Chief Execuive Officer

2008 945833 2158918 159200 118907 5064 3387922

2007 900000 2233999 277830 1434I8 5362 3560609

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL

Chief Operaing Officer

2008 595833 1623002 124000 117628 4370 2464833

2007 545833 1519045 249030 149117 4271 2467296

Jean-Laurent BONNFE

Chief Operaing Officer period from 1st September to 31 December 2008

2008 166667 18958 1445 187070

2007

Jean CLNlON

Chief Operaing Officerperiod from lstJanuaryto 31 kJgust2008

2008 306667 529862 44800 32461 3135 916925

2007 460000 704122 89030 172393 4703 I430248

Total remunerahon payable to the Groups corporate officers for 2008 8672349

for 2007 9489381

corresponding to the transfer of the final third of the 2004 deferred bonus in cash

Baudoin Prots variable remuneration in respect of 2007 paid in 2008 was reduced by EUR 113690 corresponding to

directors fees received in 2007

Georges chodron de courcels variable remuneration in respect of 2007 paid in 2008 was reduced by EUR 149117

corresponding to directors fees received in 2007

Jean damons variable remuneration in respect of 2007 paid in 2008 was reduced by EUR 172393 corresponding to

directors fees received in 2007

5The average payroll tax rate on this remuneration was 39.4% in 2008 31.6% in 2007
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Benefits awarded to the Groups corporate officers

Post-employment benefits

Retrenmnt bonuses

Present value of the benefit obligation 470347 524901

Contngentcollecbve detned-benettlep-up pension plan

Total present value of the berefft ohegation 286 305

Detned corhibuton pension plan

Contjbutions paid by the company dunng the year 1464 1416

Welfare benefits

Flexible
personal

risk
plan

Premiums paid by the company dunng the year

Garante Ve Proessionnelle Acddents deafildisabilily cover plan

Premiums paid by the company dunng the year

Supplerrrenlery personal rtsk plan

Premiums paid by the company during the
year

Stock subscription option plans

Policy

10662 10312

209761 229924

Under the authorisations granted by Shareholders General Meetings BNP Paribas has set up Global

Share-based Incentive Plan which combines stock options with share awards The policy for granting

options and share awards to all beneficiaries is described in Note on salaries and employee benefits

share-based payment The provisions of the plan relating to stock options were approved by the Board

of Directors and apply in full to the corporate officers

Corporate officers are not entitled to share awards

In principle the Board of Directors grants stock options to the Groups corporate officers on an annual

basis The options do not carry discount

Stock options are granted to corporate officers as long-term incentive in accordance with

shareholders interests The number of options granted to corporate officers is determined by the Board

of Directors using market benchmarks established by firms specialised in surveys of executive

remuneration in the European banking sector

The corporate officers are not allowed to hedge their risk

The plans are subject to vesting conditions under which portion 30% of the options granted in 2008

over and above minimum threshold of 3000 options is conditional upon the performance of the BNP

Paribas share relative to the Dow Jones Euro Stoxx Bank index This relative performance is measured

at the end of the second third and fourth years of the compulsory holding period Depending on the

results of this measurement the exercise price of the portion of the options subject to this performance-
related condition may be increased by 5% 10% or 20% or their exercise may be deemed null and void

At meeting held after the publication of the AFEP-MEDEFs recommendations on October 2008 the

Board of Directors expressed its intention to apply all the recommendations on stock options as of the

next plan and in this respect to apply performance conditions to all the stock options granted to

corporate officers

AFEP-MEDEF corporate governance code point 20-2

9376 9365
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Aggregate

OPTIONS EXERCISED IN 2008

Michel PEBEREAU 61072 36.95 13/05/1998 13105/2008

Baudouin PROT 30.626 36.95 1310511998 13/05/2008

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL 4000 36.78 21/03/2003 20/03/2013

OPTIONS GRANTED IN 2007

Michel PEBEREAU 50000 82.70 08/03/2007 06/03/2015 703450 0.600% 0.005%

Baudouin PROT 170000 82.70 08/03/2007 06/03/2015 2403420 2.100% 0.018%

Georges CHODRON deCOURCEL 90000 82.70 08/03/2007 06/03/2015 1266210 1.100% 0.010%

Jeao CLAMON 65000 82.70 08/03/2007 06/03/2015 914485 0.800% 0.007%

Aggregate 5287565 4.600% 0.040%

OPTIONS EXERCISED IN 2807

Michel PEBEREAU 60000 36.95 13/05/1998 13/05/2008

Baudouin PROT 40000 36.95 13/05/1998 13/05/2008

Baudouin PROT 36000 18.29 22/05/1997 22/05/2007

Baudouin PROT 14438 18.29 22/05/1997 22/05/2007

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL 56000 36.78 21/03/2003 20/03/2013

Georges CHODRONI de COURCEL 8069 38.62 21/03/2003 20/03/2013

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL 8069 38.62 21/03/2003 20/03/2013

Jean CLAMON 1266 48.57 15/05/2001 14/05/2011

Jean CLAMON 15000 48.57 15/05/2001 14/05/2001

BNP PARIBAS

Options granted and exercised in 2008

OPTIONS GRANTED IN 2008

Michel PEBEREAU

Baudouin PROT

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL

Jean CLAMON

Ifldividual aIgcation valuation

50000

170000

100000

60000

66.10 18/04/2008 15/04/2016 836450 0.745% 0.005%

86.10 18/04/2008 15/04/2016 2843930 2.534% 0.019%

66.10 18/04/2008 15/04/2016 1672900 1.491% 0.011%

66.10 18/04/2008 15/04/2016 1003740 0.894% 0.007%

6357020 5.664% 0.042%

The stock options granted in 2008 which were not subject to performance conditions have been valued for

accounting purposes at EUR 17.32 each EUR 14.57 in 2007
The stock options granted in 2008 which were subject to performance conditions have been valued for accounting

purposes at EUR 15.35 each EUR 12.90 in 2007

Percentage of the expense recognised for the Global Share-based Incentive Plan which combines stock options

with share awards
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Simyftmun.ronandstOckoptlons paid to Individual conorate officers

Michel PEBEREAU

Chairman of the Board of Directors

2008

Remuneraon for the year 731399 1607218

Value of stock opons granted during the year 836450 703450

TOTAL 1567849 2310668

Baudouin PROT

Chief Executi Officer

Rem unerafion for the year 1069804 3320248

Value of stock optons granted during the year 2843930 2403420

TOTAL 3913734 5723668

Jean-Laurent BONNAFE

Chief Operang Officer period from 1st September to 31 December 2008

Remuneraon for the year 187070

Value of stock options granted dudng the year N/A

TOTAL 187070 N/A

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL

Chief Operatng Officer

Remuneraon for the year 717831 2470201

Value of stock opfions granted during the year 1672900 1266210

TOTAL 2390731 3736411

Jean CLAM ON

Chief Operating Officer period from lstJanuaryto 31 August2008

Remuneraon for the year 342263 1306648

Value of stock opfions granted during the year 1003740 914485

TOTAL 1346003 2221133

The table below shows the number of outstanding options held by the Groups corporate officers at 31

December 2008

II II IIl111 III1T11 I1i.FThi UIII I1lLflh1

Date of grant
22/1 2/1 999 15/05/2001 21/03/2003 25/03/2005 05/04/2006 08/03/2007 18/04/2008

Michel PEBEREAU 221917 221948 226959 100880 100000 50000 50000

Baudouin PROT 131133 141240 196697 151319 180000 170000 170000

Georges CHODRON de COURCEL 4559 60529 90000 90000 100000

Jean-Laurent BONNAFE 40353 50000 60000 60000

Number of optons outstanding atend-2008 353050 363188 428215 353081 420000 370000 380000
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Compulsory share ownership Holding period for shares received on exercise of stock options

As from January 2008 Michel PØbereau Baudouin Prot and Georges Chodron de Courcel are

required to own minimum number of shares for the duration of their term of office calculated based

on both the opening BNP Paribas share price and their fixed remuneration at January 2007 The

number of shares held must be equal to years fixed salary for Michel PØbereau 58700 shares and

Baudouin Prot 80000 shares This obligation must be complied with by 13 February 2010 at the

latest

The Board has set compulsory share holding of 30000 shares for Jean-Laurent BonnafØ which is

identical to the amount set for Georges Chodron de Courcel the other Chief Operating Officer Jean-

Laurent BonnafØ must comply with this obligation no later than five years after the date of his

appointment as corporate officer i.e September 2013

The Chairman of the Board of Directors Chief Executive Officer and Chief Operating Officers are also

required to hold quantity of shares issued following the exercise of stock options for the duration of

their term of office This holding requirement represents 50% of the net gain realised on the purchase of

shares under options granted as from January 2007 for Michel PØbereau Baudouin Prot and Georges

Chodron de Courcel and as from September 2008 for Jean-Laurent BonnafØ It will be considered as

satisfied once the threshold defined for compulsory share ownership has been reached based on shares

resulting from the exercise of options as of said dates

Remuneration and benefits awarded to employee-elected directors

Total remuneration paid in 2008 to employee-elected directors -- calculated based on their actual

attendance amounted to EUR 98864 in 2008 EUR 81045 in 2007 excluding directors fees The

total amount of directors fees paid in 2008 to employee-elected directors was EUR 68275 EUR 69103

in 2007 These sums were paid directly to the trade union bodies of the directors concerned

Employee-elected directors are entitled to the same death/disability cover and the same Garantie Vie

Professionnelle Accidents benefits as all BNP Paribas SA employees The total amount of premiums paid

into these schemes by BNP Paribas in 2008 on behalf of the employee-elected directors was EUR 1041

EUR 1026 in 2007

The employee-elected directors belong to the defined-contribution plan set up for all BNP Paribas SA

employees in accordance with article 83 of the French General Tax Code The total amount of

contributions paid into this plan by BNP Paribas in 2008 on behalf of the employee-elected directors

was EUR 660 EUR 649 in 2007 Employee-elected directors are also entitled to top-up banking

industry pensions under the industry-wide agreement that took effect on January 1994

Loans advances and guarantees granted to the Groups corporate officers

At 31 December 2008 total outstanding loans granted directly or indirectly to the Groups corporate

officers amounted to EUR 7337398 EUR 6340882 at 31 December 2007
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8.e RELATED PARTiES

Consolidated financiat statements at 31 December 2008

Other related parties of the BNP Paribas Group comprise consolidated companies including entities
consolidated under the equity method and entities managing post-employment benefit plans offered to

Group employees except for multi-employer and multi-industry schemes

Transactions between the BNP Paribas Group and related parties are carried out on an arms length
basis

RELATIONS BETWEEN CONSOLIDATED COMPANIES

list of companies consolidated by BNP Paribas is provided in Note 8.b Scope of consolidation As
transactions and period-end balances between fully-consolidated entities are eliminated in full on
consolidation the tables below only show figures relating to transactions and balances with

companies over which BNP Paribas exercises joint control accounted for by the proportionate
consolidation method showing only the proportion not eliminated on consolidation and ii companies
over which BNP Paribas exercises significant influence accounted for by the equity method

Related-party balance sheet items

31 December 2007

Consolidated Consolidated

entities under the entities under

proportionate the equity

method method

Within the scope of its International Retail Banking and Financial Services business the Group also

carries out trading transactions with related parties involving derivatives swaps options and forwards
and financial instruments equities bonds etc. These transactions are carried out on an arms length
basis

In millions of euros

ASSETS

31 December2008

Consolidated Consolidated

entities under the entities under

proportionate the equity

method method

Loans advances and securities

Demand accounts 49 13 12

Loans 9509 1440 7132 1268

Secudhes 127 54

Finance leases 29

Otherassets 17 13

Total 9694 1499 7206 1281

LIABILITIES

Deposits

Demand accounts 21 216 44 412

Otherborrowings 55 326 12 217

Debt securities 36 29 293

Other liabilities 39 30 77

Total 117 610 94 999

FINANCING COMMITM ENTS AND GUARANTEE COMMITMENTS

Financing commitments given 126 84

Guarantee commitments given 12

Total 128 96
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Related-party profit and loss items

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

Tcai 363 131 254 207

ENTITIES MANAGING POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFIT PLANS OFFERED TO GROUP EMPLOYEES

The main post-employment benefits of the BNP Paribas Group are retirement bonus plans and top-up

defined-benefit and defined-contribution pension plans

In France some of these benefits are paid by the BNP and Paribas pension funds Caisses de retraite

and the BNP welfare benefit fund Caisse de PrØvoyance

The entire obligations of these three institutions have either been transferred to non-Group insurance

company or assumed in full by BNP Paribas SA The BNP pension fund was liquidated in the first half of

2007 and the BNP welfare benefit fund in the second half of 2008

In other countries post-employment benefit plans are generally managed by independent fund

managers or independent insurance companies and occasionally by Group companies in particular

BNP Paribas Asset Management BNP Paribas Assurance Bank of the West and First Hawaiian Bank
In Switzerland dedicated foundation manages benefit plans for BNP Paribas Switzerlands employees

At 31 December 2008 the value of plan assets managed by Group companies was EUR 827 million

EUR 991 million at 31 December 2007 Amounts received relating to services provided by Group

companies in the year to 31 December 2008 totalled EUR 696 thousand and mainly comprised

management and custody fees 2007 EUR 1.1 million

In millions of euros

Interest income

Interest expense

Commission income

Commission expense

Services provided

Services received

Lease income

Yearto3l Dec 2008

onsqlidated Consôlidtd

ethties.wde the ertttt under

propOrtionate the equtty

method method

Year to 31 Dec 2007

Consolidated

entitles under the

proportionate

method

Consolidated

entities under

the equity

method

413 95 236 40

11 24

18 74 22 21

66 18 53

48 117

320 308
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8.f BALANCE SHEET BY MATURITY

Consolidated financial statements at 31 December 2008

The table below gives breakdown of the balance sheet by contractual maturity The maturities of

financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss within the trading portfolio

are regarded as undetermined insofar as these instruments are rntended to be sold or redeemed
before their contractual maturity dates The maturities of variable-income financial assets classified as

available for sale derivative hedging instruments remeasurØrhentadjustments on interest-rate risk

hedged portfolios and undated subordinated debt are also deemed to be undetermined Since the

majority of technical reserves of insurance companies are considered as demand deposits they are not

presented in this table

In millions of euros at3I December 2008

Cash and amounts due from central banks and post office banks 39219 39219

Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss 1192271 1192271

Derivafines used for hedging purposes 4555 4555

Available-for-sale financial assets 16714 3033 6935 18233 22280 63530 130725

Loans and receivables due from credit insttubons 40 22455 12314 15010 5554 6500 7280 69153

Loans and receivables due from customers 41844 41834 40495 58571 128952 182705 494401

Remeasurenent adjustment on interest-rate risk hedged pont 2541 2541

Held-to-maturityfinancial assets 322 21 3239 10489 14076

Financial assets by maturity 1216121 103518 57186 62762 82379 160971 264004 1946941

Due to central banks and post office banks 1047 1047

Financial liabilibesatfairvaluettirough profitonloas 1000809 567 1528 7693 28562 15643 1054802

Derivafives used for hedging purposes 6172 6172

Duetocreditinsfitutons 19365 78749 33945 25076 15376 13676 186187

Duetocustomera 233319 107234 39856 15604 9856 8086 413955

Debtsecudbes 44984 47558 23201 30628 11137 157508

Subordinated debt 1096 542 410 3749 12524 18323

Remeasurement adjustment on interest-rate risk hedged portf 282 282

Financial liabilities by maturity 1008359 253731 231536 123429 71984 88171 61066 1838276

64156 50481 72713 176772 200315

1724

722099 1704 2718 17399 32295 19910

261

23210 75262 36816 11706 14249 8939

199009 96352 36984 9858 2484 2017

37632 39169 27606 23442 13207

1226 15 534 862 3416 12588

20

210965 116221 67431 75886 56661Financial liabilities by maturity 724606 223943

Not Overnight or

to

Ito months to More than
In millions of euros at3I December 2007 month exci Ito years TOTAL

determined demand months year years
overnight

Cash and amounts due from central banks and posl office banks 18542 18542

Financial assets atfair value through proft or loss 931706 931706

Derivatvas used for hedging purposes 2154 2154

Available-for-saleflnancialassets 21869 2971 5034 9611 21558 51551 112594

Loansand receivablesduefrom creditinsfitubons 20636 16222 12656 5323 8871 7408 71116

Loans and receivables due from customers 36679 44959 32278 57154 144893 129140 445103

Remeasurement adjustment on interest-rate risk hedged portl 264 264

Held-to-maturityfnancial assets 513 625 1450 12216 14808

Financial assets by maturity 955465 75857

Due to central banks and post office banks

Financial liabilitea at fair value through proftor loss

Derivatvea used for hedging purposes

Due to credil insfitutons

Due to customers

Debt secunifies

Subordinated debt

Remeasurement adjustment on interest-rate risk hedged porti

1595759

1724

796125

1261

170182

346704

141056

18641

20

1475713
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8.g FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS CARRIED AT AMORTISED COST

The information supplied in this note must be used and interpreted with the greatest caution for the

following reasons

These fair values are an estimate of the value of the relevant instruments as of

31 December 2008 They are liable to fluctuate from day to day as result of changes in

various parameters such as interest rates and credit quality of the counterparty In

particular they may differ significantly from the amounts actually received or paid on

maturity of the instrument In most cases the fair value is not intended to be realised

immediately and in practice might not be realised immediately Consequently this fair

value does not reflect the actual value of the instrument to BNP Paribas as going

concern

Most of these fair values are not meaningful and hence are not taken into account in

the management of the commercial banking activities which use these instruments

Estimating fair value for financial instruments carried at historical cost often requires

the use of modelling techniques hypotheses and assumptions that may vary from bank

to bank This means that comparisons between the fair values of financial instruments

carried at historical cost as disclosed by different banks may not be meaningful

The fair values shown below do not include the fair values of non-financial instruments

such as property plant and equipment goodwill and other intangible assets such as the

value attributed to demand deposit portfolios or customer relationships Consequently
these fair values should not be regarded as the actual contribution of the instruments

concerned to the overall valuation of the BNP Paribas Group

14076

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

Due to credit insitutions 186187 185481 170182 169919

Due to customers 413955 414111 346704 346645

Debtsecunies 157508 156871 141056 140495

Subordinated debt 18323 15874 18641 18100

The carrying amount does not include the remeasurement of portfolios of financial instruments in fair

value hedging relationships At 31 December 2008 this is included within Remeasurement adjustment on

interest-rate risk hedged portfolios as EUR 2541 million under assets and EUR 282 million under liabilities

negative EUR 264 million and positive EUR 20 million respectively at 31 December 2007

The fair value of financial instrument is defined as the amount for which an asset could be

exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arms length transaction

The valuation techniques and assumptions used by BNP Paribas ensure that the fair value of financial

assets and liabilities is measured on consistent basis throughout the Group Fair value is based on

prices quoted in an active market when these are available In other cases fair value is determined

using valuation techniques such as discounting of estimated future cash flows for loans liabilities and

held-to-maturity financial assets or specific valuation models for other financial instruments as

described in note Principal accounting policies applied by the BNP Paribas Group In the case of

in millions of euros

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Loans and receivables due from credit institulons

Loans and receivables due from customers

Held-to-matuntyinancial assets

31 December 2008

Carrying value Estimated fair

value

31 December 2007

Carrying value Estimated fair

Ii value

71116 70846

445103 441939

14808 15083

69153 68944

494401 484798

15017
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loans liabilities and held-to-maturity financial assets that have an initial maturity of less than one year

including demand deposits or are granted on floating-rate terms fair value equates to carrying

amount The same applies to most regulated savings products

The change in market conditions over the year revealed widening of spreads on bank financing and

investment activities from approximately 80 basis points for clients having the three highest ratings in

the banks internal rating system to approximately 1500 basis points for clients having the lowest

rating these figures were 10 basis points and 200 basis points respectively in 2007 These observed

changes were taken into account in the fair value estimated for financial assets Debt securities with

residual maturities of more than one year were measured assuming widening in the Banks spread of

approximately 50 basis points which is consistent with the change in spread taken into account in the

measurement of the debt at fair value through profit and loss in the case of subordinated debt the

widening in the Banks spread taken into account in the valuation was approximately 230 basis points

10 basis points and 60 basis points respectively in 2007
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8.h CONTINGENT LIABILITIES LEGAL PROCEEDING AND ARBITRATION

Legal action has been taken against several Algerian and international banks including

BNP Paribas El Djazair BNP Paribas SA subsidiary for administrative errors in processing

international trade financing applications in which the Algerian authorities did not incur any damages

BNP Paribas El Djazair has been accused of non-compliance with foreign exchange regulations in seven

cases before Algerian courts BNP Paribas El Djazair was ordered by lower court to pay fines of

approximately EUR 200 million Three of these cases were subsequently overturned on appeal

including the case involving the most significant amount EUR 150 million Two other appeals rulings

have upheld fines totalling EUR 50 million

All of these rulings have been appealed and execution has been suspended pending the outcome of

these appeals pursuant to Algerian law BNP Paribas El Djazair will continue to vigorously defend itself

before the Algerian courts with view to obtaining recognition of its good faith towards the authorities

which suffered no actual damages

In December 2006 the Bank was named as defendant along with AWB Limited an Australian

exporter of wheat and Commodity Specialists Company wheat trader based in Minneapolis in

putative class action lawsuit brought in New York The plaintiffs attempted to assert claims on behalf of

all Iraqis who resided in the three northern governorates of Iraq to recover the value of money that the

Iraqi Government allegedly demanded be paid to it by entities that supplied goods to it pursuant to the

United Nations Oil-for-Food Program On October 10 2007 the Bank filed motion to dismiss the

action on the grounds that the Court lacked jurisdiction to hear the case and the plaintiffs had failed to

state claim against the Bank By order dated September 30 2008 the court granted the Banks

motion and dismissed the case in its entirety on the grounds that jurisdiction was lacking because

plaintiffs lacked standing to bring suit On October 22 2008 the plaintiffs filed notice of appeal The

appeal is currently pending in the United States Court of Appeals for the Second Circuit The appeal

does not state the amount of the claimed damages and leaves its determination for trial
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8.1 FEEs PAID TO THE STATUTORY AuDiToRs

DsloA$c$s Pdo.Mdtouuccpr$ TOTM

loW ToW

I19 4lth 31 2$ th1I 2$ th16 2O5T- arlIl $1 ta1t 2$ taiit

Audit

Statutoryaudits
and c500actual audits inc uding

-Issuer 3610 4059 33% 38% 5395 4243 35% 38% 1125 1174 13% 16% 10130 9476 29% 33%

-Consolidated
6033 5828 55% 53% 7939 5176 51% 46% 7102 6064 82% 82% 21074 17068 60% 58%

subsidiaries

Other reaews and seraces directyrelated to the statutory audit engagement mc uding

-Issuer 55 115 1% 1% 990 200 6% 2% 75 1% 1120 315 3% 1%

Consolidated

1112 505 10% 5% 1086 1011 7% 9% 284 51 3% 1% 2484 1567 7% 5%
subsidiaries

Sub-total 10810 10507 99% 97% 15412 10630 99% 95% 8586 7289 99% 99% 34808 28426 99% 97%

Other sereices proeided by tire networks to fully-or proportionally-consolidated subsidiaries

Tasandlegal
32 25 57

Others 104 309 1% 3% 132 515 1% 5% 53 46 1% 1% 289 870 1% 3%

Sub-total 104 309 1% 3% 164 515 1% 5% 78 46 1% 1% 346 870 1% 3%

TOTAL 10914 10816 180% 100% 15576 11145 100% 100% 8664 7335 100% 100% 35154 29296 100% 100%

The audit fees paid to auditors which are not member of the network of one of the auditors certifying

the consolidated financial statements and the non consolidated financial statements of BNP Paribas SA
mentioned in the table above amount to 1274 thousand euros for the year 2008 1498 thousand

euros in 2007 This amount includes 315 thousand euros paid for other reviews and services directly

related to the statutory audit engagement 645 thousand euros in 2007
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